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Financial Highlights
B RHE

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY LFEHBEHPE
Results E
For the year ended 31 December
BZNAMBLEE
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARBTT ARBTE ARETT ARBTR

(restated) (restated)
(&) (E7)
Turnover EEE 221,731 153,468 571,521 604,846 359,609
Gross profit ER 134,904 90,257 422,002 484,235 253,833
(Loss)/profit from operations 454 (&518) /& 7 (113,752) (250,766) (480,944) 269,578 64,575
(Loss)/profit before taxation BRFRT(ER), w5 A (200,289) (355,141) (561,999) 226,428 35,543
(Loss)/profit for the year from ~ FRRED R IFEE:

discontinued operations BH(ER)/&H (168,644) (237,796) (361,903) (48,916) 91,060
(Loss)/profit for the year FR(ER),/ &7 (359,913) (593,202) (963,762) 161,629 115,760

Assets and Liabilities BEMABE

At 31 December
R12A318

2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARBTT ARETT ARSTT ARETR
Total non-current assets knBEERE 718,110 1,488,930 1,637,071 1,670,576 1,578,145
Total current assets RBEERE 480,860 309,344 590,091 1,089,143 984,594
Total current liabilites KB EEE 1,101,770 1625517 1340985 1207003 1367579
Net current liabilities MBAETSE (579,477)  (1,316,173) (750,894) (117,860) (382,985)
Total assets less current liabilities & E RTS8 & 138,633 172,757 886,177 1,552,716 1,195,160
Total non-current liabilties FRBAFERE 116,211 70,834 394,608 123,963 156,138
Net assets BEFE 22,422 101,923 491569 1428753 1,039,022

Total equity attributable to ARR R RREE R
equity shareholders of the Rk
Company 16,279 105,258 489,292 1,420,380 1,027,083
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Chairman’s Statement
FEHE
Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the
“Directors”) of China NT Pharma Group Company Limited
("NT Pharma”) together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”), |
hereby present the annual report of the Company for the year
ended 31 December 2020.

NT Pharma is a technology-based pharmaceutical company
integrated with research and development (“R&D"),
manufacturing and sales of its own products. With its
products covering therapeutic areas including central nervous
system (“CNS"”), oncology and hematology. NT Pharma owns
two new National Class 1 drugs, one wellknown international
innovative brand-name drug and a number of generic
drugs. The Group conducts its drug manufacturing through
three subsidiaries, namely Suzhou First Pharmaceutical Co.,
Ltd.* (“Suzhou First”), Jiangsu NT Biopharma Co., Ltd.*
("Jiangsu Biopharma”) and NT Pharma (Changsha) Co., Ltd.*
(“Changsha Pharma”). The Group owns several sales and
distribution companies with around 1,000 sales professionals
and R&D specialists. It also has an extensive sales network in
the People’s Republic of China (“China” or “PRC"), covering
nearly 10,000 hospitals.

In the year of 2020, the Group devoted much effort to the
adjustment and restructuring of its sales model, tightening
of cost control and improvement of its financial condition.
The overall revenue of the Group from continuing operations
for the year ended 31 December 2020 (the "Year under
Review”) increased by RMB68.2 million to RMB221.7 million,
as compared with RMB153.5 million for the corresponding
period in 2019. Operating loss from continuing operations
for the year ended 31 December 2020 decreased by RMB137
million to RMB113.8 million, as compared with an operating
loss of RMB250.8 million for the corresponding period in
2019. The Group recorded a loss of RMB191.3 million for
the year ended 31 December 2020, as compared with a loss
of RMB355.1 million for the corresponding period in 2019,
representing a decrease of 46.1% year on year.
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued)
FERE (&)

In the year of 2020, the outbreak of novel coronavirus
pneumonia (“COVID-19") epidemic had a significant impact
on the economy, and the Chinese government implemented
strict pandemic prevention and control measures to contain
the spread of the disease, with the pharmaceutical industry
being more affected from March 2020 to May 2020, as
outpatient and ward numbers fell sharply, resulting in a
sudden drop in sales. Despite the tremendous downward
pressure on China’s economic growth, the pharmaceutical
industry was able to maintain its growth momentum under
the guidance of the Outline of the 14th Five-Year Plan for the
National Economic and Social Development of the PRC “The
Fourteen Five-Year Plan” (2021-2025) and the “Healthy China
2030" Planning Outline, and the benefits of growing market
demand and the government's increased investment in the
pharmaceutical industry, which is evolving in the direction of
high-quality and innovation-driven development.

Following last year’'s major institutional reform to streamline
the regulatory framework for drugs, the Chinese government
has intensified its reform efforts by amending the Drug
Administration Law, effective from 1 December 2019, with
the aim of improving health legislation, strengthening drug
administration and increasing penalties for non-compliance.
The legislative reform and the continuous introduction of
extended policies, including the promotion of consistency
evaluation on quality and generic drugs, the adjustment of
the reimbursement drug catalogue, the release of a major
drug-monitoring list and the expansion of the centralised
drug procurement program to more provinces and cities,
have posed significant opportunities and challenges to the
pharmaceutical market and the Group.
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued)
FERE (&)

Moreover, the Group will continue to explore and review
cooperations, joint ventures and investments in suitable
partners, optimizing the asset portfolio and further improve
the Group’s financial conditions. On the other hand, by
complementing with the strength of our partners, we will
build a more competitive platform for our products; we
will endeavour to further improve the Group’s business
performance and profitability so as to create value for our
shareholders.

Lastly, | would like to thank all our employees for their
hard work in the last financial year. The Group values the
unigue contribution from every employee. In the meantime,
| would like to thank our business partners, customers and
shareholders for their loyalty and support during this difficult
time.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to thank the Directors,
the Shareholders and the employees of the Group for their

efforts and dedications and for their support during the year.

Ng Tit
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 31 March 2021
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEENWR D

BUSINESS REVIEW

Challenging economic conditions and the accelerated
implementation of regulatory changes have further intensified
competition in all aspects of the pharmaceutical industry,
putting tremendous pressure on the Group’s results. For the
Year under Review, the revenue of the Group was RMB221.7
million, representing an increase of 44.4% as compared to
RMB153.5 million recorded for the corresponding period in
2019. The increase was mainly attributable to: (i) the change
in industry policies, change in sales model and price; (i) the
sales hindered by the outbreak of COVID-19 epidemic; and (iii)
a change in sales volume of Songzhi Wan due to the lack of
ability to intensify the marketing efforts under the context of
tight resources.

Shusi (generic name: quetiapine fumarate tablets) is the
Group’s major product in the area of CNS. It is the first
proprietary product which is researched and developed,
manufactured and sold by the Group. Shusi is mainly used
for the treatment of schizophrenia and maniacal is insult us
as a result of bipolar affective disorder, which is an atypical
antipsychotic first-tier drug. Shusi has been in the market for
more than 15 years since its debut in 2003. It has developed
a strong brand image which is widely recognised by clinical
practitioners and the market. During the Period Under Review,
the Group has completed all the tasks involving consistency
evaluations in pharmaceutical development, production
transfers and clinical bioequivalence. On 2 January 2020, the
Group received a certification of consistency evaluation for
the generic drug quetiapine fumarate tablets (Shusi) from the
National Medical Products Administration. The completion
of the consistency evaluation does not only represent the
recognition of Shusi’s drug quality and therapeutic effect, but
also facilitates the acceptance of Shusi in the field of clinical
psychiatry, posing a positive effect on expanding the market
share of quetiapine.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

EEENwmE DN ()

The Group’s main product in the area of oncology and
hematology is Xi Di Ke (generic name: uroacitides injection).
Xi Di Ke, a national class 1 new drug, has been approved by
the National Medical Products Administration ([0 %% & &5
BE I B) for the treatment of non-small cell lung cancer
and terminal breast cancer. The product has successfully been
admitted into the Medical Insurance Reimbursement Drug List
of four provinces, including Jiangsu, Anhui, Hubei and Hunan.
During the Year under Review, the Group pushed forward
the work of clinical trials on Xi Di Ke in new Myelodysplastic
Syndrome (the “MDS") indications, which is in clinical trial
phase Il. Due to the high pressure on liquidity, the Group was
unable to put a lot of resources in marketing promotions and
medical forums, and as such the product did not generated a
new source of revenue for the Group during the Year under
Review.

The management of the Group is optimistic on completing
clinical trial phase Il and Il, being the prerequisite for obtaining
the certificates of the Group’s new MDS products to be
approved by the National Medical Products Administration
(the “"NMPA"), and that the Group can have necessary funds
for carrying on the development work relating to MDS before
obtaining the approval from the NMPA for commercialisation
of MDS products by the Group.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

TEENmE DN ()

OPERATING RESULTS

The Group's business is currently composed of one major
operating segment, i.e. manufacturing and sales of
proprietary products.

The Group’s proprietary products include Shusi, Zhuo'ao
and other drugs. For the year ended 31 December 2020, the
total revenue from manufacturing and sales of proprietary
products increased by RMB68.2 million or 44.4% to
RMB221.7 million, as compared with RMB153.5 million for
the corresponding period in 2019. Revenue of Shusi increased
by RMB75.7 million or 71.3% to RMB181.8 million for the
Year under Review, as compared with RMB106.1 million for
the corresponding period in 2019. The increase in sales of
Shusi was attributable to the price adjustment of Shusi during
the Year under Review. Revenue of Zhuo'ao decreased by
RMB2.9 million or 11.5% to RMB22.4 million for the Year
under Review, as compared with RMB25.3 million for the
corresponding period in 2019. The decrease in sales amount
of Zhuo'ao was mainly due to the negative impact brought
by the price adjustment of Zhuo'ao after the shift of sales
model from agency to proprietary sales during the Year under
Review.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

EEENwmE DN ()

HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had 224 full-time
employees (31 December 2019: 384 full-time employees).
For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group's total
cost on remuneration, welfare and social security amounted
to RMB55.6 million (31 December 2019: RMB102.0 million).
The Group maintains good relationships with its employees
and certain policies have been carried out to ensure that
the employees are receiving competitive remuneration,
good welfare and continuous professional training. The
remuneration structure of the Group is based on employee
performance, local consumption levels and prevailing
conditions in the human resources market. Directors’
remunerations are determined with reference to individual
Director’'s experience, responsibilities and prevailing market
standards. On top of basic salaries, bonuses may be paid
according to the Group's performance as well as individual’s
performance. Other staff benefits include contributions to
the Mandatory Provident Fund retirement benefits scheme
in Hong Kong and various retirement benefits schemes
including the provision of pension funds, medical insurance,
unemployment insurance and other relevant insurance for
employees of the Group pursuant to the PRC rules and
regulations and the prevailing regulatory requirements of
the PRC. The salaries and benefits of the Group’s employees
are kept at a competitive level and employees are rewarded
according to their individual performances within the
framework of the Group’s salary and bonus system, which
is reviewed annually. The Group also operates a share
option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme"”) adopted by the
Company on 22 September 2014, and a share award scheme
(the “Share Award Scheme”) adopted on 4 September 2015,
where options to subscribe for shares and share awards may
be granted to the Directors and employees of the Group,
respectively.

ABEIR

MR2020%F12A831H ' AEEN2REES AK
2244 (2019412 8310 384 B2 B {ES) »
HE2020F12A31HIEFE  KREBEHH -
BRRESRENBR AN EARKS56HE
(201912 A318 : AR¥1020887T) - &
SEEBEEREEMARY  —EHEFEIE THER
NEREEBRESHABEFIKENTH - &
BEREANRFENEFEZI o 2N B A H
BREDENEERE BHHEBKERAN
ERMBETMAETE - EEWE IR ESL
EENEF BERENMEHBKEET - B
EXFIN AEERSREEEEREA
REHEWREL - B ETIRABETENE
Bl RE S RRBEANGE R ZIERKEF
B FR - BIERIE R B AR R & 38 6 K A B
RITEERT  RASBERAESRESE
SES  BRERR  AERBEEMMEBRRKR
B o AEBEEBCHEAREMNEREARF
TEKE - BEETERBERAEEHF & R
AHIEELRE BEARRESER FHEIE
BEFRIT X - AEETEHEITARER
201459 R 22 B R 4N 2 FE R 5T &) ([ BB AR AR T
21 1) & A2015F9R4B B 2 B& 1n 2 B 51 &
([ mEEETE]))  IRRlAAEEESER
BEERTEREURBERDERMOER -

FEHRE2020



10

Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

TEENmE DN ()

OUTLOOK

In the face of the global economic slowdown and domestic
headwinds, the Chinese government has introduced strong
fiscal and monetary policies to support businesses, stimulate
domestic demand and maintain employment in order to
tide over the difficult times. Although China’s growth rate
is slowing down, the government is expected to continue
to invest in healthcare reform in “The Fourteen Five-Year
Plan”. Despite the implementation of a series of regulatory
reforms to rationalize drug prices, improve access to new
drugs, stricter control over drug quality and safety, promote
innovation and enhance market competition, the Group
remains optimistic about the tremendous opportunities
in the pharmaceutical market as demand will continue to
increase due to the rapidly aging population, increasing living
standards and rising health awareness as a result of recent
COVID-19 epidemic outbreaks.

Going forward, the economic and operating environment
is expected to be more complex and volatile. The outbreak
of COVID-19 epidemic and the sweeping changes in the
regulatory landscape of the industry have caused disruptions
to the market and the entire industry chain, thus posing
significant challenges to the production and operations of
the Group’s business segments operating in the PRC. As the
positive progress of the Group’s manufacturing segment
reflects the effectiveness of the strategic initiatives taken,
the management is committed to pursuing these strategic
initiatives and believes that the Group will lay a stronger
foundation for sustainable growth in revenue and profitability
in the long run. In view of the uncertainty of the breadth
and depth of the impact of the COVID-19 epidemic on the
global and PRC economies, the management will continue
to strive to adopt flexible strategies to respond to market
changes and remain vigilant in controlling operating costs
in order to enhance operational efficiency and maintain
the Group’s financial flexibility. With the Group’s improving
financial position, the Group believes that it is capable to
cope with unexpected events and challenges and maintain its
development path for a bright future.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

EEENwmE DN ()

FINANCIAL REVIEW - CONTINUING
OPERATIONS

MEOE - SEKERER

For the year ended 31 December

BENANALEE
2020 2019
2020% 20195
Sales Sales
volume  Unitprice  amount Proportion Salesvolume  Unitprice Salesamount  Proportion
HEER EE  HEE e HEE BE  HEE it
‘000 RMB  RMB'000 (%) ‘000 RMB RMB'000 (%)
T AR® ARETR (%) il ARE ARETT (%)
Proprietary products HEEREEREE
production and sales
Shusi #8 6,393 284 181,832 82.0% 3,692 287 106,133 69.2%
Zhuo'ao =5 10,266 22 2313 10.1% 12,203 21 25,339 16.5%
Others Efy 11,528 15 17,526 1.9% 15,347 14 21,9% 14.3%
Total @t 21,731 100% 153,468 100.0%

Revenue from manufacturing and sales of proprietary
products increased by RMB68.2 million to RMB221.7 million,
accounting for 100% of the total revenue in the Year under
Review, as compared with RMB153.5 million or 100% of
the Group’s revenue in the corresponding period in 2019.
The increase in revenue from manufacturing and sales of
proprietary products was due to the unit price adjustment
of propriety products including Shusi and Zhuo'ao after the
shift of sales model to Suzhou First being responsible for sales
during the Year under Review.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, cost of sales increased
by RMB23.6 million to RMB86.8 million, as compared with
RMB63.2 million for the corresponding period in 2019. The
increase in cost of sales was mainly due to the corresponding
increase in revenue of sales of Shusi during the Year under
Review.

BEEREERBENRZEINARES.2
BETEARKNIBEET  HOEER
UL 25100% - 2019 R EI A A A R
153.58 & ekl AL E U EF100% - BB E
MAEEREENKEHREEN - 2EaREHE
FR o HEERNERHENEESRHEETHE -
BEEMTEREREEEMALEMN -

B E2020F12A31B L FE - SHEK AL I
AR#236BETE ARKES6.8H & T ' 1
LE#E =2019F RE R A A REE632BEE T ©
HEXNAEINNEFZERASHBEFANETEN
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

TEENmE DN ()

For the year ended 31 December

BENRANALEE
2020 2019
20204 2019%
Gross
Gross Profit Gross Gross
Profit Margin Profit  Profit Margin
Products Ef E7 EF=E E 7 EHE
RMB’000 (%) RMB'000 (%)
AR TR (%) ARBFT (%)
Proprietary products BEEEREERSE
production and sales
Shusi &8 125,957 69.3% 78,377 73.8%
Zhuo'ao 28 13,509 60.7% 14,494 57.2%
Others Hith (4,562) (26.5)% (2,614) (11.9)%
Total Mt 134,904 60.8% 90,257 58.8%
Gross profit increased by RMB44.6 million to RMB134.9 KRB E2020F 124318 1EFE - EFE A
million for the year ended 31 December 2020, as compared REs46B8ETE ARKIB498 B L - 8
with RMB90.3 million in the corresponding period in 2019. tE2019F FHERRI A ARMIFEEL - # =
Gross profit margin increased by 2 percentage points to 2020512 ANBIEFE » X EA2EESD
60.8% for the year ended 31 December 2020, as compared 25 260.8% * 8 20194 [ 5 Bl £58.8% °
with 58.8% for the corresponding period in 2019. The EFEN EATEZHRABSEFNENERN
increase in gross profit margin was mainly due to the increase HFRNEHEERAHEEERNEZE  BRAR
in sales contribution of products with higher gross profit REBREFREENEMEGI  SBAERE
margin such as Shusi as a result of the change in sales model, PRI E MU Es EFPTEL -

price adjustment and change in business partner which
resulted in an increase of revenue of the relevant products
with higher gross profit.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

EEENwmE DN ()

The operating expenses of the Group decreased by RMB96.7
million or 37.6% to RMB160.3 million for the year ended
31 December 2020, as compared with RMB257.0 million
for the corresponding period in 2019. The Group reported
an operating loss of RMB25.4 million for the year ended
31 December 2020, as compared with an operating loss
of RMB166.7 million for the corresponding period in 2019.
The following table sets forth a breakdown of the Group’s
operating loss by reportable segments for the year ended 31
December 2020:

HE2020F12A31BEFE  AEBHEE
B APAREICTAE B ITLHITE%HE AR
¥160.38 & T 2019 F B E A A AR
#257.08 & 7T c RELE2020F12A31H 1L F
B AEBEHBKEFIBARK4GET -
L2019 F R A & FT 1B B A A REE166.78
BIr o FR#HFIANEKEEH E20209612A318
IFERAERDIBONTEL L E B

For the year ended 31 December

BZ12A31ALLEE
2020 2019
2020 20194
RMB’000 (%) RMB'000 (%)
AR®T R (%) AR®F (%)
Proprietary products production ~ EEEMREENHEE
and sales 45,113 20.3 17,896 1M1.7%
Total st 45,113 20.3 17,896 11.7%

The Group has applied the general approach to provide
for 12 month-expected credit losses on other receivables.
The Group considers the historical loss rate and adjusts
for forward looking macroeconomic data in calculating
the expected credit loss rate. As at 31 December 2020
and 2019, the Group estimated that the expected credit
losses rate for the other receivables was insignificant and
there was no significant increase in credit risk for the other
receivables at reporting period end. During the year ended 31
December 2020, impairment loss on deposits, prepayments
and other receivables amounted to RMB67,968,000
(2019: RMB23,187,000), out of which, approximately
RMB57,410,000 (2019: RMB10,970,000) represented
the written-off of VAT recoverable from those dormant
subsidiaries since the management conducted an assessment
and considered the recoverability of such VAT recoverable to
be remote. The remaining are non-refundable consultation
and marketing services deposits in relation to Miacalcic
business discontinued during the year. In addition, the Group
has recognised a provision for impairment loss of trade
receivables of RMB6,323,000 (2019: RMB134,337,000) during
the year ended 31 December 2020. Details are discussed in
note 22(b) to the audited consolidated financial statements.

AEEC G EMEWRIBREA K H AR
REABHEESE AKEFERBAEE
EBEEBEEFLEEELMAIEEREL
EEREFEE - 720209 K% 20195128318 -
REEGETEMERFIBENEREEBEX
BT RE - BRSRERREMERRIANE
EREBR I AR ARG - AELE 2020912 A31H
IHFE &e  BNREREMMERZTESD
BB A AR 67,968,0007T (20194 : AR
#523,187,0007T) + H A 49 A R #57,410,0007T
(20194 : A R%10,970,0007T) $5 M $l 5% &5 &
EEBOMB AR EHEER - 1 JTIH
REBEBERTGH  TREZENIKELE
FRAODRATREMIRE - RSB AEEFALD
BRI ENZEBEX¥BN T REZRANRE
SHRFIE S o dboN - AN B B UG IR R E B
B B E2020F12A31BILFERRBEFE
UK IB Rk (B B 45 A R 6 6,323,0007T (20194 ¢
AR#134,337,00070) © HBREBZXEAY
EmERWE22b) Pt o
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
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The Group’s finance costs consist of interest on bank
borrowings and bank charges. Finance costs decreased by
RMB17.9 million or 17.1% to RMB86.5 million for the year
ended 31 December 2020, as compared with RMB104.4
million for the corresponding period in 2019. The decrease in
finance costs was mainly due to decrease in the outstanding
of interest-bearing borrowing for the Year under Review as
compared with the corresponding period in 2019.

Income tax credit expense was RMB9.0 million for the year
ended 31 December 2020 as compared with the income tax
expense of RMBO0.3 million for the corresponding period in
2019.

Loss attributable to equity holders of the Company for the
year ended 31 December 2020 was RMB357.6 million as
compared with the loss attributable to equity holders of the
Company of RMB587.6 million for the corresponding period in
2019. Core loss attributable to equity holders of the Company
for the year ended 31 December 2020 was RMB360.8 million
as compared to a core loss attributable to equity holders of
the Company of RMB544.0 million for the corresponding
period in 2019.

The basic earnings per share and basic core earnings per share
are calculated by dividing the profit attributable to equity
holders of the Company and the core profit attributable to
equity holders of the Company, respectively, by the weighted
average number of ordinary shares of the Company in issue
as of the year ended 31 December 2020. The diluted earnings
per share and diluted core earnings per share are calculated
by dividing the profit attributable to equity holders of the
Company and the core profit attributable to equity holders of
the Company, respectively, by the weighted average number
of ordinary shares of the Company in issue as of the year
ended 31 December 2020 (with adjustments made for all
potential dilution effect of the ordinary shares).

REENREKRABERITEENT B RIR
TER - HE2020012A31BILFE - @&
AR DAREI79BETHITI%E AR
86.5HE L HEEZE2019FRABAIAAR
BI0A4BE BT - MEKTNR L ETZRNE
BEFAREETESEER2019F R AR

HE2020F12A31H ILEE - T3 FK %5
TAARKIOBE T HLLEE20194F A &
BIEBMEBHRASIARKIIEETT -

HE220F12A31BEFE - ARAEEHF
BAEEERERAARKIS7T6BET @ HLE
ZE2019F R ARNR R ERNIFAE A ELE
BARKES876EETT o RE E2020F12 A31
HIEFE ARRAEmFEARLGZLER
BAR®360.88 8T - MALLE E 20194 A Hf
AAERARIERISAEARLEZOBIEARE
54408 87T °

TR EANZF N5 R E A0 B F T 5 B A
RAB R F A A B G R Mz 5w 5 Bk B
HZE2020F82A3BIEFEARRBBITYE
B ZMEFHEHE  -SRBEEBRF RS
EESE O BRI D BIARRR T A A
P& AR i B Az U s ) BR A# 2= 20205512 A 31
AL FEARAREEITL BB Z INEFHE
(EREmBR BB # ST 2R

b

E_ o
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
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As at 31 December

M12A318
2020 2019
2020 2019%F
Loss attributable to equity shareholders of the 7872 &) # 25 ik B e B 12
Company (RMB’000) (AR¥FT) (357,599) (587,590)
Plus: equity-settled share awarded and share 77 - DA 45 B W0 LA JR 17 SR B J% B8
option expenses (RMB’000) MR iR 2 (AR F7T) 101 7,462
Plus: share of (profit)/loss of an associate e —EEE ATz R,/
(RMB'000) BEAR®TT) (8) 27
Plus: net exchange (gain)/loss (RMB'000) o ER ),/ BiEFE(ARE
Tt) (16,131) 1,508
Plus: net loss on disposal of property, plant 7 HEWE MERRE - EF
and equipment, intangible assets and BERMBRAERNER
interests in subsidiaries (RMB’000) FRARETIT) 160 635
Core loss attributable to equity shareholders of 7N/ @] 1 %5 % 58 JE {5 % 0 E5 18
the Company (RMB'000) (AR¥FT) (373,477) (577,958)
Less: Fair value change on financial liabilites & : B AAEIIABZHNEBAE
at fair value through profit or loss HMAREZEHARETT)
(RMB'000) 11,265 29,853
Less: Interest on convertible bonds JH AR ESFRF B 1,436 4,115
Diluted core loss attributable to equity Ape)EmRRELEEZOER
shareholders of the Company (RMB'000) (AR¥T 1) (360,776) (543,990)
Weighted average number of ordinary shares 317 & i@ it 2 fn 4 ¥ 2 (F %)
in issue ('000) 1,887,047 1,764,008
Weighted average number of ordinary shares — #&&T & B B8 AR /& 1T {5 T B4 1T AR 17
in issue after the effect of shares issued ZRBRZBETEBR ZINE
upon exercise of share options ('000) T & (TR 1,887,047 1,764,008
Basic loss per share (RMB cent per share) BREABERERARED) (18.95) (3331)
Diluted loss per share (RMB cent per share) FREBEEERBEBRARED) (18.95) (33.31)
Basic core loss per share BRERZOLER
(RMB cent per share) (BRARESD) (19.79) (32.76)
Diluted core loss per share BREEROERE
(RMB cent per share) (BRARESD) (19.79) (32.76)

B RxEEESHE

I F#E#H%E2020
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
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The core loss attributable to equity shareholders of the
Company is the loss attributable to equity shareholders of
the Company excluding equity settled share option expenses,
share of loss of an associate, net exchange gain and net loss
on disposal of property, plant and equipment and intangible
assets and interests in subsidiaries.

Total capital expenditure spent for the year ended 31
December 2020 decreased by RMB83.5 million or 95.7% to
RMB3.7 million, as compared with RMB87.2 million for the
corresponding period in 2019, which was mainly used for
acquiring property, plant and equipment in Suzhou.

In previous years, the Group’s leasehold land and buildings
were carried in the consolidated statement of financial
position at historical cost less accumulated depreciation
and impairment losses. The directors reassessed the
appropriateness of this accounting policy during the year and
concluded that by using the revaluation model under HKAS
16, the consolidated financial statements would provide
more appropriate and relevant information about the Group'’s
results and financial position. The related financial impact was
discussed in the Group’s consolidated financial statements
note 15(b).

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The primary objective of the Group’s capital management is
to maintain its ability to continue as a going concern so that
the Group can constantly provide returns for shareholders
of the Company and benefits for other stakeholders by
implementing proper product pricing and securing access
to financing at reasonable costs. The Group actively and
regularly reviews and manages its capital structure and
makes adjustments by taking into consideration the changes
in economic conditions, its future capital requirements,
prevailing and projected profitability and operating cash
flows, projected capital expenditures and projected strategic
investment opportunities. The Group closely monitors its
debt/assets ratio, which is defined as total borrowings divided
by total assets. Various measures and other matters for
improving the Group's liquiding position to maintain its ability
to continue as a going concern are further discussed in note
2(b) to the consolidated financial statements.

ApmEm B REEROERIIARR#aR
BREHEBEBRENESEEBRERS
DE—HEBERRZEE  EXARSFER
HENE BMELREBERETVEERMELR
RIS E IR TR -

HZE2020F2A31BLFE EARY BT
BAOANRESISHEBITLHIBT%E AR3T
A BT HE2019F A H A A A RE87.2H
BT ETZAREHMNKEDE BEKRK
(=

RBEFE AEBONHEET W RIETFTIRE
S RRANR 2 5HTE RORE BB R G A ISk
MR - EENFAEHTHEMLEFBOR
BEM TRAEFEBEBGTEREI6H
BTEHER  GEVERRBIEHEEHEA
CSEEERUBERRAZEAGEAREENE
B HEHBRASENGAV B RANE
15(b) ©

RBEERUBER

AEBERAEENTZAREERHERLE
N BOAKEETEENEMEEIL A
BEKARERE  BELSARFRERM
Bl K AEMmFSEEEREEN - ARE
BERE R REREREE  TREEEL
BERNES AFRESFR  BERILFAHN
BNENIREERSRE  FHELARAIR
EHRBREKEMEFLRAR - AKERY)
EREABHEELX(AEERRKRUE
ERE) AKEEATEEREEM
AR UENAEENRBESEEFHE
R FARNBRAKENGE S BB ®
R E2(D) °
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
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The Group is exposed to currency risks primarily through
sales made by the Group’s Hong Kong and PRC subsidiaries,
certain bank deposits and bank loans which are denominated
in Hong Kong dollars. The Group recorded a net exchange
gain of RMB16.1 million for the year ended 31 December
2020, while the net exchange loss of the Group for the
corresponding period in 2019 was RMB1.5 million. Currently,
the Group does not employ any financial instruments to
hedge against foreign exchange risk.

The Group's interest rate risk arises primarily from bank
loans, unsecured debenture and bank balances. Borrowings
at variable rates expose the Group to cash flow interest rate
risk. Currently, the Group does not employ any financial
instruments to hedge against interest rate risk.

AEEEBENIINERREEREAEENS
BRPENBATMNEEEHRIAB LA
B TFRITFRRIBITERR - B E20209F12
A3 BELEFEAERRZFAEARKI61H
BT 2095 EH ALEEREIEFEEA
ARBISEEIL B AEBIT ERBIT
Al & Bk T B 45 SN E @B o

AEBEONXREREERBRVITER  EEK
MEFRRITES FREESCAREAR
BeRMERR - Ba NREEXERBT
] & B T A SRR RE R -

As at 31 December

M®12A831H
2020 2019
20204 20194
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR TR ARBEF T
Total debt B 7% 4258 (910,626) (1,475,667)
Time deposits, pledged bank deposits, EBFER - BB RITFER
cash and cash equivalents BeMRESEED 33,214 112,988
Net debt (EROE A (877,412) (1,362,679)

The maturity profile of the Group’s borrowings is set out as
follows:

As at 31 December

®128318
2020 2019
2020%F 20194F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T ARBEF T

Repayable: ARTHHEEE:

— Within one year —— %R 796,248 791,675
— After one but within two years — BB —FERMENRN 16,024 171,073
— After two but within five years — HBBEMFERIFAN 29,611 59,706
841,883 1,022,454

TEREEABESEEH |

FEHRE2020
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
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The Group's bank borrowings as at 31 December 2020
were approximately RMB464.9 million (31 December 2019:
RMB791.5 million), out of which RMB464.9 million were
bank borrowings from banks in the PRC (31 December 2019:
RMB598.1 million) with fixed interest rates ranging from 4.3%
10 6.75% per annum.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group's bank borrowings from
banks in Hong Kong were approximately RMBNil million (31
December 2019: approximately RMB193.4 million). Save as
disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, the Group had
other borrowings of RMB355.3 million (2019: RMB231.0
million).

The Group closely monitors its debt-to-assets ratio to optimize
its capital structure so as to ensure solvency and the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern.

AN & B R 17 B R2020F 1283184 B A
R #46495 8 ;T 2019F12A31H: A R
TNSEEL) c HAEPEZBRITELNA
AR #46498 8 T (2019F12A31H: A R
Hoo8 1B B L) BEMERATFI43%E
6.75% ©

MR2020%F12A8318 » REEKREH B 2 RIT
BEELHAAREZTILQOI9FIZA3IA &
ARBI1934FE L) - R EXHEEEIN - R
2020F12A318 » A& B B A R ¥35538F
& (2019F : AR¥E231.06E L) W EME
B o

AEEZYEREAEHEEL EUELE
BARGHE  UBERAEENENEDRFTE

As at 31 December

M12A831H
2020 2019
2020%F 20194F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥E T AR T
Total debt (ERF Y 910,626 1,475,667
Total assets BEE 1,295,069 1,798,274
Debt-to-assets ratio BEHEEILE 70.3% 82.1%

As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s bank deposits of
RMB25.5 million (31 December 2019: RMB40.0 million) were
pledged to the banks to secure certain bank loans and bills
payable. As at 31 December 2020, certain banking facilities of
the Group were secured by the Group’s intellectual property
rights, fixed assets and trade receivables, which amounted to
RMB528.8 million (31 December 2019: RMB271.1 million).

MR20209 128318 » AEBMRITERAR
#2558 & 7t (20194E12 A318 : A B #40.0
BEL)WERTFRIT TEHEERET
RITERREMNEE - K2020F12A8318 -
AEERETRITHETHASEEARKES28.8
BETHNSERE BTEENEIEKK
TEEHE I (2019128318 : ARE2TIIA S
JL) ©
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
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As at 31 December

M®12A831H
2020 2019
20204 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR T ARET T

Contracted but not provided for BRI B REE
— investment in associates —REBE AR IRE

(2019: associate) (note) (20194 : Bt & A =) (M 5) 380,000 20,000
— intangible assets: Teriparatide — EBILEE BB - 156,965

380,000 176,965

Note: Details of the Group’s commitments at 31 December 2020 are
disclosed in Note (39) to the consolidated financial statements.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had total future
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating
leases payable as follows:

Mist: REBEAREFBIARNEENGEENBERE
i 5E395 ©

2020F12A31H  AEEBR A HKREE
HMEBTHARENREREMNRLTE W
—|T:

As at 31 December

MW128318
2020 2019
20204 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR® T ARET T

Within one year —FRX
After one year but within five years R—FBRERAFAN

510 2,877

510 2,877

The Group is the lessee of a number of properties under
operating leases. The leases typically run for an initial period
of one to three years. None of the leases includes contingent
rentals.

AEBERREBELEHEETHRBZEY E /&
HA-ERABE— RSP —Z2=F "1
YA BERIAEL -

hEFEEBEER | FE#HRE2020
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
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Except for investments in its subsidiaries, the Group did not
hold any significant investment in equity interest in any other
company for the year ended 31 December 2020.

On 21 April 2020, the Company and Beijing Kangchen
Biological Technology Co., Ltd. (“Beijing Kangchen”, an
independent third party to the Company) entered into a sale
and purchase agreement, pursuant to which, the Company
agreed to sell and Beijing Kangchen agreed to purchase
the exclusive distribution right of Pfenex and the entire
issued share capital of NT Pharma International Company
Limited (“NT International”, a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company), which was principally engaged in selling and
marketing Miacalcic branded products and sub-licensing of
intellectual property rights and distribution rights of Miacalcic
Injection and Miacalcic Nasal Spray under the reportable
segment of Miacalcic. The disposal was effected in order to
generate immediate cash flows for the reallocation of the
financial resources on any suitable investment opportunities
and the repayment of bank and other borrowings as well
as the settlement of the redemption of the outstanding
redeemable convertible preference shares when they fall due.
The disposal transaction was completed on 3 September
2020 and NT International ceased to be a subsidiary of the
Company.

On 11 November 2020, NT Pharma (Group) Co., Ltd. (“NT
Group”, a direct wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company)
and Fortune Blaze Investments Limited (“Fortune Blaze”, an
independent third party to the Company) entered into a sale
and purchase agreement, pursuant to which, NT Group has
agreed to sell and Fortune Blaze has agreed to purchase the
entire issued share capital of The Mountains Limited, which
holds 100% equity interest in NT Pharma (China) Co., Ltd.
("NT Pharma (China)”), at the estimated consideration of
RMB126,847,000 minus the audited net assets value of NT
Pharma (China) at the completion date.

Save as disclosed above, during the Year under Review, the
Group did not have any other material acquisition or disposal.

The Group did not have other plans for material investments
and capital assets for the year ended 31 December 2020.

BRIEENRKEBRARN  AEBRE 220205
12A3MB IEFE W ARREREM AT 2 IxE
EPEAEEMNEAKRE -

2020648218  AQ A4 F BE fx 5 %
BHBERATTIERER] BARBE L
FZHVEEWZ Bt ARRRAEL
E R RERABEESPenexWBRD H
BURFZBEBEERAR(HREBEER
Bl BARR2EBRENHNEBAR) 228
BEITRA - REBHEEBRIEREIHER
EEZRESREER  ULRBERFZRD
HTZEE B REE B SEA RN MEE
BRDEENBEEE HESHEELELR
BHIRSR  WEBHBEEREFNDREEE
MeEnEERe  EERTLREMEES
LA R 45035 18 oK B 120 9 AT 2 AR B 5T AR B 8 R Y
ERIFUE - HERSBER2020F9A3H =K -
REBEEBRETBAEARRINHB AR -

20204118118 » NT Pharma (Group) Co.,
Ltd. ([NT Group) * ® ARG W EH# 2= & M
B ‘A 7)) £2 Fortune Blaze Investments Limited
([Fortune Blaze| * BARBI MBS E =)
SEEHZE UL NT Group R E &
Fortune Blaze 7] & #% & The Mountains Limited
(EREZRZBE (PR BERAR (R EBE
(FEDD100% )M HE TR - (4
HHRE A A R%126,847,00070 5 2= T & B %
(FEOR TR AN EZEEFME -

B EXFIEES  DEFER  AREEE
MEMENKREREEEHE -

AEBRNEE20200EN2A3MAILEE &S
AREBEREAREEZHMETE -
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As at 31 December 2020, the Group had no material
contingent liabilities.

PLACING OF BONDS

On 29 April 2020, the Company, the Placing Agent and the
Guarantor entered into the Placing Agreement, pursuant to
which the Placing Agent has conditionally agreed to, on a
best effort basis, procure Placee(s) to subscribe for the Bonds
in an aggregate principal amount of up to HK$100,000,000
in up to two tranches within the Placing Periods. The net
proceeds from the issue of the Bonds are intended to be
used for general working capital use, repayment of existing
debts and for business development. For details of the
Placing Agreement, please refer to the announcement of
the Company dated 29 April 2020 (the “Announcement”).
Capitalised terms used in this paragraph shall have the same
meanings as those defined in the Announcement.

Save as disclosed above, the Company did not issue other
equity securities (including securities convertible into equity
securities) for cash during the Year under Review.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
LISTED SECURITIES
Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has

purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed
securities during the year ended 31 December 2020.

DIVIDENDS

The Board does not recommend the payment of final dividend
for the year ended 31 December 2020 (2019: Nil).

SIGNIFICANT EVENTS AFTER THE END OF
REPORTING PERIOD

Subsequent to 31 December 2020, the Group obtained
borrowings of approximately HK$30,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB25,248,000) from an independent third
party, bearing interest at 24% per annum, for financing its
working capital.

B R EERER |

R2020F12A31H - AEBYEE RS AE

& e

REES

720204 H29H - ARQF - EERERER
AR EwmeE Bt REREEKR MG
REEZARESHELEREARAREEHA
o AL A e ARE T EE#8100,000,0007% 7T
WEH - BITEFAERIBFRERAE—
wmEELES EEREEBKNER¥B B
B EZENFE  B2EAAFHE2020
FA4R29BM R E ([ZA%E]D - KEFE AT
BHZAEMATHNFAEAGHERMNRE -

BREXFBEEIN  ARRREBEFALE
BRITHEMBRAEZ (BRATERSRAE S
ZEFINBRBERE -

BE HEIWEE LHREEF

ARAaE s EE AN B AR RE ZE2020F124
BEEFEHMERE  HElEBERTMAR
Al LEHmES -

R B
EFefEZRMNEE2020012A318 15
ER& 2 (20194 : &) o

BRERARREREE

MR2020%12 310 1% » N & B 7 F 824% [A)
¥ 5 = 77 EL1E #930,000,00078 7T (FHE R4
AR #25248,0000) MEE - AELEE ¢
REES -
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RELATIONSHIP WITH KEY STAKEHOLDERS

Human resources is one of the most important assets of
the Group. The Group strives to motivate its employees
by providing them with a clear career path as well as
comprehensive and professional training courses. In addition,
the Group also offers competitive remuneration packages
to its employees, including basic salary, certain benefits and
other performance based incentives.

The Group purchases imported pharmaceutical products from
overseas suppliers, either directly or indirectly through their
sales agents, and generate revenue by on-selling them to
hospitals and pharmacies through distributors and deliverers.
Our suppliers or their sales agents have granted us the rights
to market, promote and manage sales channels for their
products in China. The Group maintains a stable and long-
term relationship with its suppliers by providing them access
to the growing Chinese market with steady sales growth.

The Group sells pharmaceutical products to distributors,
who on-sell the products to hospitals and pharmacies either
directly or indirectly through their sub-distributors. The
Group maintains stable and long-term relationship with its
distributors by providing them guidance, training and support
to carry out more targeted field marketing and promotion
activities.

EFEFHENBRE
ANERERAEENEREE 2 A%
BEARABWHBEERECURCTEE
ENBIREAEEE - U AKETR
BERHEAEMERFINFHEE B85
EAFE FTRANEEMENER -

AEERBIMERERKNBEBHENRE
MERBEOER  ARBBEHE KX
BEETBREIEFSELS WS - HERKE
HERERTRMAETEEN HEERNR
EEEMBERBOEN AKEEHER
HBRERERE FEEE A NEATE
BENPEMS  BEEREWHEER -

AEERKERETRHE  BHEEERAK
HORIEARAERETERLER - AEEH
RHAEFRBERERBER  BEHBREMRE
5 BIlEXHF  WEBREEFAREZ S
HNMEREED -
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Directors and Senior Management

EENRGREEE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Ng Tit, aged 57, co-founder of the Group, has
been the Chairman of the Board of Directors and Chief
Executive Officer of the Company since 1995. Mr. Ng was
appointed as the Company’s executive Director on 1 March
2010, responsible for the overall strategic planning and
management of the Group. He has extensive experience
in the pharmaceutical industry, having been engaged in
the pharmaceutical business for over 20 years. Prior to
establishing the Group in 1995, Mr. Ng worked for a number
of relevant organisations and enterprises. Mr. Ng is a member
of Jiangsu Committee of the Chinese People’'s Political
Consultative Conference ("CPPCC”) of the PRC, deputy
director of Jiangsu Committee of Hong Kong, Macau, Taiwan
and Overseas (Foreign Affairs) of CPPCC, vice president
of Overseas Friendship Association of Jiangsu Province,
vice president of Federation of HK Jiangsu Community
Organisations and Chairman of China Nation Culture Spread
Ltd. (FZER K XLEEB R A R]). Mr. Ng obtained his
bachelor degree from Guizhou University in 1986, and an
Executive Master of Business Administration (“EMBA") from
Fudan University (78 B X&) in 2007. He is the spouse of Ms.
Chin Yu, who is an executive Director, and the brother-in-law
of Dr. Qian Wei, who is a non-executive Director.

Ms. Chin Yu, aged 57, co-founder of the Group. Ms.
Chin has been re-designated from non-executive Director
to executive Director of the Company since 1 February
2015. Ms. Chin is responsible for the daily operations of
NT Pharma (Hong Kong) Co., Ltd. Ms. Chin was appointed
as non-executive Director on 1 March 2010. Prior to the
establishment of the Group, Ms. Chin was an accounting
professional. Ms. Chin worked in Bank of Communications
from 1987 to 1993. Ms. Chin is the spouse of Mr. Ng Tit,
the Chairman of the Board of Directors and Chief Executive
Officer, and the sister of Dr. Qian Wei, a non-executive
Director.

HITES

REEE ST ARFTNBAEIHA B
1995F AR —EEIAEBEERE R HET
A - REEPN20106381HEZT AR
REIMITEE BEASBENEE RS
NEE - RArRERTERBREELR
= B8 Bk ¥ RS I 204F © 1995F Al 3L A & B
Al - RAESBTEEBEHRBEREEIR - R
EERTHEARBGGHESHE IHERHE
B IHEBBBREGBUNE)ZEEEIE
T IHEBIIEEERIESR - BB I
Erggler URFERKXUELEEER
NAIEEER - BEENI986FERE M A2
B4 8N R007FEREERESRERE
AETHERBELSMN - REEARNTES
BREZTHREBRIENTESTEEB ALK
95 o

BRuzt ST AKBENBAANA B
20152 A1RBHAERITESHIT AEQRH
17E# % - # &+ B & NT Pharma (Hong Kong)
Co., Ltd. 2 BEEE - L £ HM2010F3H1H
EZAAFERNTES - AN AEEA > B
+AESHEE AL - 1987F F1993F MG R
RBRITER  c BLATNEERIFERITR
BERBETENRE  TAIERTESENR
BTk -

FEHRE2020

23



24

Directors and Senior Management (Continued)

EENGREEE (B)

Mr. Wu Weizhong, aged 51, was appointed as an executive
Director of the Company on 20 March 2015. Mr. Wu is also
the Senior Vice President of the Group, General Manager of
manufacturing and supply chain centre, chairman of Suzhou
First and chairman of NT Pharma (Changsha) Co., Ltd, having
overall responsibilities for organization of its own brand
product production, operational management and supply
chain management. Mr. Wu has over 20 years of experience
in pharmaceutical manufacturing. Prior to joining the Group,
Mr. Wu worked at various positions including engineer,
assistant manager and deputy factory manager of Suzhou
No. 4 Pharmaceutical Factory and was the factory manager
of Suzhou First. Mr. Wu obtained a bachelor’s degree in
Chemical Engineering from Dalian University of Technology
in 1992. He also obtained an EMBA from Fudan University in
2004.
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Directors and Senior Management (Continued)

EENGREEE (B)

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Dr. Qian Wei, aged 64, was appointed as a non-executive
Director of the Company on 1 March 2010. Dr. Qian is
currently a tenured full professor of Biomedical Engineering,
University of Texas, and a fellow of American Institute for
Medical and Biological Engineering. He also enrolled the
Chinese 1000 Plan as an innovation expert. He is Dean of the
Sino-Dutch Biomedical and Information Engineering School
of Northeastern University. Dr. Qian was appointed as Allen
Henry Endowed Chair Distinguished Professor of Electrical
Engineering in the Engineering College at Florida Institute
of Technology in 2009. He had previously been an associate
professor of Department of Interdisciplinary Oncology at
Moffitt Cancer Center, College of Medicine, University of
South Florida from 2001 to 2007. Dr. Qian has been given
the Stars Award of system research by University of Texas, US
in 2008, Award for Outstanding Research Achievements by
American Cancer Society in 2000. Dr. Qian received Martrin
Silberg Cancer Research Award for outstanding achievements
for two consecutive years in 1994 and 1995. He obtained his
doctorate of Biomedical Engineering at Southeast University in
1990. He was a Postdoctoral Research Associate of University
of Notre Dame in 1992, of University of South Florida in 1994.
Dr. Qian is the brother of Ms. Chin Yu, an executive Director
and the brother-in-law of Mr. Ng Tit, the Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer of the Group.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Mr. Yu Tze Shan Hailson, aged 64, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director of the Company on 29
June 2017. He was graduated from the University of Calgary
with a bachelor degree in Electrical Engineering in 1979,
graduated from the University of Hong Kong with a master
degree in Electrical Engineering in 1987, graduated from
City University of Hong Kong with a master degree of law in
Arbitration and Dispute Resolution in 1995 and completed
the postgraduate diploma in Investment Management and
postgraduate certificates in Hong Kong Laws and Traditional
Chinese Medicine courses.
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Directors and Senior Management (Continued)

EENGREEE (B)

Mr. Yu served as equipment maintenance and testing
engineer, equipment maintenance and testing laboratory
manager, computer engineering and system engineering
manager of Ampex Ferrotec Limited (Hong Kong) successively
from June 1979 to September 1987. Mr. Yu joined China
International Trust and Investment Corporation Hong
Kong (Holdings) Limited and served as general manager
of engineering research and development department and
consultant of Petroleum Development and LPG Tank Terminal
Port successively from October 1987 to January 1998. He has
been serving as deputy managing director of Versitech Limited
and deputy director of Technology Transfer Office of the
University of Hong Kong since February 1998 till now.

Mr. Yu has been serving as an independent non-executive
director of China Traditional Chinese Medicine Holdings Co.
Limited (formerly known as Winteam Pharmaceutical Group
Limited), a company listed on the Stock Exchange in Hong
Kong (stock code: 570), since November 2013 till now, and
was an independent non-executive director of Sinopharm
Group Co. Ltd.,, a company listed on the Stock Exchange
(stock code: 1099) from September 2014 to September 2020.

Mr. Yu currently is a Chartered Engineer, fellow of each of
the Institute of Electrical Engineers, Hong Kong Institution of
Engineers, the Chartered Institute of Arbitrators and Hong
Kong Institute of Arbitrators.
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Directors and Senior Management (Continued)

EENGREEE (B)

Mr. Pan Fei, aged 65, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director of the Group on 20 March 2020. He has
been a professor of accounting and the deputy dean of the
school of accountancy in Shanghai University of Finance and
Economics (& B 48 K E2) since July 2000. Mr. Pan served as
an independent director of Bright Dairy & Food Co., Ltd. (3¢ 83
FLE R B A PR A7) (Stock code: 600597), a company listed
on the Shanghai Stock Exchange, from July 2009 to March
2016; an independent non-executive director of Shanghai
Fudan-Zhangjiang Bio-Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. (/&8 B3k
ST EEID AR AR (stock code: 1349), a company
listed on the Stock Exchange, from June 2003 to May 2014;
an independent non-executive director of Orient Securities
Company Limited (R 5 FH R DB R A A]) (stock code:
600958 and 3958), a company listed both on the Shanghai
Stock Exchange and the Stock Exchange, from June 2015 to
July 2017; an independent non-executive director of Sinopec
Shanghai Petrochemical Company Limited (R B A1 /&4
At TR 17 A BR 2 &) (stock code: 338, 600688 and SH1),
a company listed on the Stock Exchange, the Shanghai Stock
Exchange and the New York Stock Exchange, from May 2017
to August 2017; and an independent non-executive director
of China Hengshi Foundation Company Limited (FF B3/ A £
AP AF]) (stock code: 1197) (delisted), a company listed on
the Stock Exchange, from May 2015 to March 2018.

From March 1983 to June 1995 and from July 1995 to June
2000, Mr. Pan had been a lecturer of accounting and an
associate professor of accounting in Shanghai University
of Finance and Economics, respectively. Mr. Pan obtained
a bachelor’'s degree, a master’s degree and a doctoral
degree in accounting from Shanghai University of Finance
and Economics in January 1983, March 1991 and July 1998
respectively, in Shanghai, China.
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Directors and Senior Management (Continued)

EENGREEE (B)

Dr. Zhao Yubiao, aged 50, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director of the Group on 31 December 2019.
He obtained his doctorate degree in economics from Jilin
University in June 2013. From June 1990 to April 1996, he
served as the manager of accounting department and trading
department of the securities business department of Jilin
Trust Investment Company (Shanghai branch); from April
1996 to December 2000, he served as the general manager
of the securities business department of Jilin Trust Investment
Company (Hongshan Road branch, Shanghai); from December
2000 to December 2002, he served as the general manager
of Shanghai Jinluda Investment Management Co., Ltd.; from
December 2002 to May 2017, he served successively as the
general manager, vice chairman and chairman of Tianzhi
Fund Management Co., Ltd.; from May 2018 to present, he
has been serving as the assistant to the chairman of Zhejiang
Nandu Power Supply Co., Ltd., the shares of which are listed
on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock code: 300068); from
May 2019 to present, he has been serving as an independent
director of Huafon Microfibre (Shanghai) Co., Ltd., the shares
of which are listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock
code: 300180).

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms. Fang Jing, aged 51, joined the Company on 27 May
2019 as the Chief Operating Officer. She was further
appointed as the Chief Financial Officer on 29 November
2019 and is responsible for the supervision and management
of financial matters and financial risks of the Group. Ms.
Fang has obtained the professional qualification as Chinese
accountant and has over 20 years of extensive experience
in accounting, financial management and corporate
management. Prior to joining the Company, from 1997 to
2019, Ms. Fang worked at Shanghai Zhangjiang (Group) Co.,
Ltd. and Shanghai Zhangjiang Hi-Tech Park Development Co.,
Ltd., a company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange (Stock
Code: 600895), both of which are located in the Shanghai
Zhangjiang Hi-Tech Park, and served different positions
successively including the group’s external financial controller,
general manager of the asset management department and
administration director. Ms. Fang graduated from Shanghai
Lixin Accounting and Finance College in 1990 with a
bachelor’s degree in economics. Ms. Fang obtained the senior
technician qualification in the field of financial management
from the Training Technical Instruction Center of China
Vocational Skill Appraisal Management Center in 2012 and
obtained the national registered practitioner qualification as
“Enterprise Risk Manager” from the Asia Association of Risk
and Crisis Management in 2013.
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Corporate Governance Report
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TEERRS

The Board is committed to maintaining a high standard
of corporate governance. The Board believes that a high
standard of corporate governance will provide a framework
for the Company to formulate its business strategies and
policies, and manage and lower the associated risks through
effective internal control procedures. It will also enhance

the transparency of the Company and strengthen the
accountability to its shareholders and stakeholders.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

The Company has adopted the code provisions set out in
the Corporate Governance Code (the “Code”) contained in
Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
of the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) and certain
recommended best practices. The Company has complied
with all the applicable code provisions in the Code throughout
the year ended 31 December 2020, save as disclosed below
and in this corporate governance report:

Code provision A.2.1 of the Code stipulates that the roles of
chairman and chief executive officer should be separate and
should not be performed by the same individual. Mr. Ng Tit
assumes both the roles of chairman and chief executive officer
of the Company. Nevertheless, the division of responsibilities
between the two roles is clearly defined. On the whole,
the role of chairman is that of monitoring the duties and
performance of the Board, whereas the role of chief executive
officer is that of managing the Company’s business. The
Board believes that at the current stage of development
of the Company, vesting the roles of both chairman and
chief executive officer in the same person provides the
Company with a strong and consistent leadership and allows
for effective and efficient planning and implementation of
business decisions and strategies.

Mr. Ng is the main founder of the Group and he is responsible
for the overall strategic planning and management of
the Group. He has played an important role during the
Group’s expansion. Mr. Ng has extensive experience in
the pharmaceutical industry, having been engaged in the
pharmaceutical business for over 20 years. At present, the
Board believes that it is beneficial to the management and
development of the Group’s businesses for Mr. Ng to be both
the chairman and chief executive officer as it helps to facilitate
the Board's decision-making.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

TEER®E (F)

The Board currently comprises three executive Directors,
one non-executive Director and three independent non-
executive Directors, with independent non-executive
Directors representing more than one-third of the Board.
Such percentage of independent non-executive Directors on
the Board can ensure their views carry significant weight and
reflect the independence of the Board.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
contained in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its own code
of conduct regarding Directors’ securities transactions. After
making specific enquiry to the Directors, it is confirmed that
all Directors have complied with the standards as stipulated
in the Model Code throughout the year ended 31 December
2020.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Save as disclosed below, for the period from 1 January 2020
to 31 December 2020, the Board had at all times met the
requirements of Rules 3.10 and 3.10A of the Listing Rules
relating to the appointment of at least three independent
non-executive Directors with at least one of them possessing
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or
related financial management expertise and the number of
independent non-executive Directors representing at least
one-third of the Board.

Following the resignation of Mr. Patrick Sun on 31 December
2019, the Company had no independent non-executive
Director who has the appropriate professional qualifications
or accounting or related financial management expertise
and had only two members in the Audit Committee with
a chairman vacancy, as such, the Company failed to meet
(i) the requirement set out in Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing
Rules that at least one of the independent non-executive
Directors must have appropriate professional qualifications
or accounting or related financial management expertise;
and (ii) the requirements set out in Rule 3.21 of the Listing
Rules that the Audit Committee must comprise a minimum of
three members and must be chaired by an independent non-
executive Director.
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TEERBE (F)

On 20 March 2020, the Board appointed Mr. Pan Fei to fill
the vacancy of the position of an independent non-executive
Director who has the appropriate professional qualifications or
accounting or related financial management expertise within
three months from the effective date of the resignation of Mr.
Patrick Sun and the chairman of the Audit Committee. Since
then, the Company has complied with Rules 3.10(2) and 3.21
of the Listing Rules.

The Company has received annual confirmations from each
of the independent non-executive Directors in respect of
their independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
The Company considers that all existing independent non-
executive Directors are independent in accordance with the
independence guidelines set out in the Listing Rules and are
free of any relationship that could materially interfere with the
exercise of their independent judgments.

THE BOARD

The Board is responsible for achieving corporate goals,
formulating development strategy, reviewing the
organizational structure, monitoring business activities and
performance of management and determining the policy for
corporate governance of the Company so as to protect and
maximize the interests of the Company and the shareholders
as a whole. Matters relating to the daily operations of the
Group are delegated to management. During the Year under
Review, the Board considered and approved the annual
budget and its performance under management supervision
together with the business reports from management. The
Board also reviewed and approved the final results for the
year ended 31 December 2020 and other critical business
operations. The Board also assessed the internal control and
the financial matters of the Group.
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TEER®E (F)

The Board composition for the year ended 31 December 2020
and up to the date of this report are as follows:

Mr. Ng Tit (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. Chin Yu
Mr. Wu Weizhong

Dr. Qian Wei

Mr. Yu Tze Shan Hailson

Dr. Yan Hong (resigned on 20 March 2020)
Dr. Zhao Yubiao

Mr. Pan Fei (appointed on 20 March 2020)

As at the date of this annual report, the Board comprises
seven Directors, including three executive Directors, one non-
executive Director and three independent non-executive
Directors. The members of the Board possess diverse and
rich industry backgrounds with appropriate professional
qualifications. Please refer to the section headed — “Directors
and Senior Management” for their profiles.

To the best knowledge of the Board, save as disclosed in the
section headed “Directors and Senior Management”, there
is no financial, business, family or other material/relevant
relationship among members of the Board. Board members
are free to exercise their independent judgment.

Under code provision A.4.1 of the Code contained in
Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules, non-executive Directors
should be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election.
The non-executive Directors were appointed for a term of
three years, subject to re-election when appropriate by the
Company in general meeting.
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TEERBE (F)

To demonstrate the Company’s continued commitment to
high standards of corporate governance, the Board adopted a
Board Diversity Policy in August 2013 to comply with the code
provision A.5.6 of the Code on board diversity. The policy is as
follows:

This policy aims to set out the approach to achieve diversity
on the Board.

The Company recognises and embraces the benefits of having
a diverse Board to enhance the quality of its performance.

The Company recognises and embraces the benefits of having
a diverse Board and sees increasing diversity at the board
level as an essential element in maintaining the Company’s
competitive advantage.

The Company believes that greater diversity of directors is
good for corporate governance and is committed:

° to attract and retain candidate(s) for the Board with a
combination of competencies from the widest possible
pool of available talent;

o to maintain a Board with diversity perspectives at
all levels, in particular, those are aligning with the
Company's strategy and objectives;

o to assess regularly the diversity profile of the Board
and, where applicable, senior management prepared
for Board positions under the succession planning of
the Company and the progress on achieving diversity
objectives, if any;

o to ensure that the selection and nomination of Board
positions are appropriately structured so that a diverse
range of candidates can be considered;
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TEER®E (F)

o to set up appropriate procedures for development
of a broader and more diverse pool of skilled and
experienced senior management that would be
prepared for Board positions; and

o to ensure that changes to the Board’s composition can
be managed without undue disruption.

Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity
perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, professional experience, skills
and knowledge. The ultimate decision will be based on merit
and contribution that the selected candidates will bring to the
Board.

The Board will review this policy on a regular basis to ensure
its continued effectiveness.

For the purpose of implementation of the Board Diversity
Policy, the following measurable objectives were adopted:

(A) at least one-third of the members of the Board shall be
independent non-executive directors;

(B) at least one of the members of the Board shall have
obtained accounting or other professional qualifications;

(C) at least 70% of the members of the Board shall have
more than seven years of experience in the industry he/
she is specialised in; and

(D) at least two of the members of the Board shall have
China-related work experience.

The Board is of the view that its diversity level is appropriate
in terms of gender, age, cultural and educational background,
professional experience, skills and knowledge of the Directors.
However, the Board will continue to observe the Board
Diversity Policy and consider potential candidates against the
objectives set out in the Board Diversity Policy in order to
achieve diversity on the Board.
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The Board conducts meetings on a regular basis and on an ad EXxerHRTER LEERERGRER
hoc basis, whenever required. The Company will convene at KNe% ARQABEFELAM4RTEHE
least four regular meetings every year. In 2020, the Company #& © M2020F - ARRIERIT2ZREHNES
convened twelve regular Board meetings. The attendance oH c NEE2020F12A31HEFERE
records of the regular Board meetings held during the year T EHESSEENEELESEINET :

ended 31 December 2020 are set out below:

Meeting
attendance/
number of
regular Attendance
meetings rate (%)
gHLE/
Name of Directors EENE EHEEREY o FE = (%)
Executive Directors BITEZE
Mr. Ng Tit (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer) RETEFEFTHAER) 12112 100%
Ms. Chin Yu ERET 1212 100%
Mr. Wu Weizhong REBRRE 12/12 100%
Non-Executive Directors FHTES
Dr. Qian Wei HEEL 12/12 100%
Independent Non-Executive Directors BUKHTES
Mr. Yu Tze Shan Hailson RELEE 12/12 100%
Dr. Yan Hong (resigned on 20 March 2020) BohE L (R202043520H 8 () N/A N/A
T A 1A
Dr. Zhao Yubiao BEREL 12112 100%
Mr. Pan Fei (appointed on 20 March 2020) BRI E(R2020F3520HEZ ) 9/9 100%

I F#E#H%E2020
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TEER®E (F)

Notices of regular Board meetings are given to all Directors at
least 14 days before the meetings. For other Board committee
meetings, reasonable notice is generally given. The agendas
and accompanying Board papers are given to all Directors in a
timely manner.

All Directors have full and timely access to all relevant
information and the advice of the company secretary, to
ensure that Board procedures and all applicable rules and
regulations are followed. Upon making request to the Board,
all Directors may obtain independent professional advice at
the Company'’s expense for carrying out their functions.

The minutes of all Board committee meetings are kept by the
Company at its Hong Kong office. Draft and final versions
of the minutes are normally circulated to the Directors for
comment within a reasonable time after each meeting and
the final version is open for Directors’ inspection.

For each newly appointed Director, he/she will be provided
with an induction course so as to ensure that he/she has
appropriate understanding of the business and operations
of the Company and that he/she is fully aware of his/her
responsibilities and obligations under the Listing Rules and the
relevant regulatory requirements.

There are also arrangements in place for providing continuing
briefing and professional development to Directors whenever
necessary.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Company
circulated materials relevant to the Director’s duties and
responsibilities to Directors and management of the Company
for their reading and reference.
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TEERBE (F)

A summary of the reading record and attending external HE2020512A31B IEFE 2 AR EHH
seminars/briefings of the Directors for the year ended 31 EEMECER2MNBHRTE BHEF
December 2020 and up to the date of this report are as BT
follows:
Attending
Reading external
regulatory seminars/
update briefings
2
MEEEEE HEWEE/
ZEHAE BNES
Executive Directors HTES
Mr. Ng Tit (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer) RETE(FEFTHAT) " v
Ms. Chin Yu BERET v /
Mr. Wu Weizhong REBLE v/ v/
Non-executive Directors FHTES
Dr. Qian Wei BEEL v /
Independent Non-executive Directors BUHTES
Mr. Yu Tze Shan Hailson RELEE v v
Dr. Yan Hong (resigned on 20 March 2020) BOA T T (R20204F3 A 20H 8 ) v/ v/
Dr. Zhao Yubiao BEREL " v
Mr. Pan Fei (appointed on 20 March 2020) B K (R202063H20F B Z (L) / v/

The Company has arranged appropriate liability insurance
to indemnify the Directors and senior officers for their
liabilities arising out of corporate activities. For the year ended
31 December 2020, no claim has been made against the
Directors and senior officers.
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TEER®E (F)

The Board has set up three Board committees, namely, the
Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the
Nomination Committee (collectively the “Board Committees”),
for overseeing particular aspects of the Company's affairs.

The Board Committees are provided with sufficient resources
to discharge their duties and, upon reasonable request, are
able to seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances, at the Company's expense.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Board established the Audit Committee on 26 March
2011, with written terms of reference in compliance with
the Listing Rules. Currently, it is chaired by Mr. Pan Fei and
comprises two other members, namely Mr. Yu Tze Shan
Hailson and Dr. Zhao Yubiao, all of whom are independent
non-executive Directors.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to make
recommendations to the Board on the appointment and
removal of the external auditors, review the financial
statements, oversee and provide advice in respect of the
financial reporting system, oversee the internal control
procedures and perform the corporate governance duties of
the Company.

The Audit Committee is responsible for performing the
following corporate governance duties:

1. to develop and review the Company’s policies
and practices on corporate governance and make
recommendations to Directors;

2. to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior
management;

3. to review and monitor the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements;
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TEERBE (F)

4. to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
Directors; and

5. to review the Company’s compliance with Appendix 14
to the Listing Rules (Corporate Governance Code and
Corporate Governance Report).

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Audit
Committee convened three meetings:

4. HlE BHREEREREEZMER
MITRTAREAFMIE) &

5. FRARREST LMK+
XERTAIRERERBE)NBER

HE2R0FN2A3BLFE E%EEZ2A
FI@3N e %

Meeting

attendance/
number of Attendance
meetings rate (%)

gHLE/
Name of Directors EERR BELY o FE 2 (%)
Mr. Pan Fei ERTE 3/3 100%

(Chairman) (appointed on 20 March 2020) (ZE)(R2020F3 5205 Z (F)

Mr. Yu Tze Shan Hailson RELEE 33 100%
Dr. Yan Hong BoAE T N/A N/A
(resigned on 20 March 2020) (R2020F3 5206 8 1) TER TER
Dr. Zhao Yubiao BERELT 33 100%

During the Year under Review, the Audit Committee together
with the management of the Company reviewed the Code,
the accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group
and discussed the Group’s internal control, risk management
and financial reporting matters, including a review of the
annual results for the year ended 31 December 2019 and
the interim results for the six months ended 30 June 2020,
with recommendation to the Board for approval. The Audit
Committee has also recommended to the Board that, subject
to shareholders’ approval at the forthcoming annual general
meeting, Crowe (HK) CPA Limited be re-appointed as the
external auditor of the Company.
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TEER®E (F)

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Board established the Remuneration Committee on 26
March 2011, with written terms of reference in compliance
with the Listing Rules. Currently, Mr. Yu Tze Shan Hailson, an
independent non-executive Director, is the chairman of the
Remuneration Committee. Dr. Zhao Yubiao, an independent
non-executive Director, and Mr. Ng Tit, an executive Director,
are the other two members of the Remuneration Committee.

The primary functions of the Remuneration Committee are to
evaluate the performance and make recommendations on the
remuneration package of Directors and senior management,
as well as the retirement scheme and the performance
assessment system and bonus and commission policies of the
Company.

The remuneration of Directors is based on their skills,
knowledge, performance of the Company, industry
benchmarks and prevailing market conditions. No Director
or senior management will be involved in any discussion
in connection with his or her own remuneration. The
Remuneration Committee may also consult with the chairman
on its proposals relating to the remuneration of other
executives and Directors and has access to professional advice
if required. The main objective of the remuneration policy
is to ensure that the Company is able to attract, retain and
motivate a high caliber team which is essential to the success
of the Company.
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During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Remuneration HE2020F12A31H8LFE  HFHNEESRH
Committee convened two meetings: FiB2X 2%
Meeting
attendance/
number of Attendance
meetings rate (%)
SELE/
Name of Directors BEEpgg RV HE 2 (%)
Mr. Yu Tze Shan Hailson (Chairman) L EE(EE) 212 100%
Mr. Ng Tit REEE 2/2 100%
Dr. Zhao Yubiao HEREL 212 100%
During the Year under Review, the Remuneration Committee REEFA  FWMEZESe D FEEZLTQRIRIT
has reviewed the remuneration policy and structure of the ESRaREEABNTMBOR RERE I
executive Directors and senior management of the Company, MESYREAEER -

and offered advice on the same to the Board.

Pursuant to code provision B.1.5 of the Code, the RAEF R 2 PRI L& B151E - Bl = 20204
remuneration by band of the senior management for the year RANBLEEE EFMEE s aRERA
ended 31 December 2020 are set out below: BHE5MT
Number of
Remuneration band (RMB) individuals
FHEE(ARY) AE
0-1,000,000 3
1,000,001 - 2,000,000 2
2,000,001 - 3,000,000 1
3,000,001 - 4,000,000 0
4,000,001 - 5,000,000 0
5,000,001 above bA £ 0
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Board established the Nomination Committee on 26
March 2011, with written terms of reference in compliance
with the Listing Rules. Currently, it is chaired by Mr. Ng Tit, an
executive Director, and comprises two other members, namely
Dr. Zhao Yubiao and Mr. Yu Tze Shan Hailson, both of whom
are independent non-executive Directors.

The primary functions of the Nomination Committee is to
make recommendations to the Board regarding candidates to
fill vacancies on the Board.

The duties of the Nomination Committee also include
reviewing the structure, number and composition of the
Board; submitting proposals to the Board on the appointment
of the chief executive officer and director; reviewing the
independence of the independent non-executive Directors
and submitting proposals to the Board. The authority and
duties of the Nomination Committee are clearly set out in its
terms of reference.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Nomination
Committee convened two meetings:

REEEE
BEER2011FE3A268B 1 LM BIR IR
HREBG WEMMAHEBESRE - BA7-
REZEBCEFRAVTESTRELE  BF
2BKE B ABIYENTEETNMER
B RRELELE -

RAZBEENIZRE/MERIKENER
ARREEERUERAETSIFHERZE

N
2
A

REZEENBANEBRENESTENR
BABREKR RZETRARNRESR
EXeRIES RAUBUIFRTEENSE
THARAEETERRER - RELZEEN
BEaECSEHIEERIRBE -
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Fli@2 k& %

Meeting

attendance/
number of Attendance
meetings rate (%)

BEHE/
Name of Directors EEHR SERH i FE & (%)
Mr. Ng Tit (Chairman) REXE(FE) 212 100%
Mr. Yu Tze Shan Hailson REIWLEE 212 100%
Dr. Zhao Yubiao HEEET 212 100%
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TEERBE (F)

During the Year under Review, the Nomination Committee
has reviewed the structure, size and diversity (including
the skills, knowledge, experience, gender, cultural and
educational background) of the Board, considered the
proposed appointment of director, conducted performance
evaluations to assess whether the non-executive Directors
have spent enough time in fulfilling their duties, assessed the
independence of independent non-executive Directors, and
kept under review the leadership needs of the organization,
both executive and non-executive, with a view to ensuring the
continued ability of the organization to compete effectively in
the marketplace.

A “Nomination Policy” for Directors was formally adopted
and the nomination procedures, process and criteria to select
and recommend candidates for directorship was set out in the
Nomination Committee’s terms of reference. The Nomination
Policy applies to the directors of the Company and where
applicable, senior management prepared for Board positions
under the succession planning of the Company.

The Nomination Policy aims to (i) set out the criteria and
process in the nomination and appointment of directors of
the Company; (ii) ensure that the Board of the Company has
a balance of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives
appropriate to the Company; and (iii) ensure the Board
continuity and appropriate leadership at board level.

In evaluating and selecting any candidate for directorship, the
following criteria should be considered:

o character and integrity;

o qualifications including professional qualifications,
skills, knowledge and experience and diversity aspects
under the Board Diversity Policy that are relevant to the
Company's business and corporate strategy;

o any measurable objectives adopted for achieving
diversity on the Board;

o requirement for the Board to have independent non-
executive directors in accordance with the Listing
Rules and whether the candidate would be considered
independent with reference to the independence
guidelines set out in the Listing Rules;
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any potential contributions the candidate can bring to
the Board in terms of qualifications, skills, experience,
independence and gender diversity;

willingness and ability to devote adequate time to
discharge duties as a member of the Board and/or Board
committee(s) of the Company; and

such other perspectives that are appropriate to the
Company’s business and succession plan and where
applicable, may be adopted and/or amended by the
Board and/or the Nomination Committee from time
to time for nomination of directors and succession
planning.

NOMINATION PROCESS

China NT Pharma Group Company Limited | Annual Report 2020

The Nomination Committee and/or the Board may
select candidates for directorship from various channels,
including but not limited to internal promotion,
re-designation, referral by other member of the
management and external recruitment agents.

The Nomination Committee and/or the Board should,
upon receipt of the proposal on appointment of new
director and the biographical information (or relevant
details) of the candidate, evaluate such candidate based
on the criteria as set out above to determine whether
such candidate is qualified for directorship.

If the process yields one or more desirable candidates,
the Nomination Committee and/or the Board should
rank them by order of preference based on the needs
of the Company and reference check of each candidate
(where applicable).

The Nomination Committee should then recommend
to the Board to appoint the appropriate candidate for
directorship, as applicable.

For any person that is nominated by a shareholder for
election as a director at the general meeting of the
Company, the Nomination Committee and/or the Board
should evaluate such candidate based on the criteria as
set out above to determine whether such candidate is
qualified for directorship.

RIEAEER e KR BUMER
HRlZ Tt TEAHEESELNE
LB R

REANEHBETEEER,LARF
E=ZZReKENBBHER R
&

RARRNEE N ETAEMSBEE
MEMBRN AR(MEMESSR,/
KRBREBETHUEFRR BT
BrTRE R R RIS RT RV B A -

REERF

REZEGR LEFSUNTRAEE
MEEEANE BREFRNALE
Tt BME - AEBREXESIN RN
RIERESE -

REZESR AEFSRERIEE
MEEMER RREANEAER (X
BB & - KB Ll 2 RIFF % 1R
BA LAEZIREAETESREREL
T

ek —EXZEEENREA
REZESR REFSRRELALF
MBEREBUREANERESES (W0E
) HEFI B FIR)B SR Fr ©

REZECHREMNZIAEAREST
Ex—=znEzeRbEs (WaER) -

MEMEHRREZRRARAERAE
FPERLSEEHAL  REEEGRS
FEESEKIE LA ER A ZIRE
AN RHEZIREARESERELE
=



Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

TEERBE (F)

Where appropriate, the Nomination Committee and/or the
Board should make recommendation to shareholders in
respect of the proposed election of director at the general
meeting.

i. The Nomination Committee and/or the Board should
review the overall contribution and service to the
Company of the retiring director and the level of
participation and performance on the Board.

ii. The Nomination Committee and/or the Board should
also review and determine whether the retiring director
continues to meet the criteria as set out above.

ii.  The Nomination Committee and/or the Board should
then make recommendation to shareholders in respect
of the proposed re-election of director at the general
meeting.

Where the Board proposes a resolution to elect or re-elect
a candidate as director at the general meeting, the relevant
information of the candidate will be disclosed in the circular to
shareholders and/or explanatory statement accompanying the
notice of the relevant general meeting in accordance with the
Listing Rules and/or applicable laws and regulations.

ACCOUNTABILITY

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility to present
a balanced, clear and understandable set of consolidated
financial statements in each of the annual and interim reports.
Save as disclosed in the independent auditor’s report under
the heading “Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern”,
the Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties
relating to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
upon the Group's ability to continue as a going concern as at
31 December 2020. Please refer to note 2(b) of the audited
consolidated financial statements for details.

The Directors are of the view that the Group and the
Company will be able to continue as going concern and that
the financial statements have been prepared on that basis.
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INTERNAL AUDIT

The Internal Audit (“IA”) of the Group is designed to help
the Group protect its assets and information. The presence
of IA empowers the Group to implement best business
practices in challenging business environments. The Group's
IA covers a number of in-house procedures and policies
including, among others, the relevant financial, operational
and compliance controls and risk management procedures.
IA carries out systematic independent reviews of all business
units and subsidiaries in the Group on an ongoing basis. The
frequency of review of individual business unit or subsidiary
is determined after an assessment of the risks involved. The
Audit Committee endorses the internal audit plan annually. I1A
has unrestricted access to all parts of the business, and direct
access to any level of management including the chairman,
or the chairman of the Audit Committee, as it considers
necessary. The audit result is discussed and agreed with the
management of the Group subsequent to each review. A
summary of major audit findings together with the actions
to be taken by the Group’s management for rectifying the
control weaknesses is also submitted to the Audit Committee.
The implementation of the remedial actions will then be
followed up and the implementation progress will be reported
to the Audit Committee each time it meets.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Board is responsible for maintaining an adequate system
of risk management and internal control and reviewing
its effectiveness. The risk management and internal
control system is designed to facilitate the effectiveness
and efficiency of operations, safeguard assets against
unauthorized use and disposition, ensure the maintenance of
proper accounting records and the truth and fairness of the
financial statements, and ensure compliance with relevant
legislation and regulations. It provides reasonable, but not
absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss
and management rather than elimination of risks associated
with its business activities. During the year 2020, the Board,
through the Audit Committee, reviewed the effectiveness
of the Group’s risk management and internal control system
covering all material controls and risk management functions.
The review is conducted annually in accordance with the
requirement of the Code. In accordance with the Code
requirements, the Audit Committee also reviewed and was
satisfied with the adequacy of resources, qualifications and
experience of staff of the Group’s accounting and financial
reporting function, and their training programmes and
budget for the year ended 31 December 2020. In addition,
IA conducts regular and independent reviews of the
effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal
control system. The Audit Committee reviews the findings
and opinion of IA on the effectiveness of the Group’s risk
management and internal control system and reports to the
Board on such reviews. To ensure the highest standard of
integrity in our businesses, the Group has adopted a “Code
of Conduct” defining the ethical standards expected of all
employees. Training courses on the “Code of Conduct” are
held regularly for all employees.

The Board is not aware of any significant internal control
weaknesses nor significant breach of limits or risk
management policies.
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RISK FACTORS

The Group's businesses, financial conditions, results of
operations or growth prospects may be affected by risks and
uncertainties directly or indirectly pertaining to the Group's
businesses. The risk factors set out below are those that could
result in the Group's businesses, financial conditions, results
of operations or growth prospects differing materially from
expected or historical results. Such factors are by no means
exhaustive or comprehensive, and there may be other risks in
addition to those shown below which are not known to the
Group or which may not be material now but could turn out
to be material in the future. In addition, this Annual Report
does not constitute a recommendation or advice to invest in
the shares of the Company and investors are advised to make
their own judgment or consult their own investment advisors
before making any investment in the shares of the Company.

The Group has formulated its information disclosure system,
to ensure the identification and confidentiality of potential
inside information until it is disclosed according to the Listing
Rules in a consistent and timely manner. The procedures for
publishing and processing inside information include:

o Business department managers as the people in charge
of information reporting;

o Senior management as the people in charge of the
information confidentiality of their respective business
segments;

o The Board as the party in charge of information
disclosure; and

o The Investor Relations Department as the parties
responsible for managing information disclosure,
the reporting, audit and disclosure of information
which needs public announcement, and archiving and
keeping such information disclosure documents and
announcements.
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TEERBE (F)

Substantially all of our operations are located in China, and
substantially all of our sales are made in China. Accordingly,
our business, financial condition, results of operations and
prospects are affected significantly by economic, political and
legal developments in China.

Adverse changes in political, economic and other policies of
the Chinese government could have a material adverse effect
on the overall economic growth of China, which could reduce
the demand for our products and could otherwise materially
and adversely affect our business, operations or competitive
position.

We are largely dependent on sales of our two core products,
Shusi and Zhuo'ao. If we are unable to maintain the sales
volumes, pricing levels and profit margins of these core
products, our revenue and profitability could be adversely
affected.

We operate in a highly competitive environment and we may
not be able to compete effectively against current and future
competitors. Our inability to compete effectively could result
in decrease of sales, reduction of price and loss of market
share, any of which could have a material adverse effect on
our results of operations and profit margins.

In each province where we market our products, we
are required to participate in a government-sponsored
competitive bidding process every year or every few years.
During the provincial tendering process, we and our
competitors submit pricing and other product information to
local pricing bureaus for selection, which is based on the bid
price, clinical effectiveness and quality of each product and
the reputation of the bidder. For each product category, a
local pricing bureau will permit a limited number of products
for sale in the relevant province or local district.
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We may fail to win bids in a provincial tendering process due
to various factors, including reduced demand for the relevant
product, uncompetitive bidding price or local protectionism.
We may also win bids at low prices that will limit our profit
margins. There can be no assurance that our bids will enable
us to win the tendering process and maintain our market
share without compromising our profitability. In addition,
we may lose in the tendering process because the relevant
product is perceived to be less clinically effective than
competing products or our services or other aspects of our
operations are perceived to be less competitive.

Our long-term competitiveness depends on our ability
to enhance our existing products and to develop and
commercialize new pharmaceutical products through our
research and development activities. The development process
of pharmaceutical products in general, is time-consuming and
costly, and there can be no assurance that our research and
development activities will enable us to successfully develop
new pharmaceutical products.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the remunerations
paid or payable to the Group’s auditors, Crowe (HK) CPA
Limited, in respect of their audit and non-audit services are as
follows:
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company believes that the annual general meeting is
one of the principal channels of communication with its
shareholders. It provides an opportunity for shareholders
to ask questions about the Group’s performance. Separate
resolutions are proposed for each substantially separate
issue at the annual general meeting. In accordance with
the Listing Rules, voting by poll is mandatory at all general
meetings except where the Chairman, in good faith, decides
to allow a resolution which relates purely to a procedure or
administrative matter to be voted on by a show of hands. The
poll results are posted on the websites of the Stock Exchange
and the Company respectively on the same day of the general
meeting.

During the Year under Review, an annual general meeting of
the Company was held on 24 June 2020 and the attendance
record of the Directors is set out below:

HERRERE

ARARR RRBFAGREEBRRER
MEBRBZ  BRABUBEIAE
BE)RBRME - RBRRBEREG L - EHIR
ARAEEHNEZFAEMREL - RIELETR
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FIAEBRRAGUBANRETARR - RES
RRBERAEEADHEHRBI A RAR
Al A s -

REBER - ARFRRBFKER2020F
6A24R BT  EFEMHRECHEHINMT :

Meeting
attendance/
number of
meetings
gRLEE/
Name of Directors BEENS =P8
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Ng Tit REEE 11
Ms. Chin Yu BREt 11
Mr. Wu Weizhong REBEE 11
Non-executive Directors kHITESE
Dr. Qian Wei BEELT 1/1
Independent Non-executive Directors BUkHITES
Mr. Yu Tze Shan Hailson R IEE 11
Dr. Zhao Yubiao HWEREBL 11
Mr. Pan Fei (appointed on 20 March 2020) & TR ST (R20209F3520H # Z (F) 11

FAIR DISCLOSURE

The Company uses its best endeavors to distribute material
information about the Group to all interested parties as timely
as possible. Information about the Group can be found on the
Company’s website including descriptions of each business
and the interim and annual reports of the Company.
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FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Directors of the Company acknowledge their
responsibility for preparing the financial statements which
give a true and fair view of the Group’s affairs and of its
results and cash flows for the year 2020 in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and
the applicable disclosure provisions of the Listing Rules. The
Directors of the Company endeavor to ensure a balanced,
clear and understandable assessment of the Group's
performance, position and prospects in financial reporting.
Accordingly, appropriate accounting policies are selected
and applied consistently; judgments and estimates made are
prudent and reasonable. The adoption of new or amended
accounting standards that became effective during the year
has not had a significant impact on the Group’s results of
operations and financial position except for those disclosed
in note 2(c) to the consolidated financial statements of the
Group in this report. The responsibilities of the external
auditors with respect to the audit of financial statements are
set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on page 120 of
this report.

The Directors confirm that, save as disclosed in the
Independent Auditor’s Report of this report, to the best of
their knowledge, information and belief, having made all
reasonable enquiries, saved as disclosed in the independent
auditor’s report under the heading “Material Uncertainty
Related to Going Concern”, they are not aware of any material
uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Lai Siu Kuen was appointed as the Company Secretary
of the Company with effect from 22 June 2018 till her
resignation with effect from 23 October 2020. Ms. Lai is a
director of the listing corporate services department of Trident
Corporate Services (Asia) Limited. Ms. Lai has assisted on the
company secretarial matters of the Company and she has
closely communicated with the director of Investor Relations
Department of the Company, during the period from 1
January 2020 to 22 October 2020.
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With effect from 23 October 2020, Mr. Pang Wing Hong
(“Mr. Pang”) has been appointed by the Board in replacement
of Ms. Lai as (1) the company secretary of the Company, (2)
the Authorised Representative and (3) the Process Agent.

In compliance with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, Mr. Pang
has undertaken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional
training during the year ended 31 December 2020.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There was no change to the Company’s memorandum and
articles of association during the year.

DIVIDEND POLICY

On 24 January 2019, the Board has approved and adopted a
dividend policy that, in recommending or declaring dividends,
the Company shall maintain adequate cash reserves for
meeting its working capital requirements, future business
growth and its shareholding value subject to the applicable
laws and the articles of association of the Company.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Pursuant to the articles of association of the Company,
general meetings shall be convened on the written requisition
of any one or more members of the Company to the Directors
or secretary of the Company deposited at the principal place
of business of the Company in Hong Kong or, in the event the
Company ceases to have such a principal office, the registered
office specifying the objects of the meeting and signed by
the requisitionists, provided that such requisitionists held as
at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-
tenth of the paid up capital of the Company which carries
the right of voting at general meetings of the Company. Such
meeting shall be held within two months after the deposit
of such requisition. If the Board does not within 21 days
from the date of deposit of the requisition proceed duly to
convene the meeting, the requisitionist(s) themselves may
convene the general meeting in the same manner, and all
reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result
of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to them by the
Company.

If a member, who is entitled to attend and vote at the relevant
general meeting, wishes to nominate a person (not being
the nominating member) to stand for election as a Director,
he or she should lodge at the principal place of business of
the Company in Hong Kong or at the registered office of
the Company notice in writing of the intention to propose a
person for election as a Director and notice in writing by that
person of his or her willingness to be so elected and including
such person’s biographical details and written consent to the
publication of his/her personal data. The minimum length of
period, during which such notice(s) are given, shall be at least
seven days and that (if the notice(s) are submitted after the
despatch of the notice of the general meeting appointed for
such election) the period for lodgment of such notice(s) shall
commence on the day after the despatch of the notice of the
general meeting appointed for such election and end no later
than seven days prior the date of such general meeting.

ENQUIRIES TO THE BOARD

Enquiries may be put to the Board through the Company’s
principal place of business in Hong Kong at 28th Floor, The
Wellington, 198 Wellington Street, Sheung Wan, Hong Kong
(Email: ir@ntpharma.com).
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

== ISR =53t
RIE - HERERHRE
INTRODUCTION, ENVIRONMENTAL,
SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE POLICIES

This Environmental, Social and Governance Report (the “ESG
Report”) summarizes China NT Pharma Group Company
Limited (the “Company”, together with its subsidiaries, “the
Group”, "we” or “NT Pharma”) environmental, social and
governance (“ESG") initiatives, plans and performance, and
demonstrates its commitment to sustainable development.

NT Pharma is a technology-based pharmaceutical company
integrated with research and development (“R&D"),
manufacturing and sales of its own products. With its
products covering therapeutic areas including central nervous
system (“CNS”), osteology, oncology and hematology.
NT Pharma owns two new National Class 1 drugs, one
well-known international innovative brand-name drug
and a number of generic drugs. The Group conducts its
manufacturing through three subsidiaries, namely Suzhou
First Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. (“Suzhou First”), Jiangsu NT
Biopharma Co., Ltd. (“Jiangsu Biopharma”) and NT Pharma
(Changsha) Co., Ltd. (“Changsha Pharma”). The Group owns
several sales and distribution companies with around 1,000
sales professionals and R&D specialists. It also has an extensive
sales network in the People’s Republic of China (“China” or
“PRC"), covering nearly 10,000 hospitals.

In the future, the Group will continue to adjust and
strengthen its strategies, such as strengthening its innovation
capability and actively conducting R&D of innovative drugs
for driving the Group’s profit growth. The Group would be
fully developing the market potential of brand drugs and
generic drugs, achieving the economies of scale and boosting
sales performance of various drugs. In the meantime, the
Group will continue to proactively identify opportunities
to acquire quality products to enrich its product portfolio,
focusing on three therapeutic areas including psychiatry,
orthopedics, and hematology and oncology; speed up its
external development through vertical strategic acquisition,
so as to attain synergistic effect through integration with its
existing products and gather the momentum for sustainable
development of the Group.

TEREEABESEEH |

FEHRE HERERSEH

ARE - HEREABS(ARKEDELET
BREBEEEERAR(ARA] ERH
MEBAR > aIAKE] [RMAIKFEE
ENDAERR HeakBARARER HERE
A EMER  FHERER  XRTEER
FERREA AR -

REBET-REMETAMB(HED &
E-HEABAmBERS - BHRRRE
RE ERBBETRSELESR(PREBER
;) BH - BEROAFAFEE - X
BEGAMEBRR —EHE - —EABHRKM
2R MR ERZEEA T RE: AEEE
BEE=-—FHMNBRARGMNESHERR QA
(&MFZED FEEMHRETHERRAT
(MTIEHEMHEDEFEEE(ED)BERA
ARAPBEDETERLEE  AKEHE
SHREERDEAR  AEMATANEER
MEEXAE EHEREBENETEAR
HME(HE]) IBEOIERER -

R - AER B A AR T B % D0 o BRS¢ 1B 5R
BXAIFEE  BEBEELAIFNE SHEF
BE - NEERD R IR m R B BB
mBEN  RELE  BAKEFRRER
& A AEESEEESYERERE
BEEM BEBEM - 88 IAKRER
RI=Z AR A - 818 HE A BB O B8 1R 41
EARR - BAKERAEMBERBRNE
NEEEMMAS  SIEXAKERBEER -

FEHRE2020

55



56

Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

RIR - HERERHRE (B)

ESG STRUCTURE

The Group has established the ESG Taskforce (the “Taskforce”).
The Taskforce comprises core members from different
departments and is responsible for collecting relevant
information on the Group’s ESG aspects for preparing the
ESG Report. The Taskforce reports to the Board of Directors,
assists in identifying and evaluating the Group'’s ESG risks and
the effectiveness of the ESG internal control mechanisms.
The Taskforce also examines and evaluates the Group’s
performances in different aspects such as the environment,
health and safety, labour standards and product responsibilities
in the ESG aspects. The Board sets up a general direction for
the Group’s ESG strategies, ensuring the effectiveness in the
control of ESG risks and internal control mechanisms.

REPORTING PERIOD

The ESG Report covers the Group’s overall ESG policies
and related information during the reporting period from 1
January 2020 to 31 December 2020 (“the year”).

SCOPE OF REPORTING

The ESG Report mainly focuses on Shanghai office and the
main production base, which is Suzhou First located in Suzhou
Industrial Park, China. The Group obtained the information on
ESG key performance indicators (“KPIs”) through the Group's
and its subsidiaries’ operational control mechanisms.

REPORTING FRAMEWORK

The ESG Report has been prepared in compliance with all
applicable provisions set out in the Environmental, Social and
Governance Reporting Guide (the “ESG Reporting Guide” or
“Report Guide”) contained in Appendix 27 of the Main Board
Listing Rules of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
("Stock Exchange”). For the Group's corporate governance
practices, please refer to the section “Corporate Governance
Report” this Annual Report.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)
RIE - HERERBRE (E)

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT Kih&E2 N

Stakeholder participation is considered as an indispensable ROE2ERAEERERANFERESR
part of the Group’s commitment to enhance its sustainable WAASRE—IR - ABEM+HERTA
development, hence we attach great importance to different RNEREEAEEXEBRER  HERE
stakeholders and their views related to ESG issues. To fully AEENER - ARHOBREEETREEFM
understand and respond to different stakeholders’ concerns, EHAIZEE BAETRFHHEESEES
the Group maintains close communication with its key RRREERKRE BN MEE#E - HE
stakeholders, including but not limited to investors and B BP - 8 EBRTEERIER
shareholders, government and regulatory bodies, suppliers, EERERB-

employees, customers, communities, non-governmental
organizations (“NGOs") and the media.

Stakeholders Communication Channels Expectations
FhE BERE L
Investors and o Annual general meetings o Timely announcement of the latest
shareholders corporate information
REERKRR BRRBFRS RERMHBEEZHES
° Financial reports ° Financial performance
s HmE MG ER
o Announcements and circulars o Corporate sustainable development
NERBE EAFEER
o Investor conferences
rREEEZ
Government and o Regular conference o Comply with relevant laws and
regulatory bodies regulations
BREREERE EHIEE & BTHBERER
3 Regular performance report o Corporate social responsibility
T HAE #H KRR rEHEEME
o On-site inspection
BEER
Suppliers o Supplier management conferences o Fair competition
HEm and events
HEREEERENEADY NP
o Supplier on-site audit management e Business ethics and reputation
system
HEMBRSESEENE FERBEEGCE

o Win-win cooperation
BEXR

Employees o Employee opinion survey o Health and safety
8T BTERAL ERALE
o Intranet ° Equal opportunity
A B 48 FEKE
o Remuneration and benefits
#r B 62 43 A
o Career development
BEER
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RIE - HERERBRE (E)

Stakeholders

K&

Customers

'F

Communities, NGOs and
the media

Communication Channels

Customer satisfaction survey and
feedback form
EEFREERABENMERR

Customer service center

B F R O

Customer service manager

S <31

Public and community events and
partnership projects on different

Expectations

e

Carry out products and services
responsibility
BTERERBEE

Protect customers’ information and
privacy

EFPERRMLERE

Contribute to the society

HE FERARERER

topics

HYARZEBNAR R RES

TR A3
o ESG reports
RE -HekERBSE

The Group works closely with different stakeholders to
improve the operational strategies, ESG measures and
performance to create greater value for the nation and
community.

MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT

In order to better understand the views and expectations
of stakeholders on the ESG performance of the Group, we
have adopted a systematic method to conduct an annual
assessment of key aspects, with reference to the business
development strategies of the Group and industry practices,
and invited the stakeholders related to the Group to
participate in the materiality survey to rate potential major
issues. We analysed the results of the importance survey
into an materiality matrix. The identified material issues
and concerns of the stakeholders had been reviewed and
discussed with the management and disclosed in this ESG
Report. The Group’s materiality matrix for the year is as
follow:

Ol ERtt &

o Environmental protection
RIFRE

o Compliance operation
BRKE
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RIE - HERERBRE (E)

Less' Material Issues Highly Material Issues
Material EERE EEEEEE

Issues
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

RIR - HERERHRE (B)

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group confirmed
that appropriate and effective management policies and
internal control systems for ESG issues are in place and
confirmed the information disclosed in the ESG Report meets
the ESG Reporting Guide.

CONTACT US

We welcome stakeholders to provide their opinions and
suggestions. You can provide valuable advices in respect
of the ESG Report or our performances in sustainable
development by contact@ntpharma.com.

A. ENVIRONMENTAL

The Group values environmental management highly, strives
to protect the environment and takes the social responsibility
of the Group through adopting clean production. The Group
is attentive to the emission and treatment of wastewater, air
pollutants and wastes (including non-hazardous waste and
hazardous waste) created from its operation, various kinds
of pollutants emissions follow the national and regional
standards through online monitoring system, self-testing
system and management approach. The Group’s emissions of
exhaust gas, wastewater, noises and hazardous wastes during
the year passed the national emission standards and was
granted an emission permit by the Ministry of Ecology and
Environment of the People’s Republic of China and issued by
the Ministry of Ecology and Environment of Suzhou City.

The Group strictly complies with the “Environmental
Protection Law of the People’s Republic of China”, the
“Environmental Protection Tax Law of the People’s Republic
of China”, the “Law of the People’s Republic of China on the
Prevention and Control of Water Pollution”, the “Law of the
People’s Republic of China on the Prevention and Control of
Atmospheric Pollution”, the “Law of the People’s Republic
of China on the Prevention and Control of Environmental
Noise Pollution”, the “Law of the People’s Republic of China
on the Prevention and Control of Environmental Pollution
by Solid Wastes”, the “Measures for the Administration of
Pollutant Discharge Permits (Trial)”, the “Technical Policy on
the Prevention and Control of Volatile Organic Compounds
(VOCs) Pollution” and other laws and regulations related to
environmental protection in Mainland China. The Group has
established a series of environmental protection measures to
actively reduce the environmental pollution generated during
the operation. These measures will be mentioned in the
relevant sections of the ESG Report.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

RIR - HERERHRE (B)

The supervisors of the Group’s production bases and
office executives supervise the implementation of these
environmental protection measures and policies. The Group
expects all departments giving their best to implement its
environmental policies and ensure all operational processes
are complied with relevant laws and regulations, under the
Group's strict supervision and guidance. Persons in charge
of environmental protection at all levels will continue to
review its policies and practices and report to management
if necessary, with recommendations. If there is an abnormal
discharge caused by an emergency during the production
process, the persons in charge will immediately take
emergency measures to prevent the spread of pollution and
report to the management in a timely manner in order to
control the situation.

During the year, the Group did not have any violation of
relevant local environmental laws and regulations in relation
to exhaust gas and greenhouse gas ("“GHG") emissions, water
and land discharge, and the generation of hazardous and
non-hazardous wastes that have a significant impact on the
Group.

Emissions of Air Pollutants

The Group's air pollutant emissions are mainly from gasoline
and diesel consumed in the use of vehicles in Suzhou First,
resulting in the following three categories of emissions:
nitrogen oxides (NOx), sulfur oxides (SOx) and particulate
matter (PM). The emissions for each category during the year
are as follows:

Type of air pollutants

AEEEEEMNZTRTIERBRAIENTT
BAEREBELRAREELABENER
B - AEEHMEERMBERNERRES
T SEBMIREMERTHERRBCR - #R
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BEASRBEERAEENBERER X
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SRE BEABRZARRESER B
SR EX A REAEEEER -

AEBERAFEYEFMARERLBER
CEERY KRR BT A RE E R E
EERVEL HAKEEEARENER
MERBEXABERZEREMN -

il

¥

7= R05 2 M HE R
AEBNER SRR EERREINES
) ES 8 {5 F AR P OB FE B9 )5 i RN SE i T BB
T8 ERIMERER : RELEWNOX) » &
£ ¥ (SOX) R BRI (PM) o IRANF E K EEEM
FEREEMEDNT

ERGREYER
Nitrogen Oxide (NOX)
A A1 ¥ (NOx)

Sulfur Oxide (SOx)

5 &L 1 (SOx)
Particulate Matter (PM)
SE KL (PM)

Note:

The air pollutants are calculated with reference to the “Technical Guide for
the Compilation of Air Pollutant Emissions Inventory for Road Motor Vehicles
(Trial)" issued by the Ministry of Ecology and Environment of the People’s
Republic of China.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

RIR - HERERHRE (B)

The main purpose of Suzhou First's vehicles are to transport
employees to and from work. The increase in the Group’s
air emissions during the year was mainly a result of the
imprecision in the previous year's emission calculation due
to insufficient data in the classification of vehicles, and the
increase in the use of diesel during the year. As the Group
uses an external company to transport materials and products,
the relevant emissions are not included.

The Group has formulated the “Vehicle Management
Regulations” to regulate the use and management of all
vehicles of the Company to reduce emissions. The measures
are as follows:

° Switch off the engine when the vehicle is not in use;

o Use unleaded and low-sulfur gasoline according to the
laws and regulations;

° Phase out substandard vehicles in accordance with the
emission policies formulated by the state;

o Perform vehicle and equipment maintenance on regular
basis to ensure the engine performance does not hinder
the effective combustion of gasoline; and

o Optimise operational procedure to increase the loading
rate and reduce the idling rate of vehicles.

On the other hand, to minimize dust emission at the operation
site, the dust generated from the production process of
pharmaceutical products such as raw material crushing,
screening and pressing is removed by bag filters, meeting the
class Il standard in the “Emission Standard of Air Pollutants
for Pharmaceutical Industry” and the “Integrated Emission
Standard of Air Pollutants” in the PRC.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

RIR - HERERHRE (B)

GHG Emissions

The GHG emissions generated by the Group during the year
were mainly energy indirect GHG emissions (Scope 2) caused
by purchased electricity, followed by direct GHG emissions
(Scope 1), including the consumption of gasoline for vehicles
of Suzhou First and the consumption of natural gas by boilers
in business operations. Comparing with 2019, the Group's
GHG emissions increased during the year, mainly due to the
increase in gasoline and diesel consumption of vehicles and
electricity consumption of purchased electricity. The GHG
emissions®ote 1 of the Group during the year were as follows:

m = RS HF I
AEBRAFEEENREREBHERTIR
BRIMNBENERWEREZEEREB
B(EEZD) RRAREZRAEREHR(BE
—) BR&MNESHER TVHERE  REK
BT RMRET R R RARPTERK - 48
B2019% AEERAFERRERBIR
EEMIEM  TERBWHA TR AL
B URINIBENREELEMLA - K&
BRAFENREREHRE@EVMT

GHG Scope
AERBEEE
Direct GHG emissions (Scope 1) 1,780.52 1,644.91
BEEREREHR(EE—) M—EixE =
Energy indirect GHG emissions (Scope 2) 5,354.36 4,176.46
EREZEREREEEN(EED) L7 = =1
Total GHG emissions (Scope 1 and 2) 7,134.88 5,821.37
BEREHNLEEHE—KRZ) WS {ixE =
Total GHG emissions intensity®ote 2 tCO,e/million revenue 24.02 15.91
B E R B i 4B 2 B E ) W= E E
BRHER
Notes: B
1. GHG emissions are calculated with reference to the “Urban GHG

Accounting Tool Guide” issued by the World Resources Institute and
the “China Regional Grid Baseline Emission Factors” issued by the
Ministry of Ecology and Environment of the People’s Republic of China.

2. Intensity is calculated on the basis of the Group’s revenue. Other
intensities are calculated using the same method.

In order to reduce GHG emissions, the Group actively takes
measures to use cleaner and renewable energy as much
as possible for energy consumption during its operations.
Therefore, in addition to the use of natural gas boilers,
the Group will also purchase electricity to supplement the
Group’s energy and heat demand. The benefit of using
natural gas is that it is a cleaner energy among fossil fuels
and contains less pollutants in the flue gas emitted during
combustion. In addition, the Group has installed ventilation
and deodorization devices at the gas outlet of natural gas
to ensure that there is an appropriate hygienic distance to
protect and to minimize the emission of air pollutants, as well
as in order to meet the “Emission Standard of Air Pollutants
for Boiler (GB13271-2014)" and the total quantity control
requirements before emission.

TERHxABESHE |
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

RIR - HERERHRE (B)

Wastewater Discharge

The production base produces wastewater during the
production process, which is discharged after treatment at
the main discharge outlet and incorporated into the municipal
pipe network. In order to ensure that the wastewater
discharged meets the three-level standard limit requirements
under the “Integrated Wastewater Discharge Standard” of
the PRC, and ammonia nitrogen emitted meets the B-level
standard limit requirements under the “Wastewater Quality
Standards for Discharge to Municipal Sewers” and other
discharge standards. In addition to regular treatment, Suzhou
First also engages an independent third-party professional
testing institution to install testing devices at the total
drainage outlet and issue a report on a quarterly basis to the
National Environmental Protection Agency.

Waste Management

The Group generates various kinds of hazardous and non-
hazardous waste during operation and production process.
To minimize the adverse impact on the environment caused
by waste, the Group has strictly complied with the “Law of
the People’s Republic of China on the Prevention and Control
of Environmental Pollution by Solid Waste” and the “National
Catalogue of Hazardous Wastes” and other related laws and
regulations, continuously implementing a variety of waste
management and reduction measures.

Hazardous Wastes

Hazardous waste from the Group’s operation mainly were
scrap medicines and waste organic solvent. During the year
ended 31 December 2020, the Group’s hazardous wastes
disposal and their intensities were as follow:

55 7K HE IR

TEEMELTEBBETEELEK  LRE
BE KR —EAYIKORINER M AT
BER - BEERELREKSTEHRBECOTKE
BHRBREIN=ZFRREREER QAT
& OFKBEAW R THRGEKE R ) BT
HREZREFREE - RTERBEIN
BRNEETMERTRBLE =T HEERARE
EEPKARERARKBEYSFTELARE
¥ EHRERRERD -

B

EASENZEREERRET  TEELSR
EEREVNEZEREY - RREBEEVHIER
BEXRNTE AEEBEREKB(FEAR
HMEE R EY S RAREN E) R(BRE
RENMBE)EERER KEBERZHE
BEWMERRRBBERE

BEBEY
AEEXEBEEEENEERENEENE
REEE R R EER AT o RE=2020F12 A31
AIEFE AEENEEEEVHERERER
BT

Type of hazardous wastes Unit

FEERVESR By 2020 2019

Scrap medicines tonnes 28.00 3.81

P B oh U7

Waste organic solvent tonnes 6.85 N/A

BE B R Al Mg 38 A

Total hazardous wastes disposal tonnes 34.85 3.81

EEREMNAEE g

Total hazardous wastes disposal intensity tonnes/million 0.12 0.01
revenue

EEBEENNEETRE Wi BB TIHERE
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

RIE - HERERHRE ()

To regulate the management of hazardous wastes, the Group REBARHRBEREYER HIETATA
has formulated the following internal rules and regulations: e = 6=

o The "Responsibility System for Pollution Prevention °

and Control” specifies the responsibility for pollution
prevention and control of all departments and personnel
involved in the production, transportation, storage and
treatment of hazardous wastes;

o The "Hazardous Waste Management Plan, Declaration °

and Registration”, Transfer Form System specifies the
implementation requirements for the hazardous waste
management plan and declaration and registration;

o The *“Hazardous Waste Source Classification System” °

classifies, collects and stores hazardous waste according
to different characteristics; and

o In accordance with the requirements of Appendix A °

of the “Standard for Pollution Control on Hazardous
Waste Storage” (GB18597) and the requirements of the
“Environmental Protection Graphic Label — Solid Waste
Storage (Disposal) Site” (GB15562.2), the Company has
formulated the “Hazardous Waste Labelling System” to
standardize the identification signs of hazardous waste
to prevent mishandling.
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The Group engages professionally qualified companies listed ZIS’E EZRERAEA LY HABEEERD
on government'’s website to handle hazardous waste to avoid NRAIREIEEREY  BEMEREBES KL
environmental, safety and health risks arising from improper RE -ZELAEERENRR -

handling of it.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

RIR - HERERHRE (B)

Non-hazardous Wastes

The non-hazardous wastes generated from the Group’s
business operations are mainly office wastes such as waste
food and beverage packaging, waste stationery, paper, etc.
Due to the small quantity and its relatively small impact on
the Group, we have decided not to disclose the relevant
data. Nonetheless, the Group remains committed to reducing
waste at source by adopting various measures to eliminate
waste and implement recycling and reuse methods to reduce
wastes generated in daily operations. The Group has designed
different measures to control the production of wastes at
source, including but not limited to:

o Providing regular education and promotion on
environmental protection for staff so as to encourage
the habits of reuse and recycle; and

o Adopting the Group’s waste management policies,
the waste generated by each department are sorted
according to their nature, and adopt measures to
consolidate them for recycling and reuse.

In addition, the Group is committed to establishing an
electronic and green office:

o The office makes full use of the online system, where
business notices and data exchanges are conducted
through network system;

o Employees are required to use both sides of office paper
where possible when printing or copying;

o Wastepaper is collected at the office and the recycling
centrally managed by administrative department; and

o Scrap boxes are classified as “recyclable” waste for
disposal.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

RIE - HERERHRE ()

Wastes disposal is unavoidable during our operation, but with
the relevant and effective waste handling strategy and policy,
the resulting environmental risks and impacts have been
reduced as far as possible by the Group.

The Group endeavors to achieve sustainable development,
upholds its green production philosophy of “Clean
Production, Energy Saving and Emission Reduction” to the
Group's operations, and is committed to optimizing the use of
resources in all of its business and production operations.

The Group endeavors in the course of achieving high
operation efficiency to minimize its consumption of resources
(including energy, water, packaging materials, etc.) whenever
it is possible, in support of the utilisation and promotion
of clean energy, so as to enhance the comprehensive
utilisation rate of resources. The Group manages the use of
resources such as water, electricity and fuel by particularly
managing the equipment with significant consumption, tallies
monthly usage, as well as standardizes equipment operation
procedures to fully and effectively use the resources. In case
of any abnormal or excessive consumption, we will carry
out an investigation to find out the reasons and look for
rectification measures. Looking ahead, we are continuously
looking for practical energy conservation opportunity in its
operation. In order to achieve sustainable development, the
Group regularly promotes the green message and suggests
the eco-friendly lifestyles to employees.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)
RIE - HERERBRE (E)

Energy Consumption B8R OH #E

The major energy consumption of the Group during the year REBRKAEFENFERRERRBEEMEE
was electricity used in operations and natural gas used in BOBENRMEMERANRAR HRRE
boilers, and to a lesser extent, diesel and gasoline used by 8 FT O A B9 5 0m B0l - ABER2019F HY B FE
vehicles, which increased slightly as compared to 2019. The EREEM - AEBERETFENEREEE
Group's energy consumption and its intensity during the year REZRENT:

are as follows:

Types of energy Unit(note &)
RRER 5 {y (e 2020 2019
Diesel(note 3) MWh 43.39 N/A
e i) Yo FL B A
Gasolinetote 4) MWh 82.34 62.88
RS JK FL s
Electricity MWh 6,654.68 6,435.18
ca kI
Natural gastote s MWh 8,479.47 8,119.07
RN RS JK FL B
Total energy consumption MWh 15,259.88 14,617.13
Hb/ﬁ,m /ﬁﬁ% jlﬁﬁﬁ%
Total energy consumption intensity MWh/million 51.38 39.94

revenue
BEREERERE KEE,

BETHER

Notes: st

3. During the year ended 31 December 2020, the actual diesel 3. REE2020F12A31BILFE - L£hERAZEAR
consumption was approximately 4,022 litres. #94,022 R Ft »

4. During the years ended 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019, 4. RE E2020F12 A318 L FE kA& £2019F12
the actual gasoline consumption were approximately 8,429 litres and RA3BLEEE  AhERBES R AK8,4290F
approximately 6,488.14 litres respectively. K #16,488. 142 FF -

5. During the years ended 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019, 5. B E2020F12A31H IEFF kR E £2019F12
the actual gasoline consumption were approximately 810,095 m? and AMBIEFE - RAREBKRAE 55 R4£810,095
approximately 776,284.42 m? respectively. SR K #9776,284.4257 F K o

6. The calculation of energy unit conversion to MWh is referenced to the 6. HEREVERZEKREEFFEFENLERBRER
Energy Data Handbook issued by the International Energy Agency. ERLWEIREEFM -
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

RIR - HERERHRE (B)

The Group operates strictly in accordance with Good
Manufacturing Practice (“GMP") standards regarding
production and operating management, utilises energy-
saving equipment, and enhances the efficiency of production
technologies and raises productivity through continual
upgrade of the production equipment. For the operation
management, we set the energy saving goals and tasks,
by implementing the following measures to improve the
energy saving performance, promote the enthusiasm of all
departments to implement energy conservation and emission
reduction:

o Calculating the energy consumption per unit output
value using to the actual energy consumption and the
output value of each department in the previous year,
and then use this value to propose a reduction ratio as a
reduction target for each department;

o Formulating the departmental energy-saving targets
and working methods for every departments, based
on the energy saving target issued, the actual energy
consumption of the previous year and the annual
production plan, etc.; and

o Investigating the causes for the incomplete conservation
plan, formulating related countermeasures, and
supervising the implementation of the assessment
measures.

Other than the improvement of management process,
the Group also proposes the requirement on the energy
conservation and emission reduction during production and
operating process. For example:

o Turn off the electricity when the office and factory are
not operating;

o Install of LED lighting for illumination;

REBBERERBRAIREELCEEE RS
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EIZRRSEEXRE GHELEEHE
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

RIR - HERERHRE (B)

o Turn on the electric appliance based on the actual needs
during working hours, including illumination facility, air-
conditioning, electrical fan, etc,;

o Regulate the usage of air-conditioning, set and fix
the office temperature at 25°C and less than 20°C in
summer and winter respectively; and

o Strengthen maintenance and repair of equipment to
maintain the optimal performance of various electronic
equipment and efficiency in energy usage.

Water Management

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group's water
consumption and its intensity were as follow:

s BINLURHZERFTEZRZMAER
w BRERARE =#% EB%:

. mEZENER ESRTLERSE
E325C: £FRTRETEBR0C
3

o INRERENGEERE  BEETRME
REFRENKE BRHERES -

X E 2
HE2020F12A31H IEFE - REB K
EREFENT:

Water consumption Unit
FKE B 2020 2019
Total water consumption m3 189,262.00 177,837.52
BiEKE AVAVI S
Total water consumption intensity m3/million revenue 637.25 485.89
BEKEERE SLHKS

BETHER

The cooling tower used by Suzhou First uses water as the
cooling medium, and the cooling water can be recycled
and reused. In addition, we also encourage all employees
and customers to develop the habit of conscious water
conservation to reduce the office’s water consumption. The
Group has been enhancing the water conservation promotion
by posting “Save Water” signs in the pantry and washroom to
remind employees to save water. Also, we regularly maintain
and repair the water supply system to prevent leakage of
faucet or water pipes.

The Group’s demand for water is not significant and we are
not in a water shortage region, so there is no problem in
sourcing suitable water resources.

HMESHANSNBUKRBLANE &
MKEERBIRBA - B HAITEB AR
BEREFERABBHANMKNEE - AR
MAFEKE - AEBE A MAEKERS
B - EZROKE R EFRIAR ETEHRK]IR
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BfE e E M EHEKRESR  BHEkEEER
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

RIR - HERERHRE (B)

Use of Packaging Materials

Comparing to 2019, the Group’s major packaging materials
consumption was decreased. As different drugs use different
packaging materials, the production volume of different drugs
will affect the amount of packaging materials used.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group’s
packaging materials consumption was as follow:

5 44 8
820194 - AEENEERRMEHEAE
Th-aRATANENEEATRANEE
W ATRBNMER G ERENRY
R R

REZE2020F12A3MBILFE » KEBEFH
B EMEIT

Types of packaging materials

BEMBER

Polyvinyl Chloride (PVC) tonnes 418 21.28
BRI 185

User manual thousand sheets 8,356.15 12,844.00
FEAE + 5%

Bottle label thousand sheets 24,332.24 52,481.70
R AL F 5k

Carton thousand pieces 8,143.86 12,644.00
wa T &

Large box thousand pieces 52.10 92.50
] T (&

Penicillin bottle thousand pieces 19,749.00 58,422.69
s i + &

Rubber stopper thousand pieces 19,182.40 47,373.08
B zE T &

Aluminum-plastic cap thousand pieces 19,054.00 47,821.53
= + (&

BEMMERREERLTBRERELR X
NEPFHMHE  REEELEBRENAINL
RO —#D - EEERREMHE  REEL
B EmTENEEFRERI  AKENE
BEEYFOEENBRE KRS

Packaging materials are used to ensure products are safely
delivered to the hands of customers, this is an indispensable
part in the whole production procedure. In the selection
of packaging materials, in addition to the consideration of
economic, product safety, quality and other factors, the
Group actively takes into account the reuse and recycle
capacity of packaging materials.

5
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

RIR - HERERHRE (B)

As a pharmaceutical manufacturer, the Group has strived its
utmost effort to control and mitigate the negative impacts
brought to the natural environment and insisted in regulating
emissions of pollutants. In the view of resources and energy
saving, the Group will continuously improve and enhance its
production equipment and techniques, refine the product
structure, and promote environmental work so as to make
contribution to the protection of the natural environment and
resources.

The Group focuses on the noise control management and the
employee’s occupational protection in accordance with noise
control related standards to monitor and control the impacts
of industrial noise to employees’ health and surrounding
community. The Group’s production base generate a small
amount of noise, primarily from boiler, air compressors,
vacuum machines, crushing machines, water pumps and other
equipment, etc. To manage noises, the Group strictly adheres
to GMP requirements and selects a factory layout designed
with significant noise insulation and damping effect, and
strives to mitigate noise hazards by advancing the equipment
and technologies, using physical isolation, occupational
protection, green shielding, etc. Also, the Group engages
independent third-party professional testing institutions
to conduct inspections and issue inspection reports, and
abides by the People’s Republic of China “Emission Standard
for Industrial Enterprises Noise at Boundary”. For the year
ended 31 December 2020, all production bases of the
Group achieved 100% in compliance with the noise control
standards, no material complaint of noise pollution was
received.
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REXRBE - -BBEERE AEEEREMD
BREHH CHEEBIRBGMPREEEREZEAR
MBI REARNERTHRE  LiER
WERE  RALE  ERAMERE - B
PrEMGCERESER  RIBRS/E I
ZREBUF- FEERAKBETRE - D
EmAlsRE  BABMARSTEINPE(TE
TERAIRBERBIEBUIZE) - RE E2020
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China NT Pharma Group Company Limited | Annual Report 2020



Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

R B RERHRE (&)
B. SOCIAL

The Group always believes that outstanding employees are
the most precious asset, and talents are the fundamental
pillars of the enterprise.

The Group actively complies with the “Labor Law of the
People’s Republic of China”, the “Labor Contract Law of the
People’s Republic of China” and other laws and regulations
relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and
promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity,
diversity, anti-discrimination, and other benefits and
welfare in China. The Group has formulated the “Employee
Handbook” and a series of policy documents in accordance
with relevant laws and regulations, including the “Personnel
Management System”, which specifies the management
of recruitment, induction, resignation, salary and bonus,
attendance, probation period, position adjustment, reward
and punishment system, contract renewal, and promotes
the standardization and institutionalization of decision-
making, so as to further improve the level of human resources
management. During the year ended 31 December 2020, the
Group did not aware of any material non-compliance of laws
and regulations in respect of human resources.

In addition to compliance with laws and regulations and
institutionalization, the Group also encourages harmonious
labor relations and strives to create a working atmosphere
of mutual trust, common progress and pursuit of excellence,
so as to fully protect the rights of both employees and
the Group. Under the guidance of our human resources
development strategy, the Group continuously improves the
human resources management system to provide employees
with a good working atmosphere and a sound training and
development platform. We also protect the occupational
health and safety of employees, strengthen the team building
with high efficiency and collaboration, and give full play to
the real core competitiveness of the enterprise. In addition
to strict compliance with the relevant laws and regulations
when terminating the employment relationship, we will also
make effort to find out the reasons for the resignation of
employees.

B. #&
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

R #BRERKRE (&)

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group had
224 employees in Mainland China (2019: 384), all of which
were full-time employees. The details of employees by gender,
age group and rank are as follows.

REZE2020F 124318 ILFE  AEB R
M THEH B 1224 A(2019 :384A) » & #F
BEBEBT - BTIRBMER - k485 X
BEIDWFEBOT o

Age Group
Fic 47
3%
2020 45% 42% .
0% 20% 40% 60% 80% 100%
W18-30  31-40 141-50 M>50
Gender
ezl
0% 20% 40% 60% 80% 100%
M Female Male
it B
Rank
AR
1%
1%
4%
0% 20% 40% 60% 80% 100%
M Director Corporate Manager [ Supervisor E Employee
pal=sy Executives g ) IE BT
e
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

R B RERHRE (&)

During the reporting period, the Group had a total of 156
resigned employees, with a turnover rate of 51%ote 7. The
details of the turnover of resigned employees by gender and
age group are as follows.

Gender

% Bl

Male

ES

Female

z

Age Group
F R4 Al
18-30

31-40
41-50

>50

Notes:

7 The number of resigned employees divided by the average number of
employees at the beginning and the end of the period.

8 The number of resigned employees in such category divided by the
average number of employees at the beginning and the end of the
period in such category.

AHEHE  AEEAFEBETI56A 0 R
KL E51% W7 - R B TR R B R F ik

e

|BI D HRRFEIBEMT e

Number of People Percentage(ote 8)

AB SR
78 51%
78 52%
33 43%
94 81%
27 32%

2 7%

i

R R E

BERB T ABBRUBVHARETFHAL -
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

RIR - HERERHRE (B)

The Group has established a fair, equitable, reasonable and
competitive remuneration system. The Group’s remuneration
of the employees comprises of basic salary, performance
salary, company benefit award, performance bonus, project
bonus, etc. When the level of salary and consumption
significantly increase in the market or the employees have
been promoted, the Group can adjust the salary level after
the remuneration committee’s affirmation. In addition, when
the Group’s annual benefits and performance have steadily
improved, the human resources department would formulate
the salary adjustment plan on the basis of the marketing
data and the current salary level, and adjusts the salary of
employees according to the factors such as their annual
performance, variety requirement of the position, etc.

In accordance with the law, the Group pays “five insurance
and one fund” for its employees, namely endowment
insurance, medical insurance, unemployment insurance,
employment injury insurance, maternity insurance and
housing provident fund, to ensure employees are covered by
social insurance. The social insurance and housing provident
fund are undertaken by the Group and employee.

The "Employees’ Manual” regulates employees’ working
hours and leaves arrangement. The attendance system
regulates the working hours and irregular working hours
based on the employee’s nature of work, so as to eradicate
the forced labour. Employees are entitled to paid annual
leave, marriage leave, maternity leave, paternity leave, nursing
leave, bereavement leave, sick leave, personal leave, etc. on
top of statutory holidays; Employees are also entitled to an
enriched welfare system to enhance the standard of living and
the sense of belonging, including baby bonus, festive bonus,
high-temperature subsidies, etc.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

RIR - HERERHRE (B)

The Group determines the objectives, directions and focuses
on talent recruitment, adopts an effective and open policy for
the talent recruitment and makes every effort to attract local
and overseas innovative talents irrespective of geographical
locations as well as to fully utilize talents after recruitment.
During the formal recruitment process, the Group
standardizes the hiring procedures and recruitment principles,
adheres to the hiring principles of morality, knowledge, ability,
experience and fitness applicable to job positions as well as
the principles of justice, fairness, competitiveness, and on a
best selection basis, so as to continuously attract talents.

The future of the Group comes from the efforts and success
of every employee, so the personal growth and progress
of employees are important to the development of the
Company. The human resources department of the Group
assesses the ability of employees through KPIs (organized
twice a year with each for mid-year and year-end) every year
based on the annual performance of employees and provides
opportunities for adjustment or promotion of job positions or
salary adjustment based on these indicators. In addition, the
Group also provides a series of training and learning activities,
details of which are set out in the paragraph headed “B3.
Development and Training”.

In the cases of dismissal of employees, the Group complies
with the relevant employment regulations and guidelines,
handles according to the agreed procedures, and appropriate
benefits and compensation are given to the dismissed
employees. The relevant provisions on the termination of
employment relationship are set out in the employment
contract of each employee.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

RIR - HERERHRE (B)

The Group strictly complies with national and local standards
by adopting a fair, equitable and open recruitment process,
and has developed relevant policies to prevent discrimination
in the recruitment processes, regardless of race, sex, colour,
age, family background, ethnicity, religion, physical fitness
and nationality, thus allowing them to enjoy fair treatment
and work opportunities in every aspect including recruitment,
salary, training and promotion. We endeavour to attract
professionals with diverse background to join the Group.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, Suzhou First
organized different socializing activities to raise the sense of
achievements for its employees and create a joyful, open,
healthy, friendly, harmonious work-life atmosphere.

The Group is dedicated to implementing a health and safety
production approach of “Prevention-oriented, Control
and Elimination of Hazards” and strives to foster a safe
and healthy working environment for its employees. The
Group strictly follows the “Law of Prevention and Control
of Occupational Diseases”, the “Standard of Notification
on Occupational Hazards of Highly Toxic Substances”,
the “Provisions on the Supervision and Administration of
Occupational Health at Work Sites”, and other regional laws
and regulations in Mainland China, continuously refines the
safety supervision management, strengthens safety training
for the professional team, and engages professional qualified
companies to carry out occupational hazard factors tests on
a regular basis with a view to providing production line staff
with a safe workplace.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group did
not record any accidents that resulted in fatality (2019 and
2018: Nil) but recorded four work-related injuries with a lost
in a total of 302 workdays. The Group did not identify any
material non-compliance with laws and regulations relating to
employee health and safety.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

RIR - HERERHRE (B)

The Group requires all production bases to fully comply
with the requirements of GMP, and has established a sound
“Safety Production Responsibility System Management
Regulations” to implement the policy of “Safety First,
Prevention-oriented and Comprehensive Management”,
implement the safety production responsibility system,
strengthen the safety management of the enterprise, and
enhance the safety production awareness of employees. To
effectively prevent, control and eliminate occupational hazards
and reduce the occurrence of factors affecting the health
and safety of employees, Suzhou First has formulated the
following internal rules and regulations to truly implement the
principle of “Good Management Requires Good Health” in
the course of operation.

o Occupational Disease Hazard Warning and Notification
System;

o Responsibility System for Prevention and Control of
Occupational Diseases;

° Management Procedures for Emergency Rescue of
Occupational Hazards;

o System for the Disposal and Reporting of Occupational
Hazards; and

o Procedures for Occupational Health Surveillance and its
File Management.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

RIB - HERERHRE ()

In order to ensure the safety and occupational health of
employees, to prevent occupational hazards and to conform
the actual work duties, the Group has implemented the
internal regulations, the “Safety Operation Procedures for
Occupational Hazard Positions”, to guide employees as
follows:

o Operators must wear protective gears such as dust
masks and other labour protection supplies before
entering the workplace;

o After entering the workplace, the dust removal facilities
that deployed in there must be carefully checked,
confirm that there are no abnormalities, and ensure that
the dust removal facilities are turned on;

o If there is a malfunction in the dedusting equipment,
it is necessary to report the relevant leaders of the unit
in time, and arrange for personnel to repair and to
ensure the operation of the dedusting equipment are
operational to be normal;

o All kinds of dust generated at the production site of this
post must be effectively cleaned to prevent the dust to
be arbitrarily flying;

o The operators must strictly perform in accordance with
the operating procedures; the operator will be seriously
dealt with one discovered do not strictly follow the
operating procedure;

J Before leaving work, all kinds of labour insurance
products used in the production site will be replaced,
to prevent the pollution source from being taken away
from the post and then transmit to others;

o After leaving the post, it is necessary to maintain good
hygiene habits, thoroughly clean the dust adhering to
the body and clothes, and promptly clean the body
to contact the various parts of the dust to avoid dust
inhalation; and

o Maintain good personal hygiene habits, adhere to bath
after work.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group
provided occupational health check for the employees of
Suzhou First in order to prevent and to treat occupational
contraindications or suspected occupational diseases.

China NT Pharma Group Company Limited | Annual Report 2020
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

RIR - HERERHRE (B)

The Group attaches great importance to fire safety
management and emergency management, and implements
the principle of “Prevention-oriented, Control and Elimination
of Hazards” as well as the laws and regulations such as
the Fire Protection Law and the Regulations on Punishment
of Security Management issued by the State. The Group
continuously improves the “Management Regulations on
Fire Prevention and Fire Control” to strengthen employees’
awareness of fire prevention and safety work and ensure safe
production. The regulations strengthen the configuration,
repair, maintenance and management of firefighting
equipment, and regularly check and replace fire extinguishers
to ensure effective use. The Group has formulated a floor
plan to announce the key areas such as the fire-prevention
areas and explosion-proof areas to employees. The Group also
arranged volunteer firefighters at all levels to study firefighting
knowledge and learn advanced experience to do firefighting
work with an aim to ensure that fire accidents can be properly
handled in a timely manner and proactively and effectively
organize rescue in case of fire. At the same time, after the
accidents, we will find out the cause of the fire, the origin of
the fire, the source of fire and the situations of fire prevention
work done and relevant personnel before the fire occurred.

To ensure the full implementation of fire control management
work, the Group performs special internal inspections on a
quarterly basis. The workshops (departments) also conduct
inspection once a day and keep relevant records. We will also
organize personnel to conduct spot checks to ensure system
implementation and safe production, when necessary.

The Group is committed to creating a healthy and
comfortable working and living environment for our
employees. We organize various employee care activities to
help employees balance work and life, so that they can have
challenging and fun experience at work. The labor union
of the Group is closely centered around the Group and its
employees and is responsible for organizing various activities
to enrich the after-work cultural life of employees, promote
the building of corporate culture and advocate healthy and
civilized lifestyle. The Group is committed to creating a unique
corporate culture, gradually improving team spirits, giving full
play to the advantages of all units and employees, so that the
Group can be promoted to a new level.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

RIR - HERERHRE (B)

Due to the impact of COVID-19, the Group has formulated the
“Prevention and Control of COVID-19 and Emergency Plan”
to secure safe production and ensure that employees are not
harmed. The Group has set up a leading group for epidemic
prevention and control, which is responsible for the dispatch
of personnel and materials, the finalizing of lists of contact
persons with phone numbers and emergency materials for
epidemic prevention and the duty tables for each department
(including health check, temperature check in the factories,
disinfection management, factory vehicle management,
smoking room/catering management, visitors management,
air-conditioning/elevator management, distribution of
epidemic prevention materials, procurement and education
and training).

The Group focuses on employees’ training through series of
training and learning activities it nurtures talents who are
of high quality and capability in order to meet the labour
challenging in a fast-growing business development and
maintain its competitiveness. To achieve the goal of being a
continuous learning enterprise, we provide related knowledge
and skills training for all employees to meet the requirements
of their job functions and ensure they can efficiently
operate in different departments. The Group is devoted to
providing employees with multi-faceted training activities
which involved both internal and external training, while
advancing employees’ techniques and promoting their career
development.

The Group is committed to pharmaceutical innovation and
production whilst it focuses on the growth and development
of each employee. In addition, the Group has tailored career
development plans for the employees according to their
working backgrounds and individual preferences for its
employees with an open and sustainable development path.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

RIR - HERERHRE (B)

In order to cultivate employees’ professional knowledge in
the pharmaceutical industry, the Group arranges training
courses in different fields for employees of all levels. Internal
training courses include business compliance training, rules
and regulations training, good supply practice (GSP) for
pharmaceutical products training and product information
training. The knowledge and skill trainings to all employees
aim to help them meet the requirements of the corresponding
post functions and ensure the effective operation of each
functional system. New recruits would have orientation
training to adapt the working environment as soon as
possible and fulfil their obligation. For employees working in
the factory, the Group also arranges GMP basic knowledge
training, production department’s general standard operating
procedures (SOP) training, fire safety training, adverse drug
reaction report and test training, microbiology and hygiene
knowledge training in order to raise the awareness of the
employees about the product’s safety, quality and health, and
to ensure to promote product safety and product quality. The
Group hopes to improve employee safety awareness through
various internal trainings to avoid work-related injuries, and at
the same time strengthen the professionalism of employees
and improve the quality of services and products of the
Group.

In addition, the Group also encourages employees to actively
explore external training opportunities, including attending
public courses, seminars, as well as salons organized by
training institutions, and upgrading academic qualifications.
By formulating the “Staff External Training Management
Procedures”, the Group provides a training budget and gives
employees to participate in external training confirmed by the
direct supervisor and the person in charge of the department.

The Group also emphasizes occupational safety training to
ensure employees’ personal safety. The relevant policies have
been described in details in Section B2 “Safety Production
Management System”.
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In 2020, a total of 86%Mt9 of the employees of Suzhou First
received training, with an average training hours of 2.39 hours
per employeelete 19 Training situation by gender and rank of
employees are as follows:

Gender
% Bl
Male
B
Female
g
Rank
4%
Manager
18
Supervisor
FE
Employee
BT

Notes:

9 The number of employees trained divided by the number of employees
at the end of the period.

10 The number of training hours divided by the number of employees at
the end of the period.

1 The number of employees trained in such category divided by the total
number of employees trained.

12 The number of training hours in such category divided by the number
of employees at the end of the period in such category.

The Group aims to raise the safety awareness of employees
through various trainings to avoid work-related injuries, while
strengthening the professionalism of employees to improve
the quality of the Group’s services and products at the same
time.

2020t M 5F = 2 B86% W9 B T # S 12
- ERE T TS AE2.39/ FFEE0
HRETHRIRBRESOEIBEROT:

Average
Percentage employees’
of employees training time

trained(ote 11 (hours)nete 12)
ST
FIET T BB

B 5 Hpwem (/N B ) ()

46% 2.60
54% 2.21
1% 1.44
6% 2.26
93% 1.83

9 ZAIABBABMRET A -

10 FIHSHEBRABHRETIAZ -

11 FZREIZIABBRIABRIET AL -

12 ZPABRIXINERAHRZEETI AR -

AEBEFEEBREBBIRSEILE2E
BB RTEXBER  RAEMERETHEE

KFE REAEERBRERLEE -
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

RIE - HERERHRE ()

The Group strictly executes the “Labor Law of the People’s
Republic of China”, the “Labor Contract Law of the People’s
Republic of China” and other local labor laws and regulations
in Mainland China. Meanwhile, the Group constantly refines
its recruitment policy to regulate recruitment activities,
with respect to basic labour issues, such as child and forced
labour, the Group takes a zero-tolerance attitude in terms
of both rules and regulations and monitoring mechanisms.
The Group clearly stipulates in its recruitment guidelines that
only employees over the legal working age can be recruited,
and that new employees should provide true and accurate
personal data when they join the Group; recruiters rigorously
review the entry data including physical examination
certificates, academic credentials, identity cards, and account
information, etc.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group was not
aware of any material non-compliance with any laws and
regulations in relation to the prevention of child and forced
labour. The Group focuses on taking preventive measures
at the source and is confident that the aforesaid illegal
employment will not occur in the future, so no steps have
been taken to eliminate such situation.

The Group values the management of supply chain as the
selection of suppliers would directly impact the quality and
safety of the products. Therefore, the Group has formulated
supply chain management regulations according to the new
version of GMP to regulate the management of supply chain;
conduct regular or irregular assessment towards suppliers; and
request for maintaining product’s quality from the suppliers,
with the aim of upholding suppliers’ product quality as well as
urging to a higher level of supply chain management.

The Group focuses on the integrity of suppliers and partners.
Before establishing business cooperation with third parties
(including suppliers), the Group selects suppliers and partners
with good business records without serious violation of
regulations or business ethics in accordance with the Group’s
“Due Diligence Procedures for Third Parties”. The Group has
zero-tolerance in bribery and corruption as well as forbid the
supplier and business partners from securing procurement
contracts or partnerships through any form of transfer of
interest.
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RIR - HERERHRE (B)

In order to standardize the management of suppliers, ensure
that the products provided by suppliers can meet the Group’s
quality requirements and assure the quality of our products,
the Group has formulated the “Supplier Management
Regulations” and the “Supplier Audit Management
Regulations” to manage all suppliers of production materials.
The Group collects suppliers’ business licenses, relevant
licenses (drug production license, hygiene license, printing
business license, hygiene license, etc.), organization charts,
quality system certifications, GMP certifications and other
product registration certificates, product approvals, drug
packaging materials for internal packaging materials,
container registration certificates and other relevant
documents required by the State. Then, the Group conducts
on-site audits of suppliers to verify the original copies of
relevant supporting documents provided by suppliers, checks
the personnel, environment, plant facilities and equipment,
material management, production process and production
management of suppliers, equipment, instruments and file
management of quality control room, to see whether there
are changes in the application process and current process,
whether the current process is consistent with the batch
production record, whether the data record is true, and
whether the quality system is sound. After the completion
of on-site audit, the internal reports include the on-site
audit plan of suppliers, on-site audit reports of suppliers,
on-site audit defects, rectification reports of suppliers, etc.
Each supplier shall separately establish a file and put the
information provided by the relevant supplier, on-site audit
information, deviation statistics and change information
into the supplier file. The annual quality review of suppliers
includes re-conducting on-site audits, filling out internal
reports and considering different corrective and preventive
measures for suppliers based on their deviations.

The Group strives to conduct scientific sampling of suppliers
from various aspects such as law-abiding, environmental
protection, labor rights protection and integrity management
to ensure product quality at source. For the year ended 31
December 2020, the Group had 38 major suppliers in total.
Due to the uniqueness of the pharmaceutical industry, the
major suppliers are selected from the national catalogue.
Therefore, the Group manages the supply of materials instead
of the location of the suppliers.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

RIR - HERERHRE (B)

The Group recognizes the importance of product quality and
corporate reputation; actively monitors the quality of products
and services through internal controls and is committed to
producing high quality products that meet international
industry standards. The Group also maintains communication
with its customers to ensure understanding and meeting
customer needs and expectations, with aims of continuous
improvement of the Group’s products and services. The
Group strictly complied with the “Patent Law of the People’s
Republic of China”, the “Trademark Law of the People’s
Republic of China”, the “Copyright Law of the People’s
Republic of China”, the “Anti-Unfair Competition Law of the
People’s Republic of China”, the “Law of the People’s Republic
of China on Technology Contracts” and other laws and
regulations related to health and safety, advertising, labelling
and privacy matters of products and services in Mainland
China.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group was not
aware of any material non-compliance with product and
service quality-related laws and regulations.

Medical quality, the safety of patients, providing efficient and
quality service for customers are the roots to build a superior
brand, the Group highly values the drug safety, and strive to
establish a comprehensive management system for reporting
and monitoring adverse drug reactions. The subsidiaries and
the R&D Center of the Group have specialized department,
which is responsible for the safety inspection and quarantine,
analysis and reporting throughout the product’s whole
life cycle to ensure the medication safety. The Group is in
compliance with the “Reporting and Monitoring of Adverse
Drug Reactions Management System” which is set out by the
National Center for Adverse Drug Reaction Monitoring of the
PRC and other relevant laws and regulations. It regulates the
treatment and remediation of adverse events of the Group’s
own and licensed products.
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The Group has formulated the “Quality Manual”, the
“Responsibilities and Standards of Sales Personnel”, the
“Management Regulations of the Release of Raw Materials,
Packaging Materials and Finished Products” and the “Quality
Management System for the Reporting and Monitoring of
Adverse Drug Reactions” and relevant product management
policies, as well as promoting the standardization and
systematization of decision-making, which in turn would
further enhance the level of production. The Group complies
with the GMP standard requirements, through relevant laws
and regulations every year, strengthen its product quality
management through quality risk management, correction
and prevention measures, quality tracing, etc. strengthen
product quality and ensure a steady and proper production
of medicine which is to designate for a specific use, to meet
registration approval and quality standards during the whole
production procedure. In addition, the Group’s Urine Test
Strips and Urine Analyzer are recognized under the Medical
Device Production License.

Approval Procedures of the Qualified Final Products are as
follows:

Issue of

Testing Material Production

Picking

Entering Sampling

Warehouse Test Reports

and
Certificates

Weighing and IPC
Testing

AR

The Group also emphasizes the training courses provided to
the production department. The relevant policies have been
described in details in Section B3 “Training Course” session.

Product
Packaging, Product Record Quality
Package Testing Checking Control

Check
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

RIR - HERERHRE (B)

To recall products known or suspected of quality problems
from the market in a timely and effective manner, minimize
the impact on users and protect the interests and health
of patients, the Group has formulated the “Product Recall
Procedures” and set up the adverse reaction reporting hotline
to collect reports on adverse drug reactions from patients.
The Group classifies drug recalls based on the severity of
safety hazards and harmfulness of the product. Drug recalls
are classified as level 1 recalls: the use of the product may
cause serious health hazards; level 2 recalls: the use of the
product may cause temporary or irreversible health hazards;
level 3 recalls: the use of the product generally does not cause
health hazards, but due to other reasons, the product needs
to be recalled. The Group has set up a recall decision-making
advisory team to provide professional advice and suggestions
to the recall decision-making team. The recall decision-making
team is responsible for assessing product quality issues and
potential safety hazards and deciding whether a recall action
is required, determining the scope of recall (the products
involved, the scope of batch number and the country/region)
and the level (level 1, level 2 and level 3), and ensuring
effective control of recalled products. Recall task groups are
established to review and approve various recall preparation
plans, give notice to relevant government authorities as
required. Th recall task groups listen to recall reports on
a regular basis and approve final recall reports, propose
resolutions on corrective and preventive measures, implement
and supervise the corrective and preventive measures.
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RIR - HERERHRE (B)

The Group has 122 product registration certificates approved
by the National Medical Products Administration, of which
more than 20 products are being sold and manufactured. The
Group prohibits false or misleading information and guides
given to patients regarding the appropriate use of medical
products. To improve the transparency of drug information
disclosure and ensure the safety of patients’ medication, the
Group has established the “Regulations on the Management
of Printing Packaging Materials”. Packaging materials used for
drugs (including bottle labels, user manuals, aluminum foils,
small boxes, medium boxes, large boxes, etc.) are reported to
the national regulatory authorities on the name, specification,
batch number, approval number, indication, usage of drugs,
and printed in accordance with the content approved by
the regulatory authorities. Packaging materials are placed in
specific areas for proper storage, where personnel without
approval are not allowed to enter. Bottle labels and user
manuals are stored in specific counters or warehouses and
managed by designated personnel. Unqualified packaging
materials are stored in warehouses for unqualified items,
whereas expired or discarded packaging materials are
destroyed with records.

Traceability of pharmaceutical products is an important
management issue in the medical industry, and when
quality or customer feedback is encountered, the quality
status at that time can be traced to achieve the purpose
of source management. Labels are classified into incoming
labels, process labels and finished product labels according
to different stages of product formation. The final product
batch production and batch packaging records shall be
true, complete, meet the product standard requirements
and signed by the operator and the reviewer. The batch
records shall be able to trace back to the batch number of
raw materials, all production and inspection procedures of
such batch of products, and shall not be altered at any time.
If any amendment is required, the name and date should
be signed at the amendment office and the reasons for
the change should be stated, and the original data should
still be identifiable. The technical and quality department
collects and maintains a complete set of quality records for
batch production records, which shall be filed with the batch
number and kept until one year after the product’s validity
period until the end of its product life.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

RIR - HERERHRE (B)

The Group attaches great importance to the opinions of users,
ensures the proper judgment and handling of user complaints,
adopts measures to prevent the occurrence of multiple user
complaints, and promotes the continuous improvement of
the Company’s product quality and quality management
system. To this end, the Group has established the “Product
Complaint Handling and Management Procedures”,
under which the Quality Department manages customer
complaints and provides preliminary feedback to customers
as soon as possible (2 working days) after receiving the
complaint information. For effective complaints, the quality
department will cooperate with other relevant departments
to determine whether the products need to be returned
from the customers who have received the complaint, and
whether the product recall procedures need to be initiated.
Besides, it will determine whether the complaint is within the
enterprise, and the quality department will cooperate with
relevant departments to investigate and handle the complaint.
For quality-related complaints, the “Quality Investigation
and Management Procedures” will be conducted to find
out the causes of the product quality problems and take
corresponding prevention measures. The quality department
will conduct an annual review on the complaints received
from users, analyze the proportion, trends and reasons of
different users’ complaints, and explain the measures taken,
the completion status and effectiveness, so as to improve
future product quality. During the year ended 31 December
2020, the Group received one complaint on adverse drug
reaction, which was reported to the National Medical
Products Administration and was successfully closed.

The Group's business seldom collects personal information
of customers. However, to strengthen the management
of confidentiality and protect the security and interests
of corporate assets and customers, the Group stipulates
that customer information system and employee personal
information system can only be accessed by authorized staff
to prohibit any abuse of personal information and illegal
profit-making.
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As a technology-based pharmaceutical company which
develop its own products, the Group treats intellectual
property as intangible asset and values the trademark of our
drugs as well as its benefits. Apart from the brand rights of
Miacalcic Injection and Miacalcic Nasal Spray, the Group’s
proprietary products include Shusi, Xi Di Ke, Zhuo'ao, Songzhi
Wan, and other drugs. Being one of the core products in the
therapeutic area of oncology and hematology, Xi Di Ke is a
unigue national class 1 new drug of which the global exclusive
intellectual property rights and related patents have been
obtained by the Group, and had successfully had it admitted
into the medicine catalogue for medical insurance of both
Jiangsu and Anhui provinces.

To further maintain and protect the trademark rights of the
products, the Group has engaged a professional third-party
company to assist in the management. Also, in accordance
with the “Patent Law of the People’s Republic of China”
and other laws and regulations, the Group has established a
standardized intellectual property work management system,
and does not tolerate any violations of trademark property
rights. To further protect and secure the trademark property
rights of our products, the Group requires each employees to
take concrete actions to protect existing trademarks and aided
with a reporting channel to allow employees to report any
suspected breach of the code.

The Group is committed to conforming to honest, compliant
and lawful business practices, strictly follows the “Criminal
Law of the People’s Republic of China”, “Interim Provisions
on Banning Commercial Bribery of the People’s Republic of
China” and other laws and regulations in Mainland China
in relation to the prevention of bribery, extortion, fraud
and money laundering. The Group restricts the board of
directors, departmental managers, employees and distributors
to comply with an integral and ethical business standard,
conforms to an ethical business practice and complies with
the laws and regulations with the aim of maintaining the
integrity and reputation of the Group.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group did
not aware of any material non-compliance with the relevant
laws and regulations of bribery, extortion, fraud and money
laundering.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

RIR - HERERHRE (B)

Employee Code of Conduct

According to the above laws and regulations, we have
established the “Compliance Regulatory Policy”, the
“Anti-Bribery and Anti-Corruption Policy”, the “Gifts and
Entertainment Policy”, the “Marketing Activities Regulatory
Standard”, the “NT Agency Promotion Standard”, the
“Communication Policy with Medical and Health Professionals
and Medical and Health Organizations”, the “Code
of Business Conduct and Professional Ethics”, and the
“Pharmaceutical Promotion Related Expenses Management
Process” to strengthen employees’ anti-corruption awareness
and regulate employees’ behavior. The Group will hand over
those who take advantages from their job positions to engage
in malpractice, embezzlement and accept bribes to judicial
authorities.

Whistleblowing System

The Group sets up a comprehensive supervision system
including a whistle-blowing hotline and a mailbox to receive
reports for avoidance of bribery, blackmailing, fraud and
money laundering acts. Such whistleblowing system allows
all employees to report anonymously to the internal control
staff, including negligence, corruption, bribery and other
misconduct. The internal control staff will process the reports
promptly, fairly and confidentially. On the other hand, the
whistleblowing system also ensures that whistle-blowers
will not be treated unfairly because of reports, the whistle-
blowers will not face unfair dismissal, unwarranted disciplinary
actions, etc.

The Group conducts compliance policy training for all its
employees by means of e-learning, compliance policy quiz
and face-to-face teaching to further enhance the awareness
of compliance requirements. During the tendering process,
the Group insists on fair and open procurement, tendering
process would be regulated and transparent in order to
comprehensively prohibit corruptive acts.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

RIR - HERERHRE (B)

As a corporate citizen actively fulfilling its social
responsibilities, the Group has always adhered to and
implemented the principle of “taking from the society and
giving back to the society” by giving back to the society in
various forms, benefiting the people and actively participating
in social welfare and activities. Upholding the core values of
"Responsibility, Integrity, Innovation and Win-win”, the Group
views the values as the cornerstone to healthy development.
The Group advocates employees to launch charity bazaar
and make donations during the internal meetings of business
department or board of directors’ meeting. The Group will
continue to explore diversified contribution methods to
achieve the ideal of mutual healthy development with the
community.

Through the Group’s “Donation and Scientific Research Fund
Policy”, employees can submit applications for donation
and scientific research funds to the Group to help the social
groups and individuals in need and conduct in-depth research
on the medical mechanism and scientific and rational use
of drugs, to establish a good public image of the Group
while fulfilling social responsibilities. The Group’s donations
are in strict compliance with national and local laws and
regulations such as the “Law of the People’s Republic of China
on Donations for Public Welfare” and the "Administrative
Measures for Public Welfare Donations Received by Health
and Family Planning Units (Trial)".
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)
RIE - HERERBRE (E)

THE ESG REPORTING GUIDE CONTENT EBBERSZMERATNCR
INDEX OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF B HEREAREEIARTE
HONG KONG LIMITED 5| &
Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPIs Section/Declaration
BEE —-REBRERENESR BEH /B
A1: Emissions
AL ERY
General Disclosure Information on: Emissions 60-66
(@  the policies; and
(b)  compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact
on the issuer relating to Exhaust Gas and
GHG emissions, discharges into water and
land, and generation of hazardous and
non-hazardous waste.
—RRE BRBEIRREREBHER  mMAKR TG 3¢
B BEREERENNELSN:
@ BE R
() BFHBTABEAFENHEBEER
HROIRER -
Al The types of emissions and respective emissions Emissions — Emissions of 61
data. Air Pollutants, Wastewater
Discharge
HEE RN BB — = RSB
5K BER
Al.2 Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect (Scope 2) Emissions — GHG Emissions 63
GHG emissions in total (in tonnes) and, where
appropriate, intensity.
EREE)REREEZ(EE)EERBHNR HH — REREHNR
EUABHE) R(MER)RE -
Al3 Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, Emissions — Waste 64
where appropriate, intensity. Management
MELAAZREENBE AMEAE) R(MER) R — EMER
Al4 Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) Emissions — Waste 66
and, where appropriate, intensity. Management
Fﬁ%iﬁ%%?&%@%(m@%ﬁ)&(ﬁﬂ%@)ﬂ) B —BEYEE
A15 Description of emission target(s) set, and steps Emissions — Emissions of Air 62
taken to achieve them. Pollutants, GHG Emissions,
Wastewater Discharge; Targets
to be disclosed in the following
year
WA MEREEERAERELREN B — = RSB
FRH SR - BEREHN 5K B
BETEEETRSE
Al.6 Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous Emissions — Waste 65-66
wastes are handled, and a description of Management; Targets to be
reduction target(s) set and steps taken to achieve disclosed in the following year

them.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)
RIE - HERERBRE (E)

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPIs

BE —-REEREREXER

Section/Declaration

BH/BH

A2: Use of Resources
A2:BEREA

General Disclosure
~BEE
A2.1

A2.2

A2.3

A2.4

A2.5

A3: The Environment and
Natural Resources

A3 RERRARER

General Disclosure
—BRE
A3.1

A4: Climate Change
Ad:RIREL

General Disclosure

—RBE
Ad1
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Policies on the efficient use of resources, including
energy, water and other raw materials.
E%ﬁﬁﬁ%@%%%*%&ﬁ@ﬁﬁ%%
Direct and/or indirect energy consumption (KWh
in '000s) and intensity.
BEER/SHEERAEEATETREE
BEREE -

Water consumption in total and intensity.

BREKEREE -
Description of energy use efficiency target(s) set
and steps taken to achieve them.

BTV RE AN R AR R AEDEL
B PTEREREY 25 8 -

Description of whether there is any issue in
sourcing water that is fit for purpose, water
efficiency target(s) set, and steps taken to achieve
them.

K EUE KR ERT A A AR E - ARATE]
M RKRE BAR KA E IS e B AR AT AR ER A
ik

Total packaging material used for finished
products (in tonnes) and, if applicable, with
reference to per unit produced.

A mABaEMHNEE UEAE) R4
EBffhE -

Policies on minimizing the issuer’s significant
impact on the environment and natural resources.
%%%ﬁA%%%&%ﬁﬁﬁﬁ&ik%%%
T o

Description of the significant impacts of activities
on the environment and natural resources and the
actions taken to manage them.
HREREHURERRAERNEKERA
EAYERERNERERT ENTD -

Policies on identification and mitigation of
significant climate-related issues which have
impacted, and those which may impact, the
issuer.
ARREHEE R HETAEETYEN
EARBGHBESENIR -

Description of the significant climate-related
issues which have impacted, and those which
may impact the issuer, and the actions taken to
manage them.
HAERRAREHETAELYENEAR
EEBEE REHTTH -
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Use of Resources
BRE A

Use of Resources — Energy
Consumption

ERER — s RAR

Use of Resources — Water
Management
BREA—RAKER

Use of Resources — Energy
Consumption; Targets to be
disclosed in the following year
BRER — fRER : BRAE
THEEETRE

Use of Resources — Water
Management; Targets to be
disclosed in the following year

BERER—BKER: BRE
TEEETRE

Use of Resources — Use of
Packaging Materials

ERER —BXMRER

The Environment and Natural
Resources

RERKABR

The Environment and Natural
Resources — Noise Control

RERAABR —BREER

To be disclosed in the following
year

ETHFEETRE

To be disclosed in the following
year

ETHFEETRE

67-71

68

70

69-70

70

A

72

72
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)
RIE - HERERBRE (E)

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPIs Section/Declaration
EH -REERBREXNES B/ B9
B1: Employment
B1:E (R
General Disclosure Information on: Employment 73-78
(@  the policies; and
(b)  compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact
on the issuer relating to compensation
and dismissal, recruitment and promotion,
working hours, rest periods, equal
opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination,
and other benefits and welfare.
—REE EREMLgE BREREA IERHE-R  EE
B TERe Sl REBUAREMETSE
ey ok
@ HBE:R

b)) BIHBTABEAZENEHEEZER
MBI ER -
B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type Employment 74
(for example, full- or part-time), age group and
geographical region.
BRI BREL(W2BHEER) FRAMN ER
REEHHES B -
B1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and Employment 75
geographical region.

RUER - FRAHN HRESNERRRE  ER

& o
B2: Health and Safety
B2:REHRZ2
General Disclosure Information on: Health and Safety 78-82
(@  the policies; and
(b)  compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact
on the issuer relating to providing a safe
working environment and protecting
employees from occupational hazards.
—BRE FRREZ2IERERREEEEEBEL RBREZ2
B
@ HEE:R
b) ETFHETAREAZENRBEER
ROIER
B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities Health and Safety 78
occurred in each of the past three years including
the reporting year.
BE-FRRERFR)BFRICHNAE REEZ2
RUER - AIEBERMETHABRLE -
B2.2 Lost days due to work injury. Health and Safety 78
AIGEATIERS - rEZ:
B2.3 Description of occupational health and safety Health and Safety — Safety 79-82
measures adopted, how they are implemented Production Management, Fire
and monitored. Safety Management, Prevention

and Control of COVID-19
HlTRANBERRELT 2 - ARIEH BREARE — REEEER
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)
RIE - HERERBRE (E)

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPIs

BE —-REEREREXER

B3: Development and Training

B3: BE R
General Disclosure

—REE

B3.1

B3.2

B4: Labor Standards
B4 & TR

General Disclosure

~RBE

B4.1

B4.2

B5: Supply Chain Management
B5:HEEER

General Disclosure

—RRE
BS.1

B5.2
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Policies on improving employees' knowledge and
skills for discharging duties at work. Description of
training activities.
BRRAEERTIERENMERRENK
Ko HRBINED o

Percentage of employees trained by gender and
employee category (e.g. senior management,
middle management).
BHERREEER(NERERE #RER
EZ)EAINXIEEBDL -

Average training hours completed per employee
by gender and employee category.
RURIRESERIESD  BEEER TN
FHEY -

Information on:

(@  the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact
on the issuer relating to preventing child
and forced labour.

BBMIEETSRHSTIH:

@ HE:R

b) BIHETABEAZENEBEER
MBI E R -

Description of measures to review employment
practices to avoid child and forced labour.

i LR EA MR R R ET KRGS

To

Description of steps taken to eliminate such

practices when discovered.

HAERERERERTERE BB KA

T

Policies on managing environmental and social
risks of the supply chain.
ERHEENRARMGRBECE -

Number of suppliers by geographical region.

RiwEEOMHRERRE -

Description of practices relating to engaging
suppliers, number of suppliers where the
practices are being implemented, how they are
implemented and monitored.
HOAFBBREEENEN mERTEBE
DIV EEHE  ARFHEEHNRTRER
T e
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Section/Declaration

BH/BH

Development and Training

BRERE

Development and Training —
Training Courses

BRERY —H7IRE

Development and Training —
Training Courses
R AR — BIIRE

Labor Standards

SR

Labor Standards
SRR
Labor Standards

SITEA

Supply Chain Management

HERER

Supply Chain Management —
Supply Chain Management
Structure

HEBER HEBERE
1

Supply Chain Management —
Business Ethics, Supply Chain
Management Structure

HEBER BB #
[ERERLER

82-84

84

84

85

85

85

85-86
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)
RIE - HERERBRE (E)

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPIs

BH -BEERBRENER
B5.3

B5.4

B6: Product Responsibility
B6:EMEfE
General Disclosure

—BHE

B6.1

B6.2

B6.3

B6.4

B6.5

Description of practices used to identify
environmental and social risks along the supply
chain, and how they are implemented and
monitored.
HREBEEN SRS EARONRERLER
BEVED - ARBERTRERTE
Description of practices used to promote
environmentally preferable products and services
when selecting suppliers, and how they are
implemented and monitored.
HEEREHERRRESARRERRRB
WER ARBBRTRERAE -

General Disclosure

Information on:

(@  the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and
requlations that have a significant impact
on the issuer relating to health and safety,
advertising, labelling and privacy matters
relating to products and services provided
and methods of redress.

BRMREERNBRENERERS

BELILEZE AR ER

@ HEE: X

b) BIHBRTABEAZENEBEEER
ROIBE R -

Percentage of total products sold or shipped

subject to recalls for safety and health reasons.

BEFCEXABTRL2REEMMADK

HAEDL -

Number of products and service-related

complaints received and how they are dealt with.

R

REBRERRRBNRFUBARES S
i °

Description of practices relating to observing and
protecting intellectual property rights.
HREERERREAZEEEANED -
Description of quality assurance process and recall
procedures.
HREERTERERERBKER
Description of consumer data protection and
privacy policies, how they are implemented and
monitored.

HUREEBBERERALEBRE  URBBEHR
TREERE -

OB %%

EZ
=

Section/Declaration

B/ B9

Supply Chain Management —
Supply Chain Management
Structure

HEREE —HEBEER
B

Supply Chain Management —
Supply Chain Management
Structure

HEREE —HEEEER
&

Product Responsibility

Product Responsibility —
Product Quality and Safety
EmEf—EmEEEL2

Product Responsibility —
Consumer Services and Privacy
Protection
EmBEE—FFRBERET
fRi&

Product Responsibility —
Intellectual Property Rights
EmEL— AHERE
Product Responsibility —
Product Quality and Safety
EmEf—EmEEETE
Product Responsibility —
Consumer Services and Privacy
Protection
EmBEE—FFPRBERET
fRi&
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RE - #HERER

HE (F)

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPIs

BE —-REEREREXER

B7 : Anti-corruption
B7:RES
General Disclosure

~%B8

B7.1

B7.2

B7.3

B8: Community Investment

B8 HERE

General Disclosure

—BHE

B8.1

B8.2

Information on:

(@  the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact
on the issuer relating to bribery, extortion,
fraud and money laundering.

BBRMLER PR HFRARENBER

ETHRTABEAYEN:

@ HE:R

b)) ETFHETAREAZENRBEER
RO ER

Number of concluded legal cases regarding

corrupt practices brought against the issuer or its

employees during the reporting period and the

outcomes of the cases.

RERANEETARHESREIEELN

BRRRENEARFRER -

Description of preventive measures and

whistle-blowing procedures, and how they are

implemented and monitored.

HafBEmRRERERN  UREBARTRE

BRE

Description of anti-corruption training provided to

directors and staff.

HRREERETREMNREFEI -

Policies on community engagement to understand
the needs of the communities where the issuer
operates and to ensure its activities take into
consideration the communities’ interests.
BRNMEL2AREREENTLRTENE
REEBEHZRALEFN OB

Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education,
environmental concerns, labour needs, health,
culture, sport).
ETERERE(NHE  RESEE  HIFK
B Xt 85)-

Resources contributed (e.g. money or time) to the
focus area.
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Section/Declaration

BH/BH

Anti-corruption

Anti-corruption — Publicity and
Education

REF—RREER EEH
z=

A

Anti-corruption — Publicity and
Education

RES-—RBER SEHK
z=

A

To be disclosed in the following
year

ETFRETRE
Community Investment

HtERE

Community Investment —
Caring for the Community

HEEE — BERT

Community Investment —
Caring for the Community
HERE —BERT
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Report of the Directors
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The Directors are pleased to present the annual report of the
Company together with the audited consolidated financial

statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2020.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Group is mainly engaged in investment, research and
development, manufacturing and sales of pharmaceutical
products, as well as the provision of pharmaceutical marketing
and promotion services in China and more than 20 foreign
countries.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

The financial results of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2020 are set out in the audited consolidated
financial statements with notes to the consolidated financial
statements starting from page 133 of this report.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The review of the business of the Group, including a
description of principal risks and uncertainties and an
indication of likely future development in the Group’'s
businesses, for the year ended 31 December 2020 as required
by Schedule 5 to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance is
contained in the Business Review (page 6), Operating Results
(page 8), Prospects and Outlook of the Group (page 10),
under Management Discussion and Analysis, Risk Factors
section (pages 48 to 50) under Corporate Governance Report
as well as note 36 to the audited consolidated financial
statements. These discussions form part of this report.
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Report of the Directors (Continued)

EEEWmE (8)

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSAL
DURING THE YEAR UNDER REVIEW

On 21 April 2020, the Company and Beijing Kangchen
Biological Technology Co., Ltd. (“Beijing Kangchen”, an
independent third party to the Company) entered into a sale
and purchase agreement, pursuant to which, the Company
agreed to sell and Beijing Kangchen agreed to purchase
the exclusive distribution right of Pfenex and the entire
issued share capital of NT Pharma International Company
Limited (“NT International”, a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company), which was principally engaged in selling and
marketing Miacalcic branded products and sub-licensing of
intellectual property rights and distribution rights of Miacalcic
Injection and Miacalcic Nasal Spray under the reportable
segment of Miacalcic. The disposal was effected in order to
generate immediate cash flows for the reallocation of the
financial resources on any suitable investment opportunities
and the repayment of bank and other borrowings as well
as the settlement of the redemption of the outstanding
redeemable convertible preference shares when they fall due.
The disposal transaction was completed on 3 September
2020 and NT International ceased to be a subsidiary of the
Company.

Save as disclosed above, during the Year under Review, the
Group did not have any other material acquisition or disposal.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE

A discussion on the Company’s environmental policies and
performance is set out in the Environmental, Social and
Governance Report on pages 55 to 100 of this report.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

The Company recognizes the importance of compliance with
regulatory requirements and the risk of non-compliance
with such requirements could lead to adverse impacts to
the operation and financial position of the Company. The
Company allocates systemic and staff resources to ensure
continuous compliance with rules and regulations and to
maintain cordial working relationships with regulators through
effective communications. During the Year under Review,
the Company has complied, to the best of the knowledge of
Directors, with all relevant rules and regulations that have a
significant impact on the Company.
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Report of the Directors (Continued)

EEEWmE (8)

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the Group'’s results, assets and liabilities for the
last five financial years are set out on page 2 of this report.
This summary does not form part of the audited consolidated
financial statements.

DIVIDENDS

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final
dividend for the year (2019: Nil) to the shareholders.

TRANSFER TO RESERVES

Loss attributable to equity shareholders of RMB357.6 million
(2019: loss attributable to equity shareholders of RMB587.6
million) has been transferred to reserves. Other movements
in reserves during the year are set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity.

Details of the reserve available for distribution are set out in
note 34(e) to the audited consolidated financial statements.

FIXED ASSETS

Details of the movements of fixed assets during the year
are set out in note 15 to the audited consolidated financial
statements.

BORROWINGS AND PLEDGED ASSETS

Details of the Group’s borrowings and pledged assets are set
out in notes 23 and 27 to the audited consolidated financial
statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company
during the year are set out in note 34(c) to the audited
consolidated financial statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the aggregate amount
of revenue and purchases attributable to the Group's five
largest customers and suppliers represented 52.5% and 75%
of the Group’s total revenue and total purchases, respectively.

During the Year under Review, the largest customer of the
Group accounted for approximately 22.8% of the total
revenue and the largest supplier of the Group accounted for
approximately 34.8% of the total purchases of the Group.
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Report of the Directors (Continued)

EEEWmE (8)

As far as the Company is aware, neither the Directors, their
associates, nor those shareholders who are interested in more
than 5% of the shares or underlying shares of the Company
had any interest in the five largest customers and suppliers of
the Group.

The Group maintains a good relationship with its
customers. A customer complaint handling mechanism is
in place to receive, including complaints analysis and make
recommendations on remedies with the aim of improving
service quality.

The Group is in good relationship with its suppliers and
conducts a fair and strict appraisal of its suppliers on an
annual basis.

DIRECTORS

The Directors who held office during the year ended 31
December 2020 and up to the date of this report are:

Mr. NG Tit (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. CHIN Yu
Mr. WU Weizhong

Dr. QIAN Wei

Mr. YU Tze Shan Hailson

Dr. YAN Hong (resigned on 20 March 2020)
Dr. ZHAO Yubiao

Mr. PAN Fei (appointed on 20 March 2020)

Pursuant to article 84 of the articles of association of the
Company, Ms. Chin Yu, Dr. Qian Wei and Mr. Yu Tze Shan
Hailson will retire from office as Directors by rotation at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

Biographical details of the Directors of the Company are set
out on pages 23 to 28 of this report.
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Report of the Directors (Continued)
EEEHRE (B)

PRE-IPO SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company has adopted a share option scheme (“Pre-
IPO Share Option Scheme”) on 7 April 2011. Under the Pre-
IPO Share Option Scheme, the Company granted 50,027,881
options before the listing of the Company. Each option gives
the holder the right to subscribe for one ordinary share in the
Company. Up to 31 December 2020, no further option has
been granted pursuant to the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme.
A summary of the principal terms and conditions of the Pre-
IPO Share Option Scheme is set out in the section headed
"Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme” in Appendix VIII of the
Prospectus of the Company. 1,816,666 shares were lapsed
during the year ended 31 December 2020.

Due to the expiry of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme during
the year, as at 31 December 2020, there was no outstanding
option to subscribe for the Company’s share under the Pre-
IPO Share Option Scheme and these options relate to the
options granted to the following grantees.

BARAHBENBERESTE
ANRATR20NMFA4A7H R 4 — T8 B I8 & 51 &
(BRXAABEERETS] - BRIEFENX
AFABERERES - AQREE EWAT
150,027,881 BEARIE - S0 EARER T
BAEFRE —BRAQAT LB - FZE2020
F1RANAE  MEREEXR AHZEENER
BN HAMBRE - s AEE
AR AT RN E BRI ESH R A
PEHRRERWSENERAAREESATER
REETE||—£p - BiE2020FE12A318ILEE
1,816,666 A% A% 17 < 3 °

HRE XN ARBEENBRESZEENEF
WEIH - R2020%12831H  REBXAH
BENBERENSCETRBARRBRNL
BRENAETHE MZSERENBET
T A ER AR B IR o

Number of share options
BREHE
Approximate
Lapsed/ percentage

Balance as at Exercised cancelled Balance asat to the issued

Date of grant Option period Exercised price 1/1/2020 during the year during the year ~ 31/12/2020 ~ share capital
#2020% HER
R2020% ERE 128318 k&
REEH ERESH THEE 1\BENES  EREAE AN/EH fgs  BHEMM
Employees ~ 28/1/2010 28/1/2010-28/1/2020 05$0.20 216,620 - (216,620) - 0.00
kB 2010F1A28H 2010518286 2202017285 02057 (Note 1)
(H3En)
11972010 1/9/2010-1/9/2020 U5$0.20 300,000 - (300,000) - 0.00
201069418 2010F9A1AZ200059A15 020%1 (Note 2)
(H&2)
Notes: B & -
1. The options were vested in three tranches in the proportion of 1/3, 1/3 1. ZEBEBRENER A =R L/3 - 1/3R1/38

and 1/3 on 28/1/2011, 28/1/2012 and 28/1/2013, respectively. As at the
end of the Year under Review, all of these options had lapsed.

2. The options were vested in three tranches in the proportion of 1/3, 1/3
and 1/3 on 1/9/2011, 1/9/2012 and 1/9/2013, respectively. As at the
end of the Year under Review, all of these options had lapsed.

LI 53 B 20114F1 A28 8 ~ 2012481428 A %2013
FIA2AEGTEE - REBEFR  MEXEHE
BT R

2. ZEBRENFARAB D ZHLLA1/3 - 1/3KR1/38
L5l B A201149 818 ~ 20124F9A 18 &£ 20134F
IAHESGITEE REBFR MMTAEZSTER
BEERM -
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Name of

Number of share options
BREHE
Approximate
Lapsed/ percentage

Balance as at Exercised cancelled Balanceasat to the issued

Director ~ Date of grant Option period Exercised price 1/1/2020 during the year during the year ~ 31/12/2020  share capital
R2020% HERT
20205 ERg 128318 RA&
ESfg  RiEAH ERESH THE 1ABNES  ERESAE AN/HE fes  BHEAd
Wu Weizhong 28/1/2010 28/1/2010-28/1/2020 US$0.20 1,300,046 - (1,300,046) - 0.00
REAR 2010F1728H 2010F1A28AZ202051728H 0.20%7
NEW SHARE OPTION SCHEME R 2

The Company adopted the Share Option Scheme on 22
September 2014. Under the Share Option Scheme, the
Company granted 6,300,000 options to certain senior
management staff of the Company with an exercise price
of HK$1.25 per share on 10 November 2014 (the “2014
Options”), and granted 41,500,000 options to certain
individuals with an exercise price of HK$1.23 per share on 15
January 2015 (the “2015 Options”), respectively. Each option
gives the holder the right to subscribe for one ordinary share
in the Company.

A summary of the principal terms of the Share Option Scheme
is set out in Appendix | of the circular of the Company dated
4 September 2014. For further details of the 2014 Options
and the 2015 Options, please refer to the announcements of
the Company dated 10 November 2014 and 15 January 2015,
respectively. As of 31 December 2020, no further options
have been granted under New Share Option Scheme. No
Shares were lapsed nor cancelled nor exercised during the
year ended 31 December 2020.

As at 31 December 2020, options to subscribe for an
aggregate of 20,200,000 shares of the Company were

outstanding under the New Share Option Scheme.

The remaining life of the Share Option Scheme is 3.5 years.

ARABIA2014F9A22 B R M BENHETE] - 1B
EERERE - A2R D BIR2014F11810
ARARREFTEHKERABRF6,300,000
HEREATEE B SR1.25%8 0)([20145F
AT #E]) K R2015F1B15BE R & T A
41,500,000 fE Ax #E (FT (B AT MR1.238T)
(ROEHEEED SHEREITRTRES
ARE—BRARRILBRZER -

BEBREAESZFTZEFBEHREAQAR
2014F9R 48 i 8 i 1l 2 fff 8 — - B RF2014
FERER200FERE E—FFE B
2 A T B R A2014911 A10H &% 2015
F1RISAZ A% - H{E2020F128318  #
ERBENBRESSCE L E—SHERE -
HZE20200812A3BLLFE  ZERMHILE
KBS S AT o

R2020512 A318 » AR IEH7 HE A 5t &1 AT 3%
#& & 2£20,200,0008% A< 2 7] B 17 2 8 A 14
REITRE -

B BT BRFHRISE -
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

No contracts concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company were entered into or in place during the year ended
31 December 2020.

DIRECTOR'S RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in this report, during the Year under Review
and up to the date of this annual report, neither the Company
nor any of its subsidiaries were party to any arrangement
which would enable the Directors to acquire benefits by
means of acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the
Company or any other body corporate. Save as disclosed
in this report, none of the Directors or any of their spouses
or children under the age of 18 was granted any right to
subscribe for the shares or debentures of the Company or any
other corporate body or had exercised any such right.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The Directors are not aware of any tax relief and exemption
available to the Shareholders by reason of their holding the
Company's securities.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

The executive Directors, Mr. Ng Tit, Ms. Chin Yu and Mr. Wu
Weizhong have each entered into a service agreement with
the Company for a term of three years commencing from their
respective effective date of appointment, which shall continue
unless terminated by either the Company or the Director
giving at least three months’ written notice to the other party.
Each of the non-executive Director and the independent
non-executive Directors has entered into an appointment
letter with the Company for a term of three years with effect
from their respective effective date of appointment, subject
to termination in certain circumstances as stipulated in the
appointment letter. All Directors are subject to the provisions
of retirement by rotation and re-election at the annual general
meeting in accordance with the articles of association of the
Company.

None of the Directors being proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has an unexpired service
contract with the Group which is not determinable by the
Group within one year without payment of compensation
(other than statutory compensation).

EEEHN

RE E2020F12A31BIEFER - AQAE W
BIURGFEAMNBHAARR 2 KEFFE
MEZEADEBNERRITREL -

EEBAROIEFHEF

BRABRESHAREEI AOBEFARBER
FHREAYPA/L  RNAFHETAMERFE
BTN LZREEFAEBEARRA
SEMEMEABEBRRDIESTMER -
BABEREIN  SEFARFEENER
ST NEAT FRBEERER BB ARA
SEMEMEABBOBRNOKES - TET
EEMZEERN -

Bi 3% 0w &2
EFYTHERREFAAAABSMES
EEBBHRE -

EEHBEN

HITEFRESE BERXIER/BRLE
HEARR LIRS W% DRlBEEERA
BEZEZERE RY=F YAKEHEEDN
RAREFR TR THI=ZEAEEAEAHN
TR - RUIFRTEFTRBIIFRTE
ECEARFFTLEZER AREEEEZ
EERARARP=F ERBEZERZIHAT
AEETERBEERLIL 2REFYARK
BARRMABERMAAZRERBRRBEFAK
ErWmESREABEESL-

BREERRAFASLEENESTHER
AEETIASETAMERKIETMB A
B ECEERERINNRBE AL -
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DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR OFFICERS’
LIABILITY INSURANCE AND INDEMNITY/
PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Company has arranged for appropriate liability insurance
to indemnify the Directors and senior officers for their
liabilities arising out of corporate activities. For the year ended
31 December 2020, no claim has been made against the
Directors and senior officers.

REMUNERATION POLICY

The Group’s remuneration policy is to compensate its
employees based on their performance, qualifications and the
Group's operational results.

The emoluments of the Directors and senior management
are determined by the Remuneration Committee with
reference to the Group’s operational results, their individual
performance and comparable prevailing market conditions.

The Company was not aware of any arrangement under
which a Director has waived or agreed to waive any
emoluments. Details of the emoluments of the Directors are
set out in note 10 to the consolidated financial statements.

COMPLIANCE OF THE NON-COMPETITION
UNDERTAKING

As disclosed in the Prospectus, Mr. Ng Tit, Ms. Chin Yu and
Golden Base Investment Limited (“Golden Base”) (collectively
referred to as the “Substantial Shareholders”) have entered
into a non-competition undertaking agreement dated 4
April 2011 in favor of the Company (the “Non-competition
Undertaking”), pursuant to which each of them has
undertaken to the Company that he/she/it will not, and will
procure that his/her/its associates (except any members of
the Group) will not, during the restricted period, directly or
indirectly, either on his/her/its own account or in conjunction
with or on behalf of any person, firm or company, carry
on, participate or be interested or engaged in or acquire
or hold (in each case whether as a shareholder, partner,
agent or otherwise) any business in PRC or elsewhere in the
world which is or may be in competition with our business,
and any other business which any member of the Group
may undertake from time to time after the listing of the
Company’s shares.

EENEABENSEREBERE
BRE " BETHHEKRX

ARRBLZHEEESTREAREER SR
BERAREHEANETRARSIELRE
RiE - BLE2020F12A3IHIEFE  EER
SRBEVEERE -

5 B By SR

AEENFHHRSREREERE  BEER
REXBEDRE -

HANEBEERSREBAENTFMEFTME
BEeRBASENELERE - MAREARA
Lo B EY B B T 5 IR L TR TE o

RARWREREECWENRERETM
HMALH c EZHFNFBINEEYH
HwEHIFEI0 ©

BT T B FER

BNERERMEE RELE BRL
+ K Golden Base Investment Limited ([Golden
Basel) (%t # [+ Z ik 1) M2011F 4848 XA
KRB BZm AR L — OB FRE 2 HE
(THmFAEE]D Bt BESERARF
A RZRE AR - KT e S E 6 g
ZAREEEAMKERBRINEEXEE
BTSRRI EREMAL FHRIREE
PRk 2 RE M A T - 2HEEFE
B NELABEEAREESBERAT W
AR - &BA - REA - tE M FH) BEAR
SEEBEKIITEBNRINER - AR
EARRBIRMD ETEASBEEMKE QR
BET RN ERNEMEMER -
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As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 7
November 2019, Golden Base transferred 200,000,000 shares
of the Company (representing approximately 10.5% of the
total issued share capital of the Company as at the date of the
transfer) to Mr. leong Chong Mang and upon completion of
the transfer, Mr. Ng Tit, Ms. Chin Yu and Golden Base and/
or his/her/its respective associates, individually or jointly, are
entitled to exercise or control the exercise of less than 30%
of the voting power at general meetings of the Company,
accordingly, each of them ceased to be a controlling
shareholder (as defined under the Listing Rules) of the
Company and the Non-competition Undertaking ceased to be
applicable since 7 November 2019.

Each of the Substantial Shareholders had confirmed his/her/its
compliance with the Non-competition Undertaking during the
period between 1 January 2019 and 7 November 2019.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed
the Substantial Shareholders’ compliance with the Non-
competition Undertaking. The independent non-executive
Directors confirmed, to the best of their knowledge, that the
Substantial Shareholders did not breach the terms of the Non-
competition Undertaking.

COMPETING BUSINESS

Save and except for their respective interests in the Group,
none of the Directors and controlling shareholders of the
Company and their respective associates (as defined under the
Listing Rules) had any interest in any business which, directly
or indirectly, competes or is likely to compete with the Group’s
business for the year ended 31 December 2020.

HANAR AT HE A2019F 11 A7E M RS
# ' Golden Base®%:% 4/ 7]200,000,000 % %
MOGEEREZER 2 ARRBEHITRABE
#9105%) FIBERBLE MR TEXEZEE
RELLE - BRL L KEGolden Base 8k ¥
EXENBEAER KRB EARRTRK
RRELITHEFIIEHITELRI0%EZZHRE -
MEESETBARRRZEBRBRER(ESE
B EWHRA) - M AREEAFEE2019F11878
RABEA-

ZEERELEERN2019F1H1HE2019
FNA7TEHAMET IR F A -

BIYFATEZCENEIERRRESEE
STAB AR o BUIFFMITESEER - BE
FA - EERRIYEE R F AR K

Eon
A °

BEER
BREERAEBREZRI - RELE20205F12
A3BLEE  HEEERAQFERERRE
NEFEESENBEA(EER EMRIDA
HAEBENEKEEREEBERFF NI
BRBRFOTMNESPHEETAER -
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S EERBSTHAERAATH
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN HEBATWKRSG HEROR
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND BEENEZRAXE

DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ITS
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2020, the interests and short positions R2020F12A31H » ARRIEE LR &ZEITHA
of the Directors and chief executive of the Company in the BRARARSEMBH AR (TR LEBEH
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or FONEBHRHAE KR (TEBHRAE K
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV EXVED) R - HERGORESFFR - FE
of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the BIEESHRBEGROEI2EHR T BH AR
Laws of Hong Kong) (the “SFO")), as recorded in the register RAGFEMNELMOEZ R AR  iREE
required to be kept by the Company under Section 352 of the MRBMESE TSN EMBEITAZESTES
SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock BHERGRZESTRINZESFA ) BHME R
Exchange under the Model Code for Securities Transactions NAIRBRFER AR WAT

by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code") contained in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules, were as follows:

Approximate

Number of shares of the Company percentage of
KRB RBEE interest in the
Personal Family Corporate Other Company
Name of Director interests interests interests interests (Note 4)
HERDAESE
EEHSF BAER RikfER AEES HihfE = BAF 2
(HI7E4)
Ng Tit 500,000 4,000,000 402,892,000 - 21.39%
R (Note 1) (Note 1) (Note 2)
(MEzED) (ME&ED) (Mt3E2)
Chin Yu 4,500,000 - 402,892,000 - 21.39%
23S (Note 1) (Note 2)
(PR EET) (fF5E2)
Wu Weizhong 1,066,858 - - - 0.06%
RAER (Note 3)
(B 5E3)
Yu Tze Shan Hailson 150,000 - - - 0.01%
REEL
Notes: B 5
(1) Mr. Ng Tit and his spouse, Ms. Chin Yu jointly own 500,000 Shares. 1 R 5 E R EHR B8 AR &L £ R+ 500,000
4,000,000 share options were granted to Ms. Chin Yu on 15 January &1 o ®R2015F 1158 + BIR KB R Bl M8
2015 under the Share Option Scheme. Ms. Chin Yu is the spouse of Mr. R H4,000,0001) B - BREZLTARE
Ng Tit. T 2B -
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(2) An aggregate of 402,892,000 Shares are beneficially owned by Golden (2) Golden Base Investment Limited ([Golden Basel) &
Base Investment Limited (“Golden Base”). Mr. Ng Tit and Ms. Chin Yu A A £402,892,0000K & p - REALERER
are the controlling shareholders of Golden Base. % 4 % Golden Base Hy 4% J% i & ©

(3)  For the year ended 31 December 2020, 1,500,000 and 1,300,046 ()  REE2020612A318 LF/E - Z7200949718
share options granted to Mr. Wu Weizhong on 18 September 2009 and A &20105F1A28H  ERBE R AR ESAIE
28 January 2010, respectively, under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme, A% 7 51 & 9 Bl M R A& AR %k A& R H1,500,00010 &
were expired and not exercised. As such, these share options are not 1,300,046 BBk - BRABRED 2 MI TR
counted accordingly. BETE  FIUTHEAEER -

(4) As at 31 December 2020, the total number of issued shares of the (4) M2020F12A31H ' ARAI 2 BERITRMHDEE A
Company are 1,904,635,472 Shares. 1,904,635,472 % -

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, none of Br £ P BE & SN - FR2020612 A31H + &

the Directors nor the chief executive of the Company or ERARAERITHRAERBESHEHE AR

their associates (including their spouses and children under FEEB B R85 LA T8 F20) BB R A A R 5k

18 years of age) had any interests or short positions in the HRBARNKRG  BERONKEST &

shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or its BREFFLPEGRIIEIGREEFE

associated corporations, as recorded in the register required &M AERIORE - HRE
to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO or required to be ETRAINEE T E AR ETRIBEHNE AR
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange under the AR R EAEESAR -

Model Code contained in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS FERRAEXQATRDRERER

AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND HHEERKXE

UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2020, the interests and short positions of M20205F12A31H " ARAI T ERER(EEN
the substantial shareholders of the Company (other than the RRAFH=ETHABRINRAR A K H
Directors and chief executive of the Company) in the shares RiEBEROP  BERBESRLBEEGKHE
and underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the XV 33615 E BB ARR AT EMNE LM
register required to be kept by the Company under Section iR AR :

336 of Part XV of the SFO were as follows:

Number of shares of the Company (long positions)

ADARGHE (FR)

Approximate

Interests of percentage of

Beneficial controlled Family interest in

Name LEVET owner  corporation interests Other interests  the Company

(Note 4)

HRAH

BEHH

ERfEA SRHIEESE  FHRER Rtz Bl

(Mi3ta)

Golden Base Golden Base 402,892,000 - - - 21.15%
Annie Investment Co., Ltd. (Note 1) Annie Investment Co., Ltd.

(FrzE1) 220,279,000 - - - 1157%

Shum Ning (Notes 1 & 2) HE (1 k2) - 220279000 527,381,500 - 39.25%

leong Chong Mang (Note 3) BrRA (M3 527,381,500 - 220,279,000 - 39.25%

R RO B B KB I F#E#H%E2020

m
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Notes:

(1) These Shares are held by Annie Investment Co., Ltd., which is held as to
100% by Shum Ning.

(2) Shum Ning is the spouse of leong Chong Mang. Under the SFO, Shum
Ning is deemed to be interested in all the Shares in which leong Chong
Mang is interested.

(3) leong Chong Mang is the spouse of Shum Ning. Under the SFO, leong
Chong Mang is deemed to be interested in all the Shares in which
Shum Ning is interested.

(4) As at 31 December 2020, the total number of issued shares of the
Company are 1,904,635,472 Shares.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, the
Company had not been notified by any other parties (other
than the Directors and chief executive of the Company) who
had any interests or short positions in the shares or underlying
shares of the Company as recorded in the register required to
be kept by the Company under Section 336 of Part XV of the
SFO.

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENT OR CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed above, no transaction, arrangement or
contract of significance in relation to the Group’s business (as
defined in the Listing Rules) to which the Company or any of,
its subsidiaries, fellow subsidiaries was a party and in which
a Director of the Company or an entity connected with a
Director had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year
ended 31 December 2020.

CONTRACT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed above, no contract of significance had been
entered into between the Company or any of its subsidiaries,
and a controlling shareholder of the Company or any of its
subsidiaries during the year ended 31 December 2020.

B &

(1) % % B {5 /B Annie Investment Co., Ltid# & M
Annie Investment Co., Ltd Bt 2 35 5 100% #E 745 ©

2 RXERBFHMER REEFRABKL L

ERESRGRAMBERNAARN PREE
B) BRE/LENER REEHFRBBKN 15
rj:t\

RERERNLERBESNMBERND DA #E

7

B

(4) MR2020F12A31H  ARRIZEEHITRMHEE A
1,904,635,472 % °

Br EXCRATHE FE & SN - A20209F12 A31H © &K
RAWTAMEBEBEMEMALT(EERAEAR
AlEmITHRABRINRARR DK IEE
BHOPFEREEFRBEEFEXVIE
3BIEMEAHALRRABFEN B LML
BRI SRR -

EEREARE RHEHEHN

BEXETHEEEN AR RETHHBA
ARRARMNBARMERAEBMES (T
EZER EMBANIYARRESRHEESRS
BEEREESMEREEE A ARNE
E2020FN2ANB L FEREBSIRZFE
RNEMNSETFENERARS THEXBERE
4 o

BEREN
Br ESCRTHE EE &SN - FRELE 2020912 A31H
IEFE - AQR S ET A E A G B EEAK
DAV B E AT (] B BB A A 4 IR B R AT S T 1)
BAWAL °
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REDEEMABLE CONVERTIBLE PREFERENCE
SHARES (“CPS")

Pursuant to the placing agreement (the “Placing Agreement”)
dated 19 April 2017 entered into between the Company and
Shenwan Hongyuan Securities (H.K.) Limited as the placing
agent (the “Placing Agent”), the Company agreed to issue
and the Placing Agent agreed to place, on a best effort
basis, up to an aggregate of 325,000,000 CPSs to not less
than six placees at a price of HK$1.83 per CPS. Each of the
CPSs is convertible into one ordinary share of the Company.
The issue price of HK$1.83 per CPS represents a premium
of approximately 6.40% to the closing price of HK$1.72 per
share as quoted on the Stock Exchange on the date of the
Placing Agreement.

The Placing was completed on 13 June 2017. 294,659,500
CPSs have been issued under the specific mandate which was
granted to the Directors at the extraordinary general meeting
held on 5 June 2017, and successfully placed by the Placing
Agent to not less than six placees (who are independent
professional, institutional or other investors) at the price of
HK$1.83 per CPS pursuant to the terms and conditions of the
Placing Agreement. The aggregate nominal value of the CPS is
approximately US$23.57.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, no CPS was
converted into ordinary share of the Company. Details are
discussed in note 35 to the audited consolidated financial
statement.

The net proceeds from the issue of the Convertible Preference
Shares were fully used for general working capital use,
repayment of existing debts and business development of the
Group.

AEETERELER(TRKRE
it dl))
BREAAGEAERRESLS (BB BRAA
(EREEREB)EEREDN2017F4H19
ATy EwZE(REHE]D  KXQ7R
EROMESARERZRBHELEUAFRA
B S AR 1.83 B LM E K A T DA /S 4 &
it A& & % A $£325,000,0000% 7] #2 A% 48 %
ff o —RRATR R B E R A —BRADRE
B - BITESRUBRELRKRISIBILER
BONESHEAREBIAMABRETES
f%1.727%8 70 (B 496.40% ©

fid 5 72201796 8138 Ak ° 294,659,500 5%

AR AR B R IR B AR EE2017F6 ASHEITH
BREFNAREERTFEENFRIRERT
I A 0 f S R IR AR IR B S 19 2 MO 6 3R I AR
AT B A] 2 iR 18 S A% 1.83/ 8 ST B #& [ N
DPRANBERAEERBLEE  BiBX
HMEEERE -ARBRELKRNAAE
BHI2357F T °

HE2020F12A31BILFE  WEABREKE
EREEBRARAR LR - BN EEX
AR AM GEISHR MW ©

BTABREERNMERBEFECEHA
EAREN-—REEELRAE EERAR
BREBEER -
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PLACING OF BONDS

On 29 April 2020, the Company, the Placing Agent and the
Guarantor entered into the Placing Agreement, pursuant to
which the Placing Agent has conditionally agreed to, on a
best effort basis, procure Placee(s) to subscribe for the Bonds
in an aggregate principal amount of up to HK$100,000,000
in up to two tranches within the Placing Periods. The net
proceeds from the issue of the Bonds are intended to be
used for general working capital use, repayment of existing
debts and for business development. For details of the
Placing Agreement, please refer to the announcement of
the Company dated 29 April 2020 (the “Announcement”).
Capitalised terms used in this paragraph shall have the same
meanings as those defined in the Announcement.

Save as disclosed above, the Company did not issue other
equity securities (including securities convertible into equity
securities) for cash during the Year under Review.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the listed securities of the Company
during the year ended 31 December 2020.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s articles of association which would oblige the
Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to the
existing shareholders.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The related party transactions as disclosed in note 38 to the
consolidated financial statements also constituted continuing
connected transactions under the Listing Rules but are
exempted from the reporting, annual review, announcement
and independent shareholders’ approval requirements
pursuant to the Listing Rules. The Company has complied with
the disclosure requirements of the Listing Rules in respect of
such continuing connected transactions.
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Report of the Directors (Continued)
EEEHRE (B)

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save as otherwise disclosed in this annual report, no equity-
linked agreements that will or may result in the Company
issuing shares or that require the Company to enter into any
agreements that will or may result in the Company issuing
shares were entered into by the Company.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

A permitted indemnity provision for the benefit of the
Directors is currently in force and was in force throughout
the Year under Review. The Company has taken out and
maintained appropriate insurance cover in respect of potential
legal actions against its Directors and officers.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and to the best knowledge of the Board, the
Company has maintained sufficient public float as required
under the Listing Rules as at the date of this report.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

During the Year under Review, the Group did not make any
donations (2019: Nil).

NON-ADJUSTING EVENTS AFTER THE
REPORTING PERIOD
Subsequent events occurred after the end of the reporting

period are set out in note 41 to the consolidated financial
statements.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE
FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
DIRECTORS OF LISTED ISSUERS

The Company has adopted the Model Code contained in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct
regarding Directors’ securities transactions. After making
specific enquiries, all Directors have confirmed that they have
complied with the standards as stipulated in the Model Code
throughout the year ended 31 December 2020.
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Report of the Directors (Continued)
EEEHRE (B)

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE
FROM INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The Company has received an annual written confirmation
of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules
from each of the independent non-executive Directors.
The Company considers that each of the independent non-
executive Directors to be independent.

AUDITORS

Crowe (HK) CPA Limited acted as auditor of the Company and
audited the Group's consolidated financial statements for the
financial year ended 31 December 2020.

The appointment of Crowe (HK) CPA Limited will expire at the
conclusion of the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company and, being eligible, has offered themselves for re-
appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment of Crowe
(HK) CPA Limited as auditor of the Company is to be proposed
at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Ng Tit
Chairman

Hong Kong, 31 March 2021
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Board of Directors and Board Committees

EEENESEET

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

HITEF

Non-executive Directors

FHTEE

Independent Non-executive Directors

BULIFHTEE

BOARD COMMITTEES

Audit Committee
FEELEE

Remuneration Committee
ST

Nomination Committee
EEZEE

Exg

Mr. NG Tit (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
REEE(FEFTHAER)

Ms. CHIN Yu

BRE L

Mr. WU Weizhong

Dr. QIAN Wei
BEHEEL

Mr. YU Tze Shan Hailson

REFILEE

Dr. YAN Hong (resigned on 20 March 2020)
B SAE £ (R20204F3 420 8 1F)

Dr. ZHAO Yubiao
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Mr. PAN Fei (@ppointed on 20 March 2020)
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Mr. PAN Fei (Chairman) (appointed on 20 March 2020)
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Mr. YU Tze Shan Hailson

REFLEE
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Corporate Information
NAEER

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Pang Wing Hong

AUDITORS

Crowe (HK) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

LEGAL ADVISORS AS TO HONG KONG
LAWS

Jun He

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG

KONG

28th Floor, The Wellington
198 Wellington Street
Sheung Wan, Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS AND
HEADQUARTERS IN CHINA

No. 1 Hua Ling Road
Suzhou Industrial Park
Suzhou, PRC

REGISTERED OFFICE

Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive
PO Box 2681

Grand Cayman, KY1-1111
Cayman Islands

HONG KONG SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE
Tricor Investor Services Limited

Level 54, Hopewell Centre
183 Queen'’s Road East, Hong Kong

CAYMAN ISLANDS PRINCIPAL SHARE
REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Conyers Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive

PO Box 2681

Grand Cayman, KY1-1111

Cayman lIslands
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Conyers Trust Company (Cayman) Limited

Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive
PO Box 2681

Grand Cayman, KY1-1111
Cayman Islands
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Corporate Information (Continued)
nElER (58)

INVESTOR RELATIONS

Tel: (852) 2808 1606
Fax: (852) 2508 9459
Email: ir@ntpharma.com

COMPANY'S WEBSITE

http://www.ntpharma.com

STOCK CODE
1011

REEBE

E % ¢ (852) 2808 1606
{# & : (852) 2508 9459
& H : ir@ntpharma.com
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Independent Auditor’s Report

S AVRR - G

Crowe

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS
OF CHINA NT PHARMA GROUP COMPANY LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
China NT Pharma Group Company Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages
133 to 360, which comprise the consolidated statement
of financial position as at 31 December 2020, and the
consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2020, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BEEEE (FE) GMEHAERAT
Crowe (HK) CPA Limited

&8 RS IBIRET7E ISR D
9/F Leighton Centre,

77 Leighton Road,

Causeway Bay, Hong Kong
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

BYZHMERE (B)

BASIS OF OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“"HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”)
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion.

MATERIAL UNCERTAINTY RELATED TO
GOING CONCERN

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group
incurred a loss attributable to equity shareholders of the
Company of RMB357,599,000 and, as at 31 December 2020,
the Group’s current liabilities exceeded its current assets by
RMB579,477,000. The Group has been considering various
measures to improve its liquidity position. These conditions,
along with other matters as set forth in note 2(b) to the
consolidated financial statements, indicate the existence of a
material uncertainty which may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. Our opinion is
not modified in this respect.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
BYZEMBE (&)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

The Key Audit Matter How the matter was addressed in our audit

(a) Valuation of leasehold land and buildings

(refer to notes 2(g), 3(c) and 15 to the consolidated
financial statements)

At 31 December 2020, the Group has a significant
amount of leasehold land and buildings of
approximately RMB496.9 million carried at
the revalued amount (2019: approximately
RMB212.7 million carried at cost less accumulated
depreciation), representing approximately 38.37%
(2019: 11.83%) of the Group's total assets, which
were determined by the directors of the Company
with reference to the professional valuations
performed by ROMA Appraisals Limited, a firm of
independent qualified professional valuers in Hong
Kong, with recent experiences and qualifications
in the category and locations of similar land and
buildings being valued.

Revaluation surplus and deferred tax liabilities
arising of approximately RMB329.3 million and
RMB63.7 million, respectively, on the revaluation
of leasehold land and buildings for own use are
dealt with in other comprehensive income and are
accumulated separately in the revaluation reserve.

The outcome of the valuations for leasehold land
and buildings are dependent on the selection of
valuation approaches and key assumptions that
require significant judgements and estimates made
by the management of the Group and the valuer.

We assessed the external valuers’ independence,
competence and objectivity;

We assessed the appropriateness of the
methodologies and approaches adopted for the
valuation of leasehold land and buildings at 31
December 2020;

We reviewed and challenged the correctness
of the related data of leasehold land and
buildings used as inputs for the valuations. We
evaluated the source data used in the valuation
by benchmarking them to relevant market
information;

We checked mathematical accuracy of calculation
for the revaluation surplus on leasehold land and
buildings and related deferred tax liabilities arising
from revaluation surplus of the Group’s leasehold
land and buildings; and

We also assessed the adequacy of the disclosures
made in relation to the valuation of leasehold
land and buildings in the consolidated financial
statements.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

The Key Audit Matter

Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
BYZEMBE (&)

How the matter was addressed in our audit

(b) Recoverability of trade and bills receivables

(refer to notes 2(j)(i), 3(f)(i), 22 and 36(a) to the
consolidated financial statements)

At 31 December 2020, the carrying amount of
trade and bills receivables was approximately
RMB26.0 million (2019: RMB63.6 million) (net
of provision for impairment of approximately
RMB626.1 million (2019: RMB620.4 million), which
have no collateral as security for settlements.

Loss allowances for trade and bills receivables are
measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs that
are expected to result from all possible default
events over the expected lives of the trade and
bills receivables. Lifetime ECLs on the trade and
bills receivables are estimated by reference to the
collective risk characteristics of the customers,
using a provision matrix based on the Group's
historical credit loss experiences, as adjusted for
current conditions at the reporting period end and
forward looking information, factors specific to the
debtors and general economic environment.

Loss allowances for lifetime expected credit
losses of trade and bills receivables are based on
management’s estimates, taking into account
the past bad debt loss experiences, ageing of
overdue trade receivables, customers’ repayment
history and customers’ financial position and
an assessment of both the current and forward
looking information such as forecast of future
economic conditions, all of which involve a
significant degree of management judgement.

We assessed the adequacy of provision for
impairment and reasonableness of the assumptions
used by management in making provision for
impairment against trade and bills receivables. This
included an assessment of:

— the Group’s internal control on debt recovery and
actions taken to collect the overdue debts;

— past settlement history of the customers and
cash received after year end and up to the audit
opinion date, on a sample basis, of customer
debts;

— checking the ageing analysis for trade and bills
receivables by customers in the provision matrix,
and challenging the reasonableness of the
provision rates applied in the ECLs model adopted
by the management, taking into consideration of
historical credit loss rates and forward-looking
information specific to the debtors, current and
future economic and market conditions which
might have impacts on the customers’ abilities
to settle their trade debts to the Group in future;
and

— any disputes with customers by comparing,
on a sample basis, the discrepancies to the
debtor confirmations directly obtained from the
customers, including review of correspondences
with the customers and making enquiries of the
Group's external solicitors.

We also assessed the adequacy of disclosures on
the provision for trade and bill receivables in the
consolidated financial statements.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

The Key Audit Matter

Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
BYZEMBE (&)

How the matter was addressed in our audit

(c) Recoverability of consideration receivable
arising from disposal of NT International
Limited (“NT International”)

(refer to notes 2(j)(i), 3(f)(ii), 16()iii), 22(c) and 37
to the consolidated financial statements)

As discussed in note 37 to the consolidated
financial statements, during the year ended 31
December 2020, the Group disposed its entire
equity interest in NT International, which holds
all the brand and marketing rights relating to
Miacalcic for an indefinite period of time, to Beijing
Kangchen at a consideration of RMB900,000,000,
of which RMB540,000,000 was received, leaving
a balance of the consideration receivable of
RMB360,000,000 at 31 December 2020, subject
to fulfilment of precedent conditions regarding
the changes in registration of the marketing rights
in favour of NT International in Mainland China
and Hong Kong, which were not completed at 31
December 2020. The balance of the consideration
receivable of RMB360,000,000 was not due
to for settlement from Beijing Kangchen at 31
December 2020. Based on the information made
available to the Group, management of the Group
considered that there would not be any difficulties
in the registration of the marketing rights
relating to Miacalcic in favour of NT International,
and credit risk of the remaining consideration
receivable from Beijing Kangchen has not been
significantly increased at 31 December 2020
and the probability of default was considered by
management of the Group as low. Management
of the Group have also obtained and examined
valuation report for Miacalcic business of NT
International, which is wholly-owned by Beijing
Kangchen, at 31 December 2020 performed by an
independent professional valuer with qualifications
and recent experiences in valuing similar assets.
Based on the assessment, no recognition of
allowance for 12-month credit losses was made at
31 December 2020.

Assessment of the recoverability of the remaining
consideration receivable from Beijing Kangchen
involved significant subjective judgements and
estimation uncertainty.

We evaluated the settlement from Beijing Kangchen
during the year.

We obtained the direct confirmation from Beijing
Kangchen for the balance of consideration receivable
in which no dispute was noted.

We evaluated the status of the changes of registration
of the marketing rights relating to Miacalcic.

We examined the financial information of Beijing
Kangchen and NT International for determining
whether or not the credit risk of the consideration
receivable from Beijing Kangchen has been changed
significantly at the year end.

We reviewed valuation report for the business
valuation of Miacalcic which represent the key assets
of NT International which is wholly-owned by Beijing
Kangchen, and:

— We assessed the external valuer’s independence,
competence and objectivity.

— We evaluated the valuation methodology used.

— We challenged the reasonableness of the key
assumptions adopted and the discount rate used.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

BMYZHMRE (B)

INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND AUDITOR'S REPORT THEREON

The directors are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises all the information included
in the annual report, other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form
of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

BYZHMERE (B)

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the
Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative
but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a body, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

BMYZHMRE (B)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Group'’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
BUZEMBE (&)

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

Conclude the appropriateness of the directors’ use
of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that
a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor's report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

BMYZHMRE (B)

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our
audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance
in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

Crowe (HK) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 31 March 2021

Liu Mok Lan, Cliny
Practising Certificate Number P07270
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

M ALS 22
72 N = Eﬁﬁ

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Renminbi) &t 220209 12 531 H 1 /& (U B E 5 7)

2020 2019
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Bt & AR¥®TR AR®ET T
(Restated)
(gE5)
Continuing operations BESEER
Revenue Uy 4 221,731 153,468
Cost of sales 8 & B AR (86,827) (63,211)
Gross profit EF 134,904 90,257
Other revenue and other income Uy R E AU A 5 29,431 6,629
Other net loss HthE B8 (2,432) (4,275)
Share of profit/(loss) of an associate DE—EEE AR 2
wH (B 1R) 19 8 7)
Reversal of impairment loss/ Wz - BENZE
(impairment loss) of property, plant B EE R
and equipment CR1EE#E) 15 10,980 (10,980)
Reversal of impairment loss/ 25 RN RIEREEE
(impairment loss) of trade e, OREEE)
receivables, net R 22(b) 1,390 (133,072)
Impairment loss of other receivables, — E fth J& I 5% TH 5L (B 5 48
net F R 22(0) (57,441) (23,187)
Fair value change on financial liabilities ZRAREIAEBZE Z &
at fair value through profit or loss BAaBEzANEE 30 & 35 (11,265) (29,853)
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHEAX (123,074) (47,781)
Administrative expenses THHAX (96,253) (98,477)
Finance costs BE KA 7(a) (86,537) (104,375)
Loss before taxation BB AT & 1B 7 (200,289) (355,141)
Income tax credit/(expense) FrigfiEe, (Fx) 8(a) 9,020 (265)
Loss for the year from continuing FARBFERKLEER
operations KB 18 (191,269) (355,406)
Discontinued operation ERIEREER 9
Loss for the year from discontinued FRREE KR I K&
operation EX 300 7] (168,644) (237,796)
Loss for the year FREE (359,913) (593,202)
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss (Continued)
meBmk (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Renminbi) & 220205 12431 A 1t & (KA B #F7)

2020 2019
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 AR¥T R ARTTT
(Restated)
(g=75))
Attributable to: DRIBR:
Equity shareholders of the Company KRR TR (357,599) (587,590)
Non-controlling interests EERER (2,314) (5,612)
Loss for the year FRER (359,913) (593,202)
Loss attributable to equity shareholders 7K /A &4 5 & B2 fiE {5 5k
of the Company arises from: BUTEIBEREIE:
Continuing operations FELEER (188,955) (349,794)
Discontinued operation ERIEREER (168,644) (237,796)
(357,599) (587,590)
Loss per share BRER 13
From continuing and discontinued REFBELEZEEKR
operations ERIEEEEK
Basic H K (18.95) cents @ (33.31) cents 7>
Diluted s (18.95) cents 7 (33.31) cents 7>
From continuing operations REGEREER
Basic HEAK (10.01) centsZ  (19.83) cents 7
Diluted #E (10.01) cents % (19.83) cents 7>
The notes on pages 142 to 360 form part of these financial F1428 £360E MM s A L S B IR KA
statements. —&H5 -
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Othe Comprehensive Income

FoRaR AN ERER

For the year endeo’ 37 December 2020 (Expressed in Renminbi) & 22020912 531 A 1F F /& (KA RS T)

2020 2019
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Bt 5 AR¥®TR ARBF T
(Restated)
(g E5)
Loss for the year FREE (359,913) (593,202)
Items that may be reclassified BEERIBEERT P E
subsequently to profit or loss: Bz hEE -
Exchange differences on translation HREE A R HFEIE SN
of financial statements of entities RN EBRERE
outside the People’s Republic of FREEMIEH Z
China (1,476) 369
Exchange difference reclassified to MEE—FHEQR
profit or loss upon disposal of a EoEEER E’J
subsidiary EHER 37 16,170 —
Item that will not be reclassified to B TEET D EEZ B
profit or loss: HIEE -
Revaluation surplus on leasehold land & £+ B2 F K]
and buildings, net of tax BERRNBRTIE) 265,617 —
Other comprehensive income for the 4 A H #th & [ W %5
year, net of tax (0B FE1E) 280,311 369
Total comprehensive loss for the
year FRAE2EEBRALHE (79,602) (592,833)
Attributable to: DRIBR:
Equity shareholders of the Company A2 &) # 25 i 5 (89,080) (587,221)
Non-controlling interests FE 5 AR & 9,478 (5,612)
(79,602) (592,833)
Total comprehensive income/ AATERERERREMN
(loss) for the year attributable KEUTERENER
to equity shareholders of the 2wk (E#E)
Company arises from: B
Continuing operations SESEER 62,194 (351,091)
Discontinued operation BRI EETR (151,274) (236,130)
(89,080) (587,221)

The notes on pages 142 to 360 form part of these financial 1428 £360E KM s A L S B IR KA
statements. —&5 -
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

ara B AIR R AR

At 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Renminbi) 32020124310 (U A £ ¥ 5 7)

2020 2019
Note RMB’000 RMB’'000
B 5E AR T AREF T
Non-current assets ERBEE
Fixed assets EBE
— Property, plant and equipment — M- BERREE 15 419,830 265,412
— Interests in leasehold land held for —#F{EFERZHEE +ith
own use T & 15 117,998 40,003
Intangible assets BVEE 16 162,846 1,148,477
Goodwill S 17 — —
Interest in an associate, net KRB E AT 2=
FE 19 16,899 16,891
Prepayment for acquisition of an WiE—ERFEE
intangible asset SEENE O] 22 — 17,576
Financial asset at fair value through BEAARBEIAEBERZ
profit or loss DEEE 20 537 571
A L) S 1,488,930
Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 21 27,287 34,461
Trade and other receivables =i % N H b & 145( A 22 420,359 161,895
Pledged bank deposits BEHEFRITERX 23 25,520 40,000
Time deposits FHER 24(a) — 44,790
Cash and cash equivalents BeMIREEEY 24(b) 7,694 28,198
480,860 309,344
Assets of a disposal group classified as D AFIELEZ HE
held for sale/assets classified as held WBRAEBE,/ DEE
for sale BIELEZEE 38 96,099 —
Current liabilities RBEE
Contract liabilities AHEaE 25 5,808 16,022
Trade and other payables B 5 Rk Hith & 5B 26 268,164 183,583
Bank and other borrowings RITREMEER 27 796,248 957,748
Lease liabilities HEBE 28 3,156 1,866
Financial liabilities at fair value through ¥z A A ABZ Z
profit or loss THAEE 29 16,199 445,219
Current taxation A ER B IR 31(a) 12,195 21,079
1,101,770 1,625,517
Liabilities of a disposal group classified 2 ABFHELHEZ
as held for sale HEHFNEE 38 54,666 —
o 1156436 1625517
Net current liabilities REBEEFEE (579,477) (1,316,173)
Total assets mEE 1,295,069 1,798,274
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (Continued)
mEEARREK ()

At 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Renminbi) K2020% 12 5315 (U A B # 5 7)

2020 2019
Note RMB’000 RMB’'000
B 5E AR®T AREF T
Total assets less current liabilities AEERABEE 138,633 172,757
Non-current liabilities kFRBEE
Bank and other borrowings WITREMEE 27 45,635 64,706
Lease liabilities HEBE 28 6,416 3,286
Financial liabilities at fair value through R A REFIABZE 2
profit or loss cEaE 29 472 2,842
Deferred tax liabilities EREHIEAE 31(b) 63,688 —
116,211 70,834
NET ASSETS EEFHE 22,422 101,923
CAPITAL AND RESERVES B R &S 34
Share capital & 7 1 1
Reserves B 16,278 105,257
Total equity attributable to equity 722 5 # K X
shareholders of the Company EiEERARE 16,279 105,258
Non-controlling interests FIERES 18(ii) 6,143 (3,335)
TOTAL EQUITY EEEE 22,422 101,923

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors

on 31 March 2021 and signed on its behalf by:

Ng Tit
R

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The notes on pages 142 to 360 form part of these financial

statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
SOEREBE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Renminbi) 2 22020412 531 A 1 F & (U A KK 7)

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
FRARERREL

Conversion
option of
redeemable
convertible Non-
Share  preference Share  Exchange  Statutory Merger Other Capital luation Accumulated lling Total
capital share premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve losses Total  interests equity
TRETR
RELRZ Eff
RE BRE  REEE ERBE iERE  AKER  RERE  E5ER #F RiTER #it FEREE  RRAE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARMTR ARETr ARETR ARETT ARETR ARETR ARETT ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR
(Note (Note (Note (Note (Note (Note (Note
(Note34(c)  (Note 35) 34(d)) i) ) 34div) M) ) i)
[UiE=" Uik (=R ik (B3

(Hi3a0)  (AriE3s) () 6 ) @) M) 3ad)i)
Asat 1 January 2019 01951818 Tue13 156230 56,553 88,206 825 281,800 10245 - (79423) 48929 2T 491569
Changes in equity for 2019; RONERERE:
Loss for the year EREE - - - - - - - - — (587590 (587,59) (5610 (533200)

Other comprehensive income Eh2ENE
Exchange differences on trenslation of R EREIH SR EH
finandil statements of entities outside B BAFE £ )

the FC Eize - - - £ - - - - - - % - %
Total comprehensive loss 2AFRES - — — 369 — — — - - (587,590) (587,21) (5612) (592,833)
Lapse of share option BRELR - - - - - - - (1911) - 1911 — - -
Equity-settled share-based transactions ~ JEEREE T IR

(note 7(b)) BEROZA (ML) — — — — - — — 7462 — — 7462 - 7462
Shares purchase for share award scheme R R B BB A

(note 32(d)) R 17 (3 3200)) - - - - - - - (1,046) - - (1,046) - (1,046)
Issue of new shares upon conversionof ~ RERTRRE%

convertible bonds (note 30) 1% 17 8 (F13E30) - — 1% - - - - - - — 19,771 - 19771
As at 31 December 2019 and R20195128318 &

1 January 2020 202051A1A 1 276,131 1,759,103 56,922 88,206 8,256 281,800 14,750 - (2319911) 105,258 (3,335) 101,923
Changes in equity for 2020; R0NFRELE:
Loss for the year FRER = = = = = = - - - (357599)  (357.599) 2314) (359,913
Other comprehensive income 22 ENE

Exchange differences on trandlation o~ ERERIEEH
financial statements of entities outside BB BAHE LS

the PRC EXZEE = = = (1,476) = = = = = = (1,476) - (1.476)
Exchange differences reclassfied to profit ME RHERF

or loss upon disposal of a subsidiary ENSEEREN

(note 37) EXZE(HE3) - - - 16,170 - - - - - - 16,170 - 16,170
Revaluation surplus on leasehold land ErHREFH

and buildings (note 15) EfRH(H1) - - - - - = = - 313583 - 31358 512 329305

Deferred tax on revaluation supluson ~~ HEE +H RETHE(R
leasehold land and buildings note 31(b) ~ B & E £ EIERLHE
(HFEE3100) = = = = = = = - (5975) - (59758) (3930 (6369)

Total comprehensive loss 2EFREE - - - 14,69 - - - - 253825  (357,599) (89,080) 9,478 (79,602)

Transfer upon lapse of conversion rights I EZ| S M TER TR
of matured redeemable convertible BERMARERNH

preference shares (note 35) 28(M33) - (613) - - - - - - = 276,131 = = =
Lapse of share option BREXH - - - - - - - (2,106) - 2,106 = = =
Equity-settled share-based transactions W& £ E TR (R
(note 7(b) BEROXS (M) - - - - - - - 101 - - 101 - 101
As at 31 December 2020 #20205128318 1 — 1,759,103 71616 88,206 8,256 281,800 12,745 253825  (2459213) 16,279 6,143 n4an
The notes on pages 142 to 360 form part of these financial F1428 £360 B MM s A L S B IR KA
statements. —&H5 -
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

GeBRTRBR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Renminbi) &t 220209 12 531 H 1 /& (U B E 5 7)

2020 2019
Note RMB’000 RMB’'000
B 3 ARB TR ARBT T
Operating activities RETEE
Loss before taxation bR AIEs 1B
— From continuing operations —REFBEEEER (200,289) (355,141)
— From discontinued operation —REBRIEEEE
7% 9 (168,644) (228,331)
(368,933) (583,472)
Adjustments for: BT IEE
Depreciation of property, plant and mE - BMEREHEITE
equipment 7(c) 18,721 22,521
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEENE 7(0) 3,631 1,930
Amortisation of intangible assets A E 7(0) 2,045 6,680
Write-down of inventories 7 & MOR 21(b) 392 2,361
(Reversal of impairment loss)/ VI B MERE
impairment loss of property, plant CRrEBBERE)
and equipment A EE 15 (10,980) 10,980
Impairment loss of trade receivables ZHREWHIBEREEE 22(0b) 6,323 134,337
Impairment loss of other receivables Hu W RIEREEE 220 67,968 23,187
Impairment loss of an intangible —EEVEEREEE
asset 16(e) 52,304 287,107
Finance costs & KA 7(a) 86,537 104,375
Interest income B U A 5 (2,835) (1,884)
Net loss on disposal of property, HEME - BMERZH
plant and equipment [Ei=he 6 160 635
Equity-settled share-based payment VARE 25 45 B30 LA IR 7
expenses A5 Y 2R B 7(b) 101 7,462
Share of (profit)/loss of an associate DiE—EEE Q[
CaFl),/ B’ 19 (8) 27
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary HE—RFANBAR
&8 37 32,714 —
Gain on deregistration of a subsidiary 4% |E 7t — M B AR
pdl & 5 (459) —
Reversal of over-accrued expenses BEFEHBERETER
in previous years # [l 5 (8,215) —
Fair value loss on financial liabilities EARBEIWAERZZS
at fair value through profit or loss BEEZAREE
| 30 & 35 11,265 29,853
Changes in working capital: HEEEY:
Decrease in inventories Tfé”ﬁz 4 6,782 8,140
Decrease in trade and other B 5 R H fth FE YK
receivables D 26,539 2,749
Increase/(decrease) in trade and other & 5 K& H b f& {1 5
payables and contract liabilities J«(&A%’Jﬁfﬁi“ﬂﬂ/
ORL ) 102,102 (8,015)
Cash generated from operations  REREHRE 26,154 48,973
Tax paid [EENE R
— PRC Income Tax refunded/(paid) —BRE (BMH
Fri8 %t 50 (1,208)
Net cash generated from operating EZ EZBHFERETBE
activities 26,204 47,765
TREREBEEBR | FE®RE2020

139



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (Continued)
n‘/-ﬁ IE%/)H;E% (::E)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Renminbi) & 220204 12 431 H 1 /& (LA BB F)

140

2020 2019
Note RMB’000 RMB’'000
B 3 ARB TR ARBT T
Investing activities REED
Payment for consideration balance BT FE g E
in relation to the acquisition of a —RHfBARZ
subsidiary in prior year RELRFTIHRIE (1,029) (4,772)
Payment for purchase of property, HEEWME BERRE
plant and equipment BT A~ 3k 18 (23,844) (36,034)
Payment for purchase of intangible BERLEEMMNRIE
assets — others — HAh — (51,167)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWE BENKBE
plant and equipment Ffr 18 5K 18 — 4
Proceeds from disposal of a subsidiary & — W% NC]
ﬁfr’E‘ ! 37 558,370 —
Refund of deposit for proposed 3 [0 g #¢ t|j E—M
disposal of a subsidiary W E AR AT E R & — (70,000)
Interest received B UEF 2 2,835 1,884
Placement of pledged bank deposits 77 B I IR 1717 3K 23 (25,520) (40,000)
Release of pledged bank deposits R EEBRITER 23 40,000 38,000
Release/(placement) of time deposits &k, (15 i) & Hi 77 3 24(a) 44,790 (44,790)
Net cash generated from/(used in) REFEFE, (FrA)
investing activities BE T 595,602 (206,875)
Financing activities il & SE B
Proceeds from new bank borrowings ~ ¥TIBIRITEEMSHIE 240 992,861 606,632
Repayment of bank borrowings BEIETEE 24(c) (1,278,454) (678,798)
Proceeds from new other borrowings — 71& H b (£ & 115 24(c) 173,469 416,987
Repayments of other borrowings EBEHEMEE 24(c) (448,380) (368,595)
Interest paid EH PSS 24(c) (65,374) (94,131)
Proceeds from issue of convertible BTUBRBRESMER
bonds 18 30 — 200,067
Payment for cost of issuing convertible 371 8% 7 A] #2 J% & 5 1)
bonds DN 30 — (341)
Proceeds from issue of corporate bonds 277 X Al {& & Fr 13 Z 18 27(v) 14,188 46,937
Payment for cost of issuing corporate Sz~ 31T A FE H HY
bonds (DN 27(v) (707) (4,747)
Repayment of corporate bonds BEANRES 27(v) (9,550) (21,007)
Repayment of lease liabilities EERHEAR 24(c) (2,298) (585)
Payment for shares purchased for the 1R i 10 &2 Eh 5T 8185 A
share award scheme A& 13 B 1< 3k 38 32(d) — (1,046)
Net cash (used in)/generated from ®EEE (FTA),
financing activities EREFEHE (624,245) 101,373
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (Continued)
mERERER (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Renminbi) &t 220209 12 531 H 1 /& (U B E 5 7)

2020 2019
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Bt 5 ARET R AR®ET T
Net decrease in cash and cash ReRREEEEY
equivalents WA FEEE (2,439) (57,737)
Cash and cash equivalents at MB1IBHNEREER
1 January ReZEY 28,198 87,793
Effect of foreign exchange rate EXREEHNY
changes (17,923) (1,858)
Cash and cash equivalents at R12A3MENEE R
31 December REZEY 24(a) 7,836 28,198
Analysis of balances of cash and R12A31HM RS RE
cash equivalents at 31 December S ZEEBYW &I
Cash and cash equivalents RekReZEED 7,694 28,198
Cash and cash equivalents included in B IEED B A
assets of a disposal group classified EL & 2 &4 B
as held for sale BEEMNRE R
ReEEY 38(a) 142 —
7,836 28,198
The notes on pages 142 to 360 form part of these financial F1428 £3608 MM A L EH B IREL
statements. — & e

hEFEEBEER | FE#HRE2020
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

n\/__]_\

S B8 R Ak B

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) Z 22020 12531 H it F /& (B 551545 - UAREFTF)

1.
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PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES OF REPORTING
ENTITY

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands
on 1 March 2010 as an exempted company with limited
liability under the Companies Law, Cap 22 (Law 23
of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman
Islands. The Group is principally engaged in research and
development, manufacturing, sales and distribution of
pharmaceutical products and the provision of marketing
and promotion services to suppliers in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC").

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Renminbi (“RMB”), rounded to the nearest thousand,
which is the presentation currency of the Group and
the functional currency of the primary economic
environment in the PRC where the majority of the
entities within the Group operate.

1.

FRERCTERK

AARFP010F3/1BHIREREHE A
AR E22F (19616 F2316 5 E - ££4R
METDRHAESHESEMK LA
XQD%ZEBE’AT REBMEERPE
ANREMBE (R HERE - £E -
HERDHBEER  URRHEHERS
REMBHERSERE -

HAEMBREAUNARETARED?
B WEEESEANTLEH -ARE
RAKEE2NEE  TRAKHEHET
REZBEBKEMAETERLERES
BZIEER -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

AN
ra

PSR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) 2 22020412 A31H 1 F /8 (B 5 B #5895+ YA RS T)
2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

These financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which
collective term includes all applicable individual
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong
Kong and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. These financial
statements also comply with the applicable
disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited. Significant accounting policies
adopted by the Group are disclosed below.

The HKICPA has issued certain amendments to
HKFRSs which are first effective or available for
early adoption for the current accounting period
of the Group. Note 2(c) provides information on
any changes in accounting policies resulting from
initial application of these developments to the
extent that they are relevant to the Group for
the current accounting period reflected in these
financial statements.

2.

TEETEE

S E MR IR IE B E R
BREWBHRELER(EBH KR
EREADRE LEHEREER
Gitog (FEEMAR]) R
o i) P B A& A O M8 Bl & 78 B 75 e
HEA - BEGFEN(EES
AEADRRE BAARES
JRENA KB BCRBHGEBI) 2 1 5&
BRIE - WERBRRTNAER
BEXZMARABES EHR
AR ER R ER - AEER®R
ZEBEFBRBEENT -

EEEHH AR HMERER
KBBAEEARASTHMEIRER
RANWETEEMBRSERZ
BT i RBR R U F B RRA
VR BRERNEBAMNS M
EAEEER QM E20RM®T
ELfEERERUEFHROEIM
SRTBREHER -

FEHRE2020
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

AN
N

PSR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) # 22020 12 31 H 1L F/E (B ZE#E B + WA RESHFR)
2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

China NT Pharma Group Company Limited | Annual Report 2020

During the year ended 31 December 2020,
the Group incurred a loss attributable to the
equity shareholders of RMB357,599,000 for the
year ended 31 December 2020 and, as at 31
December 2020, the Group’s current liabilities
exceeded its current assets by RMB579,477,000.
The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the assumption that the Group will
be able to operate as a going concern in the
foreseeable future, after taking into consideration
of (a) unused and available credit facilities of
approximately RMB5,000,000; (b) new other
borrowings of approximately RMB25,248,000
subsequently obtained from an independent
third party up to the date of approval for the
consolidated financial statements; (c) additional
new credit facilities and/or financial arrangements
which are currently under serious and advanced
stage of discussions between the Group and
certain financial institutions and potential
investor(s); (d) successful disposal of the entire
equity interest of a subsidiary at a consideration
of approximately RMB126,000,000 as detailed
in note 38(a); (e) successful disposal of certain
land and buildings located in the PRC with
carrying amounts of RMB16,266,000 as detailed
in note 38(b); and (f) a substantial shareholder
of the Company, to whom the Company owed
approximately RMB192,984,000, that were
classified as other borrowings as included in
current liabilities as at 31 December 2020, has
agreed to provide adequate funds to the Group
to enable it to meet its debts as and when they
fall due in the foreseeable future, and will not
demand immediate repayment from the Company
until the Group will have sufficient working capital
to operate as a going concern in the foreseeable
future.

2.

TESTBR(E

H E2020F12A31H IEFE > &
£ B RN E E2020912A318 IEF
EELEEZBREELHEBEBEARE
357,599,0007T © A K& 72020412
A318 AEEMRBAEEBRLR
& E A R%579,477,0007T ° &
R@OABARITBAEERELNA
K #5,000,0007T : (b)EH £ & B
HRARMEBREEER — BB
F=FHE I EMEROA
R #25,248,0007T : () ELfth ¥ (5
BEmE Nk, SKERAALEEET
CRRBREEREEETER
DEmEBECEEZBELTE )
IO E — B AR A2 ZA
- R{EH A AR126,000,000
JC 0 B A M FE38G) ¢ (e) AR Ih
HEMRPENE T L REF
BRTIE A AR #16,266,0007T * &f
15 &M FE38(b) s R () AR RQE]—
HZEEREBE(RRDRIRE 2 KIBR
2020F 12 A3B D EARBAET
H &4 A R #192,984,0007T)
EREMASERERZEES -
NLAXREEATRA R B REITE
BEER BB TeRASEE
B BEsRN R REE
BEELEEMEBEMNERLAR
RIVAEN  BREVMBHRER 2K
L EREAEBE TN R RE

BREBREEREE -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

AN
ra

PSR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) 2 22020412 A31H 1 F /8 (B 5 B #5895+ YA RS T)
2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Management of the Company has prepared a cash
flow forecast of the Group for a period covered
not less than twelve months from date of approval
for the consolidated financial statements. Based
on the cash flow forecast, after having taken
into account of the Group’s projected cash flows,
current financial resources, existing and new credit
facilities, the financial support from a substantial
shareholder of the Company and the future capital
expenditure requirements, management of the
Company is of the view that the Group will have
sufficient working capital to meet its financial
obligations as and when they fall due in the next
twelve months from the date of approval for the
consolidated financial statements. Accordingly,
the consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on a going concern basis.

Should the Group be unable to continue in
business as a going concern, adjustments would
have to be made to restate the value of assets
to their recoverable amounts, to reclassify non-
current assets and non-current liabilities as current
assets and current liabilities respectively, and to
provide for any further liabilities that may arise.
The effects of these potential adjustments have
not been reflected in these consolidated financial
statements.

The consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2020 comprise the Company
and its subsidiaries (together referred to as the
“Group”) and the Group's interest in an associate.

2.

TESTBERE)

ARBEEECDREAKERE
TORGEMBHHRRIEBHRE
Tt EAAMREzREERERA -
RERSRERA  BEEAE
BrzBERABEERE RBHEE
RBRBARHEEERE AR
A—BEBRRZBBEIFUAR
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BEME - Bt IReaPBRRE
BREBREEERE -

i 7 &= B O AR B R E M 7
EREER AIAELRAER
HEEEBEEIIZEATKRE S
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DHEHRDBRARBEER RS
BE UARBAEEENTMAAE
MEEFELRE ZFEEAE
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H E2020F12A3NB IEF E 2 4
AU BEBRRBIEARAREWE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

AN
N

PSR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) & Z2020F 12531 H it F & (5 551595 - UA BRI TF)
2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

China NT Pharma Group Company Limited | Annual Report 2020

The measurement basis used in the preparation of
the financial statements is the historical cost basis,
except for the following assets and liabilities are
stated at their fair value:

—  Leasehold land and buildings;

—  Financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss;

— Financial liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss; and

—  Financial liabilities at fair value through other
comprehensive income (non-recycling).

Non-current assets and disposal group held for
sale are stated at the lower of carrying amount
and fair value less costs to sell (see note 2(y)(i)).

The preparation of financial statements in
conformity with HKFRSs requires management
to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the application of policies and
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income
and expenses. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience
and various other factors that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances, the results of
which form the basis of making the judgements
about carrying values of assets and liabilities
that are not readily apparent from other sources.
Actual results may differ from these estimates.

2.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

mEM KRR (B)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) 2 22020412 A31H 1 F /8 (B 5 B #5895+ YA RS T)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. TEEFHXRGE)
(Continued)

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period
in which the estimate is revised if the revision
affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects
both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the
application of HKFRSs that have significant effect
on the financial statements and major sources of
estimation uncertainty are discussed in note 3.

In the current year, the Group has applied the
Amendments to References to the Conceptual
Framework in HKFRS Standards and the
following amendments to HKFRSs issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA") for the first time,
which are mandatorily effective for the annual
period beginning on or after 1 January 2020
for the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements.

BERMGEFAMARBRREFEET
el o MBI ZERERE
EREFHET 2R - BERTe
Rz AR RE AR fi 12 BT B AN H 7
ERKRBEBAEZE  AIRIEH
fER] 2 B S R SR ER PR e R o

EEERERAEEMBHREER
BAEL 2 BB HRAELEX
FEZHAB LG TEELZE
Z ORI M 3R A R e

RAFE AEEECHXERS
Bestiiog (8t Ag))
REAUBERELENZEZ RS
EZFTERM ZIEFTRIATHE
BB HREENMNBE 255
1720201 B1B & MIAN FEH
MIoRHI A 3% - AR B4R A BT 75 3R
24\:20

Amendments to Definition of Material EECHENZIRE EANTE
HKAS 1 and BB EREHR
HKAS 8 2B

Amendments to Definition of a Business BET KRS LER ABHER
HKFRS 3 EEDACH)

Amendments to Interest Rate Benchmark BERTBREER FlREENE

HKFRS 9, HKAS 39 Reform

and HKFRS 7
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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g ERRMEE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) & Z2020F 12531 H it F & (5 551595 - UA BRI TF)
2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
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In addition, the Group has early applied the
Amendment to HKFRS 16 Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions.

Except as described below, the application
of the Amendments to References to the
Conceptual Framework in HKFRS Standards and
the amendments to HKFRSs in the current year
had no material impact on the Group’s financial
positions and performance for the current and
prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in
these consolidated financial statements.

The amendments clarify the definition of a
business and provide further guidance on how
to determine whether a transaction represents
a business combination. In addition, the
amendments introduce an optional “concentration
test” that permits a simplified assessment of
whether an acquired set of activities and assets
is an asset rather than business acquisition, when
substantially all of the fair value of the gross assets
acquired is concentrated in a single identifiable
asset or group of similar identifiable assets.

2.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

AN
ra

PSR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) 2 22020412 A31H 1 F /8 (B 5 B #5895+ YA RS T)
2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

The amendment provides a practical expedient
that allows a lessee to by-pass the need
to evaluate whether certain qualifying rent
concessions occurring as a direct consequence of
the COVID-19 pandemic (“COVID-19-related rent
concessions”) are lease modifications and, instead,
account for those rent concessions as if they were
not lease modifications.

The Group has elected to early adopt the
amendments and applies the practical expedient
to all qualifying COVID-19-related rent
concessions granted to the Group during the year.
Consequently, rent concessions received have
been accounted for as negative variable lease
payments recognised in profit or loss in the period
in which the event or condition that triggers
those payments occurred (see note 15). There is
no impact on the opening balance of equity at 1
January 2020.

In previous years, the Group’s leasehold land
and buildings were carried in the consolidated
statement of financial position at historical
cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses. The directors reassessed
the appropriateness of this accounting policy
during the year and concluded that by using
the revaluation model under HKAS 16, the
consolidated financial statements would provide
more appropriate and relevant information about
the Group's results and financial position.

Consequently, the Group changed its accounting
policies on leasehold land and buildings to follow
the revaluation model under HKAS 16 with
effective from 31 December 2020.

2.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

=
e

g ERRMEE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) & Z2020F 12531 H it F & (5 551595 - UA BRI TF)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. FESTHRE)
(Continued)
The change in accounting policy of leasehold HETHREFHOG TR RBHK
land and buildings from the cost model to AEXEFLAEHEXSRAA
the revaluation model has been accounted for B -
prospectively.
The effect of the changes in accounting policies to EHBREHHEEMBERERD
the consolidated financial statements is as follows: FEWMT:
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
20204 20194F
12A31H 12 H31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T AR T
Increase in fixed assets @ E & 10 329,305 -
Increase in deferred tax liabilities iR FE T IA & & AN 63,688 -
Increase in revaluation reserve EhREEEM 253,825 -
Increase in non-controlling interests IE 1% IR 7 25 15 A0 11,792 -

China NT Pharma Group Company Limited | Annual Report 2020

If the change in accounting policy for the
leasehold land and buildings carried at revalued
amounts was made since 1 January 2020, the
aggregate depreciation of leasehold land and
buildings for the year ended 31 December 2020
would have been increased from RMB12,966,000
to RMB33,969,000.

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the
Group. The Group controls an entity when it is
exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the entity and has the ability to
affect those returns through its power over the
entity. When assessing whether the Group has
power, only substantive rights (held by the Group
and other parties) are considered.

MEZREHESBARNEE L
MEFH K B2020F1H1H
#EE ok B 2020912 A318 1E
FENHEIHEEFNTESL
18 A R#12,966,0007TE NS
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) 2 22020412 A31H 1 F /8 (B 5 B #5895+ YA RS T)
2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into
the consolidated financial statements from the
date that control commences until the date that
control ceases. Intra-group balances, transactions
and cash flows and any unrealised profits arising
from intra-group transactions are eliminated in full
in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in the same way as
unrealised gains but only to the extent that there
is no evidence of impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in
a subsidiary not attributable directly or indirectly
to the Company, and in respect of which the
Group has not agreed any additional terms with
the holders of those interests which would result
in the Group as a whole having a contractual
obligation in respect of those interests that meets
the definition of a financial liability.

2.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A EIRERMETE (B)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) & Z2020F 12531 H it F & (5 551595 - UA BRI TF)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. FESHHEE)
(Continued)

Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position
within equity, separately from equity attributable
to the equity shareholders of the Company.
Non-controlling interests in the results of
the Group are presented on the face of the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income as an allocation of
the total profit or loss and total comprehensive
income for the year between non-controlling
interests and the equity shareholders of the
Company. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the equity shareholders
of the Company and to the non-controlling
interests even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance. Loans from
shareholders of non-controlling interests and
other contractual obligations towards these
holders are presented as financial liabilities in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

Changes in the Group's interests in a subsidiary
that do not result in a loss of control are
accounted for as equity transactions, whereby
adjustments are made to the amounts of
controlling and non-controlling interests within
consolidated equity to reflect the change in
relative interests, but no adjustments are made to
goodwill and no gain or loss is recognised.

China NT Pharma Group Company Limited | Annual Report 2020
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) 2 22020412 A31H 1 F /8 (B 5 B #5895+ YA RS T)

TESTBERE

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in
that subsidiary, with a resulting gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained
in that former subsidiary at the date when control
is lost is recognised at fair value and this amount is
regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of
a financial asset or, when appropriate, the cost on
initial recognition of an investment in an associate
or joint venture.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
an investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost
less impairment losses (note 2(j)(ii)), unless the
investment is classified as held for sale (or included
in a disposal group that is classified as held for
sale).

An associate is an entity in which the Group or
Company has significant influence, but not control
or joint control, over its management, including
participation in the financial and operating policy
decisions.

2.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) # 22020 12 31 H 1L F/E (B ZE#E B + WA RESHFR)

2.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

An investment in an associate is accounted for
in the consolidated financial statements under
the equity method, unless it is classified as held
for sale (or included in a disposal group that
is classified as held for sale). Under the equity
method, the investment is initially recorded at
cost, adjusted for any excess of the Group’s
share of the acquisition-date fair values of the
investee's identifiable net assets over the cost of
the investment (if any). Thereafter, the investment
is adjusted for the post acquisition change in the
Group's share of the investee’s net assets and any
impairment loss relating to the investment. At
each reporting date, the Group assesses whether
there is any objective evidence that the investment
is impaired. Any acquisition-date excess over cost,
the Group's share of the post-acquisition, post-tax
results of the investees and any impairment losses
for the year are recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, whereas the Group's
share of the post-acquisition post-tax items of
the investees’ other comprehensive income is
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income.

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its
interest in the associate, the Group's interest is
reduced to nil and recognition of further losses is
discontinued except to the extent that the Group
has incurred legal or constructive obligations
or made payments on behalf of the investee.
For this purpose, the Group’s interest is the
carrying amount of the investment under the
equity method, together with any other long-
term interests that in substance form part of the
Group’s net investment in the associate.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from
transactions between the Group and its associates
are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s
interest in the investee, except where unrealised
losses provide evidence of an impairment of
the asset transferred, in which case they are
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

If an investment in an associate becomes an
investment in a joint venture or vice versa, the
retained interest is not remeasured. Instead, the
investment continues to be accounted for under
the equity method.

In all other cases, when the Group ceases to
have significant influence over an associate, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest
in that investee, with a resulting gain or loss
being recognised in profit or loss. Any interest
retained in that former investee at the date when
significant influence is lost is recognised at fair
value and this amount is regarded as the fair value
on initial recognition of a financial asset.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in associates are stated at cost
less impairment losses (see note 2(j)(ii)), unless
classified as held for sale (or included in a disposal
group that is classified as held for sale).
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
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Effective from 1 January 2020, the Group can
elect to apply an optional concentration test, on
a transaction-by-transaction basis, that permits
a simplified assessment of whether an acquired
set of activities and assets is not a business.
The concentration test is met if substantially all
of the fair value of the gross assets acquired
is concentrated in a single identifiable asset or
group of similar identifiable assets. The gross
assets under assessment exclude cash and cash
equivalents, deferred tax assets, and goodwill
resulting from the effects of deferred tax liabilities.
If the concentration test is met, the set of activities
and assets is determined not to be a business and
no further assessment is needed.

When the Group acquires a group of assets and
liabilities that do not constitute a business, the
Group identifies and recognises the individual
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed
by allocating the purchase price first to investment
properties which are subsequently measured
under fair value model and financial assets/
financial liabilities at the respective fair values,
the remaining balance of the purchase price is
then allocated to the other identifiable assets and
liabilities on the basis of their relative fair values at
the date of purchase. Such a transaction does not
give rise to goodwill or bargain purchase gain.

2.

TR REE)

E20205F1 B1E#E - REEREEZ
REEXSRAATRENEDRE
A ST EN—EES R E
ERBWIEXEBKETETM -
METEANEE@EN N BEL
TREEPEE—A#AEEK
—HBEUEE  AFEETESR
H-FHNEELBEIEERS
RBEEEY  BETCHEEEN
MAREREEEZEMEEDN
BE - MEEEPRERNR Bl
BEBNEERET AT IEETRS
mEE— T -

EASEWRE -ETERELD
BEREBE AEEEEEKK
BEBEAREIEEZEEREE
SERmAE BRUEBERHKE
RWBEEHNBABRIAENEE
Hir @ pl EERBE - ARRI
K T 50 P UK 8 0 (B 1 BT GBI B EE
EEAENRE EBRXHLE
ELmBENZERERE RS -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

AN
ra

PSR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) 2 22020412 A31H 1 F /8 (B 5 B #5895+ YA RS T)
2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for
using the acquisition method. The consideration
transferred in a business combination is measured
at fair value, which is calculated as the sum of
the acquisition-date fair values of the assets
transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by
the Group to the former owners of the acquiree
and the equity interests issued by the Group in
exchange for control of the acquiree. Acquisition-
related costs are generally recognised in profit or
loss as incurred.

Except for certain recognition exemptions, the
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed
must meet the definitions of an asset and a
liability in the Framework for the Preparation and
Presentation of Financial Statements (replaced by
the Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting
issued in October 2010).

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets
acquired and the liabilities assumed are recognised
at their fair value, except that:

— deferred tax assets or liabilities and assets
and liabilities, related to employee benefit
arrangements are recognised and measured
in accordance with HKAS 12 Income
Taxes and HKAS 19 Employees Benefits
respectively;
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2.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

liabilities or equity instruments related
to share-based payment arrangements
of the acquiree or share-based payment
arrangements of the Group entered into to
replace share-based payment arrangements
of the acquiree are measured in accordance
with HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment at the
acquisition date;

assets (or disposal groups) that are classified
as held for sale in accordance with HKFRS
5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and
Discontinued Operations are measured in
accordance with that standard; and

lease liabilities are recognised and measured
at the present value of the remaining lease
payments (as defined in HKFRS 16) as if
the acquired leases were new leases at
the acquisition date, except for leases for
which (a) the lease term ends within 12
months of the acquisition date; or (b) the
underlying asset is of low value. Right-of-
use assets are recognised and measured
at the same amount as the relevant lease
liabilities, adjusted to reflect favourable
or unfavourable terms of the lease when
compared with market terms.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum
of the consideration transferred, the amount of
any non-controlling interests in the acquiree, and
the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held
equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over the net
amount of the identifiable assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed as at acquisition date. If, after
re-assessment, the net amount of the identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the
sum of the consideration transferred, the amount
of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree
and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously
held interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess
is recognised immediately in profit or loss as a
bargain purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present
ownership interests and entitle their holders to a
proportionate share of the relevant subsidiary’s
net assets in the event of liquidation are initially
measured at the non-controlling interests’
proportionate share of the recognised amounts
of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets or at fair
value. The choice of measurement basis is made
on a transaction-by-transaction basis. Other types
of non-controlling interests are measured at their
fair value.
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2.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

When the consideration transferred by the Group
in a business combination includes a contingent
consideration arrangement, the contingent
consideration is measured at its acquisition-date
fair value and included as part of the consideration
transferred in a business combination. Changes
in the fair value of the contingent consideration
that qualify as measurement period adjustments
are adjusted retrospectively. Measurement
period adjustments are adjustments that arise
from additional information obtained during the
“measurement period” (which cannot exceed one
year from the acquisition date) about facts and
circumstances that existed at the acquisition date.

The subsequent accounting for the contingent
consideration that do not qualify as measurement
period adjustments depends on how the
contingent consideration is classified. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured at subsequent reporting dates and
its subsequent settlement is accounted for within
equity. Contingent consideration that is classified
as an asset or a liability is remeasured to fair
value at subsequent reporting dates, with the
corresponding gain or loss being recognised in
profit or loss.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

When a business combination is achieved in
stages, the Group's previously held equity interest
in the acquiree is remeasured to fair value at the
acquisition date (i.e. the date when the Group
obtains control), and the resulting gain or loss,
if any, is recognised in profit or loss or other
comprehensive income, as appropriate. Amounts
arising from interests in the acquiree prior to
the acquisition date that have previously been
recognised in other comprehensive income and
measured under HKFRS 9 would be accounted
for on the same basis as would be required if the
Group had disposed directly of the previously held
equity interest.

If the initial accounting for a business combination
is incomplete by the end of the reporting period
in which the combination occurs, the Group
reports provisional amounts for the items for
which the accounting is incomplete. Those
provisional amounts are adjusted retrospectively
during the measurement period (see above), and
additional assets or liabilities are recognised, to
reflect new information obtained about facts and
circumstances that existed at the acquisition date
that, if known, would have affected the amounts
recognised at that date.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
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Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business
is carried at cost as established at the date of
acquisition of the business less accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill
is allocated to each of the Group’s cash-
generating units (or groups of cash-generating
units) that is expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination, which represent the
lowest level at which the goodwill is monitored
for internal management purposes and not larger
than an operating segment.

A cash-generating unit (or group of cash-
generating units) to which goodwill has been
allocated is tested for impairment annually or
more frequently whenever there is indication that
the unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising
on an acquisition in a reporting period, the cash-
generating unit (or group of cash-generating
units) to which goodwill has been allocated is
tested for impairment before the end of that
reporting period. If the recoverable amount is less
than its carrying amount, the impairment loss is
allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of
any goodwill and then to the other assets on a
pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of
each asset in the unit (or group of cash-generating
units).

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating
unit or any of the cash-generating unit within
the group of cash-generating units, the
attributable amount of goodwill is included in
the determination of the amount of profit or
loss on disposal. When the Group disposes of
an operation within the cash-generating unit
(or a cash-generating unit within a group of
cash-generating units), the amount of goodwill
disposed of is measured on the basis of the
relative values of the operation (or the cash-
generating unit) disposed of and the portion of
the cash-generating unit (or the group of cash-
generating units) retained.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

As described in note 2(c) above, the Group
changed its accounting policy on leasehold land
and buildings from cost model to the revaluation
model under HKAS 16 with effect from 31
December 2020. The change in accounting
policy on leasehold land and buildings has been
accounted for prospectively.

Leasehold land and buildings comprise mainly
factories and offices are stated at revalued
amount.

Revaluations are performed with sufficient
regularity to ensure that the carrying amount of
these assets does not differ materially from that
which would be determined using fair values at
the end of reporting period.

The following items of property, plant and
equipment, other than construction in progress,
are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
and impairment losses (note 2(j)(ii)):

—  right-of-use assets arising from leases over
leasehold properties where the Group is
not the registered owner of the property
interest; and

— items of plant and equipment, including
right-of-use assets arising from leases of
underlying plant and equipment (note 2(i)).
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
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Changes arising on the revaluation of leasehold
land and buildings for own use are dealt with in
other comprehensive income and are accumulated
separately in the revaluation reserve, except to
the extent that it reverses a revaluation decrease
of the same asset previously recognise in profit
or loss, in which case the increase is credited
to profit or loss to the extent of the decrease
previously charged. A decrease in the net carrying
amount arising on revaluation of leasehold land
and buildings is recognised in profit or loss to
the extent that it exceeds the balance, if any,
on the revaluation reserve relating to a previous
revaluation of that asset. On the subsequent sale
or retirement of a revalued asset, the attributable
revaluation surplus is transferred to retained
profits.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of
items of property, plant and equipment, less their
estimated residual value, if any, using the straight
line method over their estimated useful lives as
follows:

—  Plant and machinery 5-20 years

—  Leasehold improvements over the term

of lease

—  Furniture, fixtures and
office equipment 3-5 years
—  Motor vehicles 3-5 years

Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the cost
of the item is allocated on a reasonable basis
between the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Both the useful life of an asset and its
residual value, if any, are reviewed annually.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Gains or losses arising from the retirement
or disposal of an item of property, plant and
equipment are determined as the difference
between the net proceeds on disposal and the
carrying amount of the item and are recognised in
profit or loss on the date of retirement or disposal.

Construction in progress represents a building
under construction, which is stated at cost less
any impairment losses (note 2(j)(ii)), and is not
depreciated. Cost comprises the direct costs of
construction and capitalised borrowing costs
on related borrowed funds during the period
of construction. Construction in progress is
reclassified to the appropriate category of
property, plant and equipment when completed
and ready for use.

Intangible assets are not amortised while their
useful lives are assessed to be indefinite. Any
conclusion that the useful life of an intangible
asset is indefinite is reviewed annually to
determine whether events and circumstances
continue to support the indefinite useful life
assessment for that asset. If they do not, the
change in the useful life assessment from
indefinite to finite is accounted for prospectively
from the date of change and in accordance with
the policy for amortisation of intangible assets
with finite useful lives as set out in notes (iv) to
(viii) below.

2.

TR REE)

AmExRLENE  BMEMKE
HEMEEAZWRSERER IR
HEMSRIEFREZRBERRE
BZERET YRHREXLE
EREBREPER -

ERIEREEZET  BRAKR
{E o] B &5 18 51 B (BT =2 2())(i))
BETEHE KABRRENE
BERARZEDRHBREEES
MERELEEXRA - EETER
I MAERBERDBEYE
55 KR HyE E 2R A e

N 2 B E )R] R A AR A
RERY AZSFEVEESS
WHE o BRETEENAER
FHAERMNEINER 258
FRANBEZTHRBERAESE#
BXRZEENERBAIEBF
HAGT Ml o W DA S - BIRI(E
REPFHERERRERERY
¥ BB HERE T XM
(iv) Z (viii) T 8 B A R 7] £ f F
MEBEVEEBHERREAR -

FEHRE2020

165



166

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

AN
N

PSR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) & Z2020F 12531 H it F & (5 551595 - UA BRI TF)
2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
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As disclosed in note 16(a) to the
consolidated financial statements, the
Group has acquired the exclusive intellectual
property rights, marketing and distribution
rights associated with trademarks and
brand names for commercialisation of
Miacalcic branded injectable and nasal spray
pharmaceutical drugs which are used for
treatment of bone pains caused by osteolysis
and lower bone mass, osteoporosis,
Paget’s disease, hypercalcemia and reflex
sympathetic dystrophy syndrome in all
dosage forms (the “Miacalcic Injection” and
“Miacalcic Nasal Spray”) for an indefinite
period of time in the Mainland China and
certain other designated countries. Each of
Miacalcic Injection and Miacalcic Nasal Spray
is considered to have an indefinite useful
life, given the strength and durability of the
brand in treating the bone pains and level
of marketing support. The risk of market-
related factors causing a reduction in its
life is considered to be relatively low. Up to
date of approval of the financial statements,
management of the Group is not aware of
any material legal, regulatory, contractual,
competitive, economic or other factors
that could limit its useful life. Accordingly,
Miacalcic Injection and Miacalcic Nasal Spray
are not amortised and are tested annually
for impairment in accordance with note 2(j)

(ii).
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) 2 22020412 A31H 1 F /8 (B 5 B #5895+ YA RS T)
2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Club memberships represent the rights to
use the club facilities for an indefinite period
of time and are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost less
impairment losses (note 2(j)(ii)).

Expenditure on research activities,
undertaken with the prospect of gaining
new scientific or technical knowledge
and understanding, is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred.
Expenditure on development activities
(relating to the design and testing of new
or improved products) is capitalised under
the category of “product development in
progress” if, and only if, all of the following
have been demonstrated:

—  the technical feasibility of completing
the intangible asset so that it will be
available for use or sale;

— the intention to complete the
intangible asset and use or sell it;

— the ability to use or sell the intangible
asset;

— how the intangible asset will generate
probable future economic benefits;

— the availability of adequate technical,
financial and other resources to
complete the development and to use
or sell the intangible asset; and

2.

OB %%

E:

TESTBERE)

SERENERAAER
SRR AW R AR A B
75 7R S0 5% 12 B AN R R (B /B 1R

51| B (B £ 2()i))

% T BT B B Sk B AT A A
KR BMAETH RGN
XERELHEAER R
3 o FAEE 8 (R AT OB
ATERIBRERERH)
B ST ER AT PIA &A1
Emer  RIRBEPEMR]

DEBTNERL:

— EREFEECREAMA
A R Kt & RO B2 T 7]

T

— EREFEEXEMNL

HEZEENER:

— ERIHEXETLEE

) BE

— EBREEMSWFEER

BERY R R E A 25

— REBRRHOIM - H
TS E A B R R ST A
BAE AR EZETY

BE R

FEHRE2020

167



168

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

=
e

g ERRMEE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) & Z2020F 12531 H it F & (5 551595 - UA BRI TF)
2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

— the ability to measure reliably
the expenditure attributable to
the intangible asset during its
development.

Upon the commencement of the commercial
production of a product, the expenditure
on development activities is transferred
to “deferred development costs” and
amortised on a straight-line basis over the
period of its expected benefit. Research
and development costs comprise costs
that are directly attributable to research
and development activities or that can be
allocated on a reasonable basis to such
activities.

Deferred development costs that are
required by the Group are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position
at cost less accumulated amortisation and
impairment losses (note 2(j)(ii)). The value
in use model is used for the impairment
assessment by the management of the
Group.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) 2 22020412 A31H 1 F /8 (B 5 B #5895+ YA RS T)
2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Intellectual property rights (including the
acquired deferred development costs,
note 2(h)(iii) above) are carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation and impairment
losses (note 2(j)(ii)). Amortisation is charged
to profit or loss on a straight line basis over a
period of 3 years and 18.33 years.

Trademarks that are acquired by the Group
are stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position at cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses (note
2(j)(ii)). Amortisation of trademarks is
charged to profit or loss on a straight line
basis over a period of 10 years.

New medicine protection rights that are
acquired by the Group are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position
at cost less accumulated amortisation and
impairment losses (note 2(j)(ii)). Amortisation
of exclusive agency rights is charged to
profit or loss on a straight line basis over the
agency period ranging from 4 to 10 years.

Exclusive agency rights that are acquired by
the Group are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost less
accumulated amortisation and impairment
losses (note 2(j)(ii). Amortisation of exclusive
agency rights is charged to profit or loss on
a straight line basis over the agency period
ranging from 4 to 10 years.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
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Computer software that is acquired by
the Group is stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost less
accumulated amortisation and impairment
losses (note 2(j)(ii)). Computer software is
amortised over its estimated useful life of 5
to 10 years.

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses
whether the contract is, or contains, a lease. A
contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset for a period of time in exchange
for consideration. Control is conveyed where the
customer has both the right to direct the use of
the identified asset and to obtain substantially all
of the economic benefits from that use.

Where the contract contains lease component(s)
and non-lease component(s), the Group has
elected not to separate non-lease components
and accounts for each lease component and any
associated non-lease components as a single lease
component for all leases.

At the lease commencement date, the Group
recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability,
except for short-term leases that have a lease
term of 12 months or less and leases of low-value
assets. When the Group enters into a lease in
respect of a low-value asset, the Group decides
whether to capitalise the lease on a lease-by-lease
basis. The lease payments associated with those
leases which are not capitalised are recognised as
an expense on a systematic basis over the lease
term.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) 2 22020412 A31H 1 F /8 (B 5 B #5895+ YA RS T)

FESEBRE)

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease liability
is initially recognised at the present value of the
lease payments payable over the lease term,
discounted using the interest rate implicit in the
lease or, if that rate cannot be readily determined,
using a relevant incremental borrowing rate. After
initial recognition, the lease liability is measured at
amortised cost and interest expense is calculated
using the effective interest method. Variable lease
payments that do not depend on an index or rate
are not included in the measurement of the lease
liability and hence are charged to profit or loss in
the accounting period in which they are incurred.

The right-of-use asset recognised when a lease
is capitalised is initially measured at cost, which
comprises the initial amount of the lease liability
plus any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, and any initial direct costs
incurred. Where applicable, the cost of the right-
of-use assets also includes an estimate of costs
to dismantle and remove the underlying asset
or to restore the underlying asset or the site on
which it is located, discounted to their present
value, less any lease incentives received. The
right-of-use asset is subsequently stated at cost
less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses (see notes 2(g) and 2(j)ii)), except for the
following types of right-of-use asset:

—  right-of-use assets that meet the definition
of investment property are carried at fair
value; and

— right-of-use assets related to leasehold
land and buildings where the Group is the
registered owner of the leasehold interest
are carried at cost in accordance with note

2(g).
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
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The lease liability is remeasured when there is a
change in future lease payments arising from a
change in an index or rate, or there is a change in
the Group's estimate of the amount expected to
be payable under a residual value guarantee, or
there is a change arising from the reassessment
of whether the Group will be reasonably certain
to exercise a purchase, extension or termination
option. When the lease liability is remeasured in
this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to
the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset, or is
recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of
the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.

The lease liability is also remeasured when
there is a change in the scope of a lease or the
consideration for a lease that is not originally
provided for in the lease contract (“lease
modification”) that is not accounted for as a
separate lease. In this case the lease liability is
remeasured based on the revised lease payments
and lease term using a revised discount rate
at the effective date of the modification. The
only exceptions are any rent concessions which
arose as a direct consequence of the COVID-19
pandemic and which satisfied the conditions set
out in paragraph 46B of HKFRS 16 Leases. In such
cases, the Group took advantage of the practical
expedient set out in paragraph 46A of HKFRS 16
and recognised the change in consideration as if it
were not a lease modification.

In the consolidated statement of financial position,
the current portion of long-term lease liabilities
is determined as the present value of contractual
payments that are due to be settled within twelve
months after the reporting period.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) 2 22020412 A31H 1 F /8 (B 5 B #5895+ YA RS T)
2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. FESHHEE)

(Continued)

The Group presents right-of-use assets that do REBRMBERAERFH I
not meet the definition of investment property WMENEEITTATFEREE
in “property, plant and equipment” and presents EENERREEE  YEFIT
lease liabilities separately in the statement of HERE-

financial position.

The Group recognises a loss allowance REEE T 5 EB HRTES
for expected credit losses (ECLs) on the EEEBEBRNEBREE:
following items:

—  financial assets measured at amortised — REENKAGTENSH
cost (including cash and cash BEBREReMRS
equivalents, trade receivables and EEY  BHEWFHIE
other receivables); and R E A B FRIA) &

—  contract assets as defined in HKFRS — BAYBmEERZEIS
15. REENARNEE:

Other financial assets measured at fair value, EAREFENHEMEHE

including equity securities measured at EEEBEZRAALBI AEZ

FVTPL and equity securities designated at ZRAEFBERIER LAY

FVOCI (non-recycling), are not subject to the AEAM 2 E W = 2 RARFE 5F

ECL assessment. (hayegm) & A (S TR B s
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
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Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate
of credit losses. Credit losses are measured
as the present value of all expected cash
shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the
cash flows due to the Group in accordance
with the contract and the cash flows that
the Group expects to receive).

The expected cash shortfalls are discounted
using the following discount rates where the
effect of discounting is material:

—  fixed-rate financial assets, trade and
other receivables: effective interest
rate determined at initial recognition
or an approximation thereof; and

— variable-rate financial assets: current
effective interest rate.

The maximum period considered when
estimating ECLs is the maximum contractual
period over which the Group is exposed to
credit risk.

In measuring ECLs, the Group takes into
account reasonable and supportable
information that is available without undue
cost or effort. This includes information
about past events, current conditions and
forecasts of future economic conditions.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) 2 22020412 A31H 1 F /8 (B 5 B #5895+ YA RS T)
2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Measurement of ECLs (Continued)

ECLs are measured on either of the
following bases:

— 12-month ECLs: these are losses that
are expected to result from possible
default events within the 12 months
after the reporting period date; and

— lifetime ECLs: these are losses that are
expected to result from all possible
default events over the expected lives
of the items to which the ECL model
applies.

Loss allowances for trade receivables are
always measured at an amount equal to
lifetime ECLs. ECLs on these financial assets
are estimated using a provision matrix
based on the Group’s historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for factors that are
specific to the debtors and an assessment
of both the current and forecast general
economic conditions at the reporting date.

For all other financial instruments (including
pledged deposits and cash and cash
equivalents), the Group recognises a loss
allowance equal to 12-month ECLs unless
there has been a significant increase in
credit risk of the financial instrument since
initial recognition, in which case the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal
to lifetime ECLs.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For
credit exposures for which there has not
been a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition, ECLs are provided
for credit losses that result from default
events that are possible within the next
12-months (a 12-month ECL). For those
credit exposures for which there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, a loss allowance is required for
credit losses expected over the remaining life
of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of
the default (a lifetime ECL).

At the end of each reporting period, the
Group assesses whether the credit risk
on a financial instrument has increased
significantly since initial recognition.
When making the assessment, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on
the financial instrument as at the reporting
date with the risk of a default occurring on
the financial instrument as at the date of
initial recognition and considers reasonable
and supportable information that is available
without undue cost or effort, including
historical and forward-looking information.

In certain cases, the Group may also
consider a financial asset to be in default
when internal or external information
indicates that the Group is unlikely to receive
the outstanding contractual amounts in
full before taking into account any credit
enhancements held by the Group. A
financial asset is written off when there is
no reasonable expectation of recovering the
contractual cash flows.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) 2 22020412 A31H 1 F /8 (B 5 B #5895+ YA RS T)
2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

General approach (Continued)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subject
to impairment under the general approach
and they are classified within the following
stages for measurement of ECLs, except for
trade receivables which apply the simplified
approach as detailed below.

Stage 1 — Financial instruments for which
credit risk has not increased significantly
since initial recognition and for which the
loss allowance is measured at an amount
equal to 12-month ECLs

Stage 2 — Financial instruments for which
credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition but that are not
credit-impaired financial assets and for
which the loss allowance is measured at an
amount equal to lifetime ECLs

Stage 3 — Financial assets that are
credit-impaired at the reporting date
(but that are not purchased or originated
credit-impaired) and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal
to lifetime ECLs
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
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Simplified approach

For trade receivables that do not contain a
significant financing component or when
the Group applies the practical expedient
of not adjusting the effect of a significant
financing component, the Group applies
the simplified approach in calculating
ECLs. Under the simplified approach, the
Group does not track changes in credit risk,
but instead recognises a loss allowance
based on lifetime ECLs at the end of each
reporting period. The Group has established
a provision matrix that is based on its
historical credit loss experience, adjusted
for forward-looking factors specific to the
debtors and the economic environment.

Significant increases in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk of
a financial instrument has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the
Group compares the risk of default occurring
on the financial instrument assessed at the
reporting date with that assessed at the
date of initial recognition. In making this
reassessment, the Group considers that a
default event occurs when (i) the borrower
is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to
the Group in full, without recourse by the
Group to actions such as realising security
(if any is held); or (i) the financial asset is 90
days past due. The Group considers both
quantitative and qualitative information that
is reasonable and supportable, including
historical experience and forward-looking
information that is available without undue
cost or effort.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Significant increases in credit risk
(Continued)

In particular, the following information is
taken into account when assessing whether
credit risk has increased significantly since
initial recognition:

—  failure to make payments of principal
or interest on their contractually due
dates;

— an actual or expected significant
deterioration in a financial
instrument’s external or internal credit
rating (if available);

— an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the operating results
of the debtor; and

— existing or forecast changes in the
technological, market, economic
or legal environmental that have
a significant adverse effect on the
debtor’s ability to meet its obligation
to the Group.

Depending on the nature of the financial
instruments, the assessment of a significant
increase in credit risk is performed on either
an individual basis or a collective basis.
When the assessment is performed on a
collective basis, the financial instruments
are grouped based on share credit risk
characteristics, such as past due status and
credit risk ratings.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) & Z2020F 12531 H it F & (5 551595 - UA BRI TF)
2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.

(Continued)

Significant increases in credit risk

(Continued)

ECLs are measured at the end of each
reporting period to reflect changes in
the financial instrument’s credit risk since
initial recognition. Any change in the ECL
amount is recognised as an impairment
gain or loss in profit or loss. The Group
recognises an impairment gain or loss for all
financial instruments with a corresponding
adjustment to their carrying amount

through a loss allowance account.

Basis of calculation of interest income

Interest income recognised in accordance
with note 2(u)(iv) is calculated based on the
gross carrying amount of the financial asset
unless the financial asset is credit-impaired,
in which case interest income is calculated
based on the amortised cost (i.e. the gross
carrying amount less loss allowance) of the

financial asset.

At each reporting date, the Group assesses
whether a financial asset is credit-impaired.
A financial asset is credit-impaired when
one or more events that have a detrimental
impact on the estimated future cash flows
of the financial asset have occurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

=
)

g ERRMEE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) 2 22020412 A31H 1 F /8 (B 5 B #5895+ YA RS T)
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

2.

(Continued)

Basis of calculation of interest income
(Continued)

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-
impaired includes the following observable
events:

significant financial difficulties of the
debtor;

a breach of contract, such as a default
or past due event;

it becoming probable that the debtor
will enter into bankruptcy or other
financial reorganisation;

significant changes in the
technological, market, economic
or legal environment that have an
adverse effect on the debtor; or

the disappearance of an active market
for a security because of financial
difficulties of the issuer.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
GEMERRMEE (B)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) & Z2020F 12531 H it F & (5 551595 - UA BRI TF)

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Write off policy

The gross carrying amount of a financial
asset is written off (either partially or in
full) to the extent that there is no realistic
prospect of recovery. This is generally the
case when the Group determines that the
debtor does not have assets or sources of
income that could generate sufficient cash
flows to repay the amount subject to the
write-off.

Subsequent recoveries of an asset that was
previously written off are recognised as a
reversal of impairment in profit or loss in the
period in which the recovery occurs.

2.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) 2 22020412 A31H 1 F /8 (B 5 B #5895+ YA RS T)
2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Internal and external sources of information
are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period to identify indications that the
following assets may be impaired or, except
in the case of goodwill, an impairment loss
previously recognised no longer exists or
may have decreased:

— property, plant and equipment,
including right-of-use assets;

— intangible assets;
—  construction in progress;
— goodwill; and

— investments in subsidiaries and
associates in the Company'’s statement
of financial position.

If any such indication exists, the asset's
recoverable amount is estimated. In
addition, for goodwill, intangible assets that
are not yet available for use and intangible
assets that have indefinite useful lives, the
recoverable amount is estimated annually
whether or not there is any indication of
impairment.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) & Z2020F 12531 H it F & (5 551595 - UA BRI TF)
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

2.
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(Continued)

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is
the greater of its fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset. Where an
asset does not generate cash inflows
largely independent of those from
other assets, the recoverable amount
is determined for the smallest group
of assets that generates cash inflows
independently (i.e. a cash-generating
unit).

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in
profit or loss whenever the carrying
amount of an asset, or the cash-
generating unit to which it belongs,
exceeds its recoverable amount.
Impairment losses recognised in
respect of cash-generating units are
allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to
the cash-generating unit (or group of
units) and then, to reduce the carrying
amount of the other assets in the
unit (or group of units) on a pro rata
basis, except that the carrying value
of an asset will not be reduced below
its individual fair value less costs of
disposal (if measurable) or value in use
(if determinable).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
mEMBmRMET (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) 2 22020412 A31H 1 F /8 (B 5 B #5895+ YA RS T)
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.

2.

(Continued)

— Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than
goodwill, an impairment loss is
reversed if there has been a favourable
change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount. An
impairment loss in respect of goodwill
is not reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is
limited to the asset’s carrying amount
that would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised
in prior years. Reversals of impairment
losses are credited to profit or loss
in the year in which the reversals are
recognised.

Under the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange, the Group
is required to prepare an interim financial
report in compliance with HKAS 34, Interim
financial reporting, in respect of the first six
months of the financial year. At the end of
the interim period, the Group applies the
same impairment testing, recognition, and
reversal criteria as it would at the end of the
financial year (notes 2(j)(i) and (ii)).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) & Z2020F 12531 H it F & (5 551595 - UA BRI TF)

2.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Impairment losses recognised in an interim
period in respect of goodwill are not
reversed in a subsequent period. This is the
case even if no loss, or a smaller loss, would
have been recognised had the impairment
been assessed only at the end of the
financial year to which the interim period
relates.

Inventories are assets which are held for sale in
the ordinary course of business, in the process
of production for such sale or in the form of
materials or supplies to be consumed in the
production process or in the rendering of services.

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net
realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the weighted average
cost formula and comprises all costs of purchase,
costs of conversion and other costs incurred in
bringing the inventories to their present location
and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business less the estimated
costs of completion and the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount
of those inventories is recognised as an expense
in the period in which the related revenue is
recognised. The amount of any write-down of
inventories to net realisable value and all losses of
inventories are recognised as an expense in the
period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount
of any reversal of any write-down of inventories
is recognised as a reduction in the amount of
inventories recognised as an expense in the period
in which the reversal occurs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) 2 22020412 A31H 1 F /8 (B 5 B #5895+ YA RS T)
2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

A contract liability is recognised when the
customer pays non-refundable consideration
before the Group recognises the related revenue
(note (2)(u)(i)). A contract liability would also be
recognised if the Group has an unconditional right
to receive non-refundable consideration before
the Group recognises the related revenue. In such
cases, a corresponding receivable would also be
recognised (note (2)(m)).

A receivable is recognised when the Group has
an unconditional right to receive consideration.
A right to receive consideration is unconditional
if only the passage of time is required before
payment of that consideration is due. If revenue
has been recognised before the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration, the
amount is presented as a contract asset.

Receivables are stated at amortised cost using the
effective interest method less allowance for credit
losses (see note 2(j)(i)).
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) & Z2020F 12531 H it F & (5 551595 - UA BRI TF)
2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
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Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank
and on hand, demand deposits with banks and
other financial institutions, and short-term, highly
liquid investments readily convertible into known
amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, having been
within three months of maturity at acquisition.
Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand
and form an integral part of the Group’s cash
management are also included as a component of
cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of the
consolidated statement of cash flows. Cash and
cash equivalents are assessed for expected credit
losses (ECLs) in accordance with the policy set out
in note 2(j)(i).

Trade and other payables are initially recognised
at fair value and are subsequently stated at
amortised cost unless the effect of discounting
would be immaterial, in which case they are stated
at cost.

Interest-bearing borrowings are measured initially
at fair value less transaction costs. Subsequent
to initial recognition, interest-bearing borrowings
are stated at amortised cost using the effective
interest method. Interest expense is recognised in
accordance with the Group’s accounting policy for
borrowing costs (see note 2(w)).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) 2 22020412 A31H 1 F /8 (B 5 B #5895+ YA RS T)
2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual
leave, contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans and the cost of non-
monetary benefits are accrued in the year in
which the associated services are rendered
by employees. Where payment or settlement
is deferred and the effect would be material,
these amounts are stated at their present
values.

Contributions to appropriate local defined
contribution retirement schemes pursuant
to the relevant labour rules and regulations
in the PRC are recognised as an expense in
profit or loss as incurred.

The fair value of share options granted to
employees is recognised as an employee
cost with a corresponding increase in a
capital reserve within equity. The fair value
is measured at grant date using the binomial
lattice model, taking into account the terms
and conditions upon which the options
were granted. Where the employees have
to meet vesting conditions before becoming
unconditionally entitled to the options,
the total estimated fair value of the share
options is spread over the vesting period,
taking into account the probability that the
options will vest.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) & Z2020F 12531 H it F & (5 551595 - UA BRI TF)
2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
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During the vesting period, the number of
share options expected to vest is reviewed.
Any resulting adjustment to the cumulative
fair value recognised in prior years is
charged/credited to the profit or loss for
the year of the review, unless the original
employee expenses qualify for recognition
as an asset, with a corresponding
adjustment to the capital reserve. On
vesting date, the amount recognised as an
expense is adjusted to reflect the actual
number of share options that vest (with a
corresponding adjustment to the capital
reserve) except where forfeiture is only due
to not achieving vesting conditions that
relate to the market price of the Company’s
shares. The equity amount is recognised in
the capital reserve until either the option is
exercised (when it is included in share capital
for the shares issued) or the option expires
(when it is released directly to accumulated
losses).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) 2 22020412 A31H 1 F /8 (B 5 B #5895+ YA RS T)
2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

The Company operates a share award
scheme for the purpose of providing
incentive and rewards to eligible
participants. An employee share trust
is established and administered by an
independent trustee and is funded by
the Group’s cash contributions. The
considerations paid including any related
transaction costs by the Company to
purchase shares of the Company for the
Scheme are deducted from equity as an
employee share trust. The administrator
of the employee share trust purchases the
Company’s shares in the open market as
award shares to employees upon vesting.
Upon vesting of the award shares, the
corresponding amount in the shares
held under share award scheme will be
transferred to the relevant employees.

Termination benefits are recognised at the
earlier of when the Group can no longer
withdraw the offer of those benefits and
when it recognises restructuring costs
involving the payment of termination
benefits.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) & Z2020F 12531 H it F & (5 551595 - UA BRI TF)
2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
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Income tax for the year comprises current tax
and movements in deferred tax assets and
liabilities. Current tax and movements in deferred
tax assets and liabilities are recognised in profit
or loss except to the extent that they relate
to items recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case the
relevant amounts of tax are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the
taxable income for the year, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of
the reporting period, and any adjustment to tax
payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from
deductible and taxable temporary differences
respectively, being the differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and their tax bases.
Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax
loses and unused tax credits.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) 2 22020412 A31H 1 F /8 (B 5 B #5895+ YA RS T)
2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred
tax liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable
profits will be available against which the asset
can be utilised, are recognised. Future taxable
profits that may support the recognition of
deferred tax assets arising from deductible
temporary differences include those that will arise
from the reversal of existing taxable temporary
differences, provided that those differences relate
to the same taxation authority and the same
taxable entity, and are expected to reverse either
in the same period as the expected reversal of
the deductible temporary difference or in periods
into which a tax loss arising from the deferred tax
asset can be carried back or forward. The same
criteria are adopted when determining whether
existing taxable temporary differences support
the recognition of deferred tax assets arising
from unused tax losses and credits, that is, those
differences are taken into account if they relate to
the same taxation authority and the same taxable
entity, and are expected to reverse in a period,
or periods, in which the tax loss or credit can be
utilised.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
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The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred
tax assets and liabilities are those temporary
differences arising from goodwill not deductible
for tax purposes, the initial recognition of assets
or liabilities that affect neither accounting nor
taxable profit (provided they are not part of a
business combination), and temporary differences
relating to investments in subsidiaries to the
extent that, in the case of taxable differences, the
Group controls the timing of the reversal and it is
probable that the differences will not reverse in
the foreseeable future, or in the case of deductible
differences, unless it is probable that they will
reverse in the future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is
measured based on the expected manner of
realisation or settlement of the carrying amount of
the assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period
and is reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow the related tax benefit to be
utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to the
extent that it becomes probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available.
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AN
ra

PSR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) 2 22020412 A31H 1 F /8 (B 5 B #5895+ YA RS T)
2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Additional income taxes that arise from the
distribution of dividends are recognised when the
liability to pay the related dividends is recognised.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances,
and movements therein, are presented separately
from each other and are not offset. Current tax
assets are offset against current tax liabilities, and
deferred tax assets against deferred tax liabilities,
if the Company or the Group has the legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the following
additional conditions are met:

(i) in the case of current tax assets and
liabilities, the Company or the Group
intends either to settle on a net basis, or
to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously; or

(i) in the case of deferred tax assets and
liabilities, if they relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority on
either:

—  the same taxable entity; or

— different taxable entities, which, in
each future period in which significant
amounts of deferred tax liabilities or
assets are expected to be settled or
recovered, intend to realise the current
tax assets and settle the current tax
liabilities on a net basis or realise and
settle simultaneously.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) & Z2020F 12531 H it F & (5 551595 - UA BRI TF)
2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
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Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
legal or constructive obligation arising as a result
of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made.
Where the time value of money is material,
provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required, or the amount
cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is
disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote. Possible obligations, whose existence
will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future events are
also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
recognised when a group entity becomes a party
to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
All regular way purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognised and derecognised on a
trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales
are purchases or sales of financial assets that
require delivery of assets within the time frame
established by regulation or convention in the
market place.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) 2 22020412 A31H 1 F /8 (B 5 B #5895+ YA RS T)
2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value except for trade receivables
arising from contracts with customers which are
initially measured in accordance with HKFRS 15.
Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and
financial liabilities (other than financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL"))
are added to or deducted from the fair value
of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction
costs directly attributable to the acquisition of
financial assets or financial liabilities at FVTPL are
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset
or financial liability and of allocating interest
income and interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
and payments (including all fees and points paid
or received that form an integral part of the
effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life
of the financial asset or financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) & Z2020F 12531 H it F & (5 551595 - UA BRI TF)
2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
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Classification and subsequent
measurement of financial assets

Financial assets that meet the following
conditions are subsequently measured at
amortised cost:

— the financial asset is held within a
business model whose objective is to
collect contractual cash flows; and

— the contractual terms give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently
measured at FVTPL, except that at the
date of initial application of HKFRS 9/initial
recognition of a financial asset the Group
may irrevocably elect to present subsequent
changes in fair value of an equity investment
in other comprehensive income if that equity
investment is neither held for trading nor
contingent consideration recognised by an
acquirer in a business combination to which
HKFRS 3 Business Combinations applies.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
GREMEmRMEE (B)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) 2 22020412 A31H 1 F /8 (B 5 B #5895+ YA RS T)

TESTBERE)

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.
(Continued)

Classification and subsequent
measurement of financial assets
(Continued)

A financial asset is held for trading if:

— it has been acquired principally for the
purpose of selling in the near term; or

— on initial recognition it is a part of
a portfolio of identified financial
instruments that the Group manages
together and has a recent actual
pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

— it is a derivative that is not designated
and effective as a hedging instrument.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) & Z2020F 12531 H it F & (5 551595 - UA BRI TF)
2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.

(Continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria
for being measured at amortised cost
or FVTOCI or designated as FVTOCI are

measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured
at fair value at the end of each reporting
period, with any fair value gains or losses
recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or
loss recognised in profit or loss includes any
dividend or interest earned on the financial
asset and is presented as the “change in fair
value of financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss” in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive

income.

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified
as either financial liabilities or as equity
in accordance with the substance of
the contractual arrangements and the
definitions of a financial liability and an

equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that
evidences a residual interest in the assets of
an entity after deducting all of its liabilities.
Equity instruments issued by the Group are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of

direct issue costs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
GREMEmRMEE (B)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) 2 22020412 A31H 1 F /8 (B 5 B #5895+ YA RS T)

TESTBERE)

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.
(Continued)

Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method or at FVTPL.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL
when the financial liability is either held for
trading or it is designated as at FVTPL.

A financial liability is held for trading if:

— it has been acquired principally for the
purpose of repurchasing it in the near
term; or

— on initial recognition it is a part of
a portfolio of identified financial
instruments that the Group manages
together and has a recent actual
pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

— itis a derivative, except for a derivative
that is a financial guarantee contract
or a designated and effective hedging
instrument.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e BwRME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) & Z2020F 12531 H it F & (5 551595 - UA BRI TF)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.
(Continued)

Financial liabilities at FVTPL (Continued)

A financial liability other than a financial
liability held for trading may be designated
as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if:

— such designation eliminates or
significantly reduces a measurement or
recognition inconsistency that would
otherwise arise; or

— the financial liability forms part of a
group of financial assets or financial
liabilities or both, which is managed
and its performance is evaluated
on a fair value basis, in accordance
with the Group’s documented risk
management or investment strategy,
and information about the grouping is
provided internally on that basis; or

— it forms part of a contract containing
one or more embedded derivatives,
and HKFRS 9 permits the entire
combined contract to be designated as
at FVTPL.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) 2 22020412 A31H 1 F /8 (B 5 B #5895+ YA RS T)
2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial liabilities at FVTPL (Continued)

For financial liabilities that are designated
as at FVTPL, the amount of change in
the fair value of the financial liability
that is attributable to changes in the
credit risk of that liability is recognised in
other comprehensive income, unless the
recognition of the effects of changes in the
liability’s credit risk in other comprehensive
income would create or enlarge an
accounting mismatch in profit or loss. For
financial liabilities that contain embedded
derivatives, such as derivative financial
instruments, the changes in fair value of
derivative financial instruments are excluded
in determining the amount to be presented
in other comprehensive income. Changes in
fair value attributable to a financial liability’s
credit risk that are recognised in other
comprehensive income are not subsequently
reclassified to profit or loss; instead, they
are transferred to accumulated losses upon
derecognition of the financial liability.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities (including trade and
other payables, amounts due to related
companies, a director and non-controlling
shareholders, loans from a related company
and non-controlling shareholders, rent and
other deposits, bank and other borrowings,
debt component of convertible bonds
and interest payables) are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e EEmRMEE (8)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) & Z2020F 12531 H it F & (5 551595 - UA BRI TF)
2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. FESFHE(E)

(Continued)

Convertible bond

A conversion option that will be settled
other than by the exchange of a fixed
amount of cash or another financial asset
for a fixed number of the Group’s own
equity instruments is a conversion option
derivative.

An early redemption option provides the
Group to redeem its convertible bond before
the maturity date at principal amount is an
early redemption option derivative.

At the date of issue, both the debt
component and derivative component are
recognised at fair value. In subsequent
periods, the debt component of the
convertible bond is carried at amortised cost
using the effective interest method. The
derivative component is measured at fair
value with changes in fair value recognised
in profit or loss.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair
value at the date when derivative contracts
are entered into and are subsequently
remeasured to their fair values at the end of
the reporting period. The resulting gain or
loss is recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) 2 22020412 A31H 1 F /8 (B 5 B #5895+ YA RS T)
2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Embedded derivatives

Derivatives embedded in hybrid contracts
that contain financial asset hosts within
the scope of HKFRS 9 are not separated.
The entire hybrid contract is classified
and subsequently measured in its entirety
as either amortised cost or fair value as
appropriate.

Derivatives embedded in non-derivative
host contracts that are not financial assets
within the scope of HKFRS 9 are treated as
separate derivatives when they meet the
definition of a derivative, their risks and
characteristics are not closely related to
those of the host contracts and the host
contracts are not measured at FVTPL.

Generally, multiple embedded derivatives
in a single instrument that are separated
from the host contracts are treated as a
single compound embedded derivative
unless those derivatives relate to different
risk exposures and are readily separable and
independent of each other.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) & Z2020F 12531 H it F & (5 551595 - UA BRI TF)
2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
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Redeemable convertible preference
shares that contain an equity
component

The component parts of the redeemable
convertible preference shares are classified
separately as financial liability and equity
in accordance with the substance of
the contractual arrangements and the
definitions of a financial liability and an
equity instrument. A conversion option that
will be settled by the exchange of a fixed
amount of cash or another financial asset
for a fixed number of the Company’s own
equity instruments is an equity instrument.

At the date of issue, the fair value of
the liability component (including any
embedded non-equity derivatives features)
is estimated by measuring the fair value
of similar liability that does not have an
associated equity component.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

r

B BmRME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) 2 22020412 A31H 1 F /8 (B 5 B #5895+ YA RS T)

TESHBER(E)

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Redeemable convertible preference
shares that contain an equity
component (Continued)

A conversion option classified as equity is
determined by deducting the fair value of
the liability component from the fair value of
the compound instrument as a whole at the
issue date. This is recognised and included
in equity, net of income tax effects, and is
not subsequently remeasured. In addition,
the conversion option classified as equity will
remain in equity until the conversion option
is exercised, in which case, the balance
recognised in equity will be transferred to
share premium and share capital. Where
the conversion option remains unexercised
at the maturity date of the convertible
preference shares, the balance remained
in equity. No gain or loss is recognised in
profit or loss upon exercise of the conversion
option.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue
of the redeemable convertible preference
shares are allocated to the liability and
equity components in proportion to the
allocation of the gross proceeds. Transaction
costs relating to the equity component
are charged directly to equity. Transaction
costs relating to the liability component
are included in the carrying amount of the
liability portion.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) & Z2020F 12531 H it F & (5 551595 - UA BRI TF)
2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
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Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities
when, and only when, the Group’s
obligations are discharged, cancelled or
have expired. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid
and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

The Group accounts for an exchange
with a lender of a financial liability
with substantially different terms as an
extinguishment of the original financial
liability and the recognition of a new
financial liability. A substantial modification
of the terms of an existing financial liability
or a part of it (whether or not attributable
to the financial difficulty of the Group) is
accounted for as an extinguishment of the
original financial liability and the recognition
of a new financial liability.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) 2 22020412 A31H 1 F /8 (B 5 B #5895+ YA RS T)
2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Derecognition of financial liabilities
(Continued)

The Group considers that the terms are
substantially different if the discounted
present value of the cash flows under the
new terms, including any fees paid net of
any fees received and discounted using the
original effective interest rate, is at least
10 per cent different from the discounted
present value of the remaining cash flows
of the original financial liability. Accordingly,
such exchange of debt instruments or
modification of terms is accounted for as an
extinguishment, any costs or fees incurred
are recognised as part of the gain or loss
on the extinguishment. The exchange or
modification is considered as non-substantial
modification when such difference is less
than 10 per cent.

Income is classified by the Group as revenue when
it arises from the sale of goods or the provision
of services in the ordinary course of the Group’s
business.

Revenue is recognised when control over a
product or service is transferred to the customer
at the amount of promised consideration to which
the Group is expected to be entitled, excluding
those amounts collected on behalf of third parties.
Revenue represented the sales value of goods sold
less returns, discounts and value added tax.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.

(Continued)

Further details of the Group’s revenue and other
income recognition policies are as follows:

Revenue is recognised when control of
the goods has transferred, being when
the goods have been shipped to the
customer’s specific locations (delivery).
Following delivery, the customer has full
discretion over the manner of distribution
and price to sell the goods, has the primary
responsibilities when selling the goods
and bears the risks of obsolescence and
loss in relation to the goods. A receivable
is recognised by the Group when the
goods are delivered to the customer
as this represents the point of time at
which the right to consideration becomes
unconditional, as only the passage of time is

required before payment is due.

The only performance obligation of the
contracts with customers is the provision
of pharmaceutical products ordered by the
customers and this performance obligation

is satisfied at a point of time.

There is no warranty clause in the contracts

with customers.

Sub-licensing fee income is recognised on
an accruals basis and in accordance with the

terms of the relevant agreement.

China NT Pharma Group Company Limited
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) 2 22020412 A31H 1 F /8 (B 5 B #5895+ YA RS T)

TESHBER(E)

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Government grants and subsidies are
recognised in the statement of financial
position initially when there is reasonable
assurance that they will be received and that
the Group will comply with the conditions
attaching to them. Government grants and
subsidies that compensate the Group for
expenses incurred are recognised as income
in profit or loss on a systematic basis in the
same periods in which the expenses are
incurred. Government grants and subsidies
that compensate the Group for the cost of
an asset are deducted from the carrying
amount of the asset and consequently are
effectively recognised in profit or loss over
the useful life of the asset by way of reduced
depreciation expense.

Interest income is recognised as it accrues
using the effective interest method.

ltems included in the financial statements
of each entity in the Group are measured
using the currency that best reflects the
economic substance of the underlying
events and circumstances relevant to that
entity (“functional currency”). The functional
currency of the Company and its subsidiaries
outside Mainland China is Hong Kong
dollars and the functional currency of the
subsidiaries in Mainland China is Renminbi.
The financial statements are presented in
Renminbi (“presentation currency”).
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) & Z2020F 12531 H it F & (5 551595 - UA BRI TF)
2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

China NT Pharma Group Company Limited | Annual Report 2020

Foreign currency transactions during the
year are translated at the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are translated at the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the end
of the reporting period. Exchange gains
and losses are recognised in profit or loss,
except those arising from foreign currency
borrowings used to hedge a net investment
in a foreign operation which are recognised
in other comprehensive income.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities
measured in terms of historical cost in
a foreign currency are translated using
the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
transaction dates. The transaction date is
the date on which the Company initially
recognises such non-monetary assets or
liabilities. Non-monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies stated at
fair value are translated using the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair
value was measured.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) 2 22020412 A31H 1 F /8 (B 5 B #5895+ YA RS T)
2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

The results of operations outside Mainland
China are translated into Renminbi at the
exchange rates approximating the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the dates of the
transactions. Statement of financial position
items are translated into Renminbi at the
closing foreign exchange rates at the end
of the reporting period. The resulting
exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated
separately in equity in the exchange reserve.

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e.
a disposal of the Group’s entire interest in
a foreign operation, or a disposal involving
loss of control over a subsidiary that includes
a foreign operation, or a partial disposal
of an interest in an associate that includes
a foreign operation of which the retained
interest becomes a financial asset), all of the
exchange differences accumulated in equity
in respect of that operation attributable to
the owners of the Company are reclassified
to profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) & Z2020F 12531 H it F & (5 551595 - UA BRI TF)
2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
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Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition, construction or production of an
asset which necessarily takes a substantial period
of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are
capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. Other
borrowing costs are expensed in the period in
which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of
the cost of a qualifying asset commences when
expenditure for the asset is being incurred,
borrowing costs are being incurred and activities
that are necessary to prepare the asset for its
intended use or sale are in progress. Capitalisation
of borrowing costs is suspended or ceases when
substantially all the activities necessary to prepare
the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are
interrupted or complete.

Expenditure on research activities is recognised
as an expense in the year in which it is incurred.
Expenditure on development expenditure is
capitalised if the product or process is technically
and commercially feasible and the Group has
sufficient resources and the intention to complete
development.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) 2 22020412 A31H 1 F /8 (B 5 B #5895+ YA RS T)
2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

A non-current asset (or disposal group)
is classified as held for sale if it is highly
probable that its carrying amount will be
recovered through a sale transaction rather
than through continuing use and the asset
(or disposal group) is available for sale in
its present condition. A disposal group
is a group of assets to be disposed of
together as a group in a single transaction,
and liabilities directly associated with
those assets that will be transferred in the
transaction.

When the Group is committed to a sale plan
involving loss of control of a subsidiary, all
the assets and liabilities of that subsidiary
are classified as held for sale when the
above criteria for classification as held for
sale are met, regardless of whether the
Group will retain a non-controlling interest
in the subsidiary after the sale.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) & Z2020F 12531 H it F & (5 551595 - UA BRI TF)

2.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Immediately before classification as held
for sale, the measurement of the non-
current assets (and all individual assets and
liabilities in a disposal group) is brought up-
to-date in accordance with the accounting
policies before the classification. Then, on
initial classification as held for sale and until
disposal, the non-current assets (except
for certain assets as explained below), or
disposal groups, are recognised at the lower
of their carrying amount and fair value less
costs to sell. The principal exceptions to this
measurement policy so far as the financial
statements of the Group and the Company
are concerned are deferred tax assets,
assets arising from employee benefits,
financial assets (other than investments in
subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures)
and investment properties. These assets,
even if held for sale, would continue to be
measured in accordance with the policies set
out elsewhere in note 2.

Impairment losses on initial classification
as held for sale, and on subsequent
remeasurement while held for sale, are
recognised in profit or loss. As long as a
non-current asset is classified as held for
sale, or is included in a disposal group that
is classified as held for sale, the non-current
asset is not depreciated or amortised.
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TESHBER(E)

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

A discontinued operation is a component
of the Group’s business, the operations
and cash flows of which can be clearly
distinguished from the rest of the Group and
which represents a separate major line of
business or geographical area of operations,
or is part of a single co-ordinated plan to
dispose of a separate major line of business
or geographical area of operations, or is a
subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to
resale.

Classification as a discontinued operation
occurs upon disposal or when the operation
meets the criteria to be classified as held for
sale (see (i) above), if earlier. It also occurs if
the operation is abandoned.

Where an operation is classified as
discontinued, a single amount is presented
on the face of the statement of profit or
loss, which comprises:

— the post-tax profit or loss of the
discontinued operation; and

— the post-tax gain or loss recognised
on the measurement to fair value less
costs to sell, or on the disposal, of the
assets or disposal group(s) constituting
the discontinued operation.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) & Z2020F 12531 H it F & (5 551595 - UA BRI TF)

TESTBERE)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.
(Continued)

(@ A person, or a close member of that
person’s family, is related to the Group if
that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the
Group;

(i) has significant influence over the
Group; or

(iii) is @ member of the key management
personnel of the Group or the Group’s
parent.

(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of
the following conditions applies:

(i)  The entity and the Group are members
of the same group (which means that
each parent, subsidiary and fellow
subsidiary is related to the others).

(i)  One entity is an associate or joint
venture of the other entity (or an
associate or joint venture of a member
of a group of which the other entity is
a member).

(iii)  Both entities are joint ventures of the
same third-party.
(iv)  One entity is a joint venture of a

third entity and the other entity is an
associate of the third entity.

China NT Pharma Group Company Limited | Annual Report 2020
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) 2 22020412 A31H 1 F /8 (B 5 B #5895+ YA RS T)

FESHTHEE)

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.
(Continued)

(b)  (Continued)

(vy  The entity is a post-employment
benefit plan for the benefit of
employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group.

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly-
control led by a person identified in

(a).

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has
significant influence over the entity or
is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity).

(viii) The entity, or any member of a
group of which it is a part, provides
management personnel services to the
Group or the Group's parent.

Close members of the family of a person are
those family members who may be expected to
influence, or be influenced by, that person in their
dealings with the entity.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) & Z2020F 12531 H it F & (5 551595 - UA BRI TF)

2.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Operating segments, and the amounts of
each segment item reported in the financial
statements, are identified from the financial
information provided regularly to the Group’s
most senior executive management for the
purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing
the performance of, the Group’s various lines of
business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless
the segments have similar economic characteristics
and are similar in respect of the nature of products
and services, the nature of production processes,
the type or class of customers, the methods used
to distribute the products or provide the services,
and the nature of the regulatory environment.
Operating segments which are not individually
material may be aggregated if they share a
majority of these criteria.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) 2 22020412 A31H 1 F /8 (B 5 B #5895+ YA RS T)
3. ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

The key assumptions concerning the future and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are
described below.

If circumstances indicate that the carrying value
of an asset may not be recoverable, the asset may
be considered “impaired”, and an impairment loss
may be recognised in profit or loss. The carrying
amounts of assets are reviewed periodically in
order to assess whether the recoverable amounts
have declined below the carrying amounts.
These assets are tested for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that
their recorded carrying amounts may not be
recoverable.

When such a decline has occurred, the carrying
amount is reduced to recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the greater of the fair
value less costs of disposal and value in use. In
determining the value in use, expected cash flows
to be generated by the asset are discounted to
their present value at the appropriate pre-tax
discount rates that reflect the specific risks of the
related non-current assets. Estimation of future
cash flows requires significant judgement relating
to the future level of sales volume, sales revenue
and amount of operating costs. The Group uses
all readily available information in determining
an amount that is a reasonable approximation of
recoverable amount, including estimates based on
reasonable and supportable assumptions relating
to projections of sales volumes, sales revenue and
amount of operating costs.

At 31 December 2020, as disclosed in note 16(e)
below, management of the Group conducted the
impairment assessment test, using the following
assumptions, on cash generating units (“CGUs")
to which the Group’s intangible assets, being
intellectual property rights of Xi Di Ke and product
development in progress relating to MDS was
allocated:

— Intellectual property rights of Xi Di Ke and
product development in progress relating to
MDS: pre-tax discount rate at 21.93% and
expected growth rate of 3% beyond five
years.
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3. ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)
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The above discount rate was determined based
on the weighted average cost of capital of the
Company which also reflected the specific risks
of the respective CGUs and the above growth
rates was not to exceed the average long-term
growth rate for the relevant industry growth rate
for the business of the respective CGUs. Based
on the impairment assessment tests performed,
the recoverable amounts of the relevant CGUs,
to which the intellectual property rights of Xi Di
Ke and product development in progress relating
to MDS were allocated, exceeded their respective
carrying amounts and as such, no impairment on
the carrying amounts of the intellectual property
rights of Xi Di Ke and product development
in progress relating to MDS were considered
necessary at 31 December 2020.

For the purpose of sensitivity analysis on the
potential possible downside effects on the above
impairment assessment test on carrying amounts
of the intellectual property rights of Xi Di Ke
and product development in progress relating
to MDS, had the above pre-tax discount rate
been increased by 1% or the above growth rate
decreased by 3% points in the forecast period,
no impairment was required in these scenarios on
their respective carrying amounts at 31 December
2020.

The management of the Group is optimistic on
completing clinical trial phase Il and Ill, being the
prerequisite for obtaining the certificates of the
Group’s new MDS products to be approved by
the National Medical Products Administration (the
“NMPA"), and that the Group can have necessary
funds for carrying on the development work
relating to MDS before obtaining the approval
from the NMPA for commercialisation of MDS
products by the Group.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) 2 22020412 A31H 1 F /8 (B 5 B #5895+ YA RS T)

3.

ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated
or amortised on a straight-line basis over
their estimated useful lives, after taking into
account their estimated residual values. Interest
in leasehold land held for own use under
operating lease is amortised over the lease term
on a straight-line basis. The Group reviews the
estimated useful lives of the assets regularly in
order to determine the amount of depreciation
and amortisation expense to be recorded during
any reporting period. The useful lives are based
on the Group’s historical experience with similar
assets and taking into account anticipated
technological changes. The depreciation expense
for future periods is adjusted if there are
significant changes from previous estimates.

At 31 December 2020, leasehold land and
buildings held for own use were revalued based
on the valuation performed by independent
professional valuers. The determination of the
fair value involves certain assumptions of market
conditions which are set out in note 15(b).

Management has exercised their judgement
and are satisfied that the method of valuation
is reflective of the current market conditions.
Management has performed internal assessment
on the risks of change in macroeconomic
environment through performing sensitive analysis
in relation to the Group’s leasehold land and
buildings.

If there was any significant changes in the
assumptions for the valuation on the leasehold
land and buildings, the carrying amounts of the
leasehold land and buildings would be significant
different.

3.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

=
e

g ERRMEE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) & Z2020F 12531 H it F & (5 551595 - UA BRI TF)
3. ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND

JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

China NT Pharma Group Company Limited | Annual Report 2020

The intangible assets with definite useful lives
are amortised on a straight-line basis over
the estimated useful lives. The management
determines the estimated useful life and basis
for amortisation taking into account factors
including but not limited to, contractual terms of
respective contracts, the expected usage of the
assets by the Group based on past experience,
technical obsolescence arising from changes or
improvements in production or from a change
in the market demand for the products of the
assets. The estimation of the useful life and basis
for amortisation is a matter of judgment based
on the experience of the Group. Management
reviews the useful life and basis for amortisation
of intangible assets annually and, if expectations
are significantly different from previous estimates
of useful economics life, the amortisation rate for
future periods will be adjusted accordingly.

Had different amortisation rates been used to
calculate the amortisation of the intangible assets,
the Group’s result of operations and financial
position could be materially different.

3.

2ot fh 5t H E (&)

EERACEAFR BT EER
Bt AE AR A B AR E -
EEEETEMHAAIERFHLE
HEE ZRZHEAEEEETR
REBAENZANER A& H
ERNBERREZRETEEZAY
Rk - B4 E B B 5l B
MeRXAEAMSHAEEEZE
KK E - AIERF A
AR B EETDENANE B LR
MmEm 2 #E - EEEESFRE
BREAEZAERFHREHEE
% WIEBHREANNBEMG
AEREEFH - ARKHBEZ
BHXKERALTAHE -

HEA TR EE AR R E
EZBE AEEZEERER
MBARABEHIRERNZH -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) 2 22020412 A31H 1 F /8 (B 5 B #5895+ YA RS T)
3. ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND

JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business,
less estimated costs to completion and selling
expenses. These estimates are based on the
current market condition and the historical
experience of manufacturing and selling products
of a similar nature.

Net realisable value could change significantly
as a result of changes in customer preferences
and competitor actions in response to market
conditions. Management reassesses these
estimates at the end of each reporting period.

The Group estimates the loss allowance for
trade receivables by assessing the lifetime
expected credit losses (ECLs). This requires
the use of estimates and judgements.
Lifetime ECLs on trade receivables are
based on the Group’s historic credit loss
experiences, adjusted for factors that are
specific to the debtors and an assessment
of both the current and forecast of general
economic conditions at the end of reporting
period. Where the estimation is different
from the previous estimate, such difference
will affect the carrying amounts of trade
receivables and thus the impairment loss
in the period in which such estimate is
changed. The Group keeps assessing the
expected credit loss of trade receivables
during their expected lives.

3.

OB %%

E:

2ot fh 5t H E (&)

FEMAERFERNATEES
@R R e fh AT & EOR S FT TR
MR AR HER - ZEMHatTD
AR B R A B N 3H S EUE
ENERMNBELERSKE -

ARRFETEEESETRE
B 8% T E I T 5 3R T
DL REARD - SRERE
161 3 45 29 o 65 T 4T 5 SR S 5 o

AEEBBFEERHERE
BEERMGEEZEWHIA
MEBERE EREEEE
AT MAE - B 5 R
RENEHEHREEERE
RAEBHNBEEEEEL
BREE TRTFEBANE
BRARARERERRNE
Al R G 5T R R BB
ZAHEINAGE R o fWfhEHAE
RIRFERTHITER - FTE £ K
EZRKTEEHRUFIAN
RHEDER[RFELEZHE
HMWBEER AKEER
2 WA A 5 F AR
BALEBRBEEER -

FEHRE2020

225



226

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) # 22020 12 31 H 1L F/E (B ZE#E B + WA RESHFR)
3. ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

12-month ECLs on consideration receivable
arising from the disposal of NT International,
as referred to in note 37, is assessed. During
the year ended 31 December 2020, the
Group received RMB540,000,000 out of
RMB900,000,000 from Beijing Kangchen.
The balance of the consideration receivable
of RMB360,000,000 was not yet due
at 31 December 2020, as the condition
regarding the change of registration of
the marketing rights in Mainland China
and Hong Kong were not yet completed
at 31 December 2020. Management of
the Group considered that there would
not be any difficulties in the registration of
the marketing rights relating to Miacalcic
Injection and Miacalcic Nasal Spray in
favour of NT International, which is wholly-
owned by Beijing Kangchen. Management
of the Group have considered that the
credit risk of the remaining consideration
receivable from Beijing Kangchen has
not been significantly increased at 31
December 2020. Management of the
Group also obtained and examined the
valuation report for Miacalcic business of
NT International, which is wholly-owned
by Beijing Kangchen, at 31 December 2020
performed by an independent professional
valuer with qualifications and recent
experiences in valuing similar assets. Based
on the assessment at 31 December 2020,
management of the Group concluded
that no allowance for 12-month ECLs on
consideration receivable is required.

The Company is carrying out its operating
activities and making management decisions
in Hong Kong and has significant degree of
autonomy from its foreign subsidiaries in the way
its business is managed. Most of the transactions
and events of the Company are denominated in

3.
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Hong Kong dollars. In the opinion of the directors
of the Company, the functional currency of the

Company is Hong Kong dollars.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) 2 22020412 A31H 1 F /8 (B 5 B #5895+ YA RS T)
3. ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND

JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

The Group is subject to corporate income taxes in
the Mainland China and Hong Kong. Significant
judgements are required in determining the
provision for income taxes. There are many
transactions and calculations for which the
ultimate determination is uncertain during the
ordinary course of business. Where the final
tax outcome of these matters is different from
the amounts that were initially recorded, such
difference will impact the income tax and
deferred tax provision in the year in which such
determination is made.

The Group assesses whether there are any
indicators of impairment for interest in NT
Biopharmaceuticals Jiangsu Co., Ltd. (“NT
Biopharmaceuticals”) at the end of each
reporting period. As disclosed in note 18(ii) to the
consolidated financial statements, during the year
ended 31 December 2020, NT Biopharmaceuticals
incurred a loss of approximately RMB21,036,000
(2019: approximately RMB51,016,000). NT
Biopharmaceuticals is tested for impairment
when there are indicators that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable. An impairment
exists when the carrying value of interest in
NT Biopharmaceuticals exceeds its recoverable
amount, which is the higher of its fair value
less costs of disposal and its value in use. When
value in use calculations are undertaken, the
Group estimates the present values of cash flows
expected to arise from continuing to hold the
investment and choose suitable discount rates in
order to calculate the present values of those cash
flows.

3.
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AN
N

PSR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) & Z2020F 12531 H it F & (5 551595 - UA BRI TF)
3. ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND

JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

China NT Pharma Group Company Limited | Annual Report 2020

The value in use of the interest in NT
Biopharmaceuticals is determined based on
the discounted cash flow projections of NT
Biopharmaceuticals which is prepared by the
management of the Group. The discounted
rate applied of 21.93% (2019: 22.32%) is
determined by using the Capital Assets Pricing
Model, taking into account the applicable
borrowing interest rates immediately before
the projection period and the growth rate
applied is determined based on the expected
long-term inflation in the PRC, while other key
assumptions relating to the estimation of cash
inflows/outflows are determined by taking into
account the financial budgets approved by NT
Biopharmaceuticals's directors, past performance
of NT Biopharmaceuticals and expectations of NT
Biopharmaceuticals’s management on the market
development.

Based on the impairment assessment, the value
in use of the interest in NT Biopharmaceuticals
exceeds its carrying amount at 31 December 2020
and accordingly, the directors of the Company
considered that there was no impairment on the
interest of NT Biopharmaceuticals.

Should the parameters adopted in the calculations
of the value in use of the interest in NT
Biopharmaceuticals differ materially, impairment
loss may be required to be recognised.

3.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
GREMEmRMEE (B)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) 2 22020412 A31H 1 F /8 (B 5 B #5895+ YA RS T)

4. REVENUE 4. W=
The principal activities of the Group are research and AEBNFEEBRARRERE - &
development, manufacturing, sales and distribution of E -HERDHBHEEM -

pharmaceutical products.

Continuing operations

BELSEEK
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T R ARBT T
(Restated)
(g E7)
Revenue from contracts with EEBMBEHREER
customers within the scope of BISREERARE
HKFRS 15 EFEaHzWE
Sales of proprietary pharmaceutical HEBBEM
products 221,731 153,468
The timing of revenue recognition of all revenue from MEZEFANREREFREREEE
contracts with customers is at a point in time when BrEmBEHIERER AEEEFE
a customer obtains control of goods transferred by NP MBBRTROEEAE—FHIA
the Group. All of the Group’s remaining performance T o BINBE BB R EERFEISHTL
obligations for contracts with customers are for period FoORTZERBHNGN IR ER
of one year or less. As permitted under HKFRS 15, the I R o

transaction price allocated to these unsatisfied contracts
is not disclosed.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e BRI (8)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) # 22020 12 31 H 1L F/E (B ZE#E B + WA RESHFR)
5. OTHER REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME 5. Htlks=m R EMU A

Continuing operations

2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T R ARMF T
(Restated)
(gE5H)
Bank interest income #HR1TF B U A 2,835 1,884
Government grants and subsidies BRI 78 Bh e #l B 1,503 2,038
Net exchange gain P AW 5 5 5R 16,131 —
Sundry income EH b A 288 2,707
Reversal of over-accrued expenses in BEFEBEEEAED
previous years 8,215 —
Gain on deregistration of a subsidiary A — A B A
iz WA 459 —
29,431 6,629
Government grants and subsidies represented AT w8 Bh K v B PR IR M B I 2 A
unconditional cash awards granted by government IR R -
authorities.
6. OTHER NET LOSS 6. HittBEFEHE
Continuing operations
BEREER
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR ARET T
(Restated)
(gE7)
Net loss on disposal of property, plant HEME  BER
and equipment HEEEFE 160 635
Cost on litigation settlement REATNBR & FR 2,272 2,132
Net exchange loss 518 558 — 1,508
2,432 4,275
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e PBwRME (F&)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) 2 22020412 A31H 1 F /8 (B 5 B #5895+ YA RS T)

7. REREE

7. LOSS BEFORE TAXATION

Loss before taxation is arrived at after charging:

BREATEEC IR TS & IA

Continuing operations

2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR ARET T
(Restated)
(E=5)
(a) Finance costs: (@) BERA:
Interest on bank and other RO EMEREZ
borrowings RS 78,797 95,458
Interest on convertible bonds A REHZHE
(note 30) (B 5£30) 2,029 4,115
Imputed interest payable to EN—EMEB AR
non-controlling shareholders of a FERBRREE
subsidiary (notes 18(ii) and 29) A B (F 3£ 18 &
29) 3,087 3,088
Interest on lease liabilities (note 24(c)) HEBGEZTE
(Pt 5224(0)) 1,198 386
Bank charges RITER 1,426 1,328
86,537 104,375
(b) Staff costs (b) ET KA
Contributions to defined contribution TE R SRR IRET S
retirement plans H R 9,082 19,010
Salaries, wages and other benefits e IEK
H 42 7 46,388 75,570
Equity-settled share-based payment AR AEFE LA
expenses (notes 32(c) and (d)) % 17 Sz 45 H9 =R B
(Bt 5£32(0) 2.(d)) 101 7,462
55,571 102,042

TERHxABESHE |

FEHRE2020
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
GEMERRMEE (B)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) & Z2020F 12531 H it F & (5 551595 - UA BRI TF)

7.

China NT Pharma Group Company Limited | Annual Report 2020

LOSS BEFORE TAXATION (Continued)

Pursuant to the relevant labour rules and regulations in
the PRC, the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC participate
in defined contribution retirement schemes (the
“Schemes”) organised by the relevant local authorities
whereby the PRC subsidiaries are required to make
contributions to the Schemes at rates which range
from 15% to 20% (2019: 15% to 20%) of the eligible
employees’ salaries during the year. The relevant local
government authorities are responsible for the entire
pension obligations payable to retired employees.

The Group also operates a Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme (the “MPF scheme”) under the Hong Kong
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for
employees employed under the jurisdiction of the
Hong Kong Employment Ordinance. The MPF scheme
is a defined contribution retirement plan administered
by independent trustees. Under the MPF scheme, the
employer and its employees are each required to make
contributions to the plan at 5% (2019: 5%) of the
employees’ relevant income, subject to a cap of monthly
relevant income of HK$30,000 (2019: HK$30,000).
Contributions to the MPF scheme vest immediately.

The Group has no other material obligation for payment
of pension benefits beyond the annual contributions
described above.

7.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
GREMEmRMEE (B)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) 2 22020412 A31H 1 F /8 (B 5 B #5895+ YA RS T)

7. LOSS BEFORE TAXATION (Continued) 7. BRBAIEEE)
Continuing operations
BEEEEK
2020 2019
Note RMB’000 RMB’'000
B 3 ARB T AR®F T
(Restated)
(=5
(c) Other items () HEM1BH
Cost of inventories FERAR 21 86,827 63,211
Depreciation of property, mE - WER
plant and equipment REITE 15 18,721 22,521
Depreciation of right-of-use TREEEZITE
assets 15 3,631 1,930
Amortisation of intangible | EE 2 HHE
assets 16 2,045 6,680
Auditors’ remuneration: ZERT S -
— audit services — BEZRB 1,511 1,496
— non-audit services — FEXIRTE 71 —
Operating lease charges in BEMEZKRE
respect of properties HEER 15 3,008 9,924
Research and development it 7 & B 3 B AR
costs 8,996 17,087

hEFEEBEER | FE#HRE2020
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
GEMERRMEE (B)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indiicated) & £2020F 12 31 H I F/E (R S BB - UAREIT)

8. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 8. LMEEBRRANFIEH
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
@@ Income tax in the consolidated statement @ #HREEmXRAMERHIE:

of profit or loss represents:

Continuing operations

BEKSEER
2020 2019
RMB’'000 RMB’'000
AR T AREF T
(Restated)
(&)
Current tax 7= HA B 1E
PRC Corporate Income Tax PR MG
Provision for the year FNEH 155 265
Over provision in respect of BITFEBEEE
prior years (9,175) —
B, (9.020 -
Deferred tax iEFE B 1E
Origination and reversal of ERUEEHEELER
__ temporary differences (note 31(b) B EI(H&310) I -
Income tax (credit)/expense FEHGEER), BX (9,020) 265
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
GREMEmRMEE (B)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) & 220204 12315 1 FE (b S H 1B - UA RIS T)

8.

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 8. MEBRRAMEH (E)

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

(Continued)

(b) Reconciliation between income tax (b) HEAHEFTENMEHFA
expense and accounting loss at applicable XEgFTHERZENEER:
tax rates:

2020 2019
RMB’'000 RMB’'000
ARE TR ARETF T
(Restated)
(=5

Loss before taxation from REBFBEEERZ

continuing operations BRI RIEE (200,289) (355,141)
Notional tax on profit before RRABERERERE 2 #EB

taxation, calculated at the tax T 15 B4 7% 3= &1 & B B A

rates applicable in the jurisdictions & Fl| /) % & 7 18

concerned (notes (i) and (ii) (B = () R (i) (42,311) (80,704)
Tax effect of non-deductible A HBAIRIETE

expenses 40,980 46,003
Tax effect of non-taxable income THEBRBANRIELE (7,046) (16)
Tax effect of unused tax losses not  RHIEZ & & B9 1E

recognised EBEZBEZZ 8,541 34,717
Tax effect of other temporary EEREMERER Y

differences recognised WMExE (9) —
(Oven/under provision in respect of BTEFE (BB EE),

prior years BETIRE (9,175) 265
Income tax (credit)/expense for the FRRBFELLEBL 2

year from continuing operations s (%) FX (9,020) 265
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e BwRME (&)

8. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 8.

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

(Continued)

(b) Reconciliation between income tax
expense and accounting loss at applicable

tax rates: (Continued)

Notes:

(i) Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman
Islands and the British Virgin Islands (“BVI"), the Group is
not subject to any income tax in the Cayman Islands and

BVI.

(i) The Company’s subsidiaries in the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region are subject to Hong Kong Profits
Tax at tax rate of 16.5% (2019: 16.5%). No income tax
provision is made for the Hong Kong subsidiaries for
the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, as these
subsidiaries either derived no income subject to Hong
Kong Profits Tax or sustained tax losses for Hong Kong

Profits Tax purposes.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Company’s
subsidiaries in PRC are subject to a statutory income tax
rate of 25%, except for the subsidiary which is qualified
for High and New Technology Enterprises and would
be entitled to enjoy a beneficial tax rate of 15% (2019:

25%).

China NT Pharma Group Company Limited

Annual Report 2020

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) # 22020 12 31 H 1L F/E (B ZE#E B + WA RESHFR)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
GREMEmRMEE (B)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) 2 22020412 A31H 1 F /8 (B 5 B #5895+ YA RS T)

9.

DISCONTINUED OPERATION

On 21 April 2020, NT Pharma (Overseas) Holding
Co. Ltd (“NT Overseas”, an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company) and Beijing Kangchen
Biological Technology Co., Ltd (“Beijing Kangchen”, an
independent third party to the Company) entered into
a sale and purchase agreement, pursuant to which, NT
Overseas agreed to sell and Beijing Kangchen agreed
to purchase the exclusive distribution right of Pfenex
and the entire issued share capital of NT Pharma
International Company Limited (“NT International”, a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company), which was
principally engaged in selling and marketing Miacalcic
branded products and sub-licensing of intellectua
property rights and distribution rights of Miacalcic
Injection and Miacalcic Nasal Spray under the reportable
segment of Miacalcic. The disposal was effected in order
to generate immediate cash flows for the reallocation
of the financial resources on any suitable investment
opportunities and the repayment of bank and other
borrowings as well as the settlement of the redemption
of the outstanding redeemable convertible preference
shares when they fall due. The disposal transaction was
completed on 3 September 2020 and NT International
ceased to be a subsidiary of the Company. Details of the
assets and liabilities disposed of, and the calculation of
the profit or loss on disposal, are disclosed in note 37.

9.

BARIEREEFK
7202048218 - T IEBE (5N
BRBERAG((REBEEGIN  ARElZ
ME2EMBAR) Bt R RREER
MBERARAETIEtRRER] AQARZH
VEZAFVEEWwE Bt TE
BEaS/)REHEMIEARRAZE
HPfenex 2 BR 5 $H 1 & T & B EEH R
ERAR((REBHERE | ARFzE
EWNBRABZ2HABEHITHRA - &
EEBBRIENREHEREHEER
mEERARZREBAZRD AT
BEBISBEEREESER Mk
EERDEEZER ETEHEERE
EEELIRRESRE  UBWKE
BREFHNEEEMNEERERSRE
BIRTREMERR AR EEELR R
RELMMEDAMBRBRELER - HEXS
ER2020F9A3H MK « M EELEH
BABAEARRIZHBAR - FILEE
ERBEUNGTELEBEBR ZHBER
MisE374% 5 o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A EIRERMETE (B)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) & Z2020F 12531 H it F & (5 551595 - UA BRI TF)

9. DISCONTINUED OPERATION 9. BRULEKREXK(E)
(Continued)

The results of the discontinued operation, which have
been included in the loss for the year, were as follows.
The comparative figures in the consolidated statement

EREREXRH2FE(BFALREE
BR)MT HZefEadRk B Fe
REY UKERESXBEHZ2IR
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of profit or loss have been restated to re-present the

Miacalcic operation as a discontinued operation.

2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥ETR ARET T

Loss for the year from discontinued HRARBECKRILEE

operation: EBEHNER:
Revenue U %5 79,742 212,501
Cost of sales =R DN (20,303) (41,875)
Gross profit E A 59,439 170,626
Impairment loss of an intangible asset BVEERMEER (52,304) (287,107)
Impairment loss of other receivables H Ath & W SR IR R E B 18 (10,527) —
Impairment loss of trade receivables Z 5 W HIEREEE (7,713) (1,265)
Selling and distribution expenses HERSHAX (73,380) (45,242)
Administrative expenses TEH X (51,445) (65,343)
Loss before taxation Fx % B 5 18 (135,930) (228,331)
Income tax Frig &t = (9,465)
Loss after taxation BRI B 18 (135,930) (237,796)
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary (note 37) H&E KB AR ZEE

(Bt 7£37) (32,714) —

Loss for the year from discontinued FARBERIEKEEER

operation " 5 18 (168,644) (237,796)

China NT Pharma Group Company Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
GREMEmRMEE (B)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) 2 22020412 A31H 1 F /8 (B 5 B #5895+ YA RS T)

9. DISCONTINUED OPERATION 9. DARILKEXIE(E)
(Continued)
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’'000

AR® T ARET T

Loss for the year from discontinued FANRBERIEREET

operation includes the followings: WEEBRETIISIE:
Cost of inventories recognised as expenses & #3 /4& R X 2 17 & i A (20,303) (41,875)
Impairment loss of an intangible asset BIVEEMEERE (52,304) (287,107)
Impairment loss of other receivables H At & W sk TR R E B 18 (10,527) —
Impairment loss of trade receivables B EWHRIEREERE (7,713) (1,265)
Cash flows from discontinued RECKRIEEEEE

operation: ReERE:

Net cash inflows from operating activities K B & & E &) 2

WemAF5 63,571 48,722
Net cash inflows from investing activities K B&E /A&~

WemAFHE 540,000 —
Net cash outflows from financing activities 7K B g & /& & 2

BE L FRE (569,794) (49,177)
Net cash inflows/(outflows) BEHRA(FHR)BE 33,777 (455)
Loss per share: % & 18
Basic, from discontinued operation AR REBRIEEE

EFE (8.94) cents &+ (13.48) cents &
Diluted, from discontinued operation g RAERIEKE

g (8.94) cents o+ (13.48) cents

o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
GEMERRMEE (B)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) & Z2020F 12531 H it F & (5 551595 - UA BRI TF)

10. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS 10. E = &
Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section RIFBBRTHEFIE383(NIE R ATE (F
383(1) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and BEFMRERROIE2HMERE
Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information EHMHT

about Benefits of Directors) Regulation are as follows:

Year ended 31 December 2020 B Z2020F12A31ALLEE
Salaries, Equity-settled
allowances Retirement  share-based
Directors'  and benefits Discretionary scheme payment
fees in kind bonuses  contributions expenses Total
NWERGEE
He R B 50 4
EzHe REWAE HERA BATERR IANEMH @it
(note)
(i)

RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR AR®TR ARBTR AR%Tn ARETR ARETx

Executive directors HTES

Ng Tit RE - 2,114 - 16 = 2,130
Chin Yu BR - m - - - yy))
Wu Weizhong RAR - 1,500 - 75 - 1,575
Non-executive directors FH{TES
Qian Wei B — — - — — —
Independent BUKHTES

non-executive

directors
Pan Fei (appointed on AR (2020F

20/3/2020) 3A20HEZ) 7 - - - — 7
Tze Shan Hailson Yu REWL 22 = — = — 22
Zhao Yubiao BER 45 - - - — 45
Yan Hong (resigned on &34 (142020

20/3/2020) 3A208E1T) 216 - - - - 216
Total @5t 490 3,836 - 91 - 4417
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
GREMEmRMEE (B)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) 2 22020412 A31H 1 F /8 (B 5 B #5895+ YA RS T)

10. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS 10. EEHM (&)
(Continued)
Year ended 31 December 2019 HZE2019F 128318 EFE
Salaries, Equity-settled
allowances Retirement  share-hased
Directors'  and benefits  Discretionary scheme payment
fees in kind bonuses  contributions expenses Total
IEREE
e BER BIARR
EEHe BN BEELD RAGHEMT  HOEM &5t
(note)
(Hii#)

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARETT AREBTT AREBTT ARETT ARETR

Executive directors HITEE

Ng Tit RE - 6,336 - 16 — 6,352
Chin Yu BR — 5,500 - 15 — 5,515
Wu Weizhong RRR — 1,201 - 132 — 1333

Wang Fei (appointed on 7 (#2019 17
10112019 and resigned 10 EZ TR
on 29/11/2019) 72019511429
RE ) — 1,194 — 9 5,071 6,364

Non-executive directors F#H{TES

Qian Wei B - — — - - -
Lou Jianying (resigned on £ & (52019%F

29/11/2019) 11A29HE ) — — — — — —
Independent BUHTES

non-executive

directors
Pan Fei (appointed on B (12020935

20/3/2020) WAEZH) — - - - - -
Tze Shan Hailson Yu REW 220 — — — — 220
Zhao Yubiao (appointed on & E 1% (2019512

31/12/2019) A3IBEZ) - - - - - -
Patrick Sun (resigned on 3 T 2 (122019512

31/12/2019) A31BEA) 220 - - — — 220
Yan Hong (resigned on B34 (54202034

20/3/2020) 08FT) 174 - - — — 174
Total @i 614 14,231 - 262 5,071 20,178

TEFREABEER | FE®REF2020 241



242

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e BwRME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) & Z2020F 12531 H it F & (5 551595 - UA BRI TF)

10. EEH M (E)

10. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS
(Continued)

Note: These represent the estimated value of share awards granted
to the directors on the date of grant. The value of these share
awards is measured according to the Group’s accounting
policies for share-based payment transactions as set out in note

2(a)iii).

11. INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST

EMOLUMENTS

1.

Of the five individuals with the highest paid
emoluments, two (2019: four) are directors whose
emoluments are disclosed in note 10. The aggregate of
the emoluments in respect of the other three individuals

(2019: one individual) are as follows:

GERNES Yol LS GE B G
B8 a3t B0 © LSRR MR EE T
B 2 0 2 9K D DA R 19 14 5% 55
B BEHHE -

REFMAL

AEBENIERRFMALEREAR
ZEFQ09F NEBER) WENH
B 50 B SE103 58 - Eftb =% A £ (2019
Fr—BADNFHERELT:

2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR TR ARETIT
Salaries and other emoluments & & H Ath 5 B 2,697 689
Contributions to retirement benefits RORAE FIET 23R
schemes 164 98
Equity-settled share-based payment VAME 25 48 B0 DA R {9 2 A+
expenses 9 2R B — 1,400
2,861 2,187
The emoluments of the other 3 individuals (2019: one MM EM =2 AL (Q019F: —
individual) with the highest emoluments are within the BAND)HFH M TATEE :
following bands:
2020 2019
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
A N
NIL to HK$1,000,000 = 251,000,000 7¢ 2 -
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 7T 21,500,000/ 7T — —
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,0017% 7T & 2,000,000/% JT 1 —

HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000
Over HK$3,500,000

2,000,001 7T & 2,500,000 7T
2,500,001 7T & 3,000,000/% 7T
3,000,001% 7T % 3,500,000/ 7T
8 383,500,000/% 7T
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
GREMEmRMEE (B)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) & 220204 12315 1 FE (b S H 1B - UA RIS T)

12. DIVIDENDS 12. BB
(@ Dividends payable to equity shareholders @ FANEMNAREEZBREZ
of the Company attributable to the year ix 2
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR® T ARET T

Final dividend proposed after the ¥ 5 Hf 5K # 5% A9 K 58
end of the reporting period of BREEBREET
HK$Nil (2019: HK$NIl) per share (2019%F : =& ) — —

(b) Dividends payable to equity shareholders (b) FAHERZTH E—ER
of the Company attributable to the BEERENAAG #Em KR
previous financial year, approved and paid 1 AR B

during the year

2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T AR TIT

Final dividend in respect of the FRHE R A LA
previous financial year, approved MIFERERARE
and paid during the year of ZHETQ019F : TF
HK$Nil (2019: HK$Nil) 7T) — —

hEFEEBEER | FE#HRE2020
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e BwRME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) & Z2020F 12531 H it F & (5 551595 - UA BRI TF)
13. LOSS PER SHARE 13. BEREE

The calculation of basic loss per share is based
on the following loss attributable to equity
shareholders of the Company and the weighted
average number of ordinary shares outstanding.

BREANEBRFEDRETIIA
NE R I R R B 1R AR
B IN#E 5 8K

2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT T ARBTTT

Loss from continuing operations RN AR A R R PEAG
attributable to equity FEKE BB
shareholders of the Company (188,955) (349,794)
Loss from a discontinued ZN/NSIE E Y 8 A S
operation attributable to equity BERIEKEEBLD
shareholders of the Company B8 (168,644) (237,796)
(357,599) (587,590)
2020 2019
Number Number
of shares of shares
& ¢=| IR 17 2B
‘000 ‘000
Fr T B%
Issued ordinary shares at 1 January R1ATHKEEIT LB 1,904,636 1,606,463
Effect of shares repurchased, BER DB EIEE
granted and held under Share BRERBAROHZE
Award Scheme (17,589) (24,164)
Effect of conversion of convertible ¥ &AL E %5,
bonds/convertible preference MR E LR T2
shares — 181,709
At 31 December ®12A31H 1,887,047 1,764,008
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
?‘%A jﬁ%#&%ﬁﬁﬁnf (nﬁ)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) 2 22020412 A31H 1 F /8 (B 5 B #5895+ YA RS T)
13. LOSS PER SHARE (Continued) 13. BREE(E)

The calculation of diluted loss per share does
not assume the exercise of the Company’s
outstanding share options or conversion of
outstanding redeemable convertible preference
shares and convertible bonds of the Company
which had an anti-dilutive effect. Accordingly,
diluted loss per share was the same as the basic
loss per share for the years ended 31 December
2020 and 2019.

14. SEGMENT REPORTING

The Group manages its businesses by business lines. In a
manner consistent with the way in which information is
reported internally to the Group’s most senior executive
management for the purposes of resource allocation
and performance assessment, the Group has presented
the following reportable segment:

—  Proprietary products production and sales:
revenue from production and sales of NT
branded products and generic drugs through
the Company’s subsidiaries, Suzhou First
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd (“Suzhou First Pharma”)
and NT Biopharmaceuticals.

An operation of selling and marketing Miacalcic
branded products and sub-licensing of intellectual
property rights and distribution rights of Miacalcic
Injection and Miacalcic Nasal Spray was discontinued
in the current year. The following segment information
does not include any amounts for the discontinued
operation, which is described in more detail in note 9.

AN

EEREEBREYERRT
ﬁ$ RIMAITHE 2 BRERE
RN B M AR A7 {F 2 7 BE [0 AT 2
ELERRATBREES  BAL
MMEYABREESE R
#H Z20204F X%2019%128318 1k
FE SREBEIEEEERER
B 1EAER -

. /'\.\"LB*&LI:

REEREBEOIBRERERLE - A&
EATIAIZ2®mOH2S  AAERSD
RERRFEREAMARNEE &SR
THEBABRNTHRESERDN A E
[ :

— HBREMLEREE W&EKA
BEARAHKBARGFMNES
HREGRAR ((HMNEERE]D K
REEYMHELENHERZR
MEmNMIFENER o

HEREHEEZEMEERARER
BEBENHREZE B 2B 2 M
EERDBEEZEBERAFERLE
g o LT EERTNEIEE R ILEL
EEBENIMNSE  BEEFBIHRNKH
9 o

BEEER | FE®REF2020



246

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

=
%«S

W mRMEE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) & Z2020F 12531 H it F & (5 551595 - UA BRI TF)

4. 5 HEE (F)

14. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

China NT Pharma Group Company Limited | Annual Report 2020

For the purpose of assessing segment
performance and allocation resources between
segments, the Group’s most senior executive
management, who are also the executive directors
of the Company, monitors the results, assets and
liabilities attributable to each reportable segment
on the following bases:

— Segment assets include all tangible and
intangible assets and other current and non-
current assets with exception of unallocated
corporate assets. Segment liabilities include
trade and other payables and bank and
other borrowings attributable to each
reporting segment, with the exception of
unallocated corporate liabilities.

— Revenue and expense are allocated to the
reportable segments with reference to
sales generated by those segments and the
expenses incurred by those segments or
which otherwise arise from the depreciation
or amortisation of assets attributable to
those segments.

Segments results represent profit or loss
attributable to the segment without allocation
of finance costs, certain administrative costs and
directors’ remuneration. Taxation is not allocated
to reportable segments. This is measure reported
to the Group’s most senior executive management
for the purpose of resources allocation and
performance assessment.

— WBEkFAXTE

Tﬁﬁrﬁ“*lﬁ%ﬁ& fic 5 # & IR

AR E xrﬁ?&f"fﬂ( EIEAEB
(E\F?%l"’\:ﬁﬂﬁ§$ﬁ?zﬁ/\—|—ﬁ
RERZA2HROENEE B
E&%Tﬁ :

— DHEEBEMBEBELRE

HZ%EM&ﬁ{@MLEﬂ&?FML
HEE HERIERREE
BRoh o DEFEE a%x—ff
BOMNESD R E M EN R
HARRITREMES - 1
RAAOERAREBERI -

2%

MEERHEB MK

EERAZED B

&‘sziﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁiﬁ’]%?iﬁﬁﬂ
2HSHE -

D EBFELE TR D SR m T S EE
ERTESEREKRAS B T1T
BRAZRESHE - HIBW &S
RETFA2HRSE - LARAEE
BEERTHREEABRSUER
BRIPBERRFEHEZFE



Information regarding the Group's reportable
segments as provided to the Group’s most senior
executive management for the purposes of
resource allocation and assessment of segment
performance for the years ended 31 December

2020 and 2019 is set out below.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
GREMEmRMEE (B)
For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) 2 22020412 A31H 1 F /8 (B 5 B #5895+ YA RS T)

14. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 14. 7 EPHE(H)

# E20204 NM2019412A318 1t
FE RHTEAEBESESRITH
ERABUSEEREFES S
FANBBEASBE 2R D IH
B REH RT3 e

Continuing operations
Proprietary products
production and sales

BEEREERSEE
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR T AR T T
Reportable segment revenue from R EINEBE P 2 Al 2
external customers 7 B0 W 2= 221,731 153,468
Timing of revenue recognition Wy 2= T R B
— at point in time — RE—EEE 221,731 153,468
Reportable segment gross profit A 2D & E A 134,904 90,257
Reportable segment results AI2RDEE (25,351) (166,696)
Other Revenue: HAth U 55
— Government grants and — AT+ B e i B
subsidies 1,239 2,038
— Sundry income — EAftw g A 157 2,707
— Bank interest income — |RITH B A 1,477 —
— Gain on deregistration of a — iR —EKE
subsidiary NI R 459 —
— Reversal of over-accrued — BAFEHREEGTE
expenses in previous years A#E 8,215 —

o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e BRI (8)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) & Z2020F 12531 H it F & (5 551595 - UA BRI TF)
14. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 14. 2 HE (&)

Continuing operations
Proprietary products
production and sales

HEEREERHE
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®B T ARETIT

Other net loss: HMEEFE:
— Net loss on disposal of —NEME  BER
property, plant and HEEBEFSE
equipment (160) (363)
— Costs on litigation settlement — FAf R E A (2,272) (2,132)
Share of profit/(loss) of an associate % {5 — & Bt & A & 2
w A (EE) 8 7)
Depreciation and amortisation TEREH (21,106) (27,473)
Reversal of impairment loss/ B S EW R IEREBE
(impairment loss) of trade BECREEE)FE
receivables, net 1,390 (133,072)
Reversal of impairment loss/ ME  BELRBREERE
(impairment loss) of property, #ECRERE)
plant and equipment 10,980 (10,980)
Impairment loss of other receivables, = b & U 7% 18 J8 & /&5 18
net -t (57.441) (13,067)
Reportable segment assets A2 oMEE 803,609 663,315
Additions to non-current segment  fF N1 E IET B BRE E
assets during the year 2,800 151,620
Reportable segment liabilities AE2wHMBEaRE 760,745 907,250
Reportable segment capital 23D MPEAREE
commitments 20,000 20,000
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e PBwRME (F&)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) 2 22020412 A31H 1 F /8 (B 5 B #5895+ YA RS T)

14. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

14. 7 & &K E (&)

Reconciliations of reportable segment (b) AIZFRD Bz Bm - B
revenue, profit or loss, assets and NBEHER
liabilities
Continuing operations
BEKEER
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARB T ARBT T
Revenue g
Reportable segment revenue 2% BMK = 221,731 153,468
Loss B8
Reportable segment operating loss 7] 2 ¥} 7 35 4% & &5 18 (25,351) (166,696)
Unallocated head office and RO BE R RRHAEZ
corporate expenses (95,020) (54,321)
Other revenue and other income Hofb Yz R EAth Uk A
— unallocated — X9k 17,884 1,884
Other net loss — unallocated HihBEFE — KO — (1,780)
Fair value change on financial BRAAEINABRZ
liabilities at fair value through PRMEBGEsANEE
profit or loss (11,265) (29,853)
Finance costs Bl & Bk A (86,537) (104,375)
Consolidated loss before taxation ~ BRFiRI4R A BB (FELE
(continuing operations) %) (200,289) (355,141)
Assets BE
Reportable segment assets AEwRoBEE 803,609 663,315
Assets associated with disposal EOBABREHEZ
group classified as held for sales HEMANBREEE 79,833 —
Assets classified as held for sale DEABEHEZEE 16,266 —
Assets relating to discontinued HORIEEEEBEB
operation BAE 370,422 1,032,879
Unallocated head office and RAOMBE R AFEE
corporate assets 24,939 102,080
Consolidated total assets mEREE 1,295,069 1,798,274

o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e BwRME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indiicated) & £2020F 12 31 H I F/E (R S BB - UAREIT)

14. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

(b) Reconciliations of reportable segment (b)
revenue, profit or loss, assets and

liabilities (Continued)

14. 7 & &K E (&)

A2y Ebles - Ba - &

EhaEEERE)

Continuing operations

KEEERK
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR TR ARET T

Liabilities =R
Reportable segment liabilities AEwRoBEE 760,745 907,250
Deferred tax liabilities EERIBAE 63,688 —
Liabilities associated with disposal B2 D A AEIEHE ~

group classified as held for sales HEERNBRAZ BFE 54,666 —
Liabilities relating to discontinued ~— EEE MR E X R 2

operation afE 91,289 648,156
Unallocated head office and RKOMBH R AR EE

corporate liabilities 302,259 140,945
Consolidated total liabilities mewas 1,272,647 1,696,351
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
GREMEmRMEE (B)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) 2 22020412 A31H 1 F /8 (B 5 B #5895+ YA RS T)

14. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 14. 7 &8 #HE (&)

The following table sets out information about TREJBAAEERBINSEE
the geographical location of the Group's revenue FPrzWakAREBERBDEEZ
from external customers and the Group’s non- HIBUE AR - AEEERE
current assets. The geographical location of BEZHMEBMNENIRERBDEE
the Group’s non-current assets is based on the ZEBRMBR(WMARTEE) R
physical location of the non-current assets and in SRS EREENBERER
the case of intangible assets, the location of the 53 S HE Hh Bh i E ©

use of relevant intellectual property rights and
distribution rights to which they are allocated.

Revenue from external customers Non-current assets*
RENBEF2UE FRBEE"

2020 2019 2020 2019
Continuing  Discontinued ~ Continuing ~ Discontinued ~ Continuing  Discontinued Continuing ~ Discontinued
operations operation operations operation  operations  operation operations operation

A BAL it B&IE K& BAL K& B

ek MERXR  HEXE QxR SERR MERE 4ERR GERH
RMB'O0D  RMB'OO0  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMB'000  RMBOO0  RVBOO0  RMB'00O
ARETR ARMTR ARETT ARBTT ARETR ARRTR ARETR  ARETR

PRC g 21,731 53,836 153,468 197,668 712,792 - 480,769 983,500
Hong Kong BE - 19,529 - 1518 4,781 - 6,514 —
Other countries ~ EfE% - 6,377 - 13315 - - - -
21,731 79,142 153,468 212,501 717,513 - 487,283 983,500

* Excluding financial asset at FVTPL and prepayment for * TEIED R ERE R FEEGHERE 2

acquisition of an intangible asset of RMB537,000 (2019: BARBIAEBR 2B EERK

RMB571,000) and RMBNil (2019: RMB17,576,000) E-IHEFEEZENRBARRE

which were related to operation in the PRC and Hong 537,0007T (20194 : A & #571,000

Kong, respectively. TR ARBZIL(019F : AR

17,576,0007T) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
GEMERRMEE (B)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) & Z2020F 12531 H it F & (5 551595 - UA BRI TF)

14. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 14. 7 HHEE)
Revenue from major customers, which individually 2N & B E R (5 2 U 2 10% 3k A E
amounted to 10% or more of the total revenue, is MEZEXFRZEHY AT :

set out below:
For the year ended 31 December 2020 REE2020F12A318 L EE

Continuing  Discontinued

operations operation Total
E 2L
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

AR TR AR TR ARE TR

Customer A BEFA 69,506 — 69,506
Customer B =FB 9,111 43,718 52,829
For the year ended 31 December 2019 REE2019F 128318 IEFE
Continuing Discontinued
operations operation Total
FE BRI
REETE REE Bt
RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTTT ARBTT ARETIT

Customer A ZHA 24,991 52,576 77,567
Customer B ZFB 2,742 130,956 133,698
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
mEMBmRMET (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) & 2202012 A31H 1 FZ (5 B #H B9 - U R EFT)

= 5
15. FIXED ASSETS 15. BIE&E
Property, plant and equipment
9% KEREE
Interests in
Fumniture, leasehold
Buildings  Property fixture and land
held for  leasedfor ~ Plantand  Leasehold office Motor Construction held for own
ownuse  ownuse machinery improvements equipment  vehicles inprogress  Sub-total use Total
il KEERN
RERRN  BEER EEXER HELH

B  HM% EEREZ REKE HOERE RE ERIRE it R &3t
RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOD  RMBOO  RMBO00  RMBOOD  RMBO00  RVBOOO  RMBOD0  RMBION0
ARETT ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETH ARETR

Cost or valuation: HAGME:
At 1 January 2019 201981818 270,133 — 76,961 13,034 9417 7183 54,348 431136 47,754 478890
Exchange adjustments EXRE - % - - 16 4 - 161 - 161
Additions 2E 3900 5639 307 199 128 - — 10173 — 10173
Disposdls the - - B0 - 739 {50) - ) - 38
At 31 December 2019 and R20195128318 R

1 January 2020 200E1818 274,033 5737 74,204 13233 8,883 7,180 54,348 431,618 47,754 485,312
Exchange adjustments EXfE - (347) — (12) (40) (129) — (528) = (528)
Additions #E 9 7,030 2,671 937 2 — 30 10,769 — 10,769
Disposals & - - (13) (3,990) (24) (1,585) - (5,612) - (5.612)
Reclassfied s held for sale ENARARELE

(note 38) (F5¥38) (51,188) - (1,438) - (51) (648) (52,530) (105,855) (17,654) (123,509)
Revaluation Bff 155,956 - - - - - - 155,956 87,898 243,854
At 31 December 2020 20205128318 378,900 12420 75424 10,168 8,770 43818 1,848 492,348 117,998 610,346
Analysis of cost or valuation: RARGEZ A
At 31 December 2020 20205128318
— Cost —RE - 12,420 75424 10,168 8770 4,818 1808 113448 - 113448
— Valuation —fE 378,900 - — — — - - 378,900 117,998 496,898

378,900 12,420 75,424 10,168 8,770 4818 1,848 492,348 117,998 610,346

At 31 December 2019 20195127318
— Cost — A WS M4 B33 88 T80 M8 47618 4 5N

Accumulated depreciationand Rt fEREH:

amortisation:

At 1 January 2019 H201951818 77,345 - 39,576 11,836 6,389 5,750 - 140,8% 6,760 147,656
Exchange adjustments EXRE - 17 - - 20 4 - 83 - 83
Charge for the year REERH 13,047 939 6710 1225 1,17 368 - 23,460 991 24451
Impairment for the year AEEHE 10,980 - - - - - - 10,980 - 10,980
Written back on disposal HERER - - (2,707) - (461) (45) - (3213) - (3213)
At 31 December 2019 and 0195128318 )

1 January 2020 20051518 101372 956 43579 13,061 7119 6,119 - 172,206 17151 179,957
Exchange adjustments EXRE - (159) - U] (36) (130) = (332) = (332)
Charge for the year REERH 12,083 2718 5,336 587 595 150 - 21,439 913 235
Reversal of impaiment for the year A% 5l (E Bl (10,980) - - - - - - (10,980) = (10,980)
Reclassified as held for sale ENARAKIELE

(note 38) (H3t38) (21.847) - (1,289) - (46) (583) - (376) @81 (2157
Written back on disposal HERER - = (1) (3990) (24) (1.421) = (5.452) = (5.452)
Written back upon revaluation EfEEE (80,598) - - - - - - (80,598) (4,853) (85,451)
At 31 December 2020 20205128318 - 3,515 47,615 9,651 7,608 4129 - 72518 - 72,518
Net book value: BEFE:

At 31 December 2020 H20205128318 378,900 8,905 27,809 517 1,162 689 1,848 419,830 117,998 537,828
At 31 December 2019 A19ERA3NE 172,661 4781 30605 n 1,764 1061 S4308 265412 40003 5415

TEXEBEEER | FE®REF2020 253



254

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
GEMERRMEE (B)
For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) & Z2020F 12531 H it F & (5 551595 - UA BRI TF)
15. FIXED ASSETS (Continued)

Note:

(@)

As at 31 December 2020, certain banking facilities of the Group
were secured by certain property, plant and equipment of the
Group with a net book value amounting of RMB512,411,000
(2019: RMB270,271,000). Such property is located in PRC under
medium-term land lease (note 27).

Fair value measurement of leasehold land and buildings at 31
December 2020

All of the Group's leasehold land and buildings held for own
use were revalued as at 31 December 2020. The valuations
were independently carried out by Roma Appraisals Limited
("ROMA"), a firm of independent qualified professional valuers
in Hong Kong, with over 10 years' experience in the location
and category of assets being valued. After due consideration of
the experience and credentials of ROMA, the directors of the
Company are satisfied that ROMA is competent to determine
the valuation of the Group's leasehold land and buildings. The
directors have discussions with the ROMA on the valuation
assumptions and valuation results when the valuation was
performed.

The fair value of leasehold land and buildings is categorised as
level 3 recurring fair value measurements.

ROMA adopted the direct comparison approach in its valuation
by assuming sale of the leasehold land and buildings in their
existing states with the benefit of vacant possession and by
making reference to comparable sales transactions as available
in the relevant market at 31 December 2020 as basis for
estimating the market value of the Group'’s leasehold land and
buildings. The principal assumptions adopted are as follows:

— the owner sells the property in the market in its existing
state without the benefit or deferred term contracts,
leaseback, joint ventures, management agreements or
any similar arrangements;

— no account has been taken of any option or right of
pre-emption concerning or affecting the sale of the
leasehold land and buildings; and

— no allowance has been made for the leasehold land and
buildings to be sold in one lot or to a single purchaser.

Valuation technique

15. BIE& E (&)

B 3 -

(@)

Unobservable inputs

2020612 A318 ' AEEE THRITRLEH
£ BR EFE A R#512,411,0007T (2019
£ ARM270,271,00070) E THWE - &
BREFEEER - ZWEMRRE - BHR
Hi 4 30 AR & (P 3E27) ©

R2020F 12 A3EMBAE L REFZA

REFE

AEEBMEREFERANHEE L RIEFN
2020012 AR EH hE - HEBRESFE
B EERAR (RSN B ET - 3

RIAEABUAERBEEGEMAR KB
FriEEEEMM B RER HEESB105F
KE KEEEZERIBLEEMZERRE
B AAREFEMETHENEER
SEEYMEEZME - RETHER =
ECHEASHEERERGEESERETH

PN
af °©

HETHEEFIAREIBARF=ZLAL
BHEIAENE -

BEREGERFRAEELESE - BEHE
ErHMEEFRERARGHE W2 %
HE BT 15 7202012 A31B A B AT & t
RHERGERMFAARKEEE Lt R 1&
FHENEE - ARANEEHEINOT:

— BEBEANEWSLEURRHEZDE
b 45 B A5 AE ] A SR SR IR AR SR A A
ERHED - - AELE EEHHEL
EREUL

—  YUEFREANERAIFEHERE
THRETFREENELEBERE
K

— YUER-RBEERETE-EX
WEE L REFELEE -

Relationship of non-observable

inputs to fair value

E1E T %

FTIRZEAARE

FTIRERARBRADAENEE

Leasehold buildings held for
own use in the PRC

Leasehold land held for own
use in the PRC

REEREERNEERT BERANE

RPEREEANEELE FHLRE

Replacement costs
approach

Market comparison
approach

Current costs of replacements of the
properties based on the type of building
structure and taking into account market
data on current construction costs for
similar properties located in nearby cities,
from RMB10,000/sq.m. to RMB12,800/
sq.m.

Market value of the land located in nearby
cities, from RMB400/sq.m. to RMB2,100/
sg.m.

REEFEBER RZEBTH TR
NERKEZERANTSHE  NEE
ENRBERANFEFHKI0000TES
FHAARE12,8007 °

UREBEA T LTS EE N FET
FARAREAO0TEE FHARAREK2100
e

A significant increase in costs of
replacement would result in a significant
increase in the fair value, and vice versa

A significant increase in market value
would result in a significant increase in
the fair value, and vice versa.
EERAAGENBERLABAE
B R2 KA

MEEEREENBERRAERE
B R
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e PBwRME (F&)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) 2 22020412 A31H 1 F /8 (B 5 B #5895+ YA RS T)

15. FIXED ASSETS (Continued) 15. BIE&E (&)
The analysis of the net book value of right-of-use assets CTREEERBBAEERNE S B
by class of underlying assets is as follows: HFEBEI>THOT :
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥®T R AR®ET T
Interests in leasehold land held forown  #H{EEBRAMAE + i1
use, carried at revalued amount FrafEfzw  NPRlixE
(2019: depreciated cost) in the PRC, HEQ019F LI EK
with remaining lease term between 30 RIANER - AT HIR30
and 43 (2019: 31 and 44) years F43%F (20194 : 31544
(note (i) below) F) 2 B T 3R RE()) 117,998 40,003
Property leased for own use, carried at ~ FEERA W E @ kI &
depreciated cost (note (i) below) FCAS A BR (R ST 5 Gi)) 8,905 4,781
126,903 44,784
The analysis of expense items in relation to leases RERERANEHEENHIIEES
recognised in profit or loss is follows: frmT:
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR%T R AREBF T
Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets & fEBIE E BB D EH
by class of underlying asset: FRAEEENERX:
— Interests in leasehold land held for — FEERZHE T
own use R 913 991
— Property leased for own use —HEBRZYWE 2,718 939
3,631 1,930
Interest on lease liabilities HEBGEZHEA
(note 7(a) and 24(c)) (P &£ 7(a) 2 24(c) 1,198 386
Expenses relating to short-term leases not BT B ERNHE&ER
in the measurement of lease liabilities ArETHEHEEN
(note 7(c)) R 32 (B 5£7(0) 3,008 9,924
COVID-19-related rent concessions BT/ COVID-1948 R f &
received BE 123 —

hEFEEBEER | FE#HRE2020
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e BwRME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) & Z2020F 12531 H it F & (5 551595 - UA BRI TF)

15. FIXED ASSETS (Continued) 15.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, additions to
right-of-use assets amounted to RMB7,030,000, which
related to the capitalised lease payments payable under
new tenancy agreement.

Details of total cash outflows for leases and the maturity
analysis of lease liabilities and the future cash outflows
arising from leases that are not yet commenced are set
out in notes 24(c) and 28, respectively.

The Group is the registered owner of these lands.
Lump sum payments were made upfront to
acquire these land interests from their previous
registered owners, and there are no ongoing
payments to be made under the terms of the land
leases.

The Group has obtained the right to use the
property as its office premises through tenancy
agreement. The lease typically runs for an initial
period of 3—5 years.

The lease usually does not include an option to

renew the lease for an additional period after the
end of the contract term.

China NT Pharma Group Company Limited | Annual Report 2020

B E & E (&)

REZE2020F12 8318 ILFE - FHE
BEEESTEASARET7030,0007T & H
HHEMR T ZENERNMEBEERNK
5@ -

HERSRbBARZHABREERE
ZEMOMAR ARG 2HEESL
ZARKB 2R D BB K 240 &
28 °

REBERZELIZEMERA -
ERAMEL —RIERKIARBE
AMESAKEB L HERD > ME
BEREFLHWBEENGR B 1E
A B ST R ROR -

AEEDRBHEEHZENEHEY
ERERAGAONERE -HE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
GREMEmRMEE (B)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) & 220204 12315 1 FE (b S H 1B - UA RIS T)
16. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 16. B &EE

Brand New

rights with ~ Intellectual medicine Exclusive Product

indefinite ~ property protection Club  Computer agency development

useful life rights  Trade-marks rights memberships  software rights in progress Total
RER

TERER

LREE  NRER HE FEREE eFER HEARK BIREE ME0ER it
RMBODD  RMBOOD  RMBOOO  RMBODD  RMBOOD  RMBOOO  RMBODO  RMBOOD  RMBO0O
ARETL ARETT ARETR ARETR ARETRL ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR

Cost; A

At 1 January 2019 H019%F1 718 1,247 847 131,425 7283 9330 1,403 9,012 50,000 — 1,456,300
Additions #E - - - - - 905 — 47400 148,305
Exchange adjustments ERAR 27914 - - - 3 - - — 27,945

At 31 December 2019 and 2019512318 ]

1 January 2020 2051818 1,275,761 131,425 7283 9,330 1,434 9917 50,000 147,400 1,632,550
Additions b - - - - - - - - -
Disposal of a subsidiary HENBAR

(note 37) (H37) (1,258,102) - - - - - (1,258,102)
Exchange adjustments EHAR (17,659) - (87) - - — (17,746)
At 31 December 2020 RNENENE - BB 137 997 0000 1740 36702
Accumulated amortisation R EHERHE:

and impairment:

At 1 January 2019 201951418 — 111,770 — 6,748 50,000 - 185,131
Charge for the year REETH - 5,833 - 847 - - 6,680
Exchange adjustments ERAE 5,155 - - - - - 5,155
Impairment for the year RERHE

(note (a)lii) (£ @i 287,107 - - - - - 287,107
At31 December 2019 and RO9ENANER

1 January 2020 NOFIAIE MR 117603 — 15 50000 T
Charge for the year REFXH - 1,546 - 499 - - 2,045
Impairment for the year TEERE

(note (a)i) (2 (ali) 52,304 - - - - - 52,304
Disposal of a subsidiary HEHBAR

(note 37) (M337) (340,520) - - - - - (340,520)
Exchange adjustments ERHE (4,046) - - - - - (4,046)
At 31 December 2020 R0ENA3IE — 11919 — 80 50000 — 198
Net book value: FEFE:

At 31 December 2020 20205128318 - 12,276 1,347 1,823 - 147,400 162,846
At 31 December 2019 20198124318 983,499 13822 1434 2322 - 147400 1148477

.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e MR RMTE (E&)
For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) # 22020 12 31 H 1L F/E (B ZE#E B + WA RESHFR)
16. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

China NT Pharma Group Company Limited | Annual Report 2020

On 18 May 2016, NT International, as
the purchaser, entered into (i) an asset
purchase agreement (the “Asset Purchase
Agreement”), (ii) a Licence Agreement (the
“Licence Agreement”) and (iii) a Supply
Agreement (the “Supply Agreement”) with
Novartis AG and Novartis Pharma AG, being
companies organized under the laws of
Switzerland (collectively “Novartis"”).

Pursuant to the Asset Purchase Agreement,
Novartis has agreed to transfer and NT
International has agreed to acquire (a)
exclusive intellectual property rights,
marketing and distribution rights associated
with the trademarks and brand names for
commercialisation of Miacalcic branded
injectable pharmaceutical products for
treatment of bone pains caused by osteolysis
and lower bone mass, osteoporosis,
Paget's disease, hypercalcemia and reflex
sympathetic dystrophy syndrome in all
dosage forms that are approved, marketed,
distributed and/or sold by Novartis and its
affiliates (the “Miacalcic Injection”) and
(b) exclusive intellectual property rights,
marketing and distribution rights associated
with the trademarks and brand names for
the commercialisation of Miacalcic branded
nasal spray pharmaceutical products in the
form of nasal spray mainly for treatment
of postmenopausal osteoporosis, that is
approved, marketed, distributed and/or sold
by Novartis and its affiliates (the “Miacalcic
Nasal Spray”), for use in Mainland China and
other designated countries. Miacalcic is a
well-known international orthopedic brand
for a long time.

16.

BRWEE(E)

72016557180 » Tk B %
Bl 1E & E 75) B Novartis AG
K Novartis Pharma AG (5 &
BB TEFIAREN AR
GRABIFEDIILOEERE
EmE(EEBERHZED
(i) 77 7] 35 1% & ([57 71 8 ¥
& ) B (i) £t 1B 15 2 ([ L FE 173

=DE

BREEEBERR  #HED
AEEERFTEREFED
AEWEQEMEERER
HEtBALTHE 285
HWh/SEENAERES
BAMRENMEKEESBZE
B 5 E B R IE - Paget K
B =M EGE &R ETER
B AR B 2 B EL R
B A2 = BT 5T A Gh b Bk
mUZEBEFE D ZHEE
EEHEABHEBZER
MBERE - ZEHEHEDHER
bEEEREREBBAL
B - &85 DR,
ENFERIERERKLEER
ERRENRELLTEEER
EAGEER(REEEE
Bz BEAEAE K AR & TS AR
BM2BRABERE S8k
D RPEAR & EAM
EEBRRER - REAK
BEBANMEZNERER R
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
GREMEmRMEE (B)
For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) 2 22020412 A31H 1 F /8 (B 5 B #5895+ YA RS T)
16. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

(Continued)

Pursuant to the Licence Agreement,
Novartis has granted exclusive licences for
the respective intellectual property rights,
marketing and distribution rights associated
with the trademarks and brand names of
Miacalcic Injection and Miacalcic Nasal
Spray that were acquired, respectively, by
NT International under the Asset Purchase
Agreement and Second SPA (as defined
below) for an indefinite period of time of
use in Mainland China and other designated
countries, after completion dates of their
acquisitions.

16.

OB %%

BREE &)

EZ
=

EgHE

(&)

RIBFFAERS  wECH
RERBEBTEDHIREEE
BEMERE_MHEERE
W (EE LT OBEMBEN
BRERIFHREERRE
B 2 B4R Ko o bR % T AR RE
ZHHERE B HE
BREBRFAARE  BREE
WEEETKARERRDE
P 3 % B At 5 5 B 5] 3 4 i
FRE -

I F#E#H%E2020
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
mEMBRRMET (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) & Z2020F 12531 H it F & (5 551595 - UA BRI TF)
16. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

(Continued)

The transactions under the Asset Purchase
Agreement, the Licence Agreement, and the
Supply Agreement were approved by the
Company's shareholders at its extraordinary
general meeting held on 7 July 2016. The
purchase price for the exclusive intellectual
property rights, marketing and distribution
rights associated with the trademarks and
brand names of Miacalcic Injection under
the Asset Purchase Agreement and the
Licence Agreement, which mainly include
(@) the marketing authorisations and the
Miacalcic import drug licences, (b) the
transferred property (know-how, books
and records, commercial information,
marketing authorisation data and medical
information (and any and all intellectual
property rights in the foregoing), (c)
the transferred domain names, and (d)
trademarks for commercialisation of
Miacalcic Injection branded drugs, for an
indefinite period of time for use in Mainland
China and other designated countries was
US$145 million (equivalent to approximately
RMB1,006,965,000), after an arm’s length
of negotiations made between the Group
and Novartis.

16.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
mEMBmRMET (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) 2 22020412 A31H 1 F /8 (B 5 B #5895+ YA RS T)
16. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

(Continued)

Pursuant to the Supply Agreement, Novartis
shall manufacture and supply Miacalcic
Injection branded products at the supply
price effective on 7 July 2016 that are based
upon consolidated total production costs
of Novartis. Novartis may adjust the supply
price on a unit-by-unit basis in accordance
with the respective actual percentage
increase or decrease in the consolidated
total production costs, as applicable,
calculated in the ordinary course of business
consistent with past practice and consistent
with the calculation of the supply price in
the basis agreed with Novartis, provided that
(@) there will be no upward adjustment in
the first two years after 7 July 2016, and (b)
the after-adjustment price applicable in the
third and fourth year shall not exceed the
relevant agreed ceiling price applicable in
that period.

The acquisition of Miacalcic Injection at
the consideration of US$145 million was
completed on 7 July 2016. The other direct
costs relating to the acquisition of Miacalcic
Injection amounted to approximately
RMB23,683,000 were also capitalized. The
directors of the Company considered that
Miacalcic Injection shall has an indefinite
period of time of use in Mainland China and
other designated countries based on the
Asset Purchase Agreement and the Licence
Agreement.

16.

BmLEEGH)
M @
RIEHER % - HEEER

2016 F7A7H A MM EE
(IRBEHEEZRAREE
ARG E)RERMTERZ
EOEETBImiRER - 75D
BRIEBGABEEKRANER
BB o L 18 iR sk R i (40
W) RERE B A EFE
HEE  BEEERATIR
—REBFBEFIZBTIEN
HEENAMEBERTE A
EANEEEFTE - @R
2016 F7A7HEBME RN
TEEITERA ROE=ZR
FURFEBERBZARERE
RSB AE@EBEEANER
ZHEBEHEE=E -

R20169F787H » 58 Bk Uk &
REBXEAE - KER145
BEET BHKRBEESR
ESTE Bt EEKABL
A R #23,683,0007T © 75 #
BRI - ARREEZERE
BRIEEEBERERTE
ek B BEE AR R
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
GEMERRMEE (B)
For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) & Z2020F 12531 H it F & (5 551595 - UA BRI TF)
16. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)
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(Continued)

On 25 October 2017, the purchase of
Miacalcic Nasal Spray for curing osteoporosis
had been completed under the two
supplemental agreements: an asset purchase
agreement (“Second SPA”) and a supply
agreement (“Second Supply Agreement”),
both were made on 25 October 2017
between Novartis and NT International.
Based on the Second SPA, the consideration
for the proposed purchase of Miacalcic
Nasal Spray was revised to US$34 million
(equivalent to approximately RMB225.5
million).

16.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
mEMBmRMET (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) 2 22020412 A31H 1 F /8 (B 5 B #5895+ YA RS T)
16. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

According to the Supply Agreement in
relation to Miacalcic Injection, during the
Phase 1 Period (which means the period,
on a country-by-country basis, from the
acquisition completion date (i.e. 7 July 2016
for Miacalcic Injection) until the earlier of
(@) the marketing authorisation date or
with respect to the China Territory, date
of obtaining the Import Drug Licence for
Miacalcic Injection; and (b) two years from
the acquisition date (i.e. 6 July 2018 for
Miacalcic Injection) with respect to the
period in which the Group (as purchaser of
Miacalcic Injection) has not built up its own
sales team and/or has not yet obtained the
legitimate marketing authorisation rights
to distribute, sell or invoice sales for the
Miacalcic Injection branded drug products in
each country of the territories as designated
under the Assets Purchase Agreement and
the Licence Agreement, all the intellectual
property rights, marketing and distribution
rights associated with trademarks and brand
names for commercialisation of Miacalcic
Injection branded drugs are licenced back
to Novartis, which acts in its capacity as a
principal, is allowed to use all these rights
to sell the Miacalcic Injection branded drug
products in those countries as designated
under the Asset Purchase Agreement and
the Licence Agreement and in consideration
of this sub-licensing arrangement for the
use of these rights of Miacalcic Injection in
each of the territories as designated under
Asset Purchase Agreement and the Licence
Agreement.

16.

BRWEE(E)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
A jﬁ%#&%‘%ﬁﬁnf (nﬁ)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) £ fZDZOJ”?—t 2AAUFE (BEFHEAN - UARESTF)

A ﬂ:/ ﬁ F (nﬁ)

=

16.
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INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

(Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2020,
the Group earned sub-licensing fee income
of RMB993,000 (2019: RMB2,733,000) from
sub-licensing these intellectual property
rights, marketing and distribution rights
associated with trademarks and brand
names relating to commercialisation of
Miacalcic Injection branded drugs.

According to the Second Supply Agreement
in relation to Miacalcic Nasal Spray, during
the Pre-MA Transfer Period (which means
the period, on a country-by-country basis,
from the respective closing date (which
was 25 October 2017) until the earlier of
(@) the marketing authorisation date or the
Import Drug Licence for Miacalcic Nasal
Spray Transfer Date; and (b) two years
from the respective closing date (i.e. 25
October 2019 for Miacalcic Nasal Spray)
with respect to the period in which NT
International (as purchaser of the intellectual
property rights, marketing and distribution
rights) has not yet obtained the marketing
authorisation to distribute, sell or invoice
sales for the Miacalcic Nasal Spray branded
products in each country of the territories
as designated under the Second SPA, all
the relevant intellectual property rights,
marketing and distribution rights associated
with trademarks and brand names for
commercialisation of the Miacalcic Nasal
Spray products are licenced back by NT
International to Novartis, which acts in its
capacity as a principal and in consideration
of this sub-licensing arrangement, Novartis
shall pay the Group a sub-licensing fee for
its use of these rights of Miacalcic Nasal
Spray in the relevant territories as designated
under the Second SPA and Second Supply
Agreement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
A jﬁ%#&%‘%ﬁﬁnf (nﬁ)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) EffZOZOfE RANAIEE(GSEEBI YA RS T)

A ﬂ:/ ﬁ F (nﬁ)

r

16.

(iif)

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

(Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2020,
the Group earned licensing fee income
from Novartis, in respect of the intellectual
property rights, marketing and distribution
rights relating to Miacalcic Nasal Spray,
of approximately RMB1,621,000 (2019:
RMB12,793,000).

On 21 April 2020, NT Overseas and Beijing
Kangchen entered into a sale and purchase
agreement, pursuant to which, NT Overseas
agreed to sell and Beijing Kangchen agreed
to purchase the entire equity interest in
NT International which holds the exclusive
licences for the respective intellectual
property rights, marketing and distribution
rights associated with the trademarks
and brand names of Miacalcic Injection
and Miacalcic Nasal Spray. The disposal
transaction was completed on 3 September
2020 and NT International ceased to be
a subsidiary of the Company. In addition,
an impairment loss of approximately
RMB52,304,000 (2019: RMB287,107,000)
on Miacalcic Injection and Miacalcic Nasal
Spray was recognised in the profit or
loss before completion of the disposal of
NT International during the year ended
31 December 2020, by reference to the
professional valuations performed by Jones
Lang LaSalle Corporate Appraisal and
Advisory Limited (“JLL"), an independent
firm of professional and qualified valuers
with qualification and experience in the
assets being valued, on 5 June 2020. Details
of the assets and liabilities disposed of,
and the calculation of the profit or loss on
disposal, are disclosed in note 37.

(iif)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e EEmRMEE (8)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) & Z2020F 12531 H it F & (5 551595 - UA BRI TF)
16. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued) 16. B EE (&)

Intellectual property rights represent patents,
know-how and trademarks in relation to Xi Di
Ke and Songzhi Wan. Xi Di Ke is the commercial
name of an uroacitides injection formula and a
unigue national class 1 new drug approved by the
NMPA for the treatment of non-small cell lung
cancer and breast cancer. An added indication of
Xi Di Ke is for treating myelodysplastic syndrome
("MDS") which is in clinical trial phase Il. At 31
December 2020 and 2019, costs of Xi Di Ke
amounted to approximately RMB38,542,000
of which approximately RMB14,580,000,
RMB3,000,000 and RMB20,962,000 were
respectively related to the patents for drug use in
treating non-small cell cancer and breast cancer,
know-hows for MDS and trademarks of Xi Di Ke
that were acquired by the Group in 2013. The
patents of Xi Di Ke have expired in October 2019.
In 2015 and 2016, the Group submitted two
applications for new patents of which the know-
hows were developed on the existing patents for
Xi Di Ke. Management of the Group is optimistic
in obtaining the new patents for Xi Di Ke such
that the legal protection period of the patents for
Xi Di Ke will be extended further in the future.
On 2 March 2017, the GMP Certificate for Xi Di
Ke has been granted by the NMPA to the Group
and the costs of patents and trademarks for Xi Di
Ke are amortised on a straight-line basis over their
estimated useful lives of 3 years and 10 years,
respectively, commencing from January 2017,
based on the experience of management of the
Group. During the year ended 31 December 2020,
amortisation charge on patents and trademarks of
Xi Di Ke in aggregate amounted to approximately
RMB1,546,000 (2019: RMB5,833,000). The
capitalised cost of know-hows in respect of
product development in progress relating to MDS
of Xi Di Ke, which is still in clinical trial phase I,
is deferred and not subject to amortisation as
regulatory approval for use is not yet obtained at
both reporting period ends.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e SRR (8)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) 2 22020412 A31H 1 F /8 (B 5 B #5895+ YA RS T)
16. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued) 16. B EE (&)

Management is optimistic on advancing to further
testing completion of clinical trial lll and new MDS
products will be launched by the Group in the
future.

During the last year ended 31 December 2019, a
total amount of approximately RMB147,400,000
was capitalised in respect of the product
development cost for MDS of Xi Di Ke, which had
been fully paid by the Group.

As at 31 December 2020, the carrying amount
of the intellectual property rights of Xi Di Ke
and product development in progress relating to
MDS amounted to approximately RMB12,276,000
(2019: approximately RMB13,822,000) and
approximately RMB147,400,000 (2019:
RMB147,400,000), respectively. The directors of
the Company are of the opinion that the carrying
amount of the intellectual property rights of Xi Di
Ke and product development in progress relating
to MDS can be fully recovered, based on the
impairment assessment test as further detailed in
note 16(e) below, and as such, no impairment on
Xi Di Ke and MDS was considered necessary at
both reporting period ends.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e EEmRMEE (8)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) & Z2020F 12531 H it F & (5 551595 - UA BRI TF)
16. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued) 16. B EE (&)

Songzhi Wan, with a cost of approximately
RMB92,883,000 acquired in 2015, is a Chinese
medicine capable of treating Hepatitis C approved
by the NMPA, which was included in the National
Major Scientific and Technical Breakthrough
Program under the “10th Five-Year Plan” and
the National High Technology Research and
Development Program (863 Program) successively
during the course of its development. During
the phase I-lI-lll clinical trial of Songzhi Wan, its
efficacy and safety had been carefully verified
with modern medicine, for which it was finally
approved with a National New Drug Certificate,
and it has 20 years of patent protection from 30
April 2000. After the expiration of the National
New Drug Certificate, the exclusive rights of the
patents for Songzhi Wan, which is classified as a
Type 2 of the Chinese medicine, can be further
extended, at insignificant costs, by 14 years from
30 April 2020. The drug manufacturing permit
for Songzhi Wan was obtained from the relevant
governmental authorities on 1 January 2016
and during the year ended 31 December 2016,
the commercial production for Songzhi Wan
was commenced. The costs of Songzhi Wan are
amortised on a straight-line basis over its useful
life of 18.33 years, commencing from January
2016.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e SRR (8)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) 2 22020412 A31H 1 F /8 (B 5 B #5895+ YA RS T)
16. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued) 16. B EE (&)

During the year ended 31 December 2018,
competitors have launched similar products
with enhanced functionalities at lower cost to
the market, despite of management’'s effort in
launching a number of business initiatives by
offering discount price, Songzhi Wan continued
to suffer loss. In view of the above, the Group
decided not to continue the production of Songzhi
Wan. The Group recognised full impairment of
RMB77,682,000 on the carrying value of Songzhi
Wan as at 31 December 2018.

Exclusive agency rights represent agency fees
of RMB30 million and RMB20 million prepaid to
suppliers to secure the PRC distribution rights
of 10 years and 4 years for two pharmaceutical
products, respectively. These exclusive agency
rights were amortised on a straight-line basis over
their respective useful lives, being the period of
agency rights. By the end of 2012, the Group
decided to terminate a herbal dermatological
product as a consequence of surging raw
materials cost and relinquished the exclusive
agency right. A full impairment loss of RMB17
million was provided accordingly for the remaining
book value of the exclusive agency right, in the
previous years.

Club memberships represent the rights to use the
club facilities over an indefinite period of time.
Accordingly, no amortisation has been charged to
profit or loss during the years ended 31 December
2020 and 2019. Management of the Group
considered that no impairment indicators for the
club memberships for which the expected fair
value less cost of disposal exceeded the carrying
amounts at 31 December 2020. At the end of
both reporting periods, the carrying amounts
of the club memberships were below their fair
value less cost of disposal and accordingly, no
impairment loss was considered necessary.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e EEmRMEE (8)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) & Z2020F 12531 H it F & (5 551595 - UA BRI TF)
16. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued) 16. B EE (&)

As at 31 December 2020, the recoverable
amount of the intellectual property rights of
Xi Di Ke and product development in progress
relating to MDS, which were allocated to
an identified cash generating unit (“CGU"),
had been determined based on a value-in-
use calculations with reference to professional
valuations performed by JLL (2019: JLL), an
independent firm of professional and qualified
valuers with qualification and experience in the
assets being valued. The calculation used cash
flow projections based on financial budgets
approved by management of the Group covering
a five-year period for intellectual property rights
of Xi Di Ke and product development in progress
relating to MDS. Cash flows beyond their
respective projection periods are extrapolated
using the following estimated long-term growth
rates which were based on the relevant industry
growth forecasts and did not exceed the average
long-term growth rates for the businesses of
the CGUs to which intellectual property rights
of Xi Di Ke and MDS product development in
progress relating to are allocated. JLL estimated
the following pre-tax discount rates on basis of
weighted average cost of capital of the relevant
entities with the Group, which also included
additional risk premiums to reflect the size
premium risk and specific risk of the respective
CGUs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
GREMEmRMEE (B)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) 2 22020412 A31H 1 F /8 (B 5 B #5895+ YA RS T)

16. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued) 16. EEEE (&)
Pre-tax Long-term
2020 20204 discount rate growth rate

BR Bt Al B R R RPERE

Xi Di Ke and MDS 27 7 K MDS 21.93% 3%

2019 20194

Xi Di Ke and MDS =@ 5o X MDS 22.32% 3%

Based on the impairment assessment, the BEREF S BEoREBRREK
recoverable amounts of the CGUs, to which these BEBMDSHE m B AE EE
intangible assets of the intellectual property BMEEENRSEEEMATRE
rights of Xi Di Ke and product development CEIORNBESAMNEEE &
in progress relating to MDS are allocated, 2020F 12 A3MBEHAHE R &
exceeded their respective carrying amounts of A BMDS 8 = in 7 B & &0 5 B
these CGUs and accordingly, no impairment for FTIRBE °

intellectual property rights of Xi Di Ke and product
development in progress relating to MDS was
required at 31 December 2020.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
GEMERRMEE (B)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) & Z2020F 12531 H it F & (5 551595 - UA BRI TF)

16. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued) 16. L& E (&)
Proforma sensitivity analysis on potential downside B LMRENERAERAZSE
effects on the carrying amounts of CGUs, to B Ry R REBBLEAT
which these intangible assets are allocated, arising Pl AR T8 B89 S F & B i 9% o BD
from the following unexpected unfavorable ZEBRVEEZHSEXEUL
changes on the assumptions for their respective FEEEXNETAETYENEE
discount rates and long-term growth rates BRETBMANT

applied in the above impairment assessments are
summarised below:

If discount
rate +1% and
If long-term long-term
If discount growth growth
rate +1% rate -3% rate -3%
fisf B 3R =
fisd &= 8 FH1% R
fisf B 3R = BR=E REIERE
FAH1% T 3% T F3%
Proforma downside effects LA & I8 £ /£
on the carrying amounts & E 720204
of following intangible 12A31H
assets at 31 December FARE EE
2020: k2=
— Xi Di Ke and MDS —EBRK
MDS No £ No & Nof&
If discount
rate +1% and
If long-term long-term
If discount growth growth
rate +1% rate -3% rate -3%
fisl Bl 38 &
fin] £ BH EH1% R
fir] B 3R & BRE REPERE
EA1% T F#3% T F%3%
Proforma downside effects AT & 18 £ 2
on the carrying amounts & & 720194
of following intangible 12A31H
assets at 31 December REEZHE
2019: 2=
— Xi Di Ke and MDS —ERRk
MDS No & No # No &

272 China NT Pharma Group Company Limited | Annual Report 2020



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
GREMEmRMEE (B)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) 2 22020412 A31H 1 F /8 (B 5 B #5895+ YA RS T)

17.

18.

GOODWILL 17. &8
Goodwill of RMB1,250,000 was derived from prior year PgE A R151,250,0007T 3 B LARTEE Ut
business acquisitions of NT (BJ) Pharma Technology Co., BREUMGER)BEMBIHREBRAAF
Ltd. and NT Tongzhou Pharma (SH) Co., Ltd. as expected MRERNSELE( LS BRAREL
synergy at acquisition date, was allocated to the vaccine — R EBNTERRR RS - 2R
promotion and sales business segment, which was NFHRELFBHERBEERD
subsequently discontinued In 2012. Full impairment for B (Z o EBREE R IEEE) - Bk - RE
goodwill was therefore made during the year ended 31 F20NRFNRANBLEFEASEGREE
December 2012. TR BURME -
INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 18. RIB AR ZIRE
The following list contains only the particulars of TREHINEISEFEREHEEE  BE
subsidiaries which principally affected the results, assets SBECWBRARFE - BEEFHHA -
or liabilities of the Group. The class of shares held is FrEsRmER AERAR -
ordinary unless otherwise stated.
Proportion of ownership interest
FERERHS
Place of
incorporation and Particulars of Group's Held Held
business and form issued and paid up/ effective by the bya
Name of company of legal entity registered capital interest ~ Company  subsidiary  Principal activities
ARRIR
EEHIR BRTRMR/ -1} AAF KWEAR
ARER EEERZKA  ERRARE ERER k% BE TEEE
NT Pharma (Group) Co., Ltd. BVI, limited fiabiity 9 shares of US$1 each 100% 100% —  Investment holding
company
NT Pharma (Group) Co, Ltd. EBRES.  JRhERER REER
BRAR
Kimford Investment Limited (“Kimford”) BVI, limited fiabiity 1 share of USS1 100% — 100%  Investment holding
company
Kimford Investment Limited ([Kimford ) EBRREE  RER RERR
BRAR
Goldwise Resources Limited BVI, limited fiabiity 1 share of USS1 100% - 100%  Dormant
company
Goldwise Resources Limited EBRABEE  WRIET EmEl
BRAR

OB %%

E:

FEHRE2020
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e BRI (8)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) & Z2020F 12531 H it F & (5 551595 - UA BRI TF)
18. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 18. RMIB AT 2R &E (&)

(Continued)
Proportion of ownership interest
FERERTS
Place of
incorporation and  Particulars of Group's Held Held
business and form issued and paid up/ effective by the bya
Name of company of legal entity registered capital interest ~ Company  subsidiary  Principal activities
ARRIR
EEHER BRARAR/ A5E 508 KERR
AER ERRRZFS  HRBARE ERER ekl K8 IEEH
Tai Ning Pharmaceutical (Investment) BVI, limited fiabiity 1 share of USS1 100% - 100%  Investment holding
Company Limited company
Tai Ning Pharmaceutical (Investment) EBRABEE WRIET RERR
Company Limited ARAFE
Farbo Investment Limited BVI, limited fiabiity 1 share of USS1 100% — 100%  Investment holding
company
Farbo Investment Limited EBRABEE  WRIETR RERR
BRAT
Hurnford Investment Limited BVI, limited liabiity 1 share of US$! 100% - 100%  Investment holding
company
Hurnford Investrment Limited EBRABEE  WRIER REBR
ERRE
One Pharma International Limited Hong Kong, limited 1 share 100% - 100%  Dormant
(-BE(ER)ERAA) liabilty company
—BE(ER)ARAT Bh RRAA 1K EEXH
NTP (China) Investment Co., Limited Hong Kong, limited 15,000,000 shares 100% - 100%  Investment holding
(RETE)REERAD) liabilty company
RERE)REERRT & BRAF 15,000,000 RERR

China NT Pharma Group Company Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e RRMEE (8)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) 2 22020412 A31H 1 F /8 (B 5 B #5895+ YA RS T)
18. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 18. RMIB AT 2R &E (&)

(Continued)
Proportion of ownership interest
it 550
Place of
incorporation and Particulars of Group's Held Held
business and form issued and paid up/ effective by the bya
Name of company of legal entity registered capital interest ~ Company  subsidiary  Principal activities
ARRIR
EesuR BRIRMR/ A58 AR WEAF
raER EEERZFA  ERRARE ERER k% ¥E IEEE
NT Pharma (HK) Limited Hong Kong, limited 2 shares 100% — 100%  Trading of prescription
(RABEER)ERLA) liability company medicnes
FEBE(EB)ERAA B ERAT 2R BERAE
NT Pharma (Overseas) Holding Co. Ltd BVI, limited fiabiity 1 share of USS1 100% — 100%  Investment holding
company
NT Pharma (Overseas) Holding Co. Ltd EBROBEE WIER REZR
BRAR
NT Pharma Pacific Company Limited Hong Kong, limited 1 share of HK$1 100% - 100%  Dormant
liability company
RERZ(DNERRT B4 BRRE WRIER EEXH
NT Pharma (SH) Co,, Ltd. PRC, limited fiability ~ US$2,000,000 100% - 100%  Dormant
(REBREZ(LE)BRAR) Mote () company
ZREEZH(LR)BRDA ML) RECARAA 2000,000% 7 EEER
NT (B) Pharma Technology Co,, Ltd. PRC, limited liability  RMB10,000,000 100% - 100%  Research and development
(REIR)EENEREERAA) company of prescription medicines
(note (i)
FELR)BENRREARAAMGEY) PE-BRAA  ARH10,000,0007 ET WL

hEExEE

EgHE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
GEMERRMEE (B)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) & Z2020F 12531 H it F & (5 551595 - UA BRI TF)

18. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 18. RB AR 2R & (&)
(Continued)
Proportion of ownership interest
FERERTS
Place of
incorporation and  Particulars of Group's Held Held
business and form issued and paid up/ effective by the bya
Name of company of legal entity registered capital interest ~ Company  subsidiary  Principal activities
ARRIR
EZHEUR BRARAR/ A58 KAH HEAR
AER ERERZKE  ERRAHE ERER K& KA FEEE
Guangdong NT Pharma Co,, Ltd. PRC, limited liability ~ RMB20,000,000 100% — 100%  Sales of prescription
(EEREBEARLT) Mhote () company medicines
BREFZBERRLA (M) mE-BRAA ARK20,0000007 BERHE
NT Tongzhou Pharma Consulting (SH) Co,, Ltd. ~ PRC, limited iability ~ US$3,370,000 100% — 100%  Provision of logistics and
(RARABERDLRERDA) company consulting services
(note (i)
RERAREZA LB ARAAMEG) #& BRRA  3370000%7% REDRREARE
Hainan Tai Ling Medical Information PRC, limited liability ~ RMB100,000,000 100% - 100%  Dormant
Consulting Co,, Ltd. company
(BERBEECSHAARAT) (ote ()
BEZEEEERH uﬁm BAFAMED %8 ERRA  AR1000000007 EEXH
NT Tongzhou Pharma (SH) Co,, Ltd. PRC, limited liability  RMB50,000,000 100% — 100%  Sales of prescription
(RERABE(LE)ERAF) (hote () company medicines
FARABE(LE)BRAF (M) w8 ARRA ARES00000007 BeERAE
Suzhou First Pharmaceutical Co,, Ltd. PRC, limited liability ~ RMB181,625,000 100% - 100%  Manufacturing of
(”Suzhou First Pharma”) company prescription medicines
ENESHEERLA) hotes ()
H EHERRAA (W) RECBRAA ARHI816250007 HERNE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
GREMEmRMEE (B)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) 2 22020412 A31H 1 F /8 (B 5 B #5895+ YA RS T)

18. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 18. RB AR 2R & (&)
(Continued)
Proportion of ownership interest
FEREEHA
Place of
incorporation and Particulars of Group's Held Held
business and form issued and paid up/ effective by the bya
Name of company of legal entity registered capital interest ~ Company  subsidiary  Principal activities
ARRIR
EesuR BRIRMR/ A58 ARR WEAR
kL ERERZER  ARRAES ERER L] BE IZEE
NT Pharma (China) Co,, Ltd. PRC, limited liability ~ US$11,851,400 100% - 100%  Dormant
f*/&f‘%@ REDERAT) fhote () company
ARE(ME)ARAR (M) RECERAE 11851400%T EEXH
NT Pharma (Jiangsu) Co,, Ltd. PRC, limited iability ~ RMB276,600,000 100% — 100%  Sales of prescription
( /x%iﬁxléﬁ BRAT) (note () company medicines
BE(IH ARAA M) RECERAE AR2I66000007 HERNE
NT Pharma Information Consulting (SH) Co,, Ltd.  PRC, limited liability ~ US$26,500,000 100% — 100%  Provision of consulting
(RABEEEHDLDERAA) company services
(note (i)
FARBERRN( LR ARAAMED HE BRAT  26500000%7 RUEARS
NT (Jiangsu) Biotechnology Co,, Ltd. PRC, limited liability ~ U5$30,070,000 100% — 100%  Investment holding
(FEIH)EMMRERAT) Motel)  company
& L&) £ R BARAR (FE0) hECBRAR 30,070000% T REBR
NTP (China) Investment Co,, Ltd. PRC, limited liability ~ US$30,000,000 100% - 100%  Provision of consulting
(RR(PE)REBRA) Mote () company services
FR(PE)RERRRA () BB ERAE 3000000057 REEARE
NT Biopharmaceuticals Jiangsu Co,, Ltd. PRC, limited liability ~ RMB112,359,550 89% - 89%  Manufacturing and sale of
(ﬁéﬁ% VETHERLE) hote (i) company prescription medicines
FRENHETHARRA (i) BB BRAE AREN23595507 RERHERNE
NT Pharma (Changsha) Co,, Ltd PRC, limited liability ~ RMB10,000,000 100% — 100%  Manufacturing and sale of
(REBEED)BRAF) (ote () company prescription medicines
FEBE(RD)ERDA M) RECARAF AR100000007 EERHERAE
NT Pharma (Jiangsu) Investment Co,, Ltd. PRC, limited liability ~ RMB36,000,000 100% - 100%  Investment holding
(THERAREBERAT) (hote (i) company
THERAREARAT (W) wECERAE ARM360000007 REBR

hEFEEBEER | FE#HRE2020
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e MR RMTE (E&)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) # 22020 12 31 H 1L F/E (B ZE#E B + WA RESHFR)

18. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)

Notes:

(U]

(ii)

China NT Pharma Group Company Limited |

The English translation of the company names is for reference
only. The official names of these entities are in Chinese.

On 11 August 2015, the Group made an investment agreement
(“Investment Agreement”) with two independent third parties
(“New Investors”), pursuant to which, the registered capital of
NT Biopharmaceuticals Jiangsu Co., Ltd (2 Z £ MR BT #H A
[ 72 &]) was increased to RMB112,359,550 by RMB12,359,550
which was acquired by the New Investors for an aggregate sum
of RMB50,000,000 in cash (“Invested Capital”) in November
2015, and another wholly-owned indirect subsidiary of the
Company shall transfer its intellectual property rights and
trademark of Xi Di Ke, with carrying amount of RMB12,276,000
(2019: RMB13,822,000) at 31 December 2020 (note 16(b)), to
NT Biopharmaceuticals Jiangsu Co., Ltd (Z=/% 4 ¥) B 25T &
A PR /A 8]) at no consideration, and such transfer has not been
completed as at 31 December 2020.

18. RIfBAR Z2RE (&)

BT

(U]

(i)

Annual Report 2020

RAIEWZEXERER2EZR - 2%
ERUPXBEALTE -

2015 8ANNH  AEBHEME B 7 5
=H(HBEEDITUREHB#H(RE
WED Bt REEMBEETHER
AR WEMERR2015F AL NARE
12,359,550 T = A R #112,359,550 7T * J9H
FREENR S HE A ARS0,000,000
T(|AE®]) » LARMN2020612/318 -
ARANS—HEEZEMNBRARABHE
BEEE A A R #12,276,0007T (20194 : A
R #513,822,0007T) ) = )i 5o &1 A A= R 7S
BEMF16O)UNEREEETREZEDE
BETHAMR DA - MM EEN20206128
31H® AR T °



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e BEHmRMTE (F&)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) 2 22020412 A31H 1 F /8 (B 5 B #5895+ YA RS T)

18. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(i)

(Continued)

Based on the Investment Agreement, when the board of
directors of NT Biopharmaceuticals Jiangsu Co., Ltd (F%& 4
)8 %557 &k 5 PR A F]) declares distribution of its profits, the
New Investors shall be entitled, out of the declared profit of
NT Biopharmaceuticals Jiangsu Co., Ltd (Z=/% 4 ¥) 5L 25T &
B BR/AF]), to a dividend at the higher of a preferred dividend
calculated at 8% of the Invested Capital, or a dividend out
of profit declared for distribution in accordance with their
respective shareholdings in NT Biopharmaceuticals Jiangsu Co.,
Ltd (REE YR BT E# AR A F]). In addition, according to the
terms of the Investment Agreement, the Group has undertaken
to the New Investors that NT Biopharmaceuticals Jiangsu Co.,
Ltd (FEEWR BT 4 AR A7) shall submit application
for an initial public offer listing in a recognised stock exchange
in the PRC (the "“IPO") before 31 December 2019 and obtain
the approval from China Securities Regulatory Commission
for the IPO before 31 December 2021 and failing which, the
Group shall repurchase from the New Investors for their equity
interests in NT Biopharmaceuticals Jiangsu Co., Ltd (=& £ %)
B BT &AM A A]) at the consideration to be determined
at the higher of the fair value of their equity interests in NT
Biopharmaceuticals Jiangsu Co., Ltd (R EEMRETEHABR A
7)) at the repurchase date and the Invested Capital plus a return
calculated at the annual rate of 30% over the prevailing interest
rates, to be announced by the People’s Bank of China from time
to time, during the period up to the repurchase date.

In March 2017, the GMP certificate was granted by NMPA for Xi
Di Ke which was commercially launched during the year ended
31 December 2017.

OB 2k

18. RIfBAR Z2RE (&)

&

EZ
=

BT

(i)

& F |

(&)
(&)

BRIEREWSE  TEEVRETHRARA
RIEREEERafR  MREEFENSR
EEYRETIHERAFMNE S IKE R+
WK S - EESRIRBAELES8%TH
MELIRE HRBEEESENRELEY
RETHABRAFRNREXTH D IR &
Fp DR AR S (AR S EA%E) o B -
BEREBEOGER  AEEBRFIRE
ERGE  REEMEEIHARIARNAR
201912 A31ART IR X N P B R Al F 5
REGFERARABELTHBEF(ERA
B2 &) I M2021F12 A31H BT ER 1§ H B
BHREBEEEZEQHERRHAEENH
TR AEBABBHREENRE
EMRETHRARARNRE  RETDIER
BERTZEYBGETER A R A A2
RECRSHMNAREREAZRS M ERE
EIEHATHEETEARBITTEAME
BITFEI%NERHE AR D E
BT

20174638 - BREEFERNREE2017
FRAJNBLEFE LTHER = EEGMP

KE o

i}

FEHRE2020
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e MR RMTE (E&)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) # 22020 12 31 H 1L F/E (B ZE#E B + WA RESHFR)

18. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(i)

China NT Pharma Group Company Limited | Annual Report 2020

(Continued)

Summarised financial information in respect of NT
Biopharmaceuticals Jiangsu Co., Ltd that has non-controlling
interests is set out below. The summarised financial information
below represents amounts before intra-group elimination:

NT Biopharmaceuticals Jiangsu Co., Ltd

18. RIfBAR Z2RE (&)

s (8)

(i (&
ERRAIERBEENT R EMEETH
BERARMZHMBEMBERIINT - T5I
MBARNBERETREEANQR MY HA
ZEE:

REEMHETHARAT

2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥ TR AR¥EFTT
Non-current assets EREBEE 258,035 123,384
Current assets mEEE 364,649 381,622
Current liabilities wnEaE (479,631) (483,841)
Non-current liabilities ERBBEE (35,731) —
Net assets BEEFE 107,322 21,165
Carrying amount of NCI EEREEREE 6,143 (3,335)
Revenue W & 51 1,067
Loss for the year FAEE (21,036) (51,016)
Total comprehensive income EAEL N K 107,196 —
Loss allocated to NCI DETIHEERER ZER (2,314) (5,612)
Total comprehensive income allocated to NCI 7 B2 F3E e i 25 2 2 E A
B 11,792 —
Cash flows generated from/(used in) kE, (BR)
operating activities BERE 11,732 (76,950)
Cash flows used in investing activities AREEEH RERE (163) (70,411)
Cash flows (used in)/generated from (AR)/ REMEESHZ
financing activities BERE (15,968) 82,113

As at the date of the approval for the consolidated financial
statements, the Group is still in the progress of negotiation
with the investors for an extension of time for the submission
of application for an initial public offer listing in a recognised
stock exchange in the PRC (the “IPO") before 31 December
2022. In this connection, fair value of imputed interest payable
of approximately RMB16,199,000 was recognised as financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss in the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2020 (2019:
RMB13,112,000) (note 29).

HEMESRAVBEHREZA  AEBRDE
15 & & 1 & R R20229F12A318 Z Al
HAEETRRABEFRZABITERRH
BREIM(EAAFAZEE])MKME - ALt
B R2020F 12 A318 4R & B & kR RAY IR
AREIABENERBERIAEMNESR
F BB A R E K A K%16,199,0007T (2019
£ AR #13,112,0007T) (Kt 5£29) °



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
GREMEmRMEE (B)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) 2 22020412 A31H 1 F /8 (B 5 B #5895+ YA RS T)
19. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE 19. REEE QR 2R

2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARTR ARET T
At 1 January M1A1H 16,891 16,918
Share of post-acquisition profit/(loss) DMENER R (EEB) 8 27)
At 31 December W12 A31H 16,899 16,891
(@) Details of the Group's interest in an associate, (@ FHREZEZREEUBHREF
which is accounted for using equity method in the RzARE @ NN ol g
consolidated financial statements, are as follows: =R ONE
Proportion of ownership interest
e $:5:0)
Place of Group's Held Held
Form of business incorporation  Particulars of issued ~ effective by the bya
Name of company  structure and business and paid up capital interest ~ Company  subsidiary  Principal activities
ARRILYE  BRAR 158 A7 WEAR
AER EREREE  RER HERAFE ERER KA BE TEER
ZMEEHEE  Incorporated PRC, limited liability  RMB100,000,000 40% - 40%  Sales of prescription
BEERAA company medicines and provision
("BREE" of consulting services
FNEERRE  afRT wE - BERAE AREI00,000,000 HERAERRMEN
B4HRT i
([BRBE|)~
e B Z= 88 5 is an unlisted corporate entity whose quoted L BRBERIFIITHEER WE
market price is not available. 5 WA o

hEFEEBEER | FE#HRE2020
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
mEMBRRMET (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) & Z2020F 12531 H it F & (5 551595 - UA BRI TF)
19. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE

(Continued)

(b)

On 18 September 2016, the Group entered into
an investment agreement with an independent
third party (FME ZE 2 EH R DT, New
Investor), pursuant to which, the Group and New
Investor agreed to establish a company (Z= /)1 &
B ARBEGRAGE], "BERBE"), which
has registered capital of RMB100 million. The
Group and the New Investor contributed RMB40
million and RMB60 million to & %z % %% in which
the Group and New Investor own 40% and 60%,
respectively. Since the Group has the power to
appoint two directors out of five directors of
the board of & Z= £ %, the Group can only
exercise significant influence over its operating
and financial activities, accordingly, it is regarded
as an associate using the equity accounting
method. The Group has contributed RMB20
million to capital of Z2Z= %%, with the balance of
RMB20 million (2019: RMB20 million) as disclosed
under capital commitments in note 39(a) to the
consolidated financial statements.

Summarised financial information of the associate,
adjusted for any differences in accounting policies,
and reconciled to the carrying amounts in the
consolidated financial statements, is disclosed
below:

19. REE QT 2= (&)

(b)

China NT Pharma Group Company Limited | Annual Report 2020

MR2016F9A18H  AE B EH— £
BYE=—_FFEMNEEBEEMER
FRAR(FTIREE) IR EWZE -
BUAEERFHREEREXL
—HAoRRMNEERBRERZS
RAorl (BB FMEXRE
AREEI0EE T - AEBE LT
BEDRARFBETEARE
40E T ARBOEE L ' &
EERTREENHFBERARE
BEEI40% 2 60% - ANEE A A
ZIBTBERALREEZGKET
MREZES  ASEEZATHEL
ERMBEDITEERTES
WMERAFRAES ST EAZHE
AR REBRF RN EH R E
FEARE2HE T $#BEAR
0H & T (20194 : A R 208
BL)GIEAEREAERSE  #
— S HBER R RERM T
39(a) °

ZHENR 2 HEERSR (e
TR ZEMZEELEAE R
BRAMBREANZEEEYER)
BEWNT:



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
GREMEmRMEE (B)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) & 220204 12315 1 FE (b S H 1B - UA RIS T)
19. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE 19. REE QT 2= (&)

(Continued)
() (Continued) © #&)
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR TR ARETIT
Gross amounts of the ZHMEQATUTEE
associate’s Z
Non-current assets EMBEE — —
Current assets mENE E 50,425 50,596
Non-current liabilities REaE — —
Current liabilities mEAE 8,179 8,370
Total equity ERHEE 42,246 42,226
Revenue Uk = — —
(Profit)/loss for the year FRCRF), B8 (20) 68
Other comprehensive (income)/loss ~ Hfth 2 mE (W A) /& & — —
Total comprehensive (income)/ Z2E (W A), EIEHEE
loss (20) 68
Reconciliation to the Group’s HAEERZHE AT
interest in the associate Em 2Bk
Gross amount of net assets of ZBFEATEEFEE
the associate ok - 42,246 42,226
Group's share of net assets of the AN [B 5 15 B & A &
associate BEFE 16,899 16,891
Carrying amount in the consolidated R 45 & M & @® &k A 2
financial statements REE 16,899 16,891
Aggregate amounts of the Group’s ANEB D5 Z 5 Z A7
share of the associate ATR&I8 2 85
(Profit)/loss for the year FRCEF),EBE (8) 27
Other comprehensive (income)/loss ~ H 2 & (W A) & 18 — —
Total comprehensive (income)/ Z2®E (KW A), EiEHALE
loss (8) 27

B REEESHE

I F#E#H%E2020
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THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

As at 31 December 2020, the Group's financial asset at
FVTPL represents the club debenture that is stated at
fair value. The fair value is determined with reference
to the recent similar market transactions around/or at
the reporting period end and the cost of disposal is
estimated by management of the Group after taking
into account of the handling charges to be charged by
the club and other transaction costs in disposal of the
club debenture.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
GEMERRMEE (B)
For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicatec) & Z2020F 12531 H it F & (5 551595 - YA BRI F)

20. FINANCIAL ASSET AT FAIR VALUE 20 RAREIANEZ2EME

=

202012 A318 » AEEIZ R 2 E
ABEMEREERBRANEIED
CHES  ARNBEBLRBRBESHERANRZ
SERBREMANEHEUMBERSE
T HEXNARAEEEEELEED
kB FEERLESHMESFNE
X B A& AT o

RMB'000

ARET T

At 31 December 2019 and 1 January 2020 7201912 A31H KX 202051 H1H 571
Exchange adjustment ME 5, 38 B (34)
At 31 December 2020 M2020412 A31RH 537

21. INVENTORIES

(@ Inventories in the consolidated statement of
financial position comprise:

. FE&

@ HAEUBRARRANTFERRE:

2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T AR TIT

Raw materials & % 12,467 7,735
Finished goods &Y o 14,820 26,726
27,287 34,461

China NT Pharma Group Company Limited | Annual Report 2020



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
GREMEmRMEE (B)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) 2 22020412 A31H 1 F /8 (B 5 B #5895 * U RS T)

21. INVENTORIES (Continued) 21. #E (&)
(b) The analysis of the amount of inventories by HRAERZUFABZENTE
recognised as an expense and included in profit or BEOMMT:

loss is as follows:

2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR T T AR T T

Cost of inventories sold (note) BEEFERA (M) 106,738 102,725
Write-down of inventory in normal 7 B & %5 8 12 & U
course of business FE 392 2,361
107,130 105,086
Note: B 5 -
Cost of inventories sold includes RMB17,095,000 (2019: EERFERKRAKREIE AR K17,0950007T
RMB20,386,000) relating to staff costs, depreciation and (20194F : AR #20,386,0007T) BB E T AR
amortisation expenses, which amount is also included in the A -HERBHERAI(HSBETIEFAE
respective total amounts disclosed separately for each of these MR FEIOROBIEESENRSTZ
types of expenses in note 7(b) and (c) above, and raw materials HEAESEN) REME A R1,285,0007T
of RMB1,285,000 (2019: RMB1,171,000). (20194 : A B #1,171,0007T) °

TEFREABEER | FE®REF2020 285



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
GEMERRMEE (B)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) & Z2020F 12531 H it F & (5 551595 - UA BRI TF)

22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 22. ES R EHMEWRRKE
2020 2019
RMB'000 RMB’'000

AR®B T ARETIT

Trade debtors and bills receivables BSRBRER R ERERE 652,102 683,953
Less: Loss allowance (note 36(a)) A RS 18 B 5 (B 7E36(a)) (626,138) (620,373)
25,964 63,580
Deposits, prepayments and other & BEAREREM
receivables (note (c)) JiE U 3k 3 (B 3£ () 394,395 115,891
420,359 179,471
Current portion BB &6 5 420,359 161,895
Non-current portion JEBNER &0 > — 17,576
420,359 179,471
All of the trade and other receivables are expected to be FIEE S Kk E AW KB SR AR
recovered or recognised as expenses within one year. —FRTFLAMNEIHER B
Ageing analysis of trade debtors and bills EOMBERRERER &%
receivables, based on the invoice date and net of EHHFELRNBRBEREFEDE
loss allowance, is as follows: RO :
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR® T ARET T

Within 3 months =@AR 17,973 61,502
More than 3 months but within BE=EAERSEAR
6 months 7,159 1,689
More than 6 months but within BRANEAER—FA
1 year 832 389
25,964 63,580
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

mEM KRR (B)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) 2 22020412 A31H 1 F /8 (B 5 B #5895 * U RS T)

22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 22. B 5 & Hth fE Y 58 ()
(Continued)

Trade debtors are normally due within 60 to 180
days from the date of billing. All trade debtors are
related to non-vaccine business.

As at 31 December 2020, bank acceptance bills
received amounting to RMB6,496,000 (2019:
RMB2,750,000) are held by the Group for future
settlement of trade receivables. The Group
continues to recognise their full carrying amounts
at the end of the reporting period. All bank
acceptance bills received by the Group are with a
maturity period of less than six months.

The movement in the loss allowance account
during the year, including both specific and
collective loss components, is as follows:

BOREWBER—MMNHALEER
60B £180HE|HifES - FTEE S
RS R IETEER -

#H E2020512A8318 » & W R 1T
5 E R A A K #6,496,0007T
(20194 : AR¥2,750,0007T) » i
AEEFEE AEBRENES
FEUR R IE o ZN £ B 42 48 10 R 5 AP
REREETEE - ANEBE K
Mz 2ERITERAER 2 FHY
DRANEAR -

RENBEBRBERNED (BFEE
AR KRB EED)MT

2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T AR T T

At 1 January M1A1H 620,373 486,006
Impairment loss recognised during 4 A #E 52 HY U6 & /&5 18

the year 6,323 134,337
Exchange differences e+ =% (558) 30
At 31 December M12A318 626,138 620,373

Impairment losses on trade debtors were recorded
using an allowance account unless the Group is
satisfied that recovery of the amount is remote,
in which case the impairment loss is written off
against the trade debtors directly.

OB %%

B 5 R RRE R 2R E R R R
PR AR AT B - MM AN SR B RE R
ZAR Z AW E R BB &
B ZRURIMERERSR

g S I F#E#H%E2020
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

AN
N

+ 23 =
B iRk Myt (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) # 22020 12 31 H 1L F/E (B ZE#E B + WA RESHFR)

22. B 5 K HAth FE W R (BR)

22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(Continued)

China NT Pharma Group Company Limited | Annual Report 2020

Due to the slow down of the economy,
deleveraging and the government regulations
on the medicine industry in the PRC, the
Group experience defaults in payments by
its customers. The Group has recognised a
provision for impairment loss of trade receivables
of RMB6,323,000 (2019: RMB134,337,000),
of which, a reversal of impairment loss of
RMB1,390,000 (2019: impairment loss of
RMB133,072,000) and impairment loss of
RMB7,713,000 (2019: RMB1,265,000) were
related to continuing operations and discontinued
operations, respectively, during the year ended
31 December 2020. The Group uses a provision
matrix to calculate ECLs for trade receivables. The
provision rates are based on days past due for
groupings of the customers. The provision matrix
is initially based on the Group’s historical observed
default rates. The Group will calibrate the matrix
to adjust the historical credit loss experience with
forward-looking information. For instance, if
forecast economic conditions (i.e., gross domestic
product) are expected to deteriorate over the next
year which can lead to an increased number of
defaults, the historical default rates are adjusted.
At each reporting date, the historical observed
default rates are updated and changes in the
forward-looking estimates are analysed. The
assessment of the correlation among historical
observed default rates, forecast economic
conditions and ECLs is a significant estimate.
The amount of ECLs is sensitive to changes in
circumstances and forecast economic conditions.
The Group's historical credit loss experience and
forecast of economic conditions may also not be
representative of a customer’s actual default in
the future. The information about the ECLs on the
Group's trade receivables is disclosed in note 36(a)
to the consolidated financial statements.

At 31 December 2020, trade receivables of
RMB4,139,000 (2019: RMB797,000) were pledged
to secure for the Group'’s borrowings (note 27).

MR PR ERE - 2ERLER
BRESERTEZEE  ~N&E
BEREFHARIE AEEBREZE
2020F 12 ABMH L FERE S E
WOk IE R (B A R #66,323,0007T
(20194 : A R #134,337,0007T) *
H /A R #1,390,0007T (20194 :
B B 18 A R #133,072,0007T ) £
BESEEBRNBRAERBERDS
BN A R#7713,0007T (20194 :
AR #1,265,0007T) BB 4% |F & &
EBHNRERBIEBER - AE£E8E
BREEETEZEFERFIEZ
EHEEER BEXDRES
HEFBPBAHSGTE - BEHER
BEUERAEEERAENES
BENEFE AEEBERARE
BEHR BEUSEBRIEEER
HBAEEBBERIEFLAE -
Blan - fis 78R E AR S (B R A B
BE)BEFTHRARR—FAZL
AR EMEN LN - BIYE
FENEERFAE REREAR
B BRAENELENXRES
B WHNMATEMEFEES -
BRMEMELELER  FBBIL
BERARTBEEBEEREE 2 HHHE
Bt ST B —IHE KRS o TBES
EEBESEYREZCRIAN
KERAKRABX - AEBEBAE
FEEBBELER RELEBERRE
FEAAEANERERFARKE
REN c BREASEE S EWK
HNEHEEEBEBNERRNES
B 75 3R % MY 52 36(a) 1 55 ©

2020912 A318  AR¥E4,139,000
JC(20194F : A R #7970007T) 2 B
SEWRAECEKBEAAEBER
(B 5E27) 2 ¥ 1R -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e PBwRME (F&)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) 2 22020412 A31H 1 F /8 (B 5 B #5895 * U RS T)

22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(Continued)

22. B 5 K HAth B W R (BR)

2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ TR ARBTT
Consideration receivable (note 37)  J& Ug X (& (Kt 5£37) 360,000 —
VAT recoverable, net of write-off ~ RJ U B 12 (B 7 (AR F0 KR i 88)
(note (ii)) (B 3 Gi)) 5,703 60,886
Other receivables, net of allowance  H ftb & It 50 18 (& 0 B
for impairment loss (note (iii)) R 1B 5 18 B 8 ) (PH R (i) 6,841 4,090
Prepayments TE RIA 20,016 23,977
Prepayments for acquisition of an W EF & E 2 B
intangible asset (note (iv)) K IB (M FEGv) — 17,576
Advances paid to suppliers [RENEEY SN 306 86
Rental and other deposits HekHEtize 1,529 9,276
394,395 115,891

Notes: B 7 -

(i) The Group has applied the general approach to (i) REBERA-—RAEREMER
provide for 12-month expected credit losses on other FEMNREREREEBBTIRE
receivables. The Group considers the historical loss rate B AEERTEEMEEEEE
and adjusts for forward looking macroeconomic data in RERELBEBXILRATE RS
calculating the expected credit loss rate. KBEIRELAE -

(ii) The VAT write-off for the year ended 31 December (ii) H E20206 128318 It FE W E
2020 of RMB57,410,000 (2019: RMB10,969,000) was o 88 A K #57,410,0007T (2019
mainly derived from the dormant subsidiaries that used F: AR ®10,969,0000T) £ 2%k B
to engage in distribution and promotion of vaccine BEREREEROHEREENT
products. Despite of the discontinued distribution and ERMEAR  c BEXSTEEESE
promotion of vaccine products commencing in 2012, B A F B R2012F IR It 5
these dormant subsidiaries are still entitled to the VAT HREREEHER  ENEEEZSR
recoverable. Given that these dormant subsidiaries AR EIEER - SRR ENERN
ceased their commercial activities and accordingly the BARFILEEEES - Bk
VAT recoverable was not yet utilised for more than 7 Bl E R & R EABIBTF - ANAR)
years, the management of the Company considered ERERARDAZSITROIEER
the probability of utilising such VAT recoverable to be KR BE I E I o
remote.

(i)  For the purpose of impairment assessment (i) BEAMBUFENRETENS
of other receivables, debtors with significant R2020F12A3BEEEAKER
outstanding balances with gross carrying amounts of 4% HERTE #1873 AR #10,558,000
RMB10,558,000 as at 31 December 2020 were assessed TC B FE W BR SR B AT E BIFE 1 o 3
individually. These individually assessed receivables SEBFENEBRBEFEBSER
mainly comprised deposits paid for certain service BAEFERE TREHE R
agreements in prior years for distributing and marketing 2 URBEBBRRSHEREHTE
Miacalcic business in countries of the European Union BEB U AEEERETE
to help the Group expand its Miacalcic business. These BER o 337 er - 2%
service agreements have been early terminated this year REBBZERAFELETEEE
upon the disposal of the Miacalcic business as detailed BERIBFEKRIL -
in note 37.

(iv) It represented deposit paid to an independent third vy HAIN—®BBIYE=ZF2&d -

party for the acquisition of product right of Teriparatide.

hEFEEBEER | FE#HRE2020
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
GEMERRMEE (B)
For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) & Z2020F 12531 H it F & (5 551595 - UA BRI TF)
22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(Continued)

The remaining financial assets included in the
above balances are neither past due nor impaired
as at 31 December 2020 and 2019, for which
there was no recent history of default. Their
recoverability was assessed with reference to
credit status of the debtors and the expected
credit loss as at 31 December 2020 and 2019 is
considered by management to be minimal.

23. PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS

22.

23.

Bank deposits of the Group RMB25,520,000 (2019:
RMB40,000,000) were pledged to banks to secure
certain bank borrowings (note 27) and bills payable
amounting to RMB5,520,000 (2019: RMB Nil) (note 26)

as at 31 December 2020.

24.

BEZ K EMERKEGE)

7202049 K2019412H31H » &t
ALiEHROBR T2/ EERR
BMETARE BIL U EEY
ik o HalEM 2 EEBKA
MEERATE mERERA
720204 2019412 A318 1 78
HEEBEBEM-

2EBRITER

MR2020F12A31H - AE B ETFE R
A R #25,520,0007T (20194F : A R &
40,000,0007T) B IR R R 1T - LAE R
AETHRITEE(WE2D RENZEEAR
#55,520,0007T (20194F : A R#EEZ 50 (K

#26) °
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND 2. RERREEEYREMRE
OTHER CASH FLOW INFORMATION nE R
Time deposits comprise short-term bank deposits MR2019F12A31H " T HFRE
with remaining tenure of 176 days at prevailing BERGFHBIT6R ZRPRT
marketing interest rate of 3% per annum as at 31 TR RERTISHEGFIET
December 2019. B
The Group considers that the carrying amounts of AEBERABZBEEENRAEEHR
the assets approximate their fair values. HEAREBEE -
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T R AR®ET T
Cash at banks and in hand RITFER LR S 7,694 28,198

As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s cash
and bank balances placed with banks in the
PRC amounted to RMB5,096,000 (2019:
RMB16,876,000). Remittance of funds out of the
PRC is subject to exchange restrictions imposed by
the PRC government.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
GREMEmRMEE (B)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) & Z2020%F 12315 1 F & (b S H B - UA RIS T)
24. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND

2. BERASEB/YREMRE

OTHER CASH FLOW INFORMATION nER (&)
(Continued)
(©) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from © BERELEZBEHER
financing activities
Accrued Financial Total
interest liabilities at liabilities
including fair value from
Bank Other in other through Lease financing
borrowings  borrowings payable profit or loss liabilities activities
FAEM RARE MEED
EARE JINBE Bk
RITEE HfifEE <EHAE HERaR HEEE aak
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTT AR%Tn ARETn AR%Tn ARETn AR%Tx
At 1 January 2020 202061718 791,545 230,909 11,786 434,949 5,152 1,474,341
Changes from financing cash ~ BB &TEZE
flows:
Proceeds from new bank and ~ #FERTRH LS
other borrowings FEHE 992,861 173,469 - - - 1,166,330
Repayments of bank and other  EERTRHMEE
borrowings (1,278,454) (448,380) - - - (1,726,834)
Proceeds from issue of corporate % {7 A RIE% 5
bonds HE - 14,188 - - - 14,188
Payment for cost of issuing IRBTAREERN
corporate bonds KA - (707) - - = (707)
Repayment of corporate bonds ~ ER AR EH — (9,550) - - - (9,550)
Repayment of lease liabilities ~ EEHEEE - - — — (2.298) (2,298)
Interests paid ERME - (1,556) (62,620) — (1,198) (65,374)
Other changes: 8-
Interest expenses B f% - 4,600 77,652 - 1,198 83,450
Changes in fair value AREZHY - - - 11,265 - 11,265
Addition of lease liabilities REMEEE - - - - 7,030 7,030
Reclassification to liabilities of ~ EH P EZEHEA
adisposal group dlassified s #{EHEZ HE
held for sale arlafE (42,500) - - - - (42,500)
Transfer upon lapse of BB E AR
conversion rights of matured B MR 2 1R 12
redeemable convertible KurER
preference shares - 418,826 - (418,826) - -
Foreign exchange movement ~ ME £ &) 1,409 4,777) - (26,916) (312) (30,596)
At 31 December 2020 1202012 A318 464,861 377,022 26,818 472 9,572 878,745
FRREEREEEHE | FEHRE2020 291



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
GEMERRMEE (B)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) # 22020 12 31 H 1L F/E (B ZE#E B + WA RESHFR)

24. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND 24. BeRASEFEYRE MRS
OTHER CASH FLOW INFORMATION &R (&)
(Continued)
(© Reconciliation of liabilities arising from © BMEIHE BEYHER
financing activities (Continued) (%)

Accrued Financial Total

interest liabilities liabilities

including at fair value from

Bank Other in other through Lease financing

borrowings borrowings payable  profit or loss liabilities activities

STAEM BANE BEED

5B JIANB%H EE2

RTBE  AMEE  cEHAS WeBRAR  AEAE BaR
RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETL ARETR ARETRT ARETLE ARETR ARETX

At 1 January 2019 120191818 859,282 151,268 9,298 391,058 — 1,410,906
Changes from financing cash ~ RE&R &R E22F):

flows:
Proceeds from new bank and ¥ EBRITREMEE

other borrowings FEHE 606,632 416,987 — - — 1,023,619
Repayments of bank and other  EERTRHMEE

borrowings (678,798) (368,595) — - — (1,047,393)
Proceeds from issue of BOAMRRESRME

convertible bonds HE — 120,404 — 79,663 - 200,067
Payment for cost of issuing S‘ﬂﬂ?ﬁ BEFET

convertible bonds A — (205) — (136) — (341)
Proceeds from issue of corporate % {1 AR E% 1’5

bonds HE - 46,937 - - - 46,937
Payment for cost of issuing SRRREREN

corporate bonds AR — (4,747) — — — (4,747
Repayment of corporate bonds BB A& E % — (21,007) — — — (21,007)
Repayment of lease liabilities ~ BEHEE(E - - — — (585) (585)
Interests paid BRME — (1,306) (92,439) - (386) (94,131)
Other changes: Eng
Interest expenses MER% — 5,974 94,927 - 386 101,287
Changes in fair value MREZH — — — 29,853 - 29,853
Conversion into ordinary shares & 14 A I i — (119,558) - (77,213) — (196,771)
Addition of lease liabilities REREAE — — - - 5,639 5,639

Foreign exchange movement  JME & 4,429 4,757 - 11,724 98 21,008

At 31 December 2019 120195124318 791,545 230,909 11,786 434,949 5,152 1,474,341
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
GREMEmRMEE (B)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) 2 22020412 A31H 1 F /8 (B 5 B #5895 * U RS T)

25. CONTRACT LIABILITIES 25. N EE
Liabilities related to contracts with customers: EFEAHEBEaE:
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’'000

AR T ARBETIT

Advances received from customers BEFPRR 5,808 16,022
Movements in contract liabilities: EHaENES:

2020 2019

RMB’'000 RMB’'000

AR® T ARETIT

Balances at 1 January M AT 8 4 8 16,022 12,871
Decrease in contract liabilities as a result B #1:t A BE 2

of recognising revenue during the EHEBERFARR

year that was included in the contract W 25 i A

liabilities (79,018) (11,500)

Increase in contract liabilities as a result of & #) & & & & A U EX
receiving forward sales deposits during & 8 $5 & 1% & m 1 o0
the year 68,804 14,651

Balances at 31 December R12A31TH B 4 & 5,808 16,022
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26. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
GEMERRMEE (B)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) & Z2020F 12531 H it F & (5 551595 - UA BRI TF)

26. ES R HMEAKIE

2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T R AR®EF T
Trade creditors B EMNFE 41,177 27,727
Bills payable (note (a)) FE 15 2= 4% (MY 3£ @) 5,520 7,010
Total trade creditors and bills payable B RNFEBERENEE
(note (b)) # 78 (M 5 (b)) 46,697 34,737
Accrued staff costs FEfHB TRCA 2,475 2,714
Accrued promotional expenses FERTHE E R X 94,552 33,956
Other tax payable H b RS BLIR 2,905 7,510
Interest payable FEAST A B 26,818 11,786
Considerations payable ERHRE 4,971 6,000
Construction costs payable JRE 3 5E AR — 20,105
Refundable deposit (note 38(a)) AR B B & (Y 7E38(a) 1,000 —
Other payables and accruals HMEANRIERESTER 88,746 66,775
268,164 183,583

()

As at 31 December 2020, bills payable of the

All of the trade and other payables are expected to be g5
settled within one year or are repayable on demand. A sk

—

a)

Group RMB5,520,000 (2019: RMBNil) were

secured by the pledged bank deposits.

China NT Pharma Group Company Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e PBwRME (F&)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) 2 22020412 A31H 1 F /8 (B 5 B #5895 * U RS T)

26. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

(Continued)

(b)  Ageing analysis of trade creditors and bills payable
based on the billing date of invoices is as follows:

26. B 5 & H FE A+ ;E (&)

b) BZEMNFEAMENEREZEER
BEFERRE DT

2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT T ARBTTT

Within 3 months 18,243 25,612
More than 3 months but within BE=EAERSEARN
6 months 23,298 1,069
More than 6 months but within BBRANEAER—FA
1 year 1,018 5,180
More than 1 year 4,138 2,876
46,697 34,737

o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
GEMERRMEE (B)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) £ 22020 72/?’ IIHUFE (BEZFERI - UAREST)

Details of bank and other borrowings are as follows:

27. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS 27. RITR

Htf5 &
ﬁ&ﬁ@%fﬁ%@?r

2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR ARET T
Current B
Secured bank borrowings BEBEBETEE 395,000 538,413
Unsecured bank borrowings mIKIRRITEE 69,861 210,632
Secured other borrowings ERHEMEE 57,400 173,086
Unsecured other borrowings mEFEMEER
— Redeemed CPSs (note 35) BB | iR AR E
(Bt 535) 192,984 —
— Other borrowings — HEMER 68,957 26,342
— Corporate bonds (note (v)) — REMEFH (M 5E V) 12,046 9,275
796,248 957,748
Non-current FERE
Secured bank borrowings BEEBETEE — 42,500
Secured other borrowings EEREMEE 21,771 —
Unsecured other borrowings EEFEMEE
— Corporate bonds (note (v)) — RalfE%H (M W) 14,951 14,166
— Convertible bonds (note 30) — Al R E A (f 5E30) 8,913 8,040
45,635 64,706
Carrying amount payable: ATHIBENERE:
— Within one year — — %R 796,248 791,675
— After one but within two years — —FREMFA 16,024 171,073
— After two but within five years — MEBREBRFA 29,611 59,706
Total borrowings EE B 841,883 1,022,454
Less: Current portion of borrowings due  JFi: R —FREEZHEE
for repayment within one year 2 BDER B 17 (796,248) (791,675)
Non-current portion of borrowings M BN As ZSRE R
subject to immediate demand BERzBEZIE
repayment clause B B &6 40 — (166,073)
Non-current borrowings JERNHAEE 45,635 64,706
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e BEHmRMTE (F&)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) 2 22020412 A31H 1 F /8 (B 5 B #5895 * U RS T)

27. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS
(Continued)

Notes:

(U]

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

Secured bank borrowings carry interest rates ranged from
4.35% to 5.44% (2019: 4.30% to 6.30%) per annum.
Unsecured bank borrowings carry interest rates ranged from
4.79% to 6.75% per annum (2019: 5.30% to 5.65%). The
unsecured bank borrowings were guaranteed by certain
subsidiaries of the Company.

Secured other borrowings carry interest rates ranged from
7.00% to 13.82% (2019: 6.50% to 15.00%) per annum.
Unsecured other borrowings carry interest rates ranged from
5.00% to 15.00% (2019: 6.00% to 12.00%) per annum. The
unsecured other borrowings of approximately RMB54,183,000
were guaranteed by a subsidiary of the Company.

As at 31 December 2020, certain bank and other borrowings

27. RITKEMEEE)

BT

(U]

(i)

(iii)

BEFRRITEEFERTF435%E5.44%
(20194 : 4.30% £6.30%) & 1 38 4R 77
EBEEFEEFTFA79%ZE6.75% (20194 :
5.30% ZE5.65%) - BT HRTEEBHAR
RETHBAREER -

BEEBEMEBENERETF7.00%%E13.82%
(20194 : 6.50% Z£15.00%) ° & K 3 H #f
BEFRAEFF500%%15.00% (20194 :
6.00%%12.00%) - BEREMEBEHNAR
#54,183,0007CH ANA Al — M B A R E
IR -

MR2020% 12831 - B FRITRHEMEE

were secured by the following assets of the Group: BAKENATEEFEER:
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET ARBFIT
Intellectual property rights (note 16) 3 EE A (P 5E16) 12,276 —
Fixed assets (note 15) & £ & 2 (Fif3215) 512,411 270,271
Trade receivables (note 22) & 5 B (F aE22) 4,139 797
Pledged bank deposits (note 23) B R 1777 B (M 75 23) 20,000 40,000
548,826 311,068

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had banking facilities
of RMB450,000,000 (2019: RMB799,095,000), which
were utilised to the extent of RMB445,000,000 (2019:
RMB616,304,000).

OB 2k

&

(iv)

EZ
=

20206712 A31H - AEBERRITHEAAR
#450,000,0007T (20194 : A R #799,095,000
7)) MmEFE A S5 A A RKA445,000,000
7T (20194 : A R¥#616,304,0007T) ©

g S I F#E#H%E2020
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
GEMERRMEE (B)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) & Z2020F 12531 H it F & (5 551595 - UA BRI TF)

27. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS 27. RITRHEMEE(E)
(Continued)
Notes: (Continued) MisE: ()
(v) The corporate bonds recognised in the consolidated financial (v) RIFEEUBRERPERNRRESFTEDN

P

statements are calculated as follows:

25% 6.0% 8.0% 0.5% 0.1% 3.0% 8.0% 8.5% 8.5%
Corporate ~ Corporate  Corporate ~ Corporate  Corporate  Corporate  Corporate  Corporate  Corporate
Bondsdue  Bondsdue Bondsdue Bondsdue Bomdsdue Bondsdue  Bondsdue  Bondsdue  Bonds due

019 03 2020 2019 2019 2019 201 L) 201 Total
RO09E  RNBE  R00F O R019F  R019F O R09E  M0nE Mg RnE
Mm% HEMe0% HAM0w HEMos% HEborw HEM30% HEMe0n HEMLS%w HEKSSH
NAE%  0AEE  NAR% LB NAES NRESR MEEF MHEER MHES &3t
RMB'000  RMB'OO0  RMBOO0  RMBOO0  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB0O0  RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB'000
AEETR ARBTT ARETn ARETR ARMTR ARETR ARETn ARETR ARETR ARETI

At 1 January 2019 R019E1A1A
lsuance duiing e jear REEEf 0B 98 4 688 4% - - - 5w
Transaction costs RHER ®) (4,164) (364) - - (176) - - - (4,747)
Interest charged LGS 154 1220 754 2% 7 308 - - - 2469
Interest paid RIS (1) (692) (339) (26) U] (134 - - - (1,308)
Interest payable included in other FARMERFER

payables and accruals (note 26) EERNEMHE

(H3t26) - - (187) - - - - - - (187)

Repayment during the year KERER (4,355) - - (5129 (7038) (4489) - - - (00)
Eichange difference EXZE 5 45 358 138 190 89 - - - 128
Carrying amount as at RO9ENANAR

31 December 2019 and WNEIR1BZ

1 January 2020 EAE . 14,166 9275 - - - - - - 23441
Issuance during the year REREN - - - - - - 10,067 855 3266 14,188
Transaction costs U588 - - - - - - (604) (103) - (707)
Interest charged Bl E - 2,006 359 - - - 861 U 157 3407
Interest paid B8 - (1,010) (99) - - - (@37 (10) - (1,556)
Interest payable indluded in other FARMERFER

payables and accruals note 26) RAEROEMAHE

(Wz26) - - (119 - - - (34 - (148) (300

Repayment during the year TEREE - - 9,550) - - - - - - 9,550)
Eichange difference EXER - (%4) 133 - - - (807) (13) (279) (1926)
Carrying amount as at R00F12A318

31 December 2000 2BEE - W% - - - - B3 %

The Group's corporate bonds were denominated in Hong Kong AEENRRBEHFNABTE  FHAAR
dollars, with duration of three months to four years from the REAHE=MAZNEF -

date subscribed.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
GREMEmRMEE (B)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) 2 22020412 A31H 1 F /8 (B 5 B #5895 * U RS T)

28. LEASE LIABILITIES 28. HEEE
As at 31 December 2020, the lease liabilities were R2020F 12831 A EBE W
payable as follows: ™
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR T ARETTT

Within 1 year —FR 3,156 1,866
After 1 year but within 2 years BR—FERMTER 2,396 2,145
After 2 years but within 5 years HBRMEERAFR 4,020 1,141

9,572 5,152

29. FINANCIAL LIABILITIES AT FAIR VALUE 29. EAAREBEIAEENERMAE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T AR TIT

Put option under redeemable convertible ] f& [B] A] #2 A% (& & B T AY

preference shares (note 35) 2o 2 7 (M9 5£35) — 432,107
Conversion option under convertible AR E 5 TH R AR

bonds (note 30) (B 5£30) 472 2,842
Imputed interest payable under a WEWZEBERIERT 2

redemption clause of an investment FERTHEE F] &

agreement (note 18(ii)) (B 3E18(i)) 16,199 13,112
Financial liabilities at fair value through BRRAREIAERR

profit or loss LHAER 16,671 448,061
Less: Current portion Rk BDER =6 9 (16,199) (445,219)
Non-current portion JERNERZB > 472 2,842

o
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On 18 April 2019, the Company issued 5% convertible
bonds with a principal amount of HK$234,600,000.
The convertible bonds entitle the holder to convert into
ordinary shares of the Company at any time between
the issue date of the convertible bonds and the maturity
date on 17 April 2022 at a conversion price of HK$0.742
per conversion share. If the convertible bonds have not
been converted or redeemed, it will be redeemed on
17 April 2022 at par. Interest accruing at the rate of 5%
per annum on the convertible bonds will be paid semi-
annually until the maturity date.

The major terms of the convertible bonds are as follows:

The bondholder may at any time before the
maturity date requires the Company to convert
the whole or any part of the outstanding principal
amount of the convertible bonds into ordinary
shares of the Company at the initial conversion
price of HK$0.742 per conversion share.

Unless previously converted or purchases and
cancelled, the Company will redeem each bond at
the outstanding principal amount on the maturity
date.

The Company shall not be entitled to redeem
the convertible bonds in whole or in part at any
time prior to the maturity date, except by mutual
consent of the bondholder and the Company.

At initial recognition, the Company determined
the fair value of the embedded conversion
option and liability component based on the
valuations performed by Jones Lang LaSalle
Corporate Appraisal and Advisory Limited (“JLL")
using discounted cash flow approach (as for the
straight debt component) and polynomial pricing
model. The effective interest rate of the liability
component is 24.42% per annum.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
mEMBRRMET (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) & Z2020F 12531 H it F & (5 551595 - UA BRI TF)

30. CONVERTIBLE BONDS 30. AR ES

M2019F 47188 » ARRIEITAEL &5
7%234,600,0007% 7T 2 5% A M AR E 55 o
IMBEEHF FAEATATRKES
BITHEE E E FIHIA (2022F48178)
B 2 AR EZE SRR R%H0.742
BITHBRBREEBRAEARR L@ -
WA R EHFW RS ER - R
2022F4R17HEEEER - AJ R E
FREF RS %AEZHEBIEEFE
EYNEZHHBAAEL -

AR ESZ T BIRKAT

BEBHEAARUEIEHEE ZATH
FEAERERAQR G AIRRE
FHAREELASNE BRI DK
B B B A% 19 0.74278 TT R F1 $4 ¥
REE B AARARE B -

FEMCEBHRREE NEHE -
AR RBIEREHEUAREER

3
a~
(=)
AeBBEAEZNHES -

REBESHAAERNRA —HF
BOARREERIBMAMME
M ESEEE 2 Mo Rk E
%0

R TEREE  AAFRERFE
BT E R FBAER AR ([
EBRTDERMBEREREE (Y
REEB D) B EEER
EHRHE BETRRBEBRER
BEBONRAE - BEFDH
BEBRFEETF24.42% °



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e PBwRME (F&)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) 2 22020412 A31H 1 F /8 (B 5 B #5895 * U RS T)

30. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued)

The debt component of the convertible bonds is
carried at amortised cost and the conversion option is
accounted for as a derivative with fair value through
profit or loss.

30. AR fE 3 ()

A 2 B B 55 10 B 7% B0 0 4% B EH A AN D)
B MRRBERITAET AR ARE

AR -

Financial
liabilities under
Liability conversion
component option at FVTPL Total
BOREHA
BREZBRET
BEEBD Ze@mAaE et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARETR ARETR ARETR
(note 27) (note 29)
(Bt 3£27) (Bt =£29)
At 1 Jaunary 2020 7202051818 8,463 2,842 11,305
Interest amortised and charged B 5 R A B 2 F B
to profit or loss (note 7(a)) (Mt 5£7(a)) 2,029 — 2,029
Interest paid BERFE — = =
Change in the fair value ANVER-4) — (2,322) (2,322)
Exchange difference bE 5, 7= 2 (620) (48) (668)
At 31 December 2020 1R2020%F12 A31H 9,872 472 10,344
Less: Amount due within R —FARIEZ
one year (note (i)) & & (PTG (959) — (959)
Amount due after one year R—FRINBr& 8 8,913 472 9,385

TERHxABESHE |
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
GEMERRMEE (B)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) & Z2020F 12531 H it F & (5 551595 - UA BRI TF)

30. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued) 30. AT R & 2 ()
Financial
liabilities under
Liability conversion
component  option at FVTPL Total
BAREIA
BamomRET
BB ZEREasE st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT
(note 27) (note 29)
(B 5£27) (Fft 7£29)
Fair value at issue date on R ETEE(2019%F
18 April 2019 AR18B) 2 A (E 120,404 79,663 200,067
Issuing costs BT A (205) (136) (341)
Interest amortised and charged # $5 R AT A B = 2 5 B
to profit or loss (note 7(a)) (M 5E7(a)) 4,115 — 4,115
Interest paid BRI — - —

Conversion of convertible bonds BB A[# L E %5 AT @M%
into ordinary shares (note (ii))  (Fff 5% (i)

— Transfer to share capital —BEERAK — — —
— Transfer to share premium ~ — B & Z k7% B (119,558) (77,213) (196,771)
Change in the fair value NAEES — (1,880) (1,880)
Exchange difference IE 5 =% 3,707 2,408 6,115
At 31 December 2019 720194128318 8,463 2,842 11,305
Less: Amount due withinone  J§i: R —FREIHZ &5
year (note (i) (BT 3 ) (423) — (423)
Amount due after one year R—FHEBzEH 8,040 2,842 10,882
Notes: Bt 3% -
(i) The amount represented interest payable which is included in (i) AN AEBAMNEMNSF 2 (M
accruals (note 26). 26) °
(ii) Summary of conversion of convertible bonds during the last (ii) HE2019F12A3BLFEEBRKRESFD
year ended 31 December 2019 was as follows: EHHREENT
Number of ordinary
Date Amount shares converted
A # k| FERzEBEREA
16 May 2019 RMB10,404,000 16,172,506
2019458 16H A R #10,404,0007T
24 May 2019 RMB186,367,000 282,000,000
20194 5H824H A FR#186,367,0007C
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
GREMEmRMEE (B)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) & Z2020%F 12315 1 F & (b S H B - UA RIS T)

31.

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

3. ZFEUBRRKRANWAEH

(@) Current taxation in the consolidated @) ETALRE BRI &R A 2N HR
statement of financial position represents: P IA -
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ETR AR T T
Provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax & i Fl| 13 %1 # & 11,470 12,053
Provision for PRC income tax B AT 1S B B 725 9,026
12,195 21,079
(b) Deferred tax liabilities recognised: by EERNELERIBEAE
The components of deferred tax liabilities RiRE RN &R A # R IR
recognised in the consolidated statement of EHREERLORFENZSHOT
financial position and the movements during the
year are as follows:
Revaluation
surplus on
leasehold land
and buildings
HE L RIEF
B E L&A
RMB'000
AREF T
At 1 January 2019 20191 A1H —
Charged to other comprehensive income 7O EL 2 T UK 2 0 BR —
At 31 December 2019 and 1 January 2020 72019412 A318 &
2020¢1H1 H —
Charged to other comprehensive income P, 2 TE W 55 H BR (63,688)
At 31 December 2020 720204612 A318 (63,688)
PEREBESEERE | FE®RES2020
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e BwRME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) & Z2020F 12531 H it F & (5 551595 - UA BRI TF)
31. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 3. ZEMBEMRRRAWFEH

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(Continued)

In accordance with the accounting policy set
out in note 2(r), the Group did not recognise
deferred tax assets in respect of unused tax
losses of certain subsidiaries amounting to
RMB907,756,000 (2019: RMB&839,591,000)
and other temporary differences amounting to
RMB642,496,000 (2019: RMB568,371,000) as
at 31 December 2020. The directors consider it
is not probable that future taxable profits will be
available to utilise these deferred tax assets. The
tax losses will expire in following years:

(&)

BIEM 20T SR S ETBUR - R
2020F 12 A31TH AL E I K 5t £
LB ARMABAREEEA
R #907,756,0007T (20194F : A R
#839,591,0007T) R Efh s = 2
A R#642,496,0007T (20194 : A
IR #568,371,0007T) 7% R I 1T F
HEE -ZEERB EEKRKE
AR AIERAEEREEREE
EMAEETS -  HEEBBEBER
T FE B HA

2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR T AR T T

2020 20204 — 40,760
2021 20214 95,354 95,354
2022 20224 74,064 74,064
2023 20234 312,123 312,123
2024 202445 317,290 317,290
2025 20254 108,925 —

907,756 839,591
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e PBwRME (F&)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) 2 22020412 A31H 1 F /8 (B 5 B #5895 * U RS T)

31. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 31.

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(Continued)

No deferred tax liabilities in respect of
undistributed profits of PRC subsidiaries have
been provided as the Group controls the dividend
policy of these subsidiaries and has no plans to
distribute profits that are subject to PRC dividend
withholding tax in the foreseeable future.

As at 31 December 2020, the aggregate
amounts of undistributed profits of the Group's
PRC subsidiaries in respect of which the Group
did not provide for dividend withholding tax
were approximately RMB224,332,000 (2019:
RMB237,322,000). No deferred tax liabilities has
been recognised in respect of these temporary
difference because the Group is in a position
to control the timing of the reversal of these
temporary differences and it is probable that such
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

R a B RO R A Y TS B

(&)

o B 8 2 R 3 4 L R 0 IR s )
BRBETEHARE  HTRAKHE
ZHIZEMBARINKRERKAE
WEFFENA AR KRR IKAM
MR B SRR SR

MR2020%F 128318 A& B I
FTHIR A% B 7B 0 B0 B 1 &0 A B BT B
RAIRD R )G A BREOBARE
224,332,0007T (20194 : A R #
237,322,0007T) ° IF % Bt bt 55 B8 B
EHERRELEHBBAE  BAXR
EEEH BRI SR EEAR
M ZEEZBEUEETRARRK
1 EREE o

32. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED 2. UEZEETURNDAER

TRANSACTIONS

NT Pharma Holdings Company Limited (“NT Holdings”)
operated a share option scheme which was adopted
on 18 September 2009 (“2009 Share Option Scheme”).
Under the scheme, certain employees of the Group may
be granted share options to acquire the shares in NT
Holdings. The options vest after one to three years from
the date of grant and are exercisable within ten years
after the date of grant. Each option gives the holder the
right to subscribe for one ordinary share in NT Holdings.

OB %%

R 5

NT Pharma Holdings Company Limited
(INT Holdings ) # 17 — I8 B iz # 51 &1 3¢
7200949 418 A £k 44 ([20094F B8 A% 1
tEl]) - RiEZAE  AEEETES
PR B8 AR #E SR BENT Holdings B 17 - B8
BREERLBHE—Z=FEE
WA H 2 BES +FRA TR °
0 B8 AR HE R T 15 8 AN SR8 — ARNT
Holdings & i A% °

Bl | F#EHE2020
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TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

On 7 April 2011, the directors of NT Holdings
terminated the 2009 Share Option Scheme and the
directors of the Company adopted the Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme under which each option gives the
holder the right to subscribe for one ordinary share
in the Company. Under the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme, each grantee of options under the 2009 Share
Option Scheme exchanged his/her options under the
2009 Share Option Scheme for options under the
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme on a 2 for 1 basis. The
exercise price payable by the grantees for each option
granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme is
double the exercise price payable by the grantees for
their respective options granted under the 2009 Share
Option Scheme (save for those options which have
an exercise price of 70% of the price at which the
Company offered its shares for subscription in the public
offering on 20 April 2011 (the "Offer Price”)). All other
terms of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme are identical
to the 2009 Share Option Scheme. The exchange of
the share options was considered a modification to
the 2009 Share Option Scheme. As the modification
did not result in a material change in the value of the
outstanding options at the date of modification, the
modification had no impact on the profit or loss of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2011.

The Company adopted a share award scheme (the
“Share Award Scheme”) on 11 January 2012 which was
subsequently terminated on 6 March 2014.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
mEMBRRMET (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) & Z2020F 12531 H it F & (5 551595 - UA BRI TF)

32. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED 2. UEREEWLUIRNDAER

MR 5 (%)

201144 A78 » NT Holdings#) 2 = &8
1F2009F B #E 5T El - A A EER
KMEaX A AABEBERETS &
It BNERENBEEABERE R
AREEBA - REBEERAARESHE
BR#E R &) - 2009F FE IR AT B TH T &Y
B AR AE S B E2009F AR 42
ETEIETHEREBERSWOBI—1H
REEREE NS ERET
BETHERE ARABRBEERX
AABERERETISERENENHE
RERMTEERARARBESRE
2009F FE AR AT S B XM R RS
TEEMNMEETEEAARRF K201
FAA20HET A AR EPREZBVEH
DA RERER((FHEE])70%K
BRI - g R AFBERBERE
5T 818 P A H b {6 5L EI20094F i AR 1
ETEl— B o HEEE AR W AR A2009F
BRI MEET - AR ZIBETA R
BYHARTEERENEERNSIIZ
AR EREE  QEFTERERE
BE E=2011F12 8318 I FEH3% Fl =X
BRERTMEE-

ARATIFR2012E1 BN BEL AR D B2 B =t
B (AR EEEETEI)) - BEEER20144F
3A6R#IE o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e SRR (8)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) 2 22020412 A31H 1 F /8 (B 5 B #5895 * U RS T)
32. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED 2. UEZEESUIRHAEER

TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

A new share option scheme was approved and
adopted by the shareholders of the Company pursuant
to an ordinary resolution passed on 22 September
2014 (“2014 Share Option Scheme”). The 2014 Share
Option Scheme was set up for the purpose to provide
rewards and incentives to eligible participants for their
contribution to the Group. The exercise price is to be
determined by the Board and shall not be less than the
highest of (i) the closing price of the shares as stated in
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet on the date
of grant of such a share option; (ii) the average closing
price of the shares as stated in the daily quotation
sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for the five
business days immediately preceding to the day of offer
of such a share option; and (iii) the nominal value of the
shares. A nominal consideration of HK$1 is payable on
acceptance of the share option within 21 days from the
date of making such offer.

The maximum number of shares in respect of which
options may be granted under the 2014 Share Option
Scheme and any other share option schemes of the
Company may not exceed 10% of the issued share
capital of the Company at the date of approval of the
2014 Share Option Scheme. The maximum number of
shares issuable under 2014 Share Option Scheme to
each eligible participant within any 12-month period
is limited to 1% of the issued share capital of the
Company from time to time. Any further grant of share
options in excess of this limit is subject to shareholders’
approval in a general meeting.

MR 5 (%)

RIZ2014F9A22B BB 2 EBRZFER -
AN A% AL A N BR AR — B T R AR R
&I (2014 F B ERT 1)) © 2014F B8
RETENZ LB ARNABR2EEY
AEBERZERMREEDHEFE -
TFEERESEEE ATEER T
BEaE (\BRONZBRERDABHR
X ATSEREEM R ZRTE: (i)
MR EEZIBRER T B AT A (&
BREEZXFTEAREE~ZFHRT
& MDD 2 EE - NEMERER
ARBREREBH2IBREMREBR
REIEBT -

B IE20145F B IR T & R AR R E 1A
H b B AR RE AT 81 5% [ B8 AR AE AR B 2 AR
HHBERZTHBBAKRRRNR20144
AT EI B E BB BT IR 210% ©
A EMI21E A B3 A - iR #R 20144 88 %
BB NMSAERBHEERIT IR
SRHBEUARRRTEEEITRGZ
1% AR o 3% B 3B % PR &l 2 F ] E b
EREEERENRERE EHE -
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TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any of
their associates, are subject to approval in advance by
the independent non-executive directors. In addition,
any share options granted to a substantial shareholder
or an independent non-executive director of the
Company, or to any of their associates, in excess of
0.1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any time
or with an aggregate value (based on the closing price
of the Company’s shares at the date of each grant) in
excess of HK$5 million, within any 12-month period, are
subject to shareholders’ approval in advance in a general
meeting. The options under the 2014 Share Option
Scheme vest after one to three years from the date of
grant are exercisable for a period of ten years following
the date of grant.

During the years ended 31 December 2020 and
2019, no share option was granted to employees and
consultants under the 2014 Share Option Scheme.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any of
their associates, are subject to approval in advance by
the independent non-executive directors. In addition,
any share options granted to a substantial shareholder
or an independent non-executive director of the
Company, or to any of their associates, in excess of
0.1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any time
or with an aggregate value (based on the closing price
of the Company’s shares at the date of each grant) in
excess of HK$5 million, within any 12-month period, are
subject to shareholders” approval in advance in a general
meeting.

The options under the 2014 Share Option Scheme vest
after one to three years from the date of grant are
exercisable for a period of ten years following the date
of grant.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
mEMBRRMET (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) & Z2020F 12531 H it F & (5 551595 - UA BRI TF)

32. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED 2. UEREEWLUIRNDAER

MR 5 (%)

BYIARAES  TRAHKTIERR
HEEEABEAZBRERALE L
FERITERFAMME < ULSN - NEMI2
EAHE - HETARREERRIIB
VIATEFTIREFEAMBEAZL
MEREBAARRERKBEDSET
B 2 0.1% AR BN & th B B AR B IR
MERFEZREBBAEET R
ARBERABRAGLELME - R
B2014FERER S - BRENERLA
HE-—Z=2-FAREE  LAIRNELAH
BTERITE-

R & 220204 K2019F12 A318 1k &
€ ERE2014FER#ETERES
FEME SR E -

BYARAES  THAHKEIERR
HEFEMBEAN ZBEREREE L
FEMITE R FAHE - ptoh - RE(2
EABE - HETARBEERRIIE
VHRATETIWEEMBEAZE
MEBREBAARRERKBEZSET
P& 17 2 0.1% AR IR R 1% H B B AR R AR
hERHEz2EEREESET ]
AEBRRNIRRREG EREHE -

RIF2014FBREE - BREREK
HEME—Z2=FREE LA REH
BEE T FRITE-



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e PBwRME (F&)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) 2 22020412 A31H 1 F /8 (B 5 B #5895 * U RS T)

2. UEREEIURGHER
MR 5 (%)

32. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

During the years ended 31 December 2020 and
2019, no share option was granted to employees and

consultants under the 2014 Share Option Scheme.

N # 220204 K&20194F12A8318 IF &£
£ BERE2014FERESZRIES

K B L A

Number
Date of options Vesting conditions Exercise period
=F- BREHA BREKMH T
Options granted to directors:
BTEEMERE:
— 15 January 2015 8,000,000 Vesting of the options is On or prior to
conditional upon the performance 14 January 2025
of the participant. Options granted
are vested in 3 equal tranches from
1 January each year from
2016 t0 2018
— 20151 A15H 8,000,000 BRECHER2EERR 72025F1314H
fE o &tz BREH2016FE 2 A
20185 - NEFIAE
MUERHERE
8,000,000

B REEESHE

FEHRE2020
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A EIRERMETE (B)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) & Z2020F 12531 H it F & (5 551595 - UA BRI TF)

32. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED 2. UIRREELURGAER
TRANSACTIONS (Continued) M3 (&)

310

Number
Date of options Vesting conditions Exercise period
=p BREHE BEEN 7665
Options granted to employees:
RTEENERE:
— 10 November 2014 487,500 Immediate from the date of grant On or prior to
9 November 2024
— 20144117108 487,500 ZREEHARE  R2024F1A9BFH A
— 10 November 2014 1,462,500 Exercisable in 3 equal tranches On or prior to
from 10 November each year 9 November 2024
from 2015 to 2017
— 20145 11R108 1,462,500 F2015%F £ 20174 12024511 A9H 3 2 Al
FF11A108 -
AIRAREETE
— 10 November 2014 850,000 Vesting of the options is On or prior to
conditional upon the performance 9 November 2024
of the participants. Options granted
are vested in 3 equal tranches from
10 November each year from
2015 to 2017
— 20145114108 850,000 BREZBER2EERER  R20UFNARKZAH
fE - K2 BREH015FE
2017 REFNAI08
MU ERHERE
— 15 January 2015 1,200,000 Vesting of the option is conditional On or prior to
upon the performance of the 14 January 2025
participants
— 2015617158 1200000 FEREZEBRZEERRME  N2025F 181482 A
4,000,000
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
GREMEmRMEE (B)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) & Z2020%F 12315 1 F & (b S H B - UA RIS T)

32. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED 2. ESRAEIUROGAER
TRANSACTIONS (Continued) MR 5 (&)
Share option schemes (Continued) BB IR R &I ()
(@ The terms and conditions of the grants (after @@ BHIEZEEHUEETER)(E)

modification) (Continued)

Number
Date of options Vesting conditions Exercise period
= BREHA BEGST TRE
Options granted to consultants
(as quasi-employee):
RTEM(ERERER)
M Ak g
— 15 January 2015 9,000,000 Vesting of the option is conditional On or prior to
upon the performance of the 14 January 2025
participant
— 201514158 9000000 BREZEEBRZEEREME  R2025F1A14AHZAT
21,000,000
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e BwRME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) & Z2020F 12531 H it F & (5 551595 - UA BRI TF)

32. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED 2. UEREEIURHB/ER
TRANSACTIONS (Continued) R 5 (&)
2020 2019

Weighted Weighted Weighted Weighted

average Number average Number

exercise price of options exercise price of options

mEFH I T fntE

B BREHE T%E BREHA
Outstanding at the FMHRTE

beginning of the year US$0.16 22,016,666 Us$0.17 24,015,740

Lapsed during the year AR US$0.20 (1,816,666) US$0.20 (1,999,074)
Outstanding at theend ~ F R W KT

of the year US$0.16 20,200,000 Us$0.16 22,016,666
Exercisable at the end FRATIH

of the year US$0.16 20,200,000 Us$0.16 22,016,666

All the share options granted under 2009 Share
Option Scheme expired as at 31 December 2020.

The share options outstanding at 31 December
2020 were granted under 2014 Share Option
Scheme had exercise price and US$0.16 (2019:
US$0.16) and weighted average remaining
contractual life of 3.5 years (2019: 4.5 years).

The fair value of services received in return for
share options granted is measured by reference to
the fair value of share options. The estimate of the
fair value of the share options granted is measured
based on a Binomial lattice model. The contractual
life of the share option is used as an input into
this model. Expectations of early exercise are
incorporated into the Binomial lattice model.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
GREMEmRMEE (B)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) 2 22020412 A31H 1 F /8 (B 5 B #5895 * U RS T)

32. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED 2. UEREEWLUIRNDAER
TRANSACTIONS (Continued) R 5 (&)

Options Options Options Options Options Options Options Options Options

grantedon  grantedon  grantedon  grantedon  grantedon  grantedon  grantedon  grantedon  granted on

Fair value of share options 18 September 28 January 1 March July 1September  1November 17 December 10 November 15 January
and assumptions 2009 2010 2010 2010 2010 2010 2010 2014 216
#2000 #2010 20105 #2010 20105 R2010% 20105 R201E R2016%

9A18H 15288 3A1R 1818 9818 1A18 12A178 11108 1R158

EREAAERER RUNERE REOBRE SHNBRE RENBRE EL0BRE BHNBERE REOBRE BL0BRE RUNERE

Fair value at measurement date Uss0.14 US80.16 Uss0.14 Us$0.22 U§0.22 US$0.16 08018 HKS$0.87 HK$0.67

R ERBHAR 014ET 01637 014%T 02%T 0.2%T 016357 0.18% T 087% T 067AT
Share price US$0.24 US$0.28 US$0.24 US$0.34 US$0.34 US$0.34 US$0.34 HK$1.24 HK$1.20
kE 0UET 0.8%T 0UET 0345 03457 0345 03457 12457 12087
Exercise price U5$0.20 1550.20 1550.20 US$0.20 1550.20 Us$0.20 HK$3.18 HK$1.25 HK$1.23
(70% of the
Offer Price)
%8 020%7 02037 0.20%7 02057 0.20%7 02057 3185 12587 1337
(BEE]
#70%)
Expected volatilty 58.46% 58.23% 58.00% 59.51% 58.94% 53.10% 57.19% 61.66% 7490%
ELNE) 58.46% 58.23% 58.00% 59.51% 58.94% 53.10% 57.19% 61.66% 74.90%
Option life 10 years 10 years 10 years 10 years 10 years 10 years 10 years 10 years 10 years
BRETH 08 105 08 105 08 0% 108 0% 108
Expected dividend yield 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%
EHRsx 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%
Risk-free interest rate 4.297% 4.378% 4.293% 4.072% 3.415% 3.241% 3.858% 1.83% 1.49%
BERHE 4.297% 4378% 4.293% 4.012% 3415% 3.241% 3.858% 183% 149%
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e BwRME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) & Z2020F 12531 H it F & (5 551595 - UA BRI TF)

2. UEZEELURDAER

32. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

The expected volatility is based on the historical

volatility of listed companies in similar

industries

(calculated based on the weighted average
remaining life of the share options), adjusted for
any expected changes to future volatility based on

publicly available information. Expected

dividends

are based on historical dividends. Changes in

the subjective input assumptions could
affect the fair value estimate.

Share options were granted under

materially

a service

condition. This condition has not been taken into
account in the grant date fair value measurement
of the services received. There were no market
conditions associated with the share options

granted.

No share option was granted during
ended 31 December 2020 and 2019.

China NT Pharma Group Company Limited |

the years

Annual Report 2020
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e PBwRME (F&)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) 2 22020412 A31H 1 F /8 (B 5 B #5895 * U RS T)

2. UEZEELURDAER
MR Z(E)

32. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

The Company’s share award scheme was
adopted on 4 September 2015 for the purchase
of rewarding directors and employees of the
Company and its subsidiaries (the “eligible
employees”) with the shares of the Company.
Pursuant to the share award scheme, existing
shares of the Company will be purchased by the
trustee from the market out of cash contributed
by the Group and be held in trust for the eligible
employees until such shares are vested with
the eligible employees in accordance with the
provisions of the share award scheme. The shares
of the Company granted under the scheme and
held by the trustee until vesting are referred to
as the reward share units and each reward share
unit shall represent one ordinary share of the

Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the
trustee had not purchased any shares (2019:
1,791,500 shares of the Company at a total cost
(including related transaction costs) of nil (2019:
approximately RMB1,046,000) which had been
deducted from equity, and 1,950,000 shares
(2019: 12,010,011 shares) were awarded to
eligible employees under the share award scheme,
with aggregate fair value of approximately
RMB101,000 (2019: RMB7,462,000) at award
dates when they were vested, which was
charged to profit or loss during the year ended
31 December 2020. At 31 December 2020, the
trustee held 15,809,336 (2019: 17,759,336) shares
of the Company purchased but not yet awarded

under the share award scheme.

RN aE R A% 0 22 B 5T £ 7R 20154F9
BABERM LB AR RHE
MBARMESEREE(AER
BEDARRRD o 1B IER D12
BEtEl  SEABUARNEERH
MIRENmE LEBAXRAIERSE
B WAERFEAREGERRE
BRHE HExERMDEEMHE
BrrEmGEYEBETAERES
BlE - BREAEREEAZTA
BEEERBZARAIRMDES
REIRDEMN  MSEERRGDE
LEIEARNR —REBA -

H E20206512831H IEFE - %
AABMEBE ARQRA TG
(20194F : 1,791,500 &A% 17) » 4K
RNEFEEBIZREN)HARE
50 (20194F : AR#1,046,0007T)
EREERNR - MBERG R
B 5+ & 42 E) & & % {8 51,950,000
f& A% 17 (20194 : 12,010,0118% A%
7)) RBELAEEBZRAAR
#7101,0005% JT (20194 : A R #
7,462,0007T) E A E £2020F 12 A
A LEFE 2B =K o 1722020
F12 8318 - RIBRDEE TS -
ZRAAFHEEBEEMARHZA
A 715,809,336 % A% 17 (20194 :
17,759,336/% ) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
GEMERRMEE (B)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indiicated) & £2020F 12 31 H I F/E (R S BB - UAREIT)
33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY 33. REFE2EMTA

316

CATEGORIES
2020 2019
RMB’'000 RMB’'000
AR T AREF T
Financial assets EHMEE

Financial asset at FVTPL BERARBEIAEBRZ
DEEE 537 571
Trade and other receivables B 5N H b e sRIE 394,334 76,946
Pledged bank deposits EEBRITER 25,520 40,000
Time Deposits TE B F — 44,790
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBRSEED 7,694 28,198
At amortised cost 288 K AR 427,548 189,934

Financial liabilities ctRasE

Trade and other payables BE N H M ER A 268,164 183,583
Lease liabilities HEAE 9,572 5,152
Bank and other borrowings RITRHEMEE 841,883 1,022,454
At amortised cost 12 55 PR 1,119,619 1,211,189

Financial liabilities at FVTPL BARBEIAEBERZ
THERE 16,671 448,061
1,136,290 1,659,250

China NT Pharma Group Company Limited

Annual Report 2020



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e PBwRME (F&)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) 2 22020412 A31H 1 F /8 (B 5 B #5895 * U RS T)

33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY
CATEGORIES (Continued)

The disclosure of fair value measurements by level
of the following fair value measurement hierarchy:

—  Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using
only Level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted
prices in active markets for identical assets
and liabilities at the measurement date.

—  Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using
Level 2 inputs i.e. observable inputs which
fail to meet Level 1, and not using significant
unobservable inputs. Unobservable inputs
are inputs for which market data are not
available.

—  Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using
significant unobservable inputs.

33. ERE S EBMT A(E)

P 2 Ao (E A B T RATA
R BBRME

F—RHE EAFE-RE
ABIEFHERAE - AER
EERBENERRZAE
B RERABRRE -

F_REE:UE_HEA
BT ERE - BIREER
BE-MAEZABEEA
BB AR TERERNA
BEBAZE - TAHEHR
A B BI A AT BAS T35 BUR
ZEBABIE

FE=REE: AERTAE
ERABBIHEARE-

Fair value
as at Fair value measurements as at
31 December 31 December 2020, categorised into
2020 R20205E12A31B 2 A BT E -
1#2020% B3R
12A31H Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
ZANRE F—H ot E=8
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARBTR AR¥Tn AR%¥Tn AR%®Tx
Financial assets: SRBE:
Financial asset at FVTPL BRARENAEBGEZ
SREE 537 = 537 —
Financial liabilities: cRaRE:
Financial liabilities at FVTPL R ARBENABR Z
SMEE 16,671 = = 16,671
— 537 16,671

OB %%

EZ
=

EgHE

I F#E#H%E2020
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e BwRME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) # 22020 12 31 H 1L F/E (B ZE#E B + WA RESHFR)

33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY

CATEGORIES (Continued)

(@) Financial assets and liabilities measured at

fair value (Continued)

@ EAREFENTREENR

33. ERE S EBMTA(E)

X

30|

~ 1= \n

Fair value
as at Fair value measurements as at
31 December 31 December 2019, categorised into
2019 R2019FENANBZ AR EE
220195 LR
12A318 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
ZRARME E— F-H F=/
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETRT ARETR
Financial assets: SRBE:
Financial asset at FVTPL BRAREINAEBGEZ
SREE 571 — 571 —
Financial liabilities: TREE:
Financial liabilities at FVTPL R ARBENABR Z
SRMEE 448,061 — — 448,061
- 571 448,061

During the years ended 31 December 2020 and
2019, there were no transfer between Level 1 and
Level 2, or transfers into or out of Level 3.

China NT Pharma Group Company Limited | Annual Report 2020
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e PBwRME (F&)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) 2 22020412 A31H 1 F /8 (B 5 B #5895 * U RS T)

33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY

CATEGORIES (Continued)

33. ERE S EBMT A(E)

2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARE TR ARET T
At 1 January R1A1H 448,061 401,082
Proceeds from issue of BTABRRESME
convertible bonds FE] — 79,663
Issuing costs TR AR — (136)
Increase in fair value — FVTPL A EE
—RARBEIAER 11,265 29,853
Imputed interest payable to non- JEN— B RR
controlling shareholders of a FERBRRECHERE
subsidiary 3,087 3,088
Transfer upon lapse of conversion  ZI #f 7] & [B] A] #2 J% {8 o f%
rights of matured redeemable 2 MR RR R R IR B
convertible preference shares (418,826) —
Conversion of convertible bonds A AT IR IR B 5 — (77,213)
Exchange adjustments M 5, 8 B (26,916) 11,724
At 31 December M12A318 16,671 448,061

The fair values of the redeemable convertible
preference shares are estimated as being the
present value of future cash flows, discounted
at interest rates based on the government yield
curve as at the end of the reporting period plus an
adequate constant credit spread, adjusted for the

Company’s credit risk.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial
instruments carried at cost or amortised cost
approximated their respective fair values at 31

December 2019 and 2020.

AR O AT B SR IR R L (ER
AXBERE(FARBEHREHR
B KA UL K i AR T O B A R B
B)WBREML - ZNRHNEE
EEREE YRFARAMEE
[\ B hn A S e

20194 202012 A31H » A&
B 122 X AN ok 8 PR AN B BR M) &
TAZEABEBRAEAAELEE
EER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e BwRME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) & Z2020F 12531 H it F & (5 551595 - UA BRI TF)

34. BRA& - RBEERE

34. CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS

The reconciliation between the opening and
closing balances of each component of the
Group’s consolidated equity is set out in the

AEENEHBOEERARFY
EFREHREANERDANRES
BuaBEHR - ARASEDRID

consolidated statement of changes in equity. REVEFERNEFFHEEHY W
Details of changes in the Company’s individual S &
components of equity between the beginning and
the end of the year are set out below:
Conversion
option of
redeemable
convertible
Share  preference Share Exchange Other Capital ~ Accumulated
capital shares premium Teserve Tesere Teserve losses Total
BEEEE:
RE%RZ
kA ARE  RAEE  EXRE  EHEE  AFEE  ZHER )
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARETT ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR AREfR AREfR
(Note 34 (Note 34 (Note 34 (Note 34
(Note 34c) ~ (Note 35) (di) (i (di) (di)
(W4 (s (Wi (M
(W) (W) (o)) (o)) (o)) (o))
Balance at 1 January 2019 ROOEIRIRNES 1 276,131 1,562,332 4553 219,467 (27395 (1,787993) 348,075
Changes in equity for 2019: PUILES $:3 S
Loss for the year ERER - - - - - — (U558 (455579)
Other comprehensive income EhrEhs
Eichange diferences on tranltion R EFEEHELES - - - 3,660 - - - 3660
Total comprehensive income PENGLE - - - 3,660 - - (455578)  (@51918)
Lapse of share option BREXT - - - - - (1911) 1911 -
quity-settled share-based WEREZTNENA
transactions ARHRS - - - - - 7462 - 7462
Shares purchase for share award S UOETIRE!
scheme BERD - - - - - (1,046) - (1,046)
Issue of new shares upon coversion B AT EE AR
of convertble bonds BrRmg Rk - - 19,771 - - - - 196,771

China NT Pharma Group Company Limited

I Annual Report 2020



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e PBwRME (F&)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) 2 22020412 A31H 1 F /8 (B 5 B #5895 * U RS T)
34. CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS

(Continued)

(@ Movements in components of equity
(Continued)

The Company (Continued)

34. BA - REERKE(E)

@)

oo n g (&)

AAF ()

Conversion
option of
redeemable
convertible
Share  preference Share  Exchange Other Capital  Accumulated
capital shares  premium reserve reserve reserve losses Total
TRETH
RELRZ
R BRE  ROEE EXGE  HkEE  ExEF  ZHER it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®TR AR¥TR ARMTR ARETR ARMTR ARBTR AR¥TR ARETR
(Note 34 (Note 34 (Note 34 (Note 34
(Note34(c) ~ (Note35) (d)) (d)i) (d)iv) (d)vi)
(Wi (W3 (Wie  (HE
(B 334(c) (Hit3s) (A (d)(i) (dw) (d)(vi))
Balance at 31 December 2019and ~ R201912A31A R
1 January 2020 202051818
i3] 1 6131 1759103 9192 246 (2890 (2261,660) 99,34
Changes in equity for 2020; NWNFEEEE:
Loss for the year ERER - - - - - - (34,304) (34,304)
Other comprehensive income b2E%s
Exchange differences on translation ~ AEHELMESZE - - - (4,184) - - - (4,184)
Total comprehensive income PENRLE - - - (4.184) - - (34.304) (38.488)
Lapse of share opton (note 32b)) ~ EMRIE X A (M £3200) - - - - = (2,106) 2,106 =
Equity-settled share-based HEREFTNENA
transactions ERHZS - - - - - 101 - 101
Transfer upon lapse of conversion—— EIE A RETARER
rights of matured redeemable RohRExNE
convertible preference shares g8 (M3
(note 35) - (276,131) - - - - 276,131 -
Balance at 31 December 2020 00512 A318
okt 1 - 1,759,103 45,008 279,467 (24,895)  (1,997,727) 60,957

OB %%

EZ
=

o

EgHE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e BwRME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) & Z2020F 12531 H it F & (5 551595 - UA BRI TF)

34. CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS

(Continued)

No dividend (2019: Nil) per ordinary and
preference share after the end of the reporting
period is proposed. The dividend proposed after
the end of the reporting period has not been
recognised as a liability at the end of the reporting

period.

A summary of movements in the Company’s
issued share capital during the years ended 31
December 2020 and 2019 are as follows:

34. BA - REERKE(E)

RBEHRETEEZZRS SR
T A% &8 S IR A% B (20194 ¢
) c RIREBRREEZRRNHOR
BRMAERARSHRANEE -

’

#H ZE 2020 % 201912 A31H IE 4
EARRQE B 21T A 2 843t an
T

2020 2019
No of shares No of shares
RHEE R 8 E
‘000 RMB’000 ‘000 RMB'000
TR AR®Tx Tk AR®TH
Ordinary shares, issued ~ ZER BETR
and fully paid: #R:
At 1 January R1A1H 1,904,636 1 1,606,463 1
Issue of ordinary shares upon  F & A ik & 51
conversion of convertible BITERR
bonds (note (i) UEID) — = 298,173 —
1,904,636 1 1,904,636 1

China NT Pharma Group Company Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
GREMEmRMEE (B)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) 2 22020412 A31H 1 F /8 (B 5 B #5895 * U RS T)

34. CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 34. RA - ERRKRE(E)
(Continued)
Notes: Ff 5

The Company was incorporated on 1 March 2010 with
an authorised share capital of US$50,100 divided into
626,250,000,000 shares of US$0.00000008 each and
one share was issued at par upon incorporation.

On 5 June 2017, the authorised share capital of
the Company was re-designated from US$50,100
comprising 626,250,000,000 ordinary shares of
US$0.00000008 each into US$50,100 comprising
(i) 625,925,000,000 ordinary shares of par value
of US$0.00000008 each, and (ii) 325,000,000
redeemable convertible preference shares of par value
of US$0.00000008 each with the rights, privileges and
restrictions of the redeemable convertible preference
shares..

During the year ended 31 December 2019, convertible
bonds of approximately RMB196,771,000 were
converted into 298,172,506 ordinary shares, with
approximately RMB196,771,000 was credited to share
premium account.

The share premium represents the difference
between the nominal value of the shares of
the Company and proceeds received from
the issuance of shares of the Company.
Under the Companies Law of the Cayman
Islands, the share premium account of the
Company is distributable to the shareholders
of the Company provided that immediately
following the date on which the dividend is
proposed to be distributed, the Company
would be in a position to pay off its debts
as they fall due in the ordinary course of
business.

OB %%

AN N A R2010%63818 = it &
3 3k B A A50,100% T 0 5
7$626,250,000,000 % i m® &
0.000000083% 7T 2 f& {7+ I 7 FE iR
KA EEET —R’RRG -

M2017F6 A58 + AR &EERA
#50,100% 7t (H626,250,000,000
f% 4 A% ™ {E0.000000083 Jt #) &
i I% 48 BK) = ¥ R E A50,100% 7T
(| () 625,925,000,000/ & i @ &
0.000000083 7T H) I i@ A% : [ (i)
325,000,000/% &% E {£0.00000008
3% T H) A] BE (B 7] 40 AR B So AR 4B AK
B 5 A i [ A $R AR MB SE AR A RE R -
R R BRI o

HE2019F12A3MBILEFE - HAR
#£196,777,0007T 2 7 #2 % & % & &
73298,172,506k EAMAR - HA R
196,771,0007T 5+ A B 19 % (B B ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e BwRME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) & Z2020F 12531 H it F & (5 551595 - UA BRI TF)

34. CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS

(Continued)

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the
translation of the financial statements of
non-PRC entities. The reserve is dealt with
in accordance with the accounting policy set

out in note 2(v).

Pursuant to applicable PRC regulations, all
PRC subsidiaries of the Group are required
to appropriate 10% of their after-tax profit
(after offsetting prior year losses) to the
statutory reserve until such reserve reaches
50% of the registered capital of each
relevant PRC subsidiary. The transfer to
the statutory reserve must be made before
distribution of dividends to shareholders.
The statutory reserve fund can be utilised,
upon approval by the relevant authorities, to
offset accumulated losses or to increase the

registered capital of the subsidiary.

The merger reserve represents the
difference between the net assets of the
subsidiaries acquired in 2005, which were
under common control of the Controlling
Shareholders, and the cash consideration

paid.

China NT Pharma Group Company Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

mEM KRR (B)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) 2 22020412 A31H 1 F /8 (B 5 B #5895 * U RS T)

34. CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 3. RAE - #ERRE (&)
(Continued)

The Company'’s other reserve arose from the
transfer of the entire equity interest in NT
Group from NT Holdings to the Company
and acquisition of non-controlling interests
in Suzhou First Pharma.

The Group's other reserve arose from the
capitalisation of the amount due to NT
Holdings as a result of the reorganisation
and represented the difference between
the amount due to NT Holdings of
RMB383,380,000 and the nominal value
of the shares of the Company issued in
exchange thereof.

The capital reserve represents capital
contribution surplus of approximately
RMB37,640,000 attributable to the Group,
made by non-controlling interests of a
subsidiary of the Company in 2015, the
portion of the grant date fair value of
unexercised share options to employees
of the Group, that has been recognised
in accordance with the accounting policy
adopted for share-based payments as
set out in note 2(g)(ii), and costs of the
Company's shares purchased for the share
award scheme (note 32(d)) less the fair value
of share-based payments in respect of such
shares awarded to the employees which
were vested at award date and recognised in
accordance with the accounting policy as set
out in note 2(q)(iii).

ANRQF R E A T BENT
Holdings #§ NT Group 2 #f B%
REHEE T AR A RS AR N
FERHEFERERME
A o

AEBRNHEMERDE
HEEEAMENTNT
Holdings &) X 18 & Z< 1k - 8
FE{tNT Holdings & %8 A R #&
383,380,000 B2t A B 22
MmETHARRRMDEE
ZFEﬁE’\J%i °

B ARG 82015 F ANA A —
BT B A A FE I AR A 2 10 )F
&A% AN R®37,640,000
T(REEELHDRE) BT
NEEEESRITEBERED
REBBARERSD (BERE
M &E200)() FT 3 A B 10 B &
RS KT RS TR T
LAMERR) R ANA B BEAR 17 12 B
& 21 (Bt 5E32(d)) BE |1 A% 17 B9
RKARESRERTFTREREL
R 15 B 5 2(q)Gii) PT 3 & 51 R
RHERORH(ERFELA
HEBNUBRDAEERD
NEBWRRE-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e BwRME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) & Z2020F 12531 H it F & (5 551595 - UA BRI TF)

34. CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS

(Continued)

The revaluation reserve has been set up
and is dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policies adopted for leasehold
land and buildings held for own use in
note 2(g), which represented cumulative
gains and losses arising on the revaluation
of the corresponding leasehold land and
buildings that have been recognised in other
comprehensive income. Such items will not
be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent

periods.

At 31 December 2020, the aggregate amount of
reserves available for distribution to the equity
holders of the Company was RMBNil (2019:
RMBNIl), being the net amount of share premium,
other reserve and accumulated losses.

The Group’s primary objectives when managing
capital are to safeguard the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, so that it can
continue to provide returns for shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders, by pricing
products commensurately with the level of risk
and by securing access to finance at a reasonable

cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and
manages its capital structure to maintain a
balance between the higher shareholders’
returns that might be possible with higher levels
of borrowings and the advantages and security
afforded by a sound capital position and makes
adjustments to the capital structure in light of

changes in economic conditions.

China NT Pharma Group Company Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e RRMEE (8)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) 2 22020412 A31H 1 F /8 (B 5 B #5895 * U RS T)
34. CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 34 BAX - RERKRE(E)

(Continued)

The Group monitors capital with reference to
its debt-to-assets ratio. The Group’s strategy is
to maintain the equity and debt in a balanced
position and ensure there is adequate working
capital to service its debt obligations. The Group's
debt-to-assets ratio, being the Group’s total
interest-bearing borrowings over its total assets,
at 31 December 2020 and 2019 was 70.3% and
82.1% respectively.

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
are subject to externally imposed capital
requirements.

35. REDEEMABLE CONVERTIBLE

PREFERENCE SHARES

On 13 June 2017, the Company issued 294,659,500
non-voting redeemable convertible preference shares
at HK$1.83 each (“CPSs”) with total gross proceeds
of HK$539,227,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB474,179,000). The costs of issuing these CPSs
amounted to approximately HK$5,000,000 (equivalent
to approximately RMB4,304,000).

The CPS holders shall have no right to attend or
vote at general meetings of the Company. Subject
to compliance with applicable law and Articles of
Association of the Company, so long as the Company
has resolved to pay dividend, 30% of the audited profit
of each financial year would be distributed to holders of
CPSs and ordinary shares of the Company as dividends.

OB %%

REBL2REBYEEL RET
BAR o REBRREE AR ES
BERsBENEE  WEREFE
EEBHNEMEEE$© o 122020
F£K2019F12 8310 » AEERE
EEELNERIALEENGEREER
BEBRABREE) DA AB703% K
82.1% o

ZA/NSIDYE =R NN = PNGIL A
ERRINTIEIMEERNRE ©

35. JEEE T RE LR

7201 7567138 + AR E]E517294,659,500
I8 & B T {E1.8378 T B R SR m] fE B
AR E IR ([T E R - A5
TR IE 4858 /5539,227,00078 7T (FBZE R4
A R #474,179,0007T) © 347 7] A fR (B
P I EY X A8 49 45,000,000 T (FHZE A
4 AN R #4,304,0007T) °
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PREFERENCE SHARES (Continued)

Each of the CPSs is convertible to one ordinary share
of the Company at its face value of HK$1.83 per
CPS. Conversion of CPSs into ordinary shares of the
Company can be made at any time after the issuance
of the CPSs. The holders of CPSs shall be required
to convert all but not part of the CPSs into ordinary
shares of the Company provided that the audited profit
is not less than RMB160 million, RMB250 million and
RMB350 million for the years ended 31 December
2017, 2018 and 2019, respectively (“Compulsory
Conversion”). As the Group incurred a loss for the year
ended 31 December 2018, the criteria for Compulsory
Conversion have become no longer applicable as at 31
December 2018 and 2019. The Company may redeem
(“Call Option”) and the holders of the CPSs shall have
the rights to require the Company to redeem (“Put
Option”) with cash for the outstanding CPSs which the
conversion rights have not been exercised in whole or in
part by giving 30 business days’ prior notice to the other
party thereof on or after 36th month upon the placing
completion date, with a redemption price calculated
based on the annualised IRR 5% for the nominal
value of the outstanding CPSs less the corresponding
dividends for such CPSs by the Company. The earliest
date of maturity of CPSs will be on 13 June 2020 when
the CPS holders shall have the rights to exercise the Put
Option.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
mEMBRRMET (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) & Z2020F 12531 H it F & (5 551595 - UA BRI TF)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e SRR (8)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) 2 22020412 A31H 1 F /8 (B 5 B #5895 * U RS T)
35. REDEEMABLE CONVERTIBLE 35. JEE TR E LR (E)

PREFERENCE SHARES (Continued)

The conversion options of the CPSs meet the fixed-to-
fixed criteria, that is, will be settled by the exchange of
a fixed amount of cash or another financial asset for a
fixed number of the Company’s ordinary shares, and
accordingly, the conversion options of the CPSs are
classified as equity component and are not remeasured
after initial recognition. At initial recognition, the equity
component of the CPSs was separated from the fair
value of liability component comprising the Company’s
obligations under Put Option to redeem CPSs and/or
obligations to pay dividends to CPS holders, which are
designated and presented as “financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss”. The equity component
(i.e. conversion option) is presented in equity heading
“Convertible preference shares”. The Call Option at the
Company's discretion is classified as a financial asset at
fair value through profit or loss.

At 31 December 2019, there were outstanding
246,773,000 CPSs with a total face value amount
of approximately HK$451,596,000 (equivalent to
RMB404,539,000).

On 13 June 2020, the holders of 246,773,000
CPSs served call notice to request the Company to
redeem all the CPSs which were changed to other
borrowings carried at amortised cost of approximately
RMB418,826,000, bearing interest at the rate of
5% from 13 June 2020, out of which, approximately
RMB225,842,000 were repaid by the Group during the
year ended 31 December 2020

A] 38 BB ST AR A B AR T A RO DA TE
CHEENEERERDFTE - BN
BEEHERCKEAMEREERE
EHRENARB LB - Bt - Al
BRBRMMBRERBRERTD -
ENLHERRTIBEHNE - VITHE
RE - AIRREERNESTOEEE
BozAREDIE  AEXIBEAR
AR R B TR T RO O A] 4R R B 5T
BEER /RAABRBEERIFTAAX
NERENEE HERZIARBMR
ARAEIABENEREBE] - #amd
7 (BN fkE) Thi (I A @ e A | I T
ZEDZ2Y REBHEBAARAERBE
REDBR/BAABIABRZ SR
BE -

# £2019%12A318 © 246,773,000
BRaBRBRELKR S AER @EHK
51 #9451,596,0007% TT(AH & R A R &
404,539,0007T) °
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PREFERENCE SHARES (Continued)

The Company determined the fair value of the financial
liabilities component (i.e. Put Option) and Call Option at
31 December 2019, when the Compulsory Conversion
attached to CPSs was no longer applicable, amounted
to approximately HK$482,371,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB432,107,000) and Nil respectively,
based on the valuation performed by CBRE Limited on
straight debt, using discounting cash flows approach
(as for the straight debt component of the Put Option),
binomial model and a discount rate of 13.40%, which
represented the prevailing market rates of interest for a
similar instrument with similar credit rating.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, fair
value loss on the financial liabilities of approximately
RMB13,587,000 (2019: loss of approximately
RMB31,733,000) is charged to profit or loss. The
Company considered there was no material change in its
own credit risk during the year.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
mEMBRRMET (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) & Z2020F 12531 H it F & (5 551595 - UA BRI TF)

35. REDEEMABLE CONVERTIBLE 35. O] BE B o] & IR B e AR (4E)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
GREMEmRMEE (B)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) 2 22020412 A31H 1 F /8 (B 5 B #5895 * U RS T)

35. REDEEMABLE CONVERTIBLE 35. IEE AT RKRE LR (E)
PREFERENCE SHARES (Continued)
Key valuation assumptions used to determine the fair # ER2019F 12 A31H AT B LA
value of CPSs at the 31 December 2019 as follows: ARERMANETEGHERBRKDOT
At
31 December 2019
20194
12A31H
— Closing price of the Company'’s — ARAERR W TE
ordinary shares HK$0.17
— Conversion price of each of the CPSs  — & i% A] #% A {8 5E AX 1Y
BiE HK$1.83
— Dividend payout ratio of the Company — A2 & 8K B =& 30%
— Volatility of the Company’s ordinary ~ — ZK 22 &) & 8 A% 09 ) 18
shares 83.21%
— Dividend yield of the Company — AREHR B % 0%
— Probability or compulsory Conversion — — 38 %I 8 3 &) a] §E 14 0%
— Probability of exercising the Call Option — 72 &) 77 {8 57 1 Hi 4
to redeem the CPSs by the Company LA HE [B] AT #8 f2 48 o IR
9 7] BE 1% 0%
— Risk free rate with reference to the — ERRKLE  K2E
Hong Kong Sovereign curve yield of 2EIFRHENE B
Hong Kong Government Bonds with HIFEAFNE B
maturity due in 2 to 3 years FHEFEEX 1.76%
— Discount rate (note below) — BRI & (T XY 5F) 13.40%
Note: The discount rate of 13.40% at 31 December 2019, reflected B & - 2019F12A318 + B3 £13.40% R B |
and comprised risk free rate 1.76%, the market credit risk RERBLE176% - MHEERK11.64%
11.64%, as based on Bloomberg for comparable companies (REBEZEERARBEOITERAGF) A
with similar credit ratings. B e
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e BwRME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) & Z2020F 12531 H it F & (5 551595 - UA BRI TF)

35. JEEE TR E LR (E)

35. REDEEMABLE CONVERTIBLE

PREFERENCE SHARES (Continued)

Movements of the two components of the CPSs during

ABREELERMELSINEFRNZES

the year were set out below: LU
Financial
Conversion liabilities Financial
option under Put  assets under
as equity Option at Call option
component FVTPL at FVTPL
ROLHEET REHEET
BARE BRARE
BRRES FAERDN FIAEREDN
RSB SRAE cREE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTFT ARBTT ARBTT
(note 34(a))
(M 3E34(a))
At 1 January 2019 20191 H1H 276,131 391,058 —
Increase in fair value charged T AEBZAI A E
to profit or loss 0 — 31,733 —
Exchange adjustments & H B — 9,316 —
At 31 December 2019 and MR2019F 12 A31B &
1 January 2020 2020F1A31H 276,131 432,107 —
Increase in fair value charged  FFAEZBI A E
to profit or loss 30 — 13,587 —
Transfer upon lapse of FI| B 7] & [a] Al 2 AR
conversion rights of matured & %c i% 2 2 i% 1
redeemable convertible Ee L3 g
preference shares (276,131) (418,826) —
Exchange adjustments & H & — (26,868) —
At 31 December 2020 #2020512 4311 — — —
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e PBwRME (F&)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) 2 22020412 A31H 1 F /8 (B 5 B #5895 * U RS T)

36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 36.

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency
risks arises in the normal course of the Group’s business.
The Group's exposure to these risks and the financial
risk management policies and practices used by the
Group to manage these risks are described below.

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable
to trade and other receivables. The Group's
exposure to credit risk arising from cash and cash
equivalents and pledged bank deposits is limited
because the counterparties are the major banks in
the PRC with established credit ratings, for which
the Group considers to have low credit risk. Given
the high credit ratings of the banks, management
does not expect any counterparties to fail to meet
its obligations.

The Group's exposure to credit risk is influenced
mainly by the individual characteristics of each
customer rather than the industry in which the
customers operate and therefore significant
concentrations of credit risk primarily arise when
the Group has significant exposure to individual
customers. At the end of the reporting period,
35% (2019: 73%) and 54% (2019: 94%) of the
total trade debtors and bills receivables was due
from the Group’s largest customers and the five
largest customers respectively.

Bt ¥ L B B

AEBERAERXRBBRETARER R
HES  MERIMNERER - REEAR
ZERABRRAEEEEZSFZRARNY
BEREERRRABEMNRTXH

it o
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REMBWFRE AKERRE
EESFBEYMUREEMERTHE
REENEERRER  BHF
HTEERFTEREAEESERN
MO EERIT AEERRZF
RITNEERBRBE - ERRTT
MSERE  BEERERMHFS
TERLEEBEIBITEBORBR

AEBENEERRMOEEXR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e BwRME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) & Z2020F 12531 H it F & (5 551595 - UA BRI TF)
36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 36. Bt % E b E B (/&)

(Continued)

The table below shows the credit quality and the
maximum exposure to credit risk based on the
Group's credit policy, which is mainly based on
past due information unless other information
is available without undue cost or effort, and
year-end staging classification as at 31 December.
The amounts presented are net carrying amounts
after provision for ECLs for financial assets.

Maximum exposure and year-end staging as
at 31 December 2020

TEREINENAKEEEBRRD
EFEREXRREAEERRHO
ZHREBERBIMER (BRIFE
e E R AT EAN A% ERA
L NMBERTER) A RR12
AEMFHEERDE - 275
THEANEREENERAEE
ERBEFERNEEFEE -

H Z£2020F 128318 B = A K
REHBER

12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
128 AR
FEBR 2HABEERER
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
1R 2R EE]-124 L& @t

RMB'000  RMB'000
AR®TR AR®TR

RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTR ARE®TR ARNKTR

Trade debtors and bills ~ EZEUWER K
receivables (note 22) EWEE
(3 7E22) — —
Financial assets included in 4 g8 & /& £ &
deposits, prepayments & ~ A

and other receivables HIBREAM
JE W IR 368,370 —
Pledged bank deposits ~ EHEFRTER
(note 23) (Fi5E23) 25,520 —
Cash and cash equivalents & KR EZEY
(note 24(b)) (B £524(0) 7,694 —

- 25,964 25,964

- — 368,370

- - 25,520

— — 7,694

401,584 —

— 25,964 427,548
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e PBwRME (F&)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) 2 22020412 A31H 1 F /8 (B 5 B #5895 * U RS T)

36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

Maximum exposure and year-end staging as

36. %5 b B E ()

HZ2019F12831EM B = A K

at 31 December 2019 RFEHEBE
12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
128 A8 8
FEEBEB 2HEHEEER
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
F1RE EYLELEy 3B BiLE Bt
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARBETT ARBTT ARETE ARETE ARETR
Trade debtors and bills ~ EHEUMER K
receivables (note 22) B E &
(BE22) — — — 63,580 63,580
Financial assets included in 4 &8 & /& £ 4%
deposits, prepayments & & ~ B
and other receivables HIEREAM
JE W IR 13,366 - — — 13,366
Pledged bank deposits B RITER
(note 23) (Bi5E23) 40,000 — — - 40,000
Time deposits EHER
(note 24(a)) (Pt 3% 24(a)) 44,790 — — — 44,790
Cash and cash equivalents % KREZEY
(note 24(b)) (Bt 3524(0) 28,198 - — — 28,198
126,354 _ - 63,580 189,934
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A EIRERMETE (B)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) & Z2020F 12531 H it F & (5 551595 - UA BRI TF)

36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 36. Bt % E b E B (/&)
(Continued)

Individual credit evaluations are performed on all
customers requiring credit over a certain amount.
These evaluations focus on the customer’s past
history of making payments when due and current
ability to pay, and take into account information
specific to the customer as well as pertaining to
the economic environment in which the customer
operates. Trade receivables are due within 90 to
210 days from the date of billing. The Group does
not obtain collateral from customers.

For trade receivables, the Group applies the
simplified approach for measuring the lifetime
ECLs on individual basis if the amounts are
insignificant, or collective basis using the provision
matrix. As the Group’s historical credit loss
experience does not indicate significantly different
loss patterns for different customer segments,
the loss allowance based on past due status is
not further distinguished between the Group's
different customer bases.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e PBwRME (F&)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) 2 22020412 A31H 1 F /8 (B 5 B #5895 * U RS T)

36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

The following table provides information about
the Group’s exposure to credit risk and lifetime
ECLs for trade receivables (base on invoice date):

TRINRAEEE S ERFIAGR
BEZAHMEERREKO NI R

36. %5 b B E ()

> HEAEEBRER

As at 31 December 2020

72020512 A31H
Gross
Expected carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance Net
EHEBRR MR E A ME BiERE FE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR AR®TR AR¥®TnR
Within 3 months =EAR 10.87% 20,165 2,192 17,973
More than 3 months 8 i& =& A2
but within 6 RANE AR
months 53.93% 15,539 8,380 7,159
More than 6 months #23& 7~ 1@ A 18
but within 1 year R—FR 78.42% 3,858 3,026 832
More than 1 year but i@ —F1{8
within 2 years N 100% 1,541 1,541 —
More than 2 years BB F 100% 610,999 610,999 —
652,102 626,138 25,964

B REEESHE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A EIRERMETE (B)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) & Z2020F 12531 H it F & (5 551595 - UA BRI TF)

36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 36. Bt % E b E B (/&)
(Continued)

As at 31 December 2019

72019412 A31H
Gross
Expected carrying Loss

loss rate amount allowance Net

A E A X FRE&E B A

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000

ARTT AR®TT AR®TT

Within 3 months AR 8.43% 67,166 5,664 61,502
More than 3 months 8 i& =& A 18
but within 6 RNE AR

months 50.64% 3,421 1,732 1,689
More than 6 months #2i& 7~ 1@ A 18

but within 1 year R—FA 76.55% 1,660 1,271 389
More than 1 year but #2838 — {8

within 2 years M E A 100% 148,461 148,461 —

More than 2 years 8 18 N & 100% 463,245 463,245 —

683,953 620,373 63,580

Lifetime expected loss rates are based on actual SHEABBEEERBTI=F1
loss over the past 3 years, as adjusted to reflect EREBEETEMARAE AR
the forward looking information, including the BB IR BERNEAEEER -
economics conditions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

mEM KRR (B)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) 2 22020412 A31H 1 F /8 (B 5 B #5895 * U RS T)

36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 36. Bt % E b E B (/&)
(Continued)

Movement in the loss allowance account in
respect of trade receivables during the year is as
follows:

BRI E R B ERRER
ZEEBHMT

2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T AR T T

Balance at 1 January MATB 8 & & 620,373 486,006
Impairment loss recognised FNHERBEEE

during the year 6,323 134,337
Exchange difference E X =% (558) 30
Balance at 31 December P12 A31H B 4 8% 626,138 620,373

Impairment loss in respect of trade debtors were
recorded using an allowance account unless the
Group is satisfied that recovery of the amount
is remote, in which case the impairment loss is
written off against trade debtors directly.

Due to the slow down of the economy,
deleveraging and the government regulations
on the medicine industry in the PRC, the
Group experienced defaults in payments by
its customers. The Group has recognised a
provision for impairment of trade receivables
of RMB6,323,000 (2019: RMB134,337,000), of
which, a reversal of impairment of RMB1,390,000
(2019: RMB1,265,000) and impairment of
RMB7,713,000 (2019: RMB1,265,000) were
related to continuing operations and discontinued
operations, respectively, during the year ended 31
December 2020.

OB %%
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A EIRERMETE (B)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) & Z2020F 12531 H it F & (5 551595 - UA BRI TF)

36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 36. Bt % E b E B (/&)
(Continued)

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be
able to meet its financial obligations as they fall
due. The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor
its liquidity requirements and its compliance
with lending covenants, if any, to ensure that it
maintains sufficient reserves of cash and adequate
committed line of funding from major financial
institutions to meet its liquidity requirements in
the short and long term.

All non-interest bearing financial liabilities of
the Group are carried at amounts not materially
different from their contractual undiscounted cash
flow as these financial liabilities are with maturities
within one year or repayable on demand at the
end of the reporting period. Bank and other
borrowings are repayable within 1-2 years from
the end of reporting period.

The following table sets out the remaining
contractual maturities at the end of reporting
period of the Group’s bank loans and other
borrowings, bank accepted bills, trade and
other payables, which are based on contractual
undiscounted cash flows (including interest
payments computed using contractual rates or, if
floating, based on current prevailing rates at the
end of reporting period) and the earliest date of
the Group would be required to repay.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
GREMEmRMEE (B)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) 2 22020412 A31H 1 F /8 (B 5 B #5895 * U RS T)

36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 36. M5 E e E E (&)
(Continued)
2020
Scheduled undiscounted cash outflow
BAEARHRARER
More than More than

Within 1yearbut 2 years but Carrying

1 year or less than less than amount as at

on demand 2 years 3 years Total 31 December

-FRg —-FHE ET N R12A31A

REREE EL ZEHUR X HEREE

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR AR®TR ARBTR ARETR ARET:R

Lease liabilities (note 28) & & f& (Fff 728) 4,360 3,152 4,853 12,365 9,572
Bank and other borrowings 5817}z E (£ &

(note 27) (Ft5E27) 851,902 17,163 18,202 887,267 841,883
Trade and other payables & 5 Jx E th fE {7

(note 26) B (W 3226) 263,193 — — 263,193 263,193
Considerations payable ~ JEfTH (B (Iff £ 26)

(note 26) 4,971 = = 4,971 4,971

Financial liabilities at fair XA R A A
value through profitor ~ E&aMEBAE
loss (note 29) (Fr3£29) 16,199 472 - 16,671 16,671

Total @5 1,140,625 20,787 23,055 1,184,467 1,136,290
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e BwRME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) & Z2020F 12531 H it F & (5 551595 - UA BRI TF)

36. A ER(E)

36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)
2019
Scheduled undiscounted cash outflow
BEACHBRRS L
More than More than
Within 1 year but 2 years but Carrying
1 year or less than less than amount as at
on demand 2 years 3 years Total 31 December
—FR —FNE MEL E #12A318
REREE AR —ENR Fok | MEREE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARBTRT ARETT ARETR ARETR
Lease liabilities HEat 2,472 2,472 1,186 6,130 5,152
Bank and other borrowings /TR 2 IEE 1,005,539 9,291 78,457 1,093,287 1,022,454
Trade and other payables & 5 I E i fE
A 177,583 - - 177,583 177,583
Considerations payable ~ FE{IH (B 6,000 — — 6,000 6,000
Financial liabilities at fair & A L EFI A
value through profit BaMtaas
or loss 445219 — 2,842 448,061 448,061
Total @3 1,636,813 11,763 82,485 1,731,061 1,659,250

Management believes that the Group’s current
cash on hand, expected cash flows from
operations and available standby credit facilities
from financial institutions will be sufficient to meet
the Group’s working capital requirements and
repay its borrowings and obligations in the near
future when they become due.

The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily
from bank deposits, bank and other borrowings.
Borrowings at variable rates expose the Group
to cash flow interest rate risk. The Group does
not use financial derivatives to hedge against the
interest rate risk. The Group's interest rate profile
as monitored by management is set out below.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
GREMEmRMEE (B)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) 2 22020412 A31H 1 F /8 (B 5 B #5895 * U RS T)

(Continued)

(i)

36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 36. Bt E ke E = (&)
(c) Interest rate risk (Continued) (©)
[ Interest rate profile
The following table details the interest rate TRAMEEEAEZABBEF
profile of the Group’s net interest bearing HAFFEemAaEREEE
liabilities (being interest-bearing financial RBPTER - ERFHRRIE
liabilities less pledged bank deposits, time TR R HmE AR F =X
deposits and cash at banks) at the end of RS
the reporting period:
2020 2019
Effective Effective
interest rate Amount interest rate Amount
ERA=E Ex | ERFE k|
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT
Fixed rate instruments: EEIE:
Lease liabiltes (note 28) BEAE(HZ2S)  14.04%t0Z 15.00% 9572 14.04% 5,152
Bank and other borrowings BIREMEE
(note 27) (=) 4.35% toZ 15.00% 841,883 4.30% toZ 15.00% 829,041
Less: Pledged bank deposits B BERRTER
(note 23) (3£23) 1.95% toZ 215% (25,520) 0.35% (40,000)
Time deposits (note 24 (a)) T AR (324000 NAFEA - 3% (84,790)
o e TOAB
Variable rate instruments; BEIR:
Bank borrowings (note 27) oty - WiEYY)) NARER - 6.02% 193413
Less; Cash at banks RITER
(note 24(b) (B 5 24(0) 0.01t0Z% 0.35% (7,694)  00110% 035% (28,198)
(7.69) 165,215
Total net interest-bearing HEREEEE
borrowings 818,241 914,618
TREREBEEBR | FE®RE2020
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

AN
N

PSR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) & Z2020F 12531 H it F & (5 551595 - UA BRI TF)

36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

At 31 December 2020, it is estimated
that a general increase/decrease of 100
basis points in interest rates, with all
other variables held constant, would have
increased/decreased the Group’s loss
after taxation and increased/decreased
in accumulated losses by approximately
RMB77,000 (2019: RMB1,653,000).

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the
annualised impact on the Group's interest
expense that would arise assuming that the
change in interest rates had occurred at
the end of reporting period and had been
applied to floating rate instruments which
expose the Group to cash flow interest rate
risk at that date. The analysis does not take
into account exposure to fair value interest
rate risk arising from fixed rate instruments
as the Group does not hold any fixed rate
instruments which are measured at fair
value. This analysis has been performed on
the same basis for 2019.

In addition, the financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss, as disclosed
in note 29 to the consolidated financial
statements, are also subject to the interest
rate risk. If the market interest rate increased
by 1% point, with all other variables held
constant, the Group's loss after taxation
for the year would have been increased
by approximately RMB506,000 (2019:
decreased by approximately RMB1,146,000).

36. A ER(E)

202012 A31H * ;AT A
EmmEEsgE T TEH
R — #& 320058 41001
A -AEBBRBEER
e mAdmREE
BEeEm RS OAR
#77,0007T (20194 : A R ¥

1,653,0007T) °

g EESMIEEAEE
MERMIMASIHNEEY
2o FREBIMEZEHN
REPRDERE  WEIE
AREER SRR ERRD
AEIAE - ARAKEETE
BEHET IR ANETENE
EMETER  HWL KRR
BEMERTEELENAAE
FIEER o 5T HR2019F

BEREEET -

BEoN - aER A B RS SRR MY 5E
9FTHE FR - IR A ARETIAE
ENEMBENBEEIHE
B o nRMIHFEEH—

EBEDE  FEEMBEE

BAE  AAEEARFEN
BRREBEBEBERLOARE
506,0007T (20194F = &k 4> 4

A R #1,146,0007T) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e PBwRME (F&)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) 2 22020412 A31H 1 F /8 (B 5 B #5895 * U RS T)
36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 36. Bt % E b E B (/&)

(Continued)

If the market interest rate decreased by
1% point, with all other variables held
constant, the Group’s loss after taxation
for the year would have been decreased
by approximately RMB506,000 (2019:
increased by approximately RMB1,167,000).

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily
through sales and purchases that are denominated
in a foreign currency i.e. a currency other than the
functional currency of the operations to which the
transactions relate. The currencies giving rise to
this risk are primarily United States dollars (“USD"),
Swiss Francs (“CHF”), Renminbi (“RMB") and
Hong Kong dollars (“HKD"). In addition, certain
bank loans are also denominated in USD and HKD.
At present, the Group has no hedging policy with
respect to its foreign exchange exposure.

OB %%

EZ
=

MEMBMNETRE—EE
DE-FBEMEERF
T AIAREEAFENR
HeBagEmmARE
506,0007T (20194F : #2 1 49
A R #1,167,0007T) °

AEEHGNEERRERRA
AN (BN X 5 H B EB R
DEEBEAINEE)FHEMNHE
KR - slERBMEEETEE
EER(ETD  BmLER (TRt
ERD ARBTAREDRET
(IB7T)) = peoh - HETRITERI
METRABILHE BRI AL
=) 36 4 51 T S FE L B BRI R -

g S I F#E#H%E2020
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e BwRME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) & Z2020F 12531 H it F & (5 551595 - UA BRI TF)

36. A ER(E)

36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

The following table details the Group’s and
the Company’s major exposure at the end
of the reporting period to currency risk
arising from recognised assets or liabilities
denominated in a currency other than the
functional currency of the entity to which
they relate. For presentation purposes, the
amounts of the exposure are shown in
Renminbi, translated using the spot rate at
the year end date. Differences resulting from
the translation of the financial statements
of non-PRC group entities into the Group's
presentation currency are excluded.

TRAMHRCEREER
BEMNFEERERAH
ERNDEEEMEHRAN
5 E R AR R AR e B R
XWEBENERR - RITE
2% HEARESBRER
H BN HABE R 5 % s A R 5
R NEEMFETEEEE
BOMBEHRRERASAKHE
EHREREHWER -

Exposure to foreign currencies (expressed in Renminbi)

FERHAERRAARRIT
200 2019
Usb CHF RMB HKD Usp CHF VB HKD
in RtEB ARW 7 o REEE AR AT
RMB000  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMB000  RMBOOD  RVBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBODD

ARBTR ARBTR

ARBTR ARMTR ARETR ARETRL ARETR ARETR

Trade and other EARAM
receivables WA 19,130 - 360,010 - 66,642 6,128 10 -
Cash at banks and RiERRAE
in hand 2,09 - 147 3 10,938 - 12 3
Trade and other payables  EHREf
f3E (25,516) - (67) - (129%) - - —
Bank and other BAREBEE
borrowings - - (3,000) - (193413) - - -
(4.290) - 357,090 3 (128,832) 6,128 222 3
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
GREMEmRMEE (B)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) 2 22020412 A31H 1 F /8 (B 5 B #5895 * U RS T)

36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 36. M5 E e E E (&)
(Continued)
The following table indicates the FHMORBRESEETZENBR
instantaneous change in the Group's profit T U TAERNEEREREH
or loss after taxation and accumulated losses REERFEOINETEE
that would have arisen if foreign exchange MEREF R EREREARN
rates to which the Group has significant &m AN EE R R EER
exposure at the end of reporting period had ENE s 2 o

changed at that date, assuming all other risk
variables remained constant.

2020 2019
Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) Increase/  (Decrease)/ (decrease) Increase/  (Decrease)/
in foreign (decrease)in increase in inforeign  (decrease) in increase in
exchange  profit after accumulated exchange  profitafter  accumulated
rates taxation losses rates taxation losses

MEEE BRGEN  RNER  JEEX BEGET 2iER
ER/(FR) #10/0R2) (R9)/81 L7/(F%) #1/(A) (R0)/%h

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

AR%Tn AR%¥Tn ARBTT ARETT

usD eI 5% (180) 180 5% (5379) 5,379
(5%) 180 (180) (5%) 5,379 (5,379)

CHF R 5% = = 5% (256) 256
(5%) - - (5%) 256 (256)

RMB AR 5% 14,914 (14,914) 5% 9 9
(5%) (14,914) 14,914 (5%) 9 9

HKD BT 5% — — 5% — —
(5%) - - (5%) — —
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e BwRME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) & Z2020F 12531 H it F & (5 551595 - UA BRI TF)

36. A ER(E)

36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

Results of the analysis as presented in the
above table represent an aggregation of
the instantaneous effects on each of the
group entities” profit or loss after taxation
measured in the respective functional
currencies, translated into Renminbi at the
exchange rates ruling at the end of the
reporting period for presentation purposes.

The sensitivity analysis assumes that the
change in foreign exchange rates had
been applied to remeasure those financial
instruments held by the Group which expose
the Group to currency risk at the end of
the reporting period. The analysis excludes
differences that would result from the
translation of the financial statements of
non-PRC incorporated subsidiaries into the
Group's presentation currency. The analysis
has been performed on the same basis for

2019.

The Company has no material foreign

currency risk exposure.

China NT Pharma Group Company Limited

Annual Report 2020
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e SRR (8)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) 2 22020412 A31H 1 F /8 (B 5 B #5895 * U RS T)
37. DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY 37. HE— BB AT

On 21 April 2020, NT Overseas and Beijing Kangchen
entered into a sale and purchase agreement, pursuant
to which, the Company agreed to sell and Beijing
Kangchen agreed to purchase the exclusive distribution
right of Pfenex and the entire issued share capital of
NT International at a consideration of USD2,683,000
(equivalent to RMB18,371,000) and RMB900,000,000,
respectively. On 3 September 2020, the disposal
transaction was completed and NT International
ceased to be a subsidiary of the Company, and a
loss of disposal of a subsidiary of approximately
RMB32,714,000 was recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

NT International was principally engaged in selling and
marketing Miacalcic branded products and sub-licensing
of intellectual property rights and distribution rights of

2020664 A218 - R B EEFHNELL
RERIVEERSE  Bit AQF
B & L& mit R EREEEEPfenex 2
BROHEELREBEEEABRZ2HE
BITRA - KB 9 5 &2,683,0003 T
(B E R A R #18,371,0007T) & A R
900,000,0007T ° F20209F9A3H © H
ERXGEEK  MREBEBEETIEA
ARBIZHBRAR  HE—RKBAFR
2R A ARK32,714,000LE R 4E
BHERANER -

BINPEIFTI - REBEBBE T EWK
FHEREHTEERMMER RERE
ESTERDHBETTES THAR

Miacalcic Injection and Miacalcic Nasal Spray under the BEBSER o MBERERD HE -
reportable segment of Miacalcic, as referred to in note ZRBZFHBHNALT B A20205F
9. The details of this transaction have been set out in 6HSHEZ MK -

the circular of the Company dated 5 June 2020.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, Beijing
Kangchen paid US$2,683,000 (approximately
RMB18,371,000) and approximately RMB540,000,000
to the Group, leaving the remaining balance of
approximately RMB360,000,000 which was not due at
31 December 2020 as the registration of the change
of marketing rights of Miacalcic Injection and Miacalcic
Nasal Spray, as a condition for the payment, has not yet
completed at 31 December 2020.

H E2020F12A31BH tF E bt R
ERE R A& E X {92,683,000%
T (8 A K #18,371,0007T) & 4 A
R #540,000,0007 © ® N & A R ¥
360,000,000 HY £t %8 722020412 A31
HEARIE RARZE EHARE
EERENNIMEHEBELREE(1E
B FE K 1) FR2020F 12 A31H 4 &
TR °

FEHRE2020
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
GEMERRMEE (B)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) # 22020 12 31 H 1L F/E (B ZE#E B + WA RESHFR)

37. DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY 37. HE—BEMWEXT (&)
(Continued)
Particulars of the disposal transaction are as follows: HEXZHBOT:
RMB’000
ARBF T

Assets and liabilities at the date of disposal: REERHZEER BE

Intangible assets EEEE 917,582
Prepayment for acquisition of an W s T2 8 B 2 TR ROE

intangible asset 17,332
Cash and cash equivalents RekBFEY 1
Net assets disposed of BEHEEEFE 934,915
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary: HE—RWBARZERE:
Total consideration BB 918,371
Net assets disposed of BEHEEEFE (934,915)
Release of exchange reserve B[Ol fE X 1S (16,170)
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary HE—HHB AR Z &8 (32,714)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
GREMEmRMEE (B)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) & Z2020%F 12315 1 F & (b S H B - UA RIS T)

37. DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY 37. HE—EMNEAR &)

(Continued)

The loss on disposal of a subsidiary is included in the HE-—BWB AR BERFADKILE

loss for the year from discontinued operation (see note EEBZFRNBEBR(RHMTI -

9).
Consideration was satisfied by: REUATH I
Cash consideration received ERERE 558,371
Cash consideration receivable (note 22(c) /& W3R & AR {& (M 5£22(0) 360,000
Total consideration BB 918,371
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: HEEEZREMAFERE:
Cash consideration received BUWIRERE 558,371
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of PHERERREEZEY (1)
Net cash inflow on disposal of a subsidiary H&— BB AFE KA FE 558,370
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
EBHmERME (8)
For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) & Z2020F 12531 H it F & (5 551595 - UA BRI TF)
38. DISPOSAL GROUP HELD FOR SALE/
ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE

()

On 11 November 2020, NT Pharma (Group)
Co., Ltd. (“"NT Group”, a direct wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company) and an independent
third party (the “Purchaser”) to the Company
entered into a sale and purchase agreement,
pursuant to which, NT Group has agreed to sell
and Fortune Blaze has agreed to purchase the
entire issued share capital of The Mountains
Limited, which holds 100% equity interest in NT
Pharma (China) Co., Ltd. (“"NT Pharma (China)”), at
the estimated consideration of RMB126,847,000
minus the audited net assets value of NT Pharma
(China) at the completion date. During the year,
the Purchaser paid a refundable deposit of
RMB1,000,000 to NT Group.

The assets and liabilities attributable to NT Pharma
(China), which are expected to be sold within 12
months, have been classified as a disposal group
held for sale and are presented separately in the
consolidated statement of financial position as
at 31 December 2020. As the consideration of
the disposal is expected to exceed the assets less
liabilities of the disposal group, no impairment
was recognised upon reclassification and at 31
December 2020.

38. HEHECHERHS DEA
BIEHECEE

(a)
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M2020F11A11H » NT Pharma
(Group) Co., Ltd. (INT Group] * &
AARIMEEZEZENBAR)H
AARMBIYLE=ZFTEH)E
T EEWRE - B UL - NT Group[E
= H & M Fortune Blaze A Z 8 B
The Mountains Limited (H #4 Z%
EBEMBERAA(RESR
(R E))100% AR ) M 2 2 B
BORE BEAREAEARKE
126,847,000 T8 =2 % B 42 (R )
AEKNEHBERNEEZEEFE -
FAR B HMENT GroupX A R
EHE e AK%1,000,0007T °

BERREBEEHRBRMEER
BEEABEREAREE B
HEEABIERECHERSE
I H20205FE12 A31H K 2 & B 76
MRERSHIR - AREHER
BEEAEEREHEARNEER
BfE - WREH D E% KF2020
F12ANB I EERBE -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
GREMEmRMEE (B)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) 2 22020412 A31H 1 F /8 (B 5 B #5895 * U RS T)

38. DISPOSAL GROUP HELD FOR SALE/ 38. FIEHEZHEAS 78S
ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE BEHEZEE (&)
(Continued)

2020

RMB’'000

AR TR

Land use rights + b A A 8,563
Property, plant and equipment M BEREE 71,104
Other receivables H {th B We 5k 18 24
Cash and cash equivalents ReLBREFEY 142

Assets associated with the disposal STEBBFEHECHEASEE

group classified as held for sale 79,833
Bank borrowings RITEE 42,500
Other payables E h &~ 508 12,166
Net amounts due to the Group (note i) JE - A & (B 3 TR 0% RE (B 5E0) 7,944
Total liabilities for the disposal group HEHAGNAaERR 62,610
Less: Elimination of intra-group balances — J& : £2 [ (A 5B 45 &4 % 85 (B 5%0)

(note i) (7,944)

Liabilities associated with the disposal 2 EAIFEHEZHEHEARE

group classified as held for sale 54,666
Note: Bt & -
(i) Net amounts due to the Group are interest-free, unsecured and (i) ERNAEEFBFHELAES  BERAEREA
repayable on demand. The amounts are fully eliminated in the BEREE  ZERNERREMBRRE
consolidated statement of financial position. REEE -

o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A EIRERMETE (B)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) & Z2020F 12531 H it F & (5 551595 - UA BRI TF)

38. DISPOSAL GROUP HELD FOR SALE/
ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE
(Continued)

(b)

During the year ended 31 December 2020,
the Group has entered into negotiation with
a third party to dispose of certain land and
buildings of the Group with carrying amount of
RMB16,266,000. Negotiation process has already
begun before the year end and management
considered the transaction is highly probable to
be completed. On 28 March 2021, the Group
has entered into an agreement with the third
party for the sale of land and building at a total
consideration of RMB23,000,000. As the net
proceeds are expected to exceed the carrying
amount of the assets, no impairment loss has
been recognised.

39. COMMITMENTS

38. FIEFHEZHEAS DEAR
BFEHEZEER)

(b)

REE2020F12A31HIEEE » K
SEERHEAEEREEEAA
R#16,266,000 T F & T T i R iE
FH-FEZHETER - #H
BRECNRFEANMAG EBER
BRPIHAE A RETTK ° KR20214F3
A28H AEBEEEE=FREE
T REFIIHE BREAR
A R #23,000,0007T ° f 7 & HA
FIBREFESEBREENER
B QWU EERREBSE -

39. AiE

2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T R ARET T
Contracted for but not provided for & 5] 718 K £ 5
— investment in an associate —REERRIZIRE
(note 19(b)) (Bt 3£ 19(b)) 20,000 20,000
— investment in Beijing Kangchen MItFERER Z&E
(note below) (N M) 360,000 —
— intangible assets: Teriparatide — BB E MK — 156,965
380,000 176,965

Note:

On 21 April 2020, the Group and Beijing Konruns
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd (“Beijing Konruns”) entered into an
agreement, pursuant to which, the Group has conditionally
agreed to subscribe for 40% equity interests in Beijing
Kangchen (a wholly-owned subsidiary of Beijing Konruns and
holding 100% equity in interest of NT International since 3
September 2020) at a consideration of RMB360,000,000,
which will be contributed from the remaining consideration
receivable of RMB360,000,000, as disclosed in notes 22(c) and
37, at 31 December 2020.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e PBwRME (F&)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) 2 22020412 A31H 1 F /8 (B 5 B #5895 * U RS T)
39. COMMITMENTS (Continued)

39. AIE(4E)

2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT T AR TIT

Within 1 year

—F R

510 2,877

The Group is the lessee in respect of a number of
properties held under operating leases. The leases
typically run for an initial period of one year. None
of the leases includes contingent rentals.

40. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY

TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2020, expect
those disclose elsewhere in the consolidated
financial statements, transactions with the
following parties were considered to be related
party transactions in the normal ordinary course of

business of the Group:

Name of related party

Mr. Ng Tit and

Ms. Chin Yu

NT Holdings

WSNG Group Limited

Relationship with the Group

Directors of the Company,
beneficial holders of
the Company’s 21.39%
equity interest

Holding company of the
Group prior to the
Reorganisation

Mr. Ng Andy Ching Kit, son
of Mr. Ng Tit and Ms.
Chiu Yu, is one of the
directors and a former
shareholder

OB %%

AEERRELLHETEARS
EMENABRAN - EAEE—R
NERP—F BXTBEHA
He -

40. T EBE RS

HE2020512A31HIEFE - &K
BRAMBRREMBLATEES
SN BT EINRZER AR
REBEFE —REKBEFHES
EHRS:

MEs HBASENHE
#e /B
REFER /NG
BREt ARTF2139%
REZEZREBA
NT Holdings REERA
AEERMERAR

WSNG Group RBGRE

Limited RELERES
TETHRT

BEE7-RAIBRE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A EIRERMETE (B)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) & Z2020F 12531 H it F & (5 551595 - UA BRI TF)

40. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY 40. T EBEEFRZ(E)
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

Remuneration for key management personnel TREINAEEETZEEAEN
of the Group, including amounts paid to the - BEENTARARES (K
Company's directors as disclosed in note 10 and BRIFI0RE FTHREHFHMAL
certain of the highest paid employees as disclosed (% 58 7O BT 5E11) A9 357 B -

in note 11, is as follows:

2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT T AR T T

Short-term employee benefits EEE BRI 10,268 20,874
Post-employment benefits BEER 12 ZE Al 580 1,468
Equity-settled share-based payment UARE 25 45 B0 LA IR 15
expenses SN EI’J R A — 7,086
10,848 29,428
The above remuneration is included in “staff B T8 TR &
costs” (note 7(b)). 7(b)) °
2020 2019
Name of related party Nature of transactions RMB’'000 RMB’000
Bk 5 4 RH5ME AR¥TR ARET T
WSNG Group Limited Sales of Miacalcic
Injection and Miacalcic
Nasal Spray 18,335 —
HE®RE BT E &
mEEBEE
The directors of the Company are of the opinion RRABEFERE  LHlBEEITR
that the above related parties transactions were SR — MR ERTET LB
conducted on normal commercial terms and were ZRTMEEE BERAEEA
priced with reference to prevailing market prices, BEBBEPET -
and in the ordinary course of business of the
Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
GREMEmRMEE (B)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) 2 22020412 A31H 1 F /8 (B 5 B #5895 * U RS T)

40.

41.

42.

MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(d) Balances with related parties

40.

TEREIREZ(A)

(d) [FEESEDT 45 &R

2020 2019
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR ARET T
Trade receivables el e
— WSNG Group Limited — WSNG Group Limited 17,549 —

NON-ADJUSTING EVENT AFTER THE
REPORTING PERIOD

Subsequent to 31 December 2020, the Group
obtained borrowings of approximately HK$30,000,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB25,248,000) from an
independent third party, bearing interest rate at 24%
per annum, for financing its working capital.

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Certain comparative figures have been restated and/or
reclassified due to the presentation for the discontinued
operation during the year, as disclosed in note 9 and to
conform with current year’s presentation.

41.

42.

OB %%

BRERRZFARER

MR2020F12A31H % - AE B ZF B
24% [ % 37 % = 75 BX 15 4930,000,000/%
IT (IR & R # A R#25,248,0007T) 89 {5
B REZELESRHES -

EEREF

M TR E  AERNZIIEKIE
WEE  RABRKEEZ 2FRF—
B ETHBETECEFIR RE

A -

o

EamagE |

FEHRE2020
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
GEMERRMEE (B)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) # 22020 12 31 H 1L F/E (B ZE#E B + WA RESHFR)
43. COMPANY LEVEL STATEMENT OF 43. ‘) fE TH #Y B % R R &

358

FINANCIAL POSITION

2020 2019
Notes RMB’000 RMB’'000
B 5% AR T ARETF T
Non-current assets kRBEE
Interests in subsidiaries NLREENGIRE R - 18 360,000 799,107
Prepayment for acquisition of an W —HEF & E
intangible asset Z B FIR — 17,576
... 360000 816,683
Current assets RBEE
Amount due from subsidiaries JFE Ui B B8 A B FR T8 — —
Other receivables H b JE U FR08 210 65
Cash at banks and in hand WOTERERE 312 45,005
e e 52 45,070
Current liabilities REBAE
Other borrowings HuEE 212,604 48,690
Other payables and accruals E M FE P 50 &
EEtE A 18,429 12,099
Amounts due to subsidiaries N NGIE 2] 44,196 244,464
Financial liabilities at fair value BAABEYAERE
through profit or loss RemaE — 432,108
215229 737,361
Net current liabilities RBEEE (274,707) (692,291)
Total assets HWEE 360,522 861,753
Total assets less current HWEERARBARS
liabilities 85,293 124,392
Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Other borrowings HEMEE 23,864 22,206
Financial liabilities at fair value EARBEIABZNE
through profit or loss Ak 472 2,842
NET ASSETS EEFE 60,957 99,344
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BARR G E 34
Share capital [N 1 1
Reserves 1 60,956 99,343
TOTAL EQUITY EHEE 60,957 99,344
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
GREMEmRMEE (B)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) 2 22020412 A31H 1 F /8 (B 5 B #5895 * U RS T)
44. EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

45,

Subsequent to 31 December 2020, the Group
obtained borrowings of approximately HK$30,000,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB25,248,000) from an
independent third party, bearing interest at 24% per
annum, for financing its working capital.

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,
NEW STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT
YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2020

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the
HKICPA has issued a number of amendments and a new
standard which are not yet effective for the year ended
31 December 2020 and which have not been adopted in
these financial statements. These developments include
the following which may be relevant to the Group.

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts and the related
Amendments'
Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual
Framework?
Amendments to HKFRS 9, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform
HKAS 39, HKFRS 7, — Phase 2¢

HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets between

and HKAS 28 an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture?
Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current

or Non-current and related
amendments to Hong Kong
Interpretation 5 (2020)"
Amendments to HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment —
Proceeds before Intended Use?

Amendments to HKAS 37 Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling
a Contract?

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2018-2020?

44, REHEEE

45,

OB %%

2020 12A31BH % - A& BIEF R
24% [A) %8 37 55 = 5 BX 15 4930,000,000/%8
7T (FH & R #) A R #25,248,0007T) B9 15
B hREZEBEEAGCRHES -

B E2020F12A831BILEEE
EMHEERENWIERT - FE
AR ERNTE

EENEUBREEMH A BEEE
MAEEBMELIEBI R —HANER -
BREZE2020F12A31MHEFEHERE
BATRAEERNBRERD - % 5F
BRERBFENTRERAEEEENE
8 -

BAMBAEENETR  RRAORABET

EEMBRERAUFR  REABSER
A H|
BANBASEAUFR  MEEENE 2
BT BRGHEN
$39%  BRHHRS
RRETH - BRMH
BERAFAFRER
FBREER R 163
BEMBREENFI0E RAZEABERAY

ZBARRAAE ARCECRNEE
EH| 285 HEREE
ERGEANFR 2B BEENEARDR
FRBREBRE
F55 (20205) 7
HBET
BEGHENZ6R 2B BE BERR
— R RS
5 3R
BRSO ENETR 2 6] BEEAY
—BAH
A2
RAYBEREESR 2018%F 2202006
BEABREES
ZEE M
BugBE | FE®mRE2020
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e BwRME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) # 22020 12 31 H 1L F/E (B ZE#E B + WA RESHFR)

45. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, 45,

NEW STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT
YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2020 (Continued)

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2023

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2022

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2021

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
what the impact of these amendments, new standards
and interpretations is expected to be in the period of
initial application. So far the Group is not aware of
any aspect of the new standards which are likely to
have significant impact on the consolidated financial
statements.
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